
EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE MEETING 
Wednesday, August 10, 2022 at 2:00 p.m. 
Concho Valley Council of Governments 

5430 Link Rd, San Angelo, Texas 76904 and via Teleconference 

Join By Zoom Teleconference - https://us06web.zoom.us/j/81039610821 
*Meeting ID: 810 3961 0821 *Passcode: 392596

833 548 0282 US Toll-free 877 853 5247 US Toll-free 
888 788 0099 US Toll-free 833 548 0276 US Toll-free 

Agenda 

NOTICE:  The Concho Valley Council of Governments may discuss, deliberate and take all appropriate 
action on any matter listed on this Agenda.  Items on this Agenda may be taken out of the order listed.  The 
Executive Committee reserves the right to deliberate in closed session pursuant to 551 of the Texas 
Government Code.  Public comment is limited to three minutes per person on any agenda item. 

BUSINESS 

1. DETERMINATION OF QUORUM AND CALL TO ORDER

2. INVOCATION & PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

3. PUBLIC COMMENT

4. CONSENT AGENDA

a. Consider minutes from the July 13, 2022 Meeting and take appropriate action.
b. Consider and take appropriate action concerning Staff Travel Report June 2022

5. REGULAR AGENDA

a. Consider and take appropriate action concerning Checks in excess of $2,000 for June
2022

b. Consider and take appropriate action concerning the Budget Comparison Report for
Head Start Grant 829 FY 21-22, YTD June 1, 2021 through June 30, 2022

c. Consider and take appropriate action concerning the Budget Comparison Report for
Head Start Nutrition FY 21- 22 Grant H02, YTD October 1, 2021 through June 30,
2022.

d. Consider and take appropriate action concerning the Budget Comparison Report for
Head Start Grant H03 FY 22-23, YTD June 1, 2021 through June 30, 2022.

The meeting place is accessible to persons with disabilities. If assistance is needed to observe or 
comment, please call the CVCOG office at 325-944-9666 at least 24 hours prior to the meeting. 

@ 
CONCHO VALLEY 

COUNCIL OF GOVERNMENTS 

https://us06web.zoom.us/j/81039610821


Notice of Public Meeting – pg. 2 

e. Consider and take appropriate action concerning the Head Start Credit Card/Open
Account Summary for June 2022

f. Consider and take appropriate action concerning the Regional Law Enforcement
Training Academy Resolution - Grant #1480417

g. Consider and take appropriate action concerning the Juvenile Justice Services
Resolution - Grant #1484322

h. Consider and take appropriate action concerning the Juvenile Justice Services
Resolution - Grant #1484323

i. Consider and take appropriate action concerning the CVCOG Regional Planning
Resolution - Grant #2952907

j. Consider and take appropriate action concerning the CVCOG Regional Planning
Resolution - Grant #2952908

k. Consider and take appropriate action concerning the VAWA Training Project
Resolution -Grant #3973002

l. Consider and take appropriate action concerning the VAWA Training Project
Resolution - Grant #3973003

m. Consider and take appropriate action concerning the Supplemental Training
Resolution -Grant #4419601

n. Consider and take appropriate action concerning the Concho Valley Regional
Communications Upgrades Resolution - Grant #4467201

o. Consider and take appropriate action concerning the Multi-Agency Coordination
Center Communications Resolution - Grant #4512301

p. Consider and take appropriate action concerning the Kimble County Tower Project
Resolution - Grant #4556601

q. Consider and take appropriate action concerning the Texas CVCOG RICP Final

r. Consider and take appropriate action concerning to increase previous Board approval
for MIP System from $42,000 for 3 users to $50,000 for an additional 13 users

s. Consider and take appropriate action on the request to enter into another five-year agreement
with ADP services for Payroll Processing and HR On-Boarding, with the addition of Time
Solution. Time Solution will replace our current proprietary time system

t. Consider and take appropriate action concerning 5-year copier lease agreement with
Total Office Solutions with an estimated cost of $66,080.83



Notice of Public Meeting- pg. 3 

u. Consider and take appropriate action on the CVCOG FY 22-23 Proposed Annual Budgets 

1. State Salary Comparability Schedule for FY 22-23 

11. Employee Salary Schedule and Fringe Benefits for FY 22-23 

u1. Administrative Budgets for FY 22-23 

1v. Executive Director's Salary 

v. Consider and take appropriate action on the CVCOG Investment Policy, Strategies and 
Broker/Dealer List. 

6. INFORMATION ITEMS & REPORTS 

a. Review of the CV COG Monthly Financials for June 2022 

b. CVCOG Head Start Director's Report 

c. Interim Executive Director's Report 

7. CLOSED SESSION 

a. Personnel Matters 

8. FOLLOW UP AND ADMINISTRATIVE ITEMS 

a. Update from the Executive Director Evaluation Committee and take appropriate action if 
necessary. 

b. Consider and take appropriate action on the term and the role of the Interim Executive 
Director. 

9. ADJOURNMENT 

******************** 
Posted in accordance with the Texas Government Code, Title V, Chapter 551, Section. 053 this, S1'1 

day of August 2022. 

The Concho Valley Council of Governments reserves the right to conduct an executive/closed session at any time during 
the course of this meeting to discuss any matter listed on the agenda posted.for this meeting, as needed, pursuant to one or 
more authorized and applicable exceptions to an open meeting described in Chapter 551 of the Texas Government Code 
(the Texas Open Meeting Act), including but not limited to the .following statuto,y exceptions: Texas Government Code 
Sections 551.071 and 551.129 (Consultation with Attorney), 551. 072 (Deliberation Regarding Real Property), 551. 073 
(Deliberation Regarding Prospective Gift or Donation), 551.074 (Personnel Mailers), 551.076 and 551.089 (Deliberation 
Regarding Security Devices or Security Audits), or 551.087 (Deliberation Regarding Economic Development Negotiations). 

Erin M. Hernandez, Int 



EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE MEETING MINUTES 
Wednesday, July 13, 2022 

The Executive Committee of the Concho Valley Council of Governments met on Wednesday, July 13, 
2022 at 5430 Link Rd., San Angelo, Texas 76904 and via Zoom Teleconference.   

Members present were:  
Hal Spain, Chairman, Coke County Judge 
Jim O’Bryan, Vice-Chairman, Reagan County Judge 
Brandon Corbin, Secretary, Menard County Judge  
Jerry Bearden, Mason County Judge  
Molly Criner, Irion County Judge  
Fred Deaton, Crockett County Judge  
Bill Dendle, San Angelo ISD Board Member  
David Dillard, Concho County Judge 
Deborah Horwood, Sterling City Judge 
Souli Shanklin, Edwards County Judge 
Delbert Roberts, Kimble County Judge  
Charlie Bradley, Schleicher County Judge 
Lucy Gonzales, COSA Council Member, District 4 
Frank Trull, McCulloch County Judge 

Members absent were:  
Steve Floyd, Tom Green County Judge 
Rachel Duran, Sutton County Judge 

BUSINESS 
Chairman Hal Spain announced the presence of a quorum and called the meeting to order at 2:00 p.m. 

Judge Delbert Roberts gave the invocation and led the Pledge of Allegiance. 

There was no public comment. 

APPROVAL of the Consent Agenda 

a. Judge Jerry Bearden made a motion to approve the Meeting Minutes from June 8, 2022.  Judge
David Dillard seconded the motion.  No questions or discussion.  The motion passed
unanimously.

b. Judge Jerry Bearden made a motion to approve the Staff Travel report from May 2022.  Judge
David Dillard seconded the motion.  No questions or discussion.  The motion passed
unanimously.

APPROVAL of Checks 
The checks in excess of $2,000 written for May 2022 were presented by Assistant Director of Finance, 
Michael Meek.  Judge Delbert Roberts made a motion to approve the checks as presented.  Judge Molly 
Criner seconded the motion.  No questions or discussion.  The motion passed unanimously.   

e 
CONCHO VALLEY 

COUNCIL OF GOVERNMENTS 



APPROVAL of the Budget Comparison Report for Head Start Grant 829 
Carolina Raymond, Director of Head Start, presented the Budget Comparison Report for Head Start Grant 
829 FY 21-22, YTD June 1 through May 31, 2022 for approval.  Judge David Dillard made a motion to approve 
the Budget Comparison report as presented.  Judge Fred Deaton seconded the motion.  No questions or 
discussion.  The motion passed unanimously.  

APPROVAL of the Budget Comparison for Head Start Nutrition Grant H02 
Carolina Raymond, Director of Head Start, presented the Budget Comparison Report for Head Start Nutrition 
FY 21-22 Grant H02 FY 21-22, YTD October 1, 2021 through May 31, 2022 for approval. Judge David Dillard 
made a motion to approve Budget Comparison Report as presented.  Judge Charlie Bradley seconded the 
motion.  No questions or discussion.  The motion passed unanimously.  

APPROVAL of the Head Start Credit Card/Open Account Summary Transactions 
Carolina Raymond, Director of Head Start, presented the CVCOG Head Start Credit Card/Open Account 
Summary Transactions for the month of May 2022.  Judge David Dillard made a motion to approve the 
summary of transactions as presented.  Judge Jim O’Bryan seconded the motion. No questions or discussion. 
The motion passed unanimously. 

APPROVAL of the CVCOG Head Start Implementation Plans 
Carolina Raymond, Director of Head Start, presented the 2022 CVCOG Head Start Implementation Plans for 
approval. Judge David Dillard made a motion to approve the plans as presented.  Judge Jerry Bearden 
seconded the motion. No questions or discussion.  The motion passed unanimously. 

APPROVAL of the CVCOG Head Start Emergency Response Plans for all sites 
Carolina Raymond, Director of Head Start, presented the 2022 CVCOG Head Start Head Start Emergency 
Response Plans for all sites for approval. Judge Jerry Bearden made a motion to approve the plans as 
presented.  Judge David Dillard seconded the motion. No questions or discussion.  The motion passed 
unanimously. 

APPROVAL of the CVCOG Head Start Operations Policies and Procedures for 2022-2023 School Year 
Carolina Raymond, Director of Head Start, presented the CVCOG Head Start Operations Policies and 
Procedures for 2022-2023 School Year for approval. Judge Souli Shanklin made a motion to approve the 
policies and procedures as presented.  Judge Charlie Bradley seconded the motion. No questions or 
discussion.  The motion passed unanimously. 

APPROVAL of the CVCOG Head Start Personnel Policies Addendum 
Carolina Raymond, Director of Head Start, presented the CVCOG Head Start Personnel Policies Addendum 
for approval. Judge Souli Shanklin made a motion to approve the policies and procedures as presented.  
Judge David Dillard seconded the motion. No questions or discussion.  The motion passed unanimously. 

APPROVAL of the Resolution 22-07131 Delegation of Signature Authority for CVCOG 
Felicitee Jones, Director of Human Resources, presented the Resolution 22-07131 Delegation of Signature 
Authority for CVCOG for approval. Judge Jerry Bearden made a motion to approve the resolution as 
presented.  Judge David Dillard seconded the motion. No questions or discussion.  The motion passed 
unanimously. 

INFORMATION ITEMS & REPORTS 
a. Toni Roberts, Director of AaA – Update on 211 CV Virtual Site Review for Accreditation  (took

place on July 7, 2022) – Erin Hernandez, Assistant Executive Director, read an email received
from AIRS Accreditation regarding the 211 CV Virtual Site Review. It stated that all stages of the



Accreditation had been successfully completed and is valid starting October 1, 2020 until 
October 1, 2025. A congratulations was offered to Ms. Roberts and her entire staff regarding this 
accomplishment. Ms. Roberts then spoke, reiterating the words of Ms. Hernandez and also 
thanked everyone for their hard work. 

b. Michael Meek, Assistant Director of Finance, gave the report of the CVCOG Monthly Financials
for May 2022. He gave an overview of the balance sheet, schedule of revenue and cash flow.

c. Carolina Raymond, Director of Head Start, gave a report on the operations, enrollment and
disability numbers, and state of the Head Start and Early Head Start Centers.

CLOSED SESSION 
Chairman Hal Spain requested a motion to go to the executive closed session regarding personnel matters.   
Judge Souli Shanklin made a motion to place the meeting in recess. Judge Charlie Bradley seconded the 
motion. There being no questions or discussion, Chairman Hal Spain called the meeting to recess at 2:20 
p.m. 

a. Personnel Matters: After the executive session, the regular meeting was called back to 
order at 2:50 p.m.

FOLLOW UP AND ADMINISTRATIVE ITEMS 
a. APPROVAL of the appointment of an Interim Executive Direction

Judge Jerry Bearden make a motion to appoint Erin Hernandez as the Interim Executive Director 
in the absence of John Austin Stokes. Judge Charlie Bradley seconded the motion. No 
questions or discussion.  The motion passed unanimously.

b. Announcements and consideration of future agenda items
a) Judge Souli Shanklin – Declaration in Edwards County and asked that everyone pass it 

through the commissioner’s court.

ADJOURNMENT 
There being no further items to discuss, Judge Jerry Bearden made a motion to adjourn the meeting.  Judge 
Fred Deaton seconded the motion. Chairman Hal Spain adjourned the meeting at 3:04 p.m. 

Duly adopted at a meeting of the Executive Committee of the Concho Valley Council of Governments on this 
10th day of August 2022.  

________________________________  ___________________________________ 
Judge Hal Spain - Chairman   Judge Jim O’Bryan, Vice-Chairman 



Concho Valley Council of Governments

Travel Report

For the month of June 2022

Employee Name Program Nature of Travel Dates
Estimated 

Cost

Travel 

Advances

John Austin Stokes EX Dir Sunset Advisory Commission 06/21/22 - 06/22/22 $565.68 $0.00 

John Austin Stokes EX Dir TARC Meetng 06/08/22 - 06/12/22 $1,643.00 $0.00 

$2,208.68 $0.00 

F:\Travel\Travel Reports\Travel Report 21-22Travel Report 21-22June 2022 Page 1 of 1



CVCOG

Check/Voucher Register

From 6/1/2022 Through 6/30/2022

Number
Document 

Date
Document 

Name Transaction Description Document Amount

192238192238 6/1/2022 CARDMEMBER SERVICE Admin: June 2022 Credit Card Payment 7,401.41 

192240192240 6/1/2022 CITY OF SONORA AaA: HDM Meal Sonora 03-22 7,237.88 

192241192241 6/1/2022 CITY OF SONORA AaA: HDM Sonora 04-22 6,641.44 

192244192244 6/1/2022 CVCOG TRANSIT DISTRICT AaA: Urban trips 04/22 2,175.00 

192248192248 6/1/2022 FRONTIER COMMUNICATIONS PUB: 911 Selective Routing 02/19/22 - 03/18/22 6,521.58 

192249192249 6/1/2022 GEO-COMM, INC PUB: 911 maintnr annul licen/suprt/mainte 05/01/22-04/30/22 7,830.00 

192253192253 6/1/2022 J Thomas & Associates Inc AaA: 1300482082 05-22 Rent 2,250.00 

192259192259 6/1/2022 MASON COUNTY AaA: Congregate Meals Mason 04-22 3,158.28 

6/1/2022 MASON COUNTY AaA: HDM Meals Mason 04-22 6,759.63 

192263192263 6/1/2022 SOUTHLAND PARK OF ANGELO L.P. Facility: Jun 2022 Rent COG main office 06-1-22 to 06-30-22 26,000.00 

192265192265 6/1/2022 SUDDENLINK B2B ADMIN: acct 7043367011 05/15/22 - 06/14/22 3,128.15 

192267192267 6/1/2022 Sysco West Texas HS/EHS: Rio Vista Food for Children & Kitchen Supplies 2,405.14 

6/1/2022 Sysco West Texas HS: Blackshear Food for Children & Kitchen Supplies 2,442.71 

192281192281 6/7/2022 CARDMEMBER SERVICE Admin: June 2022 credit card payment 2,862.25 

192282192282 6/7/2022 Citibank June 2022 credit card payment 35,679.83 

192309192309 6/7/2022 Sysco West Texas HS/EHS: Day Food for Children 2,541.07 

6/7/2022 Sysco West Texas HS/EHS: Day Food for Children & Kitchen Supplies 3,681.78 

192311192311 6/7/2022 TEXAS COMMUNICATIONS PUB: Antenna Removal and Relocation 2,666.93 

192320192320 6/10/2022 CARDMEMBER SERVICE Admin: June 2022 credit card payment 18,032.37 

192322192322 6/15/2022 AFLAC Acct J5711 May 2022 Premium 7,892.84 

192323192323 6/15/2022 Amazon Capital Services, Inc. HS/EHS: Rio Vista for Pampers and Pullups 4,069.94 

192324192324 6/15/2022 AMERICAN UNITED LIFE INSURANCE COMPANY G 00620509 Employees life premium: 06/01/2022 to 06/30/2022 8,332.73 

192325192325 6/15/2022 AMERITAS LIFE INSURANCE CORP Acct 010-028641 Dental Premiums 05/01/2022 to 05/31/2022 8,403.04 

192327192327 6/15/2022 BANK & TRUST Admin: Health Saving Acct for payroll 06/15/2022 4,527.74 

192328192328 6/15/2022 BFD Interiors Admin: 46 office chairs for link road 15,534.20 

192329192329 6/15/2022 BLUE CROSS AND BLUE SHIELD OF TEXAS 029143 CVCOG Group Health Ins 2022 06/01/22 - 07/01/22 176,275.44 

192332192332 6/15/2022 CITY OF BRADY AaA: HDM Meals Brady 05-22 4,756.59 

192335192335 6/15/2022 CITY OF SONORA AaA: HDM Sonora 05-22 7,036.38 

192336192336 6/15/2022 COKE COUNTY AaA: HDM Meal Coke 05-22 2,162.94 

192338192338 6/15/2022 CVCOG TRANSIT DISTRICT AaA: Urban trips 05/22 2,572.50 

192344192344 6/15/2022 KIMBLE COUNTY SCBA AaA: Congregate Meals KMOW 05-22 2,274.00 

6/15/2022 KIMBLE COUNTY SCBA AaA: HDM Meals KMOW 05-22 3,175.38 

192349192349 6/15/2022 MENARD COUNTY AaA: HDM Meals Menard 05-22 3,277.50 

192354192354 6/15/2022 NATIONWIDE RETIREMENT SOLUTIONS ADMIN: NACO & Roth 457B Payroll 06-15-2022 3,490.00 

192362192362 6/15/2022 Sysco West Texas HS/EHS: Rio Vista Food for Children & Kitchen Supplies 2,405.14 

6/15/2022 Sysco West Texas HS: Blackshear Food for Children & Kitchen Supplies 2,442.71 

192367192367 6/15/2022 Sysco West Texas HS/EHS: Rio Vista Food for Children & Kitchen Supplies 2,301.29 

6/15/2022 Sysco West Texas HS: Blackshear Food for Children & Kitchen Supplies 2,442.71 

192370192370 6/23/2022 Apple Inc HS: All centers for ipad's, kids grip cases & AppleCare 2,585.00 

Date: 7/12/22 07:50:58 AM Page: 1



CVCOG

Check/Voucher Register

From 6/1/2022 Through 6/30/2022

Number
Document 

Date
Document 

Name Transaction Description Document Amount

6/23/2022 Apple Inc HS: All centers for ipad's, kids grip cases & AppleCare 16,110.00 

192373192373 6/23/2022 CARDMEMBER SERVICE Admin: June 2022 credit card payment 9,311.04 

192379192379 6/23/2022 FRONTIER COMMUNICATIONS PUB: 911 Selective Routing 05/19/22 - 06/18/22 6,521.58 

192393192393 6/23/2022 MASON COUNTY AaA: Congregate Meals Mason 05-22 3,113.64 

6/23/2022 MASON COUNTY AaA: HDM Meals Mason 05-22 6,199.13 

192402192402 6/23/2022 TXU ENERGY RETAIL COMPANY LLC HS/Admin: Electricity 6,133.63 

192408192408 6/29/2022 ABILA, INC Admin: MIP Customer Service Hours 06/16/22 - 08/30/22 7,470.00 

192413192413 6/29/2022 BANK & TRUST Admin: Health Saving Acct for payroll 06/30/2022 4,547.74 

192415192415 6/29/2022 CITY OF SAN ANGELO AGING PROGRAM AaA: Congregate Meals COSA 04-22 9,941.60 

6/29/2022 CITY OF SAN ANGELO AGING PROGRAM AaA: Congregate Meals COSA 05-22 10,313.12 

192420192420 6/29/2022 ENVIRONMENTAL SYSTEMS RESEARCH INSTITUTE, INC. PUB: ESRI Mapping Licensing Renewal 18,300.00 

192429192429 6/29/2022 NATIONWIDE RETIREMENT SOLUTIONS ADMIN: NACO & Roth 457B Payroll 06-30-2022 3,455.00 

192430192430 6/29/2022 ODP Business Solutions LLC PUB: Binders and Ink Cartridge 3,741.99 

192439192439 6/29/2022 Sysco West Texas HS/EHS: Day Food for children & Kitchen Supplies 3,577.12 

192443192443 6/29/2022 VERIZON BUSINESS-15043 PUB: 911 MPLS Network 05/01/22 - 05/31/22 58,457.01 

192449192449 6/29/2022 WESTERN STATES COMMUNICATIONS, INC. PUB: CVCOG HQ Host Equipment Movement 4,500.00 

228228 6/16/2022 CB Concho Valley Electric Cooperative, Inc. Link and CVT: Elec srv for acct 1012826 02/20/22-03/20/22 3,074.03 

238238 6/16/2022 CB Modern Office CVT: benches for depot lobby 3 charges 2-JL CB & 1-DE CB 4,917.00 

239239 6/16/2022 CB NameTagsExpress.com SVP: name tags 2,241.90 

84038403 6/10/2022 FF Sam's Club HS All Ctrs: batteries, folders, pens,liners,note pads, wps 2,242.04 

Report Total 599,541.09 

Date: 7/12/22 07:50:58 AM Page: 2



CVCOG

Summary Budget Comparison 

Grant 829, Head Start FY 21-22

From 6/1/2021 Through 6/30/2022

Account Code Account Title YTD Budget $ YTD Actual YTD Budget $ Variance Percent Total Budget Used

829 HHS-ACF Grant 829, Head Start FY 21-22 06CH010970

   004    Revenue

      4170       HHS-ACF Head Start ARP 06HE001000 C6 676,023.00 151,079.12 (524,943.88) 22.34%

      4171       HHS-ACF Head Start 06CH010970-03 6,525,867.00 6,512,865.83 (13,001.17) 99.80%

      4172       HHS-ACF Head Start CRRSA 06HE001000 C5 170,048.00 170,048.00 0.00 100.00%

      4411       IK Contributions 1,612,061.00 1,338,283.87 (273,777.13) 83.01%

      4523       Local Revenue 8,105.34 7,273.50 (831.84) 89.73%

      4711       Sale of Equipment 11,949.79 0.00 (11,949.79) 0.00%

Total 004 Revenue 9,004,054.13 8,179,550.32 (824,503.81) 90.84%

   400    Head Start CAN NO 9-G064122

      5110       General Wages 2,320,722.77 2,320,722.77 0.00 100.00%

      5118       General Overtime Hours 139.81 139.81 0.00 100.00%

      5119       Holiday Work Time 84.60 84.60 0.00 100.00%

      5150       Vacation Time Allocation 25,417.67 25,417.67 0.00 100.00%

      5151       Medicare Tax 32,890.47 32,890.47 0.00 100.00%

      5172       Worker's Comp Insurance 15,518.04 15,518.04 0.00 100.00%

      5173       SUTA 2,930.93 2,930.93 0.00 100.00%

      5174       Health Insurance Benefit 584,843.67 584,843.67 0.00 100.00%

      5175       Dental Insurance Benefit 24,077.40 24,077.40 0.00 100.00%

      5176       Life Insurance Benefit 16,998.47 16,998.47 0.00 100.00%

      5177       HSA Insurance Benefit 21,900.00 21,900.00 0.00 100.00%

      5181       Retirement 271,730.40 271,730.40 0.00 100.00%

      5199       Indirect Allocation 212,021.59 212,021.59 0.00 100.00%

      5206       HR Service Center 127,107.34 127,107.34 0.00 100.00%

      5207       Procurement Service Center 82,169.46 82,169.46 0.00 100.00%

      5208       Information Technology Service Center 78,868.33 78,868.33 0.00 100.00%

      5291       Contract Services 51,736.83 51,736.83 0.00 100.00%

      5293       HS Health & Disab Svc 480.96 480.96 0.00 100.00%

      5294       HS Policy Council 212.04 212.04 0.00 100.00%

      5296       HS Parent Service 536.65 536.65 0.00 100.00%

      5309       Travel-In Region 4,944.93 4,944.93 0.00 100.00%

      5413       HS Site Rent 120,185.50 116,962.76 3,222.74 97.31%

      5433       HS Site Center Utilities 92,000.00 91,938.73 61.27 99.93%

      5451       Facility Maintenance 46,563.35 46,563.35 0.00 100.00%

      5453       HS Site Center Bldg Maint 97,617.11 94,975.78 2,641.33 97.29%

      5510       Supplies 30,695.46 30,695.46 0.00 100.00%

      5512       HS Class Room Supplies 45,734.82 45,734.82 0.00 100.00%

      5514       HS Medical Supplies 2,294.72 2,294.72 0.00 100.00%

Page:  1



CVCOG

Summary Budget Comparison 

Grant 829, Head Start FY 21-22

From 6/1/2021 Through 6/30/2022

Account Code Account Title YTD Budget $ YTD Actual YTD Budget $ Variance Percent Total Budget Used

829 HHS-ACF Grant 829, Head Start FY 21-22 06CH010970

      5518       HS Diapers and Wipes 6,588.05 6,588.05 0.00 100.00%

      5622       Internal Computer/Software 10,198.00 10,198.00 0.00 100.00%

      5632       Copier 23,952.66 23,952.66 0.00 100.00%

      5711       Insurance 9,602.05 9,602.05 0.00 100.00%

      5721       Printing 1,532.32 1,532.32 0.00 100.00%

      5722       Ads & Promotions 2,119.25 2,119.25 0.00 100.00%

      5751       Training 200.00 93.60 106.40 46.80%

      5753       Dues and fees 5,721.03 5,092.83 628.20 89.01%

      5760       HS Site Center Communications 17,138.58 17,062.58 76.00 99.55%

      5762       Postage/freight 950.06 950.06 0.00 100.00%

      5796       Safety 765.68 765.68 0.00 100.00%

Total 400 Head Start CAN NO 9-G064122 4,389,191.00 4,382,455.06 6,735.94 99.85%

   401    Early Head Start CAN NO 9-G064122

      5110       General Wages 1,179,674.89 1,179,674.89 0.00 100.00%

      5118       General Overtime Hours 107.79 107.79 0.00 100.00%

      5150       Vacation Time Allocation 6,324.88 6,324.88 0.00 100.00%

      5151       Medicare Tax 16,398.27 16,396.89 1.38 99.99%

      5172       Worker's Comp Insurance 6,848.67 6,848.67 0.00 100.00%

      5173       SUTA 1,235.43 1,235.43 0.00 100.00%

      5174       Health Insurance Benefit 311,569.61 311,569.61 0.00 100.00%

      5175       Dental Insurance Benefit 12,809.38 12,809.38 0.00 100.00%

      5176       Life Insurance Benefit 8,640.45 8,640.45 0.00 100.00%

      5177       HSA Insurance Benefit 12,443.59 12,443.59 0.00 100.00%

      5181       Retirement 138,187.99 138,187.99 0.00 100.00%

      5199       Indirect Allocation 107,737.76 107,737.76 0.00 100.00%

      5206       HR Service Center 36,111.74 36,111.74 0.00 100.00%

      5207       Procurement Service Center 23,467.57 23,467.57 0.00 100.00%

      5208       Information Technology Service Center 22,321.38 22,321.38 0.00 100.00%

      5291       Contract Services 604.72 604.72 0.00 100.00%

      5293       HS Health & Disab Svc 24.94 24.94 0.00 100.00%

      5294       HS Policy Council 61.89 61.89 0.00 100.00%

      5296       HS Parent Service 2,254.29 2,254.29 0.00 100.00%

      5309       Travel-In Region 1,094.01 1,094.01 0.00 100.00%

      5413       HS Site Rent 35,387.24 35,387.24 0.00 100.00%

      5433       HS Site Center Utilities 28,285.86 28,026.04 259.82 99.08%

      5451       Facility Maintenance 11,758.53 11,758.53 0.00 100.00%

      5453       HS Site Center Bldg Maint 29,371.04 27,587.58 1,783.46 93.92%

Page:  2



CVCOG

Summary Budget Comparison 

Grant 829, Head Start FY 21-22

From 6/1/2021 Through 6/30/2022

Account Code Account Title YTD Budget $ YTD Actual YTD Budget $ Variance Percent Total Budget Used

829 HHS-ACF Grant 829, Head Start FY 21-22 06CH010970

      5510       Supplies 10,679.29 9,289.53 1,389.76 86.98%

      5512       HS Class Room Supplies 21,447.43 20,021.73 1,425.70 93.35%

      5514       HS Medical Supplies 991.33 645.93 345.40 65.15%

      5518       HS Diapers and Wipes 9,375.69 9,375.69 0.00 100.00%

      5622       Internal Computer/Software 1,689.50 1,689.50 0.00 100.00%

      5632       Copier 6,744.93 6,744.93 0.00 100.00%

      5711       Insurance 1,247.22 1,247.22 0.00 100.00%

      5721       Printing 700.21 700.21 0.00 100.00%

      5722       Ads & Promotions 330.89 330.89 0.00 100.00%

      5753       Dues and fees 997.23 829.27 167.96 83.15%

      5760       HS Site Center Communications 3,771.27 3,747.44 23.83 99.36%

      5762       Postage/freight 30.84 30.84 0.00 100.00%

      5796       Safety 266.25 266.25 0.00 100.00%

Total 401 Early Head Start CAN NO 9-G064122 2,050,994.00 2,045,596.69 5,397.31 99.74%

   402    Head Start T&TA CAN NO 9-G064120

      5308       Head Start T & T A 56,824.00 56,824.00 0.00 100.00%

Total 402 Head Start T&TA CAN NO 9-G064120 56,824.00 56,824.00 0.00 100.00%

   403    Early Head Start T&TA CAN NO 9-G064121

      5308       Head Start T & T A 28,858.00 27,990.08 867.92 96.99%

Total 403 Early Head Start T&TA CAN NO 9-G064121 28,858.00 27,990.08 867.92 96.99%

   404    Head Start CRRSA CAN 9-G064122

      5174       Health Insurance Benefit 31,556.97 31,556.97 0.00 100.00%

      5199       Indirect Allocation 1,953.36 1,953.36 0.00 100.00%

      5512       HS Class Room Supplies 1,393.44 1,393.44 0.00 100.00%

      5622       Internal Computer/Software 115,276.43 115,276.43 0.00 100.00%

      5734       HS Capital Playground 1,826.87 1,826.87 0.00 100.00%

Total 404 Head Start CRRSA CAN 9-G064122 152,007.07 152,007.07 0.00 100.00%

   405    Early Head Start CRRSA CAN 9-G064122

      5174       Health Insurance Benefit 16,989.30 16,989.30 0.00 100.00%

      5199       Indirect Allocation 1,051.63 1,051.63 0.00 100.00%

Total 405 Early Head Start CRRSA CAN 9-G064122 18,040.93 18,040.93 0.00 100.00%

   406    Early Head Start Conversion ARP CAN 9-G064122

Page:  3



CVCOG

Summary Budget Comparison 

Grant 829, Head Start FY 21-22

From 6/1/2021 Through 6/30/2022

Account Code Account Title YTD Budget $ YTD Actual YTD Budget $ Variance Percent Total Budget Used

829 HHS-ACF Grant 829, Head Start FY 21-22 06CH010970

      5453       HS Site Center Bldg Maint 12,317.16 12,317.16 0.00 100.00%

      5510       Supplies 1,758.88 1,758.88 0.00 100.00%

      5512       HS Class Room Supplies 20,919.00 20,919.00 0.00 100.00%

      5622       Internal Computer/Software 2,248.44 2,248.44 0.00 100.00%

      5734       HS Capital Playground 15,672.77 15,672.77 0.00 100.00%

Total 406 Early Head Start Conversion ARP CAN 9-G064122 52,916.25 52,916.25 0.00 100.00%

   409    Head Start InKind

      6791       InKind Other 1,612,061.00 1,338,283.87 273,777.13 83.01%

Total 409 Head Start InKind 1,612,061.00 1,338,283.87 273,777.13 83.02%

   410    Head Start ARP CAN NO 9-G064122

      5174       Health Insurance Benefit 168,532.71 31,318.94 137,213.77 18.58%

      5177       HSA Insurance Benefit 2,720.80 1,150.58 1,570.22 42.28%

      5199       Indirect Allocation 14,024.26 2,011.44 12,012.82 14.34%

      5200       Employee Health and Welfare 2,000.00 1,687.78 312.22 84.38%

      5453       HS Site Center Bldg Maint 21,070.84 6,099.22 14,971.62 28.94%

      5510       Supplies 80,133.52 763.20 79,370.32 0.95%

      5512       HS Class Room Supplies 27,743.56 225.28 27,518.28 0.81%

      5518       HS Diapers and Wipes 2,500.00 0.00 2,500.00 0.00%

      5622       Internal Computer/Software 25,857.63 19,779.31 6,078.32 76.49%

      5625       Capital-Replace Van 49,470.00 0.00 49,470.00 0.00%

      5734       HS Capital Playground 152,174.36 9,248.60 142,925.76 6.07%

Total 410 Head Start ARP CAN NO 9-G064122 546,227.68 72,284.35 473,943.33 13.23%

   411    Early Head Start ARP CAN NO 9-G064122

      5174       Health Insurance Benefit 27,058.96 18,001.10 9,057.86 66.52%

      5177       HSA Insurance Benefit 2,851.74 1,061.13 1,790.61 37.20%

      5199       Indirect Allocation 2,048.37 1,161.30 887.07 56.69%

Page:  4



CVCOG

Summary Budget Comparison 

Grant 829, Head Start FY 21-22

From 6/1/2021 Through 6/30/2022

Account Code Account Title YTD Budget $ YTD Actual YTD Budget $ Variance Percent Total Budget Used

829 HHS-ACF Grant 829, Head Start FY 21-22 06CH010970

      5200       Employee Health and Welfare 79.18 79.18 0.00 100.00%

      5510       Supplies 28,232.82 350.81 27,882.01 1.24%

      5512       HS Class Room Supplies 4,108.00 185.04 3,922.96 4.50%

      5622       Internal Computer/Software 2,500.00 168.56 2,331.44 6.74%

      5734       HS Capital Playground 10,000.00 4,871.40 5,128.60 48.71%

Total 411 Early Head Start ARP CAN NO 9-G064122 76,879.07 25,878.52 51,000.55 33.66%

   997    Non Project

      5200       Employee Health and Welfare 148.16 148.16 0.00 100.00%

      5512       HS Class Room Supplies 7,957.18 7,125.34 831.84 89.54%

      5625       Capital-Replace Van 11,949.79 0.00 11,949.79 0.00%

Total 997 Non Project 20,055.13 7,273.50 12,781.63 36.27%

Total Expenditures 9,004,054.13 8,179,550.32 824,503.81 90.84%

Total Revenue over Expenditures 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00%

Head Start (Project 400, 402) 4,446,015.00           4,439,279.06           6,735.94                                   99.85%

Early Head Start (Project 401, 403) 2,079,852.00           2,073,586.77           6,265.23                                   99.70%

Head Start CRRSA (Project 404) 152,007.07              152,007.07              -                                           100.00%

Early Head Start CRRSA (Project 405) 18,040.93                18,040.93                -                                           100.00%

Head Start ARP (Project 410) 546,227.68              72,284.35                473,943.33                               13.23%

Early Head Start ARP (Project 406, 411) 129,795.32              78,794.77                51,000.55                                 60.71%

Total Federal 7,371,938.00           6,833,992.95           537,945.05                               92.70%

Total Non-Federal, includes Local Funds 1,632,116.13           1,345,557.37           286,558.76                               82.44%

Grand Total HHS Head Start Expenditures 9,004,054.13           8,179,550.32           824,503.81                               90.84%

CVCOG Head Start Admin 608,729.29 

CVCOG Administrative Indirect 325,937.08 

Total Non-Federal Admin 0.00 

Total Administrative 934,666.37 

Head Start Budget, includes Non-Federal 9,004,054.13 

Administrative Percentage of Approved Budget 10.38%

Note: Administrative Maximum Percentage is 15%

Non-Federal Percentage of Federal 20.00% 19.69%

Page:  5



CVCOG

Summary Budget Comparison

Grant H02, Head Start Nutrition 21-22

From 10/1/2021 Through 6/30/2022

Account Code Account Title YTD Budget $ YTD Actual YTD Budget $ Variance Percent Total Budget Used

H02 Grant H02, CACFP Head Start Nutrition FY 21-22 Q2022

   004    Revenue

      4203       CACFP Prior Year CFDA 10.558 0.00 8,817.22 8,817.22 100.00%

      4221       CACFP Nutrition CFDA 10.558 745,918.29 395,347.58 (350,570.71) 53.00%

Total 004 Revenue 745,918.29 404,164.80 (341,753.49) 54.18%

   407    Head Start Nutrition

      5110       General Wages 20,770.00 10,092.40 10,677.60 48.59%

      5151       Medicare Tax 301.00 142.25 158.75 47.25%

      5172       Worker's Comp Insurance 518.00 235.67 282.33 45.49%

      5173       SUTA 252.00 117.80 134.20 46.74%

      5174       Health Insurance Benefit 10,728.00 4,235.68 6,492.32 39.48%

      5175       Dental Insurance Benefit 371.00 179.84 191.16 48.47%

      5176       Life Insurance Benefit 165.00 77.46 87.54 46.94%

      5181       Retirement 2,462.00 1,189.31 1,272.69 48.30%

      5199       Indirect Allocation 4,551.56 1,007.67 3,543.89 22.13%

      5295       HS Nutrition Service 607,599.73 284,122.84 323,476.89 46.76%

      5510       Supplies 28,000.00 54.74 27,945.26 0.19%

      5513       HS Food Serv Sup 70,000.00 54,313.42 15,686.58 77.59%

      5753       Dues and fees 200.00 25.42 174.58 12.71%

Total 407 Head Start Nutrition (745,918.29) (355,794.50) 390,123.79 47.70%

Total Revenue over Expenditures 0.00 48,370.30 48,370.30 100.00%

Excess funds to be used through award period

Page:  1



CVCOG

Summary Budget Comparison 

Grant H03, Head Start FY 22-23

From 6/1/2022 Through 6/30/2022

Account Code Account Title YTD Budget $ YTD Actual YTD Budget $ Variance Percent Total Budget Used 

H03 HHS-ACF Grant H03, Head Start FY 22-23 06CH010970-04

   004    Revenue

      4173       HHS-ACF Head Start 06CH010970-04 6,525,867.00 510,273.85 (6,015,593.15) 7.81%

      4411       IK Contributions 1,609,715.00 0.00 (1,609,715.00) 0.00%

Total 004 Revenue 8,135,582.00 510,273.85 (7,625,308.15) 6.27%

   400    Head Start CAN NO 9-G064122

      5110       General Wages 2,403,532.31 175,468.71 2,228,063.60 7.30%

      5150       Vacation Time Allocation 19,506.69 1,878.53 17,628.16 9.63%

      5151       Medicare Tax 34,634.00 2,446.79 32,187.21 7.06%

      5172       Worker's Comp Insurance 14,500.00 1,160.13 13,339.87 8.00%

      5173       SUTA 40,160.00 5.31 40,154.69 0.01%

      5174       Health Insurance Benefit 468,277.20 54,023.68 414,253.52 11.53%

      5175       Dental Insurance Benefit 52,987.00 1,928.06 51,058.94 3.63%

      5176       Life Insurance Benefit 18,607.00 1,328.30 17,278.70 7.13%

      5177       HSA Insurance Benefit 52,030.80 1,872.29 50,158.51 3.59%

      5181       Retirement 285,913.00 21,003.61 264,909.39 7.34%

      5199       Indirect Allocation 210,189.00 16,189.07 193,999.93 7.70%

      5206       HR Service Center 111,173.00 12,479.71 98,693.29 11.22%

      5207       Procurement Service Center 47,800.00 6,358.60 41,441.40 13.30%

      5208       Information Technology Service Center 70,258.00 4,934.56 65,323.44 7.02%

      5291       Contract Services 65,742.00 0.00 65,742.00 0.00%

      5293       HS Health & Disab Svc 3,322.00 0.00 3,322.00 0.00%

      5294       HS Policy Council 2,000.00 0.00 2,000.00 0.00%

      5296       HS Parent Service 4,304.00 0.00 4,304.00 0.00%

      5309       Travel-In Region 4,644.00 0.00 4,644.00 0.00%

      5413       HS Site Rent 126,233.00 1,390.00 124,843.00 1.10%

      5433       HS Site Center Utilities 99,273.00 2,969.41 96,303.59 2.99%

      5451       Facility Maintenance 30,760.00 5,623.30 25,136.70 18.28%

      5453       HS Site Center Bldg Maint 61,622.00 10,238.25 51,383.75 16.61%

      5510       Supplies 18,093.00 2,250.33 15,842.67 12.43%

      5512       HS Class Room Supplies 47,051.50 0.00 47,051.50 0.00%

      5514       HS Medical Supplies 6,037.00 0.00 6,037.00 0.00%

      5515       HS Disability Supplies 4,489.00 0.00 4,489.00 0.00%

      5518       HS Diapers and Wipes 13,000.00 0.00 13,000.00 0.00%

      5622       Internal Computer/Software 8,191.50 0.00 8,191.50 0.00%

      5632       Copier 18,895.00 1,143.37 17,751.63 6.05%

      5711       Insurance 9,268.00 0.00 9,268.00 0.00%

      5721       Printing 10,062.00 0.00 10,062.00 0.00%

      5722       Ads & Promotions 3,483.00 0.00 3,483.00 0.00%

      5753       Dues and fees 3,760.00 54.43 3,705.57 1.44%

      5760       HS Site Center Communications 16,269.00 2,087.74 14,181.26 12.83%

      5762       Postage/freight 2,126.00 98.27 2,027.73 4.62%

Page:  1



CVCOG

Summary Budget Comparison 

Grant H03, Head Start FY 22-23

From 6/1/2022 Through 6/30/2022

Account Code Account Title YTD Budget $ YTD Actual YTD Budget $ Variance Percent Total Budget Used 

H03 HHS-ACF Grant H03, Head Start FY 22-23 06CH010970-04

      5796       Safety 998.00 0.00 998.00 0.00%

Total 400 Head Start CAN NO 9-G064122 4,389,191.00 326,932.45 4,062,258.55 7.45%

   401    Early Head Start CAN NO 9-G064122

      5110       General Wages 1,255,691.69 100,282.99 1,155,408.70 7.98%

      5150       Vacation Time Allocation 3,449.31 529.34 2,919.97 15.34%

      5151       Medicare Tax 18,757.00 1,391.44 17,365.56 7.41%

      5172       Worker's Comp Insurance 7,375.00 574.12 6,800.88 7.78%

      5173       SUTA 21,402.00 7.18 21,394.82 0.03%

      5174       Health Insurance Benefit 252,184.50 30,034.72 222,149.78 11.90%

      5175       Dental Insurance Benefit 28,536.00 1,077.34 27,458.66 3.77%

      5176       Life Insurance Benefit 10,159.00 732.95 9,426.05 7.21%

      5177       HSA Insurance Benefit 28,020.50 1,272.50 26,748.00 4.54%

      5181       Retirement 154,844.00 12,003.78 142,840.22 7.75%

      5199       Indirect Allocation 110,386.00 9,170.20 101,215.80 8.30%

      5206       HR Service Center 21,752.00 3,727.71 18,024.29 17.13%

      5207       Procurement Service Center 13,956.00 1,899.32 12,056.68 13.60%

      5208       Information Technology Service Center 13,568.00 1,473.96 12,094.04 10.86%

      5291       Contract Services 678.00 0.00 678.00 0.00%

      5293       HS Health & Disab Svc 678.00 0.00 678.00 0.00%

      5294       HS Policy Council 274.00 0.00 274.00 0.00%

      5296       HS Parent Service 1,000.00 230.32 769.68 23.03%

      5309       Travel-In Region 1,356.00 86.83 1,269.17 6.40%

      5413       HS Site Rent 26,117.00 160.00 25,957.00 0.61%

      5433       HS Site Center Utilities 16,873.00 855.45 16,017.55 5.06%

      5451       Facility Maintenance 8,981.00 1,405.83 7,575.17 15.65%

      5453       HS Site Center Bldg Maint 7,390.00 2,710.20 4,679.80 36.67%

      5510       Supplies 7,079.00 777.92 6,301.08 10.98%

      5512       HS Class Room Supplies 7,532.17 64.59 7,467.58 0.85%

      5514       HS Medical Supplies 1,763.00 0.00 1,763.00 0.00%

      5515       HS Disability Supplies 1,311.00 0.00 1,311.00 0.00%

      5518       HS Diapers and Wipes 10,000.00 0.00 10,000.00 0.00%

      5622       Internal Computer/Software 2,391.83 0.00 2,391.83 0.00%

      5632       Copier 6,334.00 333.21 6,000.79 5.26%

Page:  2



CVCOG

Summary Budget Comparison 

Grant H03, Head Start FY 22-23

From 6/1/2022 Through 6/30/2022

Account Code Account Title YTD Budget $ YTD Actual YTD Budget $ Variance Percent Total Budget Used 

H03 HHS-ACF Grant H03, Head Start FY 22-23 06CH010970-04

      5711       Insurance 1,486.00 0.00 1,486.00 0.00%

      5721       Printing 2,938.00 0.00 2,938.00 0.00%

      5722       Ads & Promotions 1,017.00 0.00 1,017.00 0.00%

      5753       Dues and fees 1,109.00 12.30 1,096.70 1.10%

      5760       HS Site Center Communications 3,642.00 518.20 3,123.80 14.22%

      5762       Postage/freight 621.00 0.00 621.00 0.00%

      5796       Safety 342.00 3.32 338.68 0.97%

Total 401 Early Head Start CAN NO 9-G064122 2,050,994.00 171,335.72 1,879,658.28 8.35%

   402    Head Start T&TA CAN NO 9-G064120

      5308       Head Start T & T A 56,824.00 11,726.68 45,097.32 20.63%

Total 402 Head Start T&TA CAN NO 9-G064120 56,824.00 11,726.68 45,097.32 20.64%

   403    Early Head Start T&TA CAN NO 9-G064121

      5308       Head Start T & T A 28,858.00 279.00 28,579.00 0.96%

Total 403 Early Head Start T&TA CAN NO 9-G064121 28,858.00 279.00 28,579.00 0.97%

   409    Head Start InKind

      6791       InKind Other 1,609,715.00 0.00 1,609,715.00 0.00%

Total 409 Head Start InKind 1,609,715.00 0.00 1,609,715.00 0.00%

Total Expenditures 8,135,582.00 510,273.85 7,625,308.15 6.27%

Total Revenue over Expenditures 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00%

Head Start (Project 400, 402) 4,446,015.00                  338,659.13          4,107,355.87                  7.62%

Early Head Start (Project 401, 403) 2,079,852.00                  171,614.72          1,908,237.28                  8.25%

Total Federal 6,525,867.00                  510,273.85          6,015,593.15                  7.82%

Total Non-Federal, includes Local Funds 1,609,715.00                  -                       1,609,715.00                  0.00%

Grand Total HHS Head Start Expenditures 8,135,582.00                  510,273.85          7,625,308.15                  6.27%

CVCOG Head Start Admin 41,339.19 

CVCOG Administrative Indirect 25,359.27 

Total Non-Federal Admin 0.00 

Total Administrative 66,698.46 

Head Start Budget, includes Non-Federal 8,135,582.00 

Administrative Percentage of Approved Budget 0.82%

Note: Administrative Maximum Percentage is 15%

Non-Federal Percentage of Federal 20.00% 0.00%

Page:  3



Head Start: 

Head Start Credit Card/Open Account Summary Transactions (Detail Attached} 

June 2022 

Amazon Capital: $1,946.14 

Ben E Keith Transactions: $0.00 

Citibank P-Card Transactions: $11,979.14 

Dean's Dairy Corporate Transactions: $1,772.16 

First Financial Credit Card Transactions: $5,262.41 

Gandy's Dairies Transactions: $0.00 

Lowes Pay and Save: $39.34 

Mayfield Paper Transactions: $0.00 

Sam's Card Transactions: $0.00 

Sysco Food Services: $15,625.34 

West Texas Fire Extinguisher Transactions: $2,032.05 



Line Item Document 
Code Line Item Title Date 

5510 Supplies 6/23/2022 

5512 HSOass Room 6/29/2022 
Supplies 

CVCOG 
Vendor Activity - Head Start Amazon capital 

829 - HHS-ACF Grant 829, Head Start FY 21-22 06CH010970 
From 6/1/2022 Through 6/30/2022 

Document Number Document Description Expenses 

19MW·HQYC-PP4R EHS: Menard for Lateral Black File 
cabinet 

1 VMG-NVD9-RFLP EHS: Rio Vista for (5) boxes of exam 
table paper 

678.44 

105.89 

_____ 7_84_._33__ Transaction Total 

Total 829 - HHS-ACF 
Grant 829, Head Start 
FY 21·22 06CH010970 

784.33 



Line Item 
Code Line Item Title 

5513 HS Food Serv Sup 

CVCOG 

Vendor Activity - Head Start Amazon Capital 
H02 - Grant H02, CACFP Head Start Nutrition FY 21-22 Q2022 

From 6/1/2022 Through 6/30/2022 

Document 
Date Document Number 

6/26/2022 lHJD-CTFW-VFYL 

Document Desaiption 

EHS: Day for dawn dish soap, cups and 
bottles. 

Total H02 - Grant H02, 
CACFP Head Start 
Nutrition FY 21-22 
Q2022 

Expenses 

47.95 

47.95 



Line Item 
Code Line Item Title 

5453 HS Site Center Bldg 
Maint 

5510 Supplies 
5510 Supplies 

5510 Supplies 
5512 HS aass Room 

Supplies 

Report 
Opening/Current 
Balance 

Report Transaction 
Totals 

Report Current Balances 

Document 
Date 

7/12/2022 

6/6/2022 
6/27/2022 

7/12/2022 
6/24/2022 

CVCOG 
Vendor Activity - Head Start Amazon capital 

H03 - HHS-ACF Grant H03, Head Start FY 22-23 06CH010970-04 
From 6/1/2022 Through 6/30/2022 

Document Number Document Description Expenses 

19RG-NJKR-T4C6 HS/EHS: Rio Vista for Cork Bulletin 297.94 
Board 

1HM3-GGKC-3TX7 HS: Rio Vista for calculator & laminate 340.72 
1KPF-Q4NV-4FHT EHS: Rio vista for Dreft & Tide 343.13 

Detergent 

19RG-NJKR·H4VQ HS/EHS: Rio Vista for printing calculator 67.48 
lDPX-PDn-COJW HS: Day for sleeveless sleep bag 64.59 

blankets 

Total H03 • HHS-ACF 1,113.86 
Grant H03, Head Start 
FY 22-23 
06CH010970-04 

1,946.14 



Line Item Document 
Code Line Item Title Date 

5433 HS Site center 6/13/2022 
Utilities 

5433 HS Site center 6/23/2022 
Utilities 

5433 HS Site Center 6/27/2022 
Utilities 

5433 HS Site Center 6/27/2022 
Utilities 

5433 HS Site center 6/27/2022 
Utilities 

5453 HS Site Center Bldg 6/14/2022 
Maint 

5518 HS Diapers and 5/27/2022 
Wipes 

5518 HS Diapers and 5/31/2022 
Wipes 

5760 HS Site Center 5/26/2022 
Communications 

5760 HS Site center 6/27/2022 
Communications 

CVCOG 
Vendor Activity - Head Start Otibank P<ard 

829 - HHS-ACF Grant 829, Head Start FY 21-22 06CH010970 

Document Number 

180104 06-22 

179684 05-22 

180084 07-22 

180086 07-22 

180106 06·22 

N1985 

9858319142 

9859576484 

07710150890010 
06-22 

07710150505015 
05-22 

From 6/1/2022 Through 6/30/2022 

Document Description 

HS/EHS: Day for Water Service 
05/10/22 • 06/09/22. JR CB 

HS/EHS: Rio Vista Water Services 
05/03/22 • 06/02/22 

HS: Blackshear for Water Service 
05/12/22 • 06/14/22. JR CB 

HS: Blackshear for Water Service 
05/17/22 • 06/16/22. TS CB 

HS/EHS: Day for Water Service 
05/10/22 • 06/09/22 JR CB 

HS: Ozona for single hollow metal door 
slab/down payment 

HS/EHS: Rio Vista for Diapers and Wipes 

HS/EHS: Rio Vista for Diapers 

HS/EHS: Day for Phone Service 
05/25/22 - 06/24/22. 

HS/EHS: Day for Internet Service 
05/15/22 •. 06/14/22 

Total 829 - HHS-ACF 
Grant 829, Head Start 
FY 21-22 06CH010970 

Expenses 

342.88 

341.31 

121.84 

34.63 

123.21 

660.90 

1,681.26 

2,366.40 

49.51 

128.39 

____ 5...,.8_5_0._33__ Transaction Total 

5,850.33 



Line Item Document 
Code Line Item Title Date 

5295 HS Nutrition Service 5/12/2022 
5295 HS Nutrition Service 6/13/2022 

5295 HS Nutrition Service 6/17/2022 

5295 HS Nutrition Service 6/17/2022 

5295 HS Nutrition Service 6/17/2022 

CVCOG 
Vendor Activity - Head Start Citibank P-card 

H02 - Grant H02, CACFP Head Start Nutrition FY 21-22 Q2022 
From 6/1/2022 Through 6/30/2022 

Document Number Document Description Expenses 

HEB15669520867 EHS Day: Baby Formula 
085887 EHS: Day for Gerber Cereal and Baby 

Foods. JL CB 

008794 EHS: All EHS for Enfamil Formula & 
gallons of water. JL CB 

031881 EHS: All EHS for Enfamil Nuero pro 
baby formula. JL CB 

080668 EHS: All EHS for (2) Enfamil Formula. 
JLCB 

Total H02 - Grant H02, 
CACFP Head Start 
Nutrition FY 21 ··22 
Q2022 

82.42 
155.30 

64.44 

81.90 

44.44 

428.50 



CVCOG 
Vendor Activity - Head Start Otibank P-card 

H03 - HHS-ACF Grant H03, Head Start FY 22-23 06CH010970-04 
From 6/1/2022 Through 6/30/2022 

Line Item Document 
Code Line Item Title Date Document Number Document Description Expenses 

5433 HS Site Center 5/31/2022 0691-001125236 HS: Blackshear - Trash Services 550.88 
Utilities 06/01/22 - 06/30/22. TS CB 

5433 HS Site Center 5/31/2022 0691-001125654 HS: Day Trash Services 06/01/22 - 550.88 
Utilities 06/30/22. TS CB 

5433 HS Site Center 6/13/2022 180104 06-22 HS/EHS: Day for Water Service 140.27 
Utilities 05/10/22 - 06/09/22. JR CB 

5433 HS Site Center 6/23/2022 179684 05-22 HS/EHS: Rio Vista Water Sefvices 23.54 
Utilities 05/03/22 - 06/02/22 

5433 HS Site Center 6/27/2022 180084 07-22 HS: Blackshear for Water Service 85.28 
Utilities 05/12/22 - 06/14/22. JR CB 

5433 HS Site Center 6/27/2022 180086 07-22 HS: Blackshear for Water Service 36.93 
Utilities 05/17/22 - 06/16/22. TS CB 

5433 HS Site Center 6/27/2022 180106 06-22 HS/EHS: Day for Water Service 50.41 
Utilities 05/10/22 - 06/09/22 JR CB 

5453 HS Site Center Bldg 6/20/2022 22222 HS: Day for exterior Power wash,primer 1,900.00 
Maint & paint gazebo. JL CB 

5510 Supplies 6/21/2022 2530893H HS: EDUDI for new wireless mouse for 39.99 
workstation 

5760 HS Site Center 5/26/2022 07710150890010 HS/EHS: Day for Phone Service 169.75 
Communications 06-22 05/25/22 - 06/24/22. 

5760 HS Site Center 6/17/2022 07710102810016 HS: BS for Internet & Phone Services 191.57 
Communications 06-22 06/01/22 - 06/30/22. 

5760 HS Site Center 6/17/2022 07710150887017 HS/EHS: Rio Vista for Internet Service 156.86 
Communications 06-22 06/01/22 - 06/30/22. 

5760 HS Site Center 6/23/2022 0708195 06-22 HS/EHS: Rural Phone Sefvices 06/08/22 497.82 
Communications - 07 /07 /22 TS CB 

5760 HS Site Center 6/27/2022 07710150505015 HS/EHS: Day for Internet Service 105.74 
Communications 05-22 05/15/22 - 06/14/22 

5760 HS Site Center 6/27/2022 07710150505015 HS/EHS: Day for Internet Sefvice 244.13 
Communications 06-22 06/15/22 - 07/14/22 

5760 HS Site Center 6/29/2022 07710150503019 HS/EHS: RV for Internet Services 187.75 
Communications 06-22 06/15/222 07/14/22. JR CB 

5760 HS Site Center 6/29/2022 07710150504017 HS: BS for Internet Service 06/15/22 - 191.76 
Communications 06-22 07/14/22. JR CB 



Line Item 
Code Line Item Title 

5760 HS Site Center 
Communications 

5760 HS Site Center 
Communications 

5760 HS Site center 
Communications 

Report 
Opening/current 
Balance 

Report Transaction 
Totals 

Report current Balances 

CVCOG 
Vendor Activity - Head Start Otibank P-card 

H03 - HHS-ACF Grant H03, Head Start FY 22-23 06CH010970-04 
From 6/1/2022 Through 6/30/2022 

Document 
Date Document Number 

7/8/2022 07710102810016 
07-22 

7/8/2022 07710150887017 
07-22 

7/8/2022 07710150890010 
07-22 

Document Description 

HS: BS for Internet &. Phone Services 
07/01/22 - 07/31/22. 

HS/EHS: Rio Vista for Internet Service 
07/01/22 - 07/31/22. 

HS/EHS: Day for Phone Service 
06/25/22 - 07 /24/22. 

Total H03 - HHS-ACF 
Grant H03, Head Start 
FY 22-23 
06CH010970-04 

Expenses 

196.47 

161.02 

219.26 

5,700.31 

11,979.14 



Line Item 
Code Line Item Title 

5295 HS Nutrition Service 
5295 HS Nutrition Service 
5295 HS Nutrition Service 
S295 HS Nutribon Service 
5295 HS Nutribon Service 
5295 HS Nutrition Service 
5295 HS Nutrition Service 
5295 HS Nutrition Service 

5295 HS Nutrition Service 
5295 HS Nutrition Service 
5295 HS Nutrition Service 

5295 HS Nutrition Service 

Report 
Opening/Current 
Balance 

Report Transaction 
Totals 

Report current Balances 

Document 
Date 

4/18/2022 
5/31/2022 
6/2/2022 

6/10/2022 
6/13/2022 
6/14/2022 
6/14/2022 
6/16/2022 

6/21/2022 
6/21/2022 
6/ 21/ 2022 

6/ 23/2022 

CVCOG 
Vendor Activity - Head Start Dean's Dairy Corporate 

H02 - Grant H02, CACFP Head Start Nutrition FY 21-22 Q2022 
From 6/1/2022 Through 6/30/2022 

Document Number Document Description Expenses 

652435791a HS: Blackshear for milk. 
652039115 HS/EHS: Rio Vista for milk. 
652437112 HS/EHS: Day for milk. 
650628684 HS/EHS: Menard for (14) 1% milk. 
652039352 HS/EHS: Rio Vista for milk. 
650628745 HS/EHS: Menard for (9) 1 % milk 
652437253 HS/EHS: Day for milk. 
652437296 HS/ EHS: Day for (27) whole milk & (72) 

1% milk 

650628839 HS/EHS: Menard for (15) 1% milk 
652039478 HS/EHS: Rio Vista for milk. 
652039479cm HS/ EHS: Rio Vista credit (-9) for 1 % 

milk 

652437378 HS/ EHS: Day for (36) whole milk & 
(126) 1% milk 

352.46 
15.44 

153.60 
3S.28 

161.68 
22.68 

265.14 
243.05 

37.80 
109.42 
(22.10) 

397.71 

_____ 1._,7_7..,2 .... 16__ Transaction Total 

Total H02 - Grant H02, 
CACFP Head Start 
Nutrition FY 21-22 
Q2022 

1,772.16 

1,772.16 



line Item Document 
Code Line Item Title Date 

5200 Employee Health 5/6/2022 
and Welfare 

5510 Supplies 5/31/2022 

5510 Supplies 5/31/2022 

5510 Supplies 5/31/2022 
5510 Supplies 5/31/2022 

5510 Supplies 5/31/2022 

5753 Dues and fees 5/31/2022 

5753 Dues and fees 5/31/2022 

CVCOG 
Vendor Activity - Head Start First Financial Credit card 

829 - HHS-ACF Grant 829, Head Start FY 21-22 06CH010970 

Document Number 

216032 

1002201-3056252 

113-1381685-559 ... 

113· 2165799-351... 
113-7152222-845 ... 

7152222-8455442 ... 

113-1381685-559 ... 

113-2165799-351... 

From 6/1/2022 Through 6/30/2022 

Document Description 

HS/EHS: All Centers Lunch Staff 
Appreciation Event OB FF 

HS: Eden for Brother brand name toner. 
MH FF 

HS: Ozona for supplies & kitchen 
supplies. MH FF 

HS: Eden for Pandaflex File Folders 
HS: Eden for black toner cartridge. MH 
FF 

HS: Eden Credit for black toner 
cartridge. MH FF 

HS: Ozona for supplies & kitchen 
supplies. MH FF 

HS: Eden for Pandaflex File Folders 

Total 829 • HHS-ACF 
Grant 829, Head Start 
FY 21-22 06CH010970 

Expenses 

350.47 

145.00 

45.20 

10.88 
123.86 

(123.86) 

3.31 

5.99 

___ ___,5::60~·~8-=-5 Transaction Total 

560.8S 



Line Item Document 
Code Line Item Title Date 

5295 HS Nubition Service 6/1/2022 
5295 HS Nubition Service 6/1/2022 
5295 HS Nubition Service 6/1/2022 
5295 HS Nutntion Service 6/2/2022 
5295 HS Nutrition Service 6/3/2022 
5295 HS Nutrition Service 6/17/2022 
5295 HS Nutrition Service 6/17/2022 
5295 HS Nubition Service 6/27/2022 
5510 Supplies 5/31/2022 

5513 HS Food Serv Sup 5/31/2022 
5513 HS Food Serv Sup 5/31/2022 

5513 HS Food Serv Sup 5/31/2022 

5753 Dues and fees 5/31/2022 

5753 Dues and fees 5/31/2022 

CVCOG 
Vendor Activity - Head Start First Financial Credit card 

H02 - Grant H02, CACFP Head Start Nubition FY 21-22 Q2022 
From 6/1/2022 Through 6/30/2022 

Document Number Document Description Expenses 

2000100-08167461 EHS: Enfam1I Infant Formula 
2000100-21930926 EHS: Enfamil Infant Formula 
4232232-272703 EHS: Enfamil Infant Formula 
582153490046702 EHS Day: Baby formula 
2000100-00556407 EHS; Enfamil Infant Formula 
WM06172022 EHS: Day for formula. MH Ff 
WM061722 EHS: Day for formula. MH FF 
302178557131784 EHS RV,Day: milk 
113-0861094-824 ... HS: Eldorado for dish drying rack & a 

can opener. MH FF 

0113-2341904-53 ... HS: Ozona for kitchen supplies 
113-1381685~559 ... HS: Ozona for supplies & kitchen 

supplies. MH FF 

113-9582691-948 ... HS: Ozona for (4) Dishwasher Rinse 
Agent. MH FF 

113-0861094-824 ... HS: Eldorado for dish drying rack & a 
can opener. MH FF 

113-1381685-559 ... HS: Ozona for supplies & kitchen 
supplies. MH FF 

Total H02 - Grant H02, 
CACFP Head Start 
Nutrition FY 21-22 
Q2022 

36.48 
36.48 
29.98 

112.26 
111.10 

9.72 
64.80 
19.64 
54.74 

27.98 
122.98 

91.96 

5.99 

18.59 

742.70 



CVCOG 
Vendor Activity - Head Start First Financial Credit card 

H03 - HHS-ACF Grant H03, Head Start FY 22-23 06CH010970-04 
From 6/1/2022 Through 6/30/2022 

Line Item Document 
Code Line Item Title Date Document Number Document Description Expenses 

5296 HS Parent Service 6/1/2022 7274124 EHS Day/ERSEA/lunches for staff during 114.93 
enrollment 

5296 HS Parent Service 6/2/2022 79467381 EHS: ERSEA Day for Parent Luncheon. 115.39 
MH FF 

5308 Head Start T & T A 6/23/2022 013283 HS: Blackshear for Continuing 1,412.00 
Education. DE FF 

5308 Head Start T & T A 6/23/2022 114432 EHS: RV for Observer recertification for 125.00 
Michelle. SH FF 

5308 Head Start T & T A 6/30/2022 310350 HS: All TG, CH, EL for divider rings & 84.68 
binders. SWFF 

5309 Travel-In Region 6/22/2022 512232 EHS Menard: Fuel for rental car 34.83 
5309 Travel-In Region 6/23/2022 ERAC 06232022 EHS: Menard for rental car 52.00 
5453 HS Site Center Bldg 6/2/2022 15590 HS: Blackshear for Painting Materials 481.22 

Maint 

5453 HS Site Center Bldg 6/6/2022 13884 HS: Rio Vista for Painting Materials 485.72 
Maint 

5453 HS Site Center Bldg 6/24/2022 15395 EHS Day: window A/C unit 539.00 
Maint 

5510 Supplies 6/23/2022 803284 HS/EHS: FAMCO for supplies. SW FF 139.04 
5510 Supplies 6/30/2022 JMP.7043 HS: All Centers childrens book for 180.00 

parent engagement program 

5753 Dues and fees 6/6/2022 573844304 HS: Blackshear TX HHSC Child care 12.53 
Licensing Fee 

5753 Dues and fees 6/6/2022 573844950 HS/EHS: Day TX HHSC Child Care 18.66 
Licensing Fee 

5753 Dues and fees 6/6/2022 573845270 HS: Eldorado TX HHSC Child Care 8.44 
Licensing Fee 

5753 Dues and fees 6/6/2022 5738-46452 HS/EHS: Rio Vista TX HHSC Child Care 16.62 
Licensing Fee 

5753 Dues and fees 6/6/2022 573847554 HS: Eden TX HHSC Child Care Licensing 10.48 
Fee 

5753 Dues and fees 6/23/2022 114434 EHS: Day, RV & Menard Observer 125.00 
recertification 

5796 Safety 6/6/2022 405CW0002312413 EHS Day: Background Check for S.G. 3.32 



Line Item 
Code Line Item Title 

Report 
Opening/Current 
Balance 

Report Transaction 
Totals 

Report Current Balances 

Document 
Date 

CVCOG 
Vendor Activity - Head Start First Financial Credit card 

H03 • HHS-ACF Grant H03, Head Start FY 22-23 06CH010970·04 
From 6/1/2022 Through 6/30/2022 

Document Number Document Description 

Total H03 • HHS-ACF 
Grant H03, Head Start 
FY 22·23 
06CH0 10970-04 

Expenses 

3,958.86 

5,262.41 



Line Item 
Code Line Item Title 

5295 HS Nutrition Service 

5295 HS Nutrition Service 
5295 HS Nutrition Service 
5295 HS Nutrition Service 

5295 HS Nutrition Service 
5295 HS Nutrition Service 

Report 
Opening/Current 
Balance 

Report Transaction 
Totals 

Report Current Balances 

Document 
Date 

2/1/2022 

5/18/2022 
5/25/2022 
6/13/2022 

6/15/2022 
6/21/2022 

CVCOG 
Vendor Activity - Head Start Lowes Pay and Save 

H02 - Grant H02, CACFP Head Start Nutrition FY 21-22 Q2022 
From 6/1/2022 Through 6/30/2022 

Document Number Document Description Expenses 

220201-159-1-1-2 ... HS/EHS: Menard credit from uSing 
invoice# twice 

220518-303·1·1·60 HS/EHS: Menard for Bananas 
220525-30H-1-27 HS/EHS: Menard Food for Children. 
220613-290-1-1-1... HS/EHS Menard: bananas, salad, bread, 

tomatoes 

220615-2789 3•3-42 HS/EHS Menard: Kolorae 
220621-303-1-1-36 HS/EHS Menard: salad, milk, tortillas, 

bread, tomatoes 

(19.81) 

20.90 
7.82 
6.80 

9.95 
13.68 

_ _____ 3 __ 9 .... 34...... Transaction Total 

Total H02 - Grant H02, 
CACFP Head Start 
Nutrition FY 21-22 
Q2022 

39.34 

39.34 



CVCOG 
Vendor Activity - Head Start Sysco 

H02 - Grant H02, CACFP Head Start Nutrition FY 21-22 Q2022 
From 6/1/2022 Through 6/30/2022 

Line Item Document 
Code Line Item Title Date Document Number Document Desaiption Expenses 

5295 HS Nutrition Service 2/11/2022 17810607P HS/EHS: Rio Vista Credit #278228722 (217.11) 
Food for Children 

5295 HS Nutrition Service 2/18/2022 278259195 HS/EHS: Day Credit #278197757 Food (23.04) 
for Children 

5295 HS Nutrition Service 5/25/2022 278330171 HS/EHS: Rio Vista Food for Children & 1,475.10 
Kitchen Supplies 

5295 HS Nutrition Service 5/25/2022 278330600 HS/EHS: Day Drop-Ship for Cracker 88.92 
Cheezits Orig 

5295 HS Nutrition Service 5/26/2022 278330938 HS/EHS: Day Food for children & 3,247.12 
Kitchen Supplies 

5295 HS Nutrition Service 5/30/2022 278333026 HS/EHS: Day Drop-ship for Keebler 21.92 
Cookie animal Crackers 

5295 HS Nutrition Service 6/1/2022 278336077 HS/EHS: Rio Vista Drop-Ship for Keebler 43.84 
animal cookies 

5295 HS Nutrition Service 6/1/2022 278336081 HS/EHS: Day Drop-Ship for Keebler 21.92 
animal cookies 

5295 HS Nutrition Service 6/1/2022 278336111 HS/EHS: Rio Vista Food for children & 337.96 
Kitchen Supplies 

5295 HS Nutrition Service 6/2/2022 278336768 HS/EHS: Day Food for Children and 1,812.36 
Kitchen Supplies 

5295 HS Nutrition Service 6/6/2022 278338834 HS/EHS: Day Drop-Ship for Keebler 21.92 
Animal Cookies 

5295 HS Nutrition Service 6/14/2022 278343845 HS/EHS: Rio Vista Food for Children & 482.20 
Kitchen supplies. 

5295 HS Nutrition Service 6/16/2022 278345001 HS/EHS: Day Food for Children & 1,663.40 
Kitchen Supplies 

5295 HS Nutrition Service 6/21/2022 278347982 HS/EHS: Rio Vista Food for Children & 616.06 
Kitchen Supplies 

5295 HS Nutrition Service 6/23/2022 278349190 HS/EHS: Day Food for Children & 1,572.44 
Kitchen Supplies 

5295 HS Nutrition Service 6/24/2022 278349588 HS/EHS: Day Drop-Ship for (2) Pastry's 33.84 
5295 HS Nutrition Service 6/27/2022 278351249 HS/EHS: Day Drop-Ship for (2) Pastry's. 33.84 
5295 HS Nutrition Service 6/28/2022 278351946 HS/EHS: Rio Vista Food for Children 755.13 
5295 HS Nutrition Service 6/30/2022 278353427 HS/EHS: Day Food for children 2,0S9.04 



Line Item 
Code Line Item Title 

5513 HS Food Serv SUp 

5513 HS Food Serv Sup 

5513 HS Food serv Sup 

5513 HS Food Serv Sup 

5513 HS Food Serv Sup 

5513 HS Food Serv Sup 

5513 HS Food Serv Sup 

5513 HS Food Serv Sup 

Report 
Opening/CUrrent 
Balance 

Report Transaction 
Totals 

Report current Balances 

Document 
Date 

5/25/2022 

5/26/2022 

6/1/2022 

6/2/2022 

6/14/2022 

6/16/2022 

6/21/2022 

6/23/2022 

CVCOG 
Vendor Activity - Head Start Sysco 

H02 - Grant H02, CACFP Head Start Nutrition FY 21-22 Q2022 

Document Number 

278330171 

278330938 

278336111 

278336768 

278343845 

278345001 

278347982 

278349190 

From 6/1/2022 Through 6/30/2022 

Document Description 

HS/EHS: Rlo Vista Food for Olildren &. 
Kitchen Supplies 

HS/EHS: Day Food for children &. 
Kitchen Supplies 

HS/EHS: Rlo Vista Food for children&. 
Kitchen supplies 

HS/EHS: Day Food for O,ildren and 
Kitchen Supplies 

HS/EHS: Rio Vista Food for O,ildren &. 
Kitchen supplies. 

HS/EHS: Day Food for O,ildren & 
Kitchen Supplies 

HS/EHS: Rio Vista Food for O,ildren & 
Kitchen Supplfes 

HS/EHS: Day Food for O,ildren & 
Kitchen Supplies 

Total H02 - Grant H02, 
CACFP Head Start 
Nutrition FY 21-22 
Q2022 

Expenses 

88.50 

330.00 

143.84 

26.19 

69.31 

264.86 

242.12 

413.66 

15,625.34 Transaction Total 

15,625.34 

15,625.34 



Line Item Document 
Code Line Item Title Date 

5510 Supplies 6/1/2022 

5510 Supplies 6/14/2022 

5512 HS Class Room 5/31/2022 
Supplies 

5512 HS aass Room 5/31/2022 
Supplies 

5512 HS aass Room 6/14/2022 
Supplies 

CVCOG 
Vendor Activity - Head Start West Texas Fire Extinguisher 

829 - HHS-ACF Grant 829, Head Start FY 21-22 06CH010970 
From 6/1/2022 Through 6/30/2022 

Document Number 

257853 

255981-01 

256782-01 

257450·01 

255981-01 

Document Description 

EHS Day: disinfectant, bathroom 
deaner, wipes, bleach, lnrs 

HS: Eden for Absorbent lemon 
cans&.fiberglass Mop Handle 

HS Eldorado: 5oz plastic cups 

HS/EHS Day: vinyl gloves 

HS: Eden for Absorbent lemon 
cans&.fiberglass Mop Handle 

Total 829 - HHS-ACF 
Grant 829, Head Start 
FY 21-22 06CH010970 

Expenses 

305.63 

76.45 

84.73 

117.70 

76.44 

660.95 

660.95 

Transaction Total 



Line Item 
Code Line Item Title 

5513 HS Food Serv Sup 
5513 HS Food Serv Sup 
5513 HS Food Serv Sup 

CVCOG 
Vendor Activity - Head Start West. Texas Fire Extinguisher 

H02 - Grant H02, CACFP Head Start Nutrition FY 21-22 Q2022 
From 6/1/2022 Through 6/30/2022 

Document 
Date Document Number 

5/31/2022 256216-01 
5/31/2022 256782-01 
6/14/2022 255981-01 

Document Description 

HS Menard: 5oz plastic cups 
HS Eldorado: 5oz plastic cups 
HS: Eden for Absorbent lemon 
cans&Fiberglass Mop Handle 

Total H02 - Grant H02, 
CACFP Head Start 
Nutrition FY 21·22 
Q2022 

Expenses 

67.78 
84.72 
76.44 

228.94 



line ltem 
Code 

5453 

5453 

5453 

Line Item Title 

HS Site Center Bldg 
Maint 

HS Site Center Bldg 
Maint 

HS Site Center Bldg 
Maint 

Report 
Opening/Current 
Balance 

Report Transaction 
Totals 

Report Current Balances 

CVCOG 
Vendor Activity - Head Start West Texas Fire Extinguisher 

H03 - HHS·ACF Grant H03, Head Start FY 22-23 06CH010970-04 
From 6/1/2022 Through 6/30/2022 

Document 
Date Document Number 

6/7/2022 258297 

6/14/2022 258588 

6/14/2022 258592 

Document Desoiption 

HS/EHS RV: annual fire extinguisher 
inspections 

HS/EHS Day: Annual Fire Extinguisher 
Inspections 

HS Eldorado: Annual Fire Extinguisher 
Inspection 

Total H03 - HHS-ACF 
Grant H03, Head Start 
FY 22-23 
06CH010970-04 

Expenses 

368.00 

662.59 

111.57 

1,142.16 

2,032.05 



Resolution 
 

Whereas, The Concho Valley Council of Governments finds it in the best interest of the citizens of 
the Concho Valley region that the Regional Law Enforcement Training Academy grant be operated 
for the 2021-23 Fiscal Years; and 
 
Whereas,  The Concho Valley Council of Governments agrees to provide applicable matching funds 
for the said project as required by the FY22 State Criminal Justice Planning Funds - Regional Law 
Enforcement Training Academy Grant Program; and 
 
Whereas, The Concho Valley Council of Governments agrees that in the event of loss or misuse of 
the Office of the Governor funds, the Concho Valley Council of Governments assures that the funds 
will be returned to the Office of the Governor in full; and 
 
Whereas, the Concho Valley Council of Governments designates the Executive Director as the 
grantee’s authorized official. The authorized official is given the power to apply for, accept, reject, 
alter or terminate the grant on behalf of the applicant agency.  
 
 Now Therefore, Be It Resolved that the Concho Valley Council of Governments approves 
submission of the grant application for Regional Law Enforcement Training Academy grant to the 
Office of the Governor. 
 
Signed by 
 
 
 
 
 ______________________   _______________________  
Executive Committee Chair     Executive Committee Vice-Chair 
 
Passed and Approved this 10 of August, 2022 
 
 
 
Grant Number:1480417 

 
 
 
 
 

       5430 Link Road • San Angelo, TX 76904 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Ph. 325.944.9666 | Fax 325.944.9925 
www.cvcog.org 

Ph. 325.944.9666 | Fax 325.944.9925 
www.cvcog.org  

~ 
CONCHO VALLEY 

COUNCIL OF GOVERNMENTS 

http://www.cvcog.org/
http://www.cvcog.org/


Resolution 
 

Whereas, The Concho Valley Council of Governments finds it in the best interest of the citizens of 
the Concho Valley region that the Juvenile Justice Services be operated for the 2021-22; and 
 
Whereas,  The Concho Valley Council of Governments agrees to provide applicable matching funds 
for the said project as required by the FY22 State Criminal Justice Planning Funds grant application; 
and 
 
Whereas, The Concho Valley Council of Governments agrees that in the event of loss or misuse of 
the Office of the Governor funds, the Concho Valley Council of Governments assures that the funds 
will be returned to the Office of the Governor in full; and 
 
Whereas, the Concho Valley Council of Governments designates the Executive Director as the 
grantee’s authorized official. The authorized official is given the power to apply for, accept, reject, 
alter or terminate the grant on behalf of the applicant agency.  
 
 Now Therefore, Be It Resolved that the Concho Valley Council of Governments approves 
submission of the grant application for the Juvenile Justice Services to the Office of the Governor. 
 
Signed by 
 
 
 
 
 ______________________   _______________________  
Executive Committee Chair     Executive Committee Vice-Chair 
 
Passed and Approved this 10 of August, 2022 
 
 
 
Grant Number: 1484322 

 
 
 
 
 

       5430 Link Road • San Angelo, TX 76904 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Ph. 325.944.9666 | Fax 325.944.9925 
www.cvcog.org 

Ph. 325.944.9666 | Fax 325.944.9925 
www.cvcog.org  

~ 
CONCHO VALLEY 

COUNCIL OF GOVERNMENTS 

http://www.cvcog.org/
http://www.cvcog.org/


Resolution 
 

Whereas, The Concho Valley Council of Governments finds it in the best interest of the citizens of 
the Concho Valley region that the Juvenile Justice Services be operated for the 2022-23; and 
 
Whereas,  The Concho Valley Council of Governments agrees to provide applicable matching funds 
for the said project as required by the FY23 State Criminal Justice Planning Funds grant application; 
and 
 
Whereas, The Concho Valley Council of Governments agrees that in the event of loss or misuse of 
the Office of the Governor funds, the Concho Valley Council of Governments assures that the funds 
will be returned to the Office of the Governor in full; and 
 
Whereas, the Concho Valley Council of Governments designates the Executive Director as the 
grantee’s authorized official. The authorized official is given the power to apply for, accept, reject, 
alter or terminate the grant on behalf of the applicant agency.  
 
 Now Therefore, Be It Resolved that the Concho Valley Council of Governments approves 
submission of the grant application for the Juvenile Justice Services to the Office of the Governor. 
 
Signed by 
 
 
 
 
 ______________________   _______________________  
Executive Committee Chair     Executive Committee Vice-Chair 
 
Passed and Approved this 10 of August, 2022 
 
 
 
Grant Number: 1484323 

 
 
 
 
 

       5430 Link Road • San Angelo, TX 76904 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Ph. 325.944.9666 | Fax 325.944.9925 
www.cvcog.org 

Ph. 325.944.9666 | Fax 325.944.9925 
www.cvcog.org  

~ 
CONCHO VALLEY 

COUNCIL OF GOVERNMENTS 

http://www.cvcog.org/
http://www.cvcog.org/


Resolution 
 

Whereas, The Concho Valley Council of Governments finds it in the best interest of the citizens of 
the Concho Valley region that the CVCOG Regional Planning be operated for the 2021-22; and 
 
Whereas,  The Concho Valley Council of Governments agrees to provide applicable matching funds 
for the said project as required by the FY21 State Homeland Security Program (SHSP) application; 
and 
 
Whereas, The Concho Valley Council of Governments agrees that in the event of loss or misuse of 
the Office of the Governor funds, the Concho Valley Council of Governments assures that the funds 
will be returned to the Office of the Governor in full; and 
 
Whereas, the Concho Valley Council of Governments designates the Executive Director as the 
grantee’s authorized official. The authorized official is given the power to apply for, accept, reject, 
alter or terminate the grant on behalf of the applicant agency.  
 
 Now Therefore, Be It Resolved that the Concho Valley Council of Governments approves 
submission of the grant application for CVCOG Regional Planning to the Office of the Governor. 
 
Signed by 
 
 
 
 
 ______________________   _______________________  
Executive Committee Chair     Executive Committee Vice-Chair 
 
Passed and Approved this 10 of August, 2022 
 
 
 
Grant Number: 2952907 

 
 
 
 
 

       5430 Link Road • San Angelo, TX 76904 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Ph. 325.944.9666 | Fax 325.944.9925 
www.cvcog.org 

Ph. 325.944.9666 | Fax 325.944.9925 
www.cvcog.org  

~ 
CONCHO VALLEY 

COUNCIL OF GOVERNMENTS 

http://www.cvcog.org/
http://www.cvcog.org/


Resolution 
 

Whereas, The Concho Valley Council of Governments finds it in the best interest of the citizens of 
the Concho Valley region that the CVCOG Regional Planning be operated for the 2022-23; and 
 
Whereas,  The Concho Valley Council of Governments agrees to provide applicable matching funds 
for the said project as required by the FY23 State Homeland Security Program (SHSP) application; 
and 
 
Whereas, The Concho Valley Council of Governments agrees that in the event of loss or misuse of 
the Office of the Governor funds, the Concho Valley Council of Governments assures that the funds 
will be returned to the Office of the Governor in full; and 
 
Whereas, the Concho Valley Council of Governments designates the Executive Director as the 
grantee’s authorized official. The authorized official is given the power to apply for, accept, reject, 
alter or terminate the grant on behalf of the applicant agency.  
 
 Now Therefore, Be It Resolved that the Concho Valley Council of Governments approves 
submission of the grant application for CVCOG Regional Planning to the Office of the Governor. 
 
Signed by 
 
 
 
 
 ______________________   _______________________  
Executive Committee Chair     Executive Committee Vice-Chair 
 
Passed and Approved this 10 of August, 2022 
 
 
 
Grant Number: 2952908 

 
 
 
 
 

       5430 Link Road • San Angelo, TX 76904 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Ph. 325.944.9666 | Fax 325.944.9925 
www.cvcog.org 

Ph. 325.944.9666 | Fax 325.944.9925 
www.cvcog.org  

~ 
CONCHO VALLEY 

COUNCIL OF GOVERNMENTS 

http://www.cvcog.org/
http://www.cvcog.org/


Resolution 
 

Whereas, The Concho Valley Council of Governments finds it in the best interest of the citizens of 
the Concho Valley region that the VAWA Training Project be operated for the 2021-22; and 
 
Whereas,  The Concho Valley Council of Governments agrees to provide applicable matching funds 
for the said project as required by the FY22 Violence Against Women Formula Grants application; 
and 
 
Whereas, The Concho Valley Council of Governments agrees that in the event of loss or misuse of 
the Office of the Governor funds, the Concho Valley Council of Governments assures that the funds 
will be returned to the Office of the Governor in full; and 
 
Whereas, the Concho Valley Council of Governments designates the Executive Director as the 
grantee’s authorized official. The authorized official is given the power to apply for, accept, reject, 
alter or terminate the grant on behalf of the applicant agency.  
 
 Now Therefore, Be It Resolved that the Concho Valley Council of Governments approves 
submission of the grant application for the VAWA Training Project to the Office of the Governor. 
 
Signed by 
 
 
 
 
 ______________________   _______________________  
Executive Committee Chair     Executive Committee Vice-Chair 
 
Passed and Approved this 10 of August, 2022 
 
 
 
Grant Number: 3973002 

 
 
 
 
 

       5430 Link Road • San Angelo, TX 76904 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Ph. 325.944.9666 | Fax 325.944.9925 
www.cvcog.org 

Ph. 325.944.9666 | Fax 325.944.9925 
www.cvcog.org  

~ 
CONCHO VALLEY 

COUNCIL OF GOVERNMENTS 

http://www.cvcog.org/
http://www.cvcog.org/


Resolution 
 

Whereas, The Concho Valley Council of Governments finds it in the best interest of the citizens of 
the Concho Valley region that the VAWA Training Project be operated for the 2022-23; and 
 
Whereas,  The Concho Valley Council of Governments agrees to provide applicable matching funds 
for the said project as required by the VC-Coronavirus State Fiscal Recovery Fund (Victims of Crime 
- SB 8) Grants application; and 
 
Whereas, The Concho Valley Council of Governments agrees that in the event of loss or misuse of 
the Office of the Governor funds, the Concho Valley Council of Governments assures that the funds 
will be returned to the Office of the Governor in full; and 
 
Whereas, the Concho Valley Council of Governments designates the Executive Director as the 
grantee’s authorized official. The authorized official is given the power to apply for, accept, reject, 
alter or terminate the grant on behalf of the applicant agency.  
 
 Now Therefore, Be It Resolved that the Concho Valley Council of Governments approves 
submission of the grant application for the VAWA Training Project to the Office of the Governor. 
 
Signed by 
 
 
 
 
 ______________________   _______________________  
Executive Committee Chair     Executive Committee Vice-Chair 
 
Passed and Approved this 10 of August, 2022 
 
 
 
Grant Number: 3973003 

 
 
 
 
 

       5430 Link Road • San Angelo, TX 76904 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Ph. 325.944.9666 | Fax 325.944.9925 
www.cvcog.org 

Ph. 325.944.9666 | Fax 325.944.9925 
www.cvcog.org  

~ 
CONCHO VALLEY 

COUNCIL OF GOVERNMENTS 

http://www.cvcog.org/
http://www.cvcog.org/


Resolution 
 

Whereas, The Concho Valley Council of Governments finds it in the best interest of the citizens of 
the Concho Valley region that the Supplemental Training grant be operated for the 2022-23 Fiscal 
Year; and 
 
Whereas,  The Concho Valley Council of Governments agrees to provide applicable matching funds 
for the said project as required by the FY23 Edward Byrne Memorial Justice Assistance Grant 
Program; and 
 
Whereas, The Concho Valley Council of Governments agrees that in the event of loss or misuse of 
the Office of the Governor funds, the Concho Valley Council of Governments assures that the funds 
will be returned to the Office of the Governor in full; and 
 
Whereas, the Concho Valley Council of Governments designates the Executive Director as the 
grantee’s authorized official. The authorized official is given the power to apply for, accept, reject, 
alter or terminate the grant on behalf of the applicant agency.  
 
 Now Therefore, Be It Resolved that the Concho Valley Council of Governments approves 
submission of the grant application for Supplemental Training grant to the Office of the Governor. 
 
Signed by 
 
 
 
 
 ______________________   _______________________  
Executive Committee Chair     Executive Committee Vice-Chair 
 
Passed and Approved this 10 of August, 2022 
 
 
 
Grant Number:4419601 

 
 
 
 
 

       5430 Link Road • San Angelo, TX 76904 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Ph. 325.944.9666 | Fax 325.944.9925 
www.cvcog.org 

Ph. 325.944.9666 | Fax 325.944.9925 
www.cvcog.org  

~ 
CONCHO VALLEY 

COUNCIL OF GOVERNMENTS 

http://www.cvcog.org/
http://www.cvcog.org/


Resolution 
 

Whereas, The Concho Valley Council of Governments finds it in the best interest of the citizens of 
the Concho Valley region that the Concho Valley Regional Communications Upgrades grant be 
operated for the 2022-24 Fiscal Year; and 
 
Whereas,  The Concho Valley Council of Governments agrees to provide applicable matching funds 
for the said project as required by the FY23 Statewide Emergency Radio Infrastructure (SERI) 
Program; and 
 
Whereas, The Concho Valley Council of Governments agrees that in the event of loss or misuse of 
the Office of the Governor funds, the Concho Valley Council of Governments assures that the funds 
will be returned to the Office of the Governor in full; and 
 
Whereas, the Concho Valley Council of Governments designates the Executive Director as the 
grantee’s authorized official. The authorized official is given the power to apply for, accept, reject, 
alter or terminate the grant on behalf of the applicant agency.  
 
 Now Therefore, Be It Resolved that the Concho Valley Council of Governments approves 
submission of the grant application for Concho Valley Regional Communications Upgrades grant to 
the Office of the Governor. 
 
Signed by 
 
 
 
 
 ______________________   _______________________  
Executive Committee Chair     Executive Committee Vice-Chair 
 
Passed and Approved this 10 of August, 2022 
 
 
 
Grant Number:4467201 

 
 
 
 
 

       5430 Link Road • San Angelo, TX 76904 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Ph. 325.944.9666 | Fax 325.944.9925 
www.cvcog.org 

Ph. 325.944.9666 | Fax 325.944.9925 
www.cvcog.org  

~ 
CONCHO VALLEY 

COUNCIL OF GOVERNMENTS 

http://www.cvcog.org/
http://www.cvcog.org/


Resolution 
 

Whereas, The Concho Valley Council of Governments finds it in the best interest of the citizens of 
the Concho Valley region that the MACC Communications grant be operated for the 2022; and 
 
Whereas,  The Concho Valley Council of Governments agrees to provide applicable matching funds 
for the said project as required by the SHSP Regular Solicitation - FY20 grant; and 
 
Whereas, The Concho Valley Council of Governments agrees that in the event of loss or misuse of 
the Office of the Governor funds, the Concho Valley Council of Governments assures that the funds 
will be returned to the Office of the Governor in full; and 
 
Whereas, the Concho Valley Council of Governments designates the Executive Director as the 
grantee’s authorized official. The authorized official is given the power to apply for, accept, reject, 
alter or terminate the grant on behalf of the applicant agency.  
 
 Now Therefore, Be It Resolved that the Concho Valley Council of Governments approves 
submission of the grant application for MACC Communications grant to the Office of the Governor. 
 
Signed by 
 
 
 
 
 ______________________   _______________________  
Executive Committee Chair     Executive Committee Vice-Chair 
 
Passed and Approved this 10 of August, 2022 
 
 
 
Grant Number: 4512301 

 
 
 
 
 

       5430 Link Road • San Angelo, TX 76904 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Ph. 325.944.9666 | Fax 325.944.9925 
www.cvcog.org 

Ph. 325.944.9666 | Fax 325.944.9925 
www.cvcog.org  

~ 
CONCHO VALLEY 

COUNCIL OF GOVERNMENTS 

http://www.cvcog.org/
http://www.cvcog.org/


Resolution 
 

Whereas, The Concho Valley Council of Governments finds it in the best interest of the citizens of 
the Concho Valley region that the Kimble County Tower Project grant be operated for the 2022-24 
Fiscal Year; and 
 
Whereas,  The Concho Valley Council of Governments agrees to provide applicable matching funds 
for the said project as required by the FY23 Statewide Emergency Radio Infrastructure (SERI) 
Program; and 
 
Whereas, The Concho Valley Council of Governments agrees that in the event of loss or misuse of 
the Office of the Governor funds, the Concho Valley Council of Governments assures that the funds 
will be returned to the Office of the Governor in full; and 
 
Whereas, the Concho Valley Council of Governments designates the Executive Director as the 
grantee’s authorized official. The authorized official is given the power to apply for, accept, reject, 
alter or terminate the grant on behalf of the applicant agency.  
 
 Now Therefore, Be It Resolved that the Concho Valley Council of Governments approves 
submission of the grant application for Kimble County Tower Project grant to the Office of the 
Governor. 
 
Signed by 
 
 
 
 
 ______________________   _______________________  
Executive Committee Chair     Executive Committee Vice-Chair 
 
Passed and Approved this 10 of August, 2022 
 
 
 
Grant Number:4556601 

 
 
 
 
 

       5430 Link Road • San Angelo, TX 76904 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Ph. 325.944.9666 | Fax 325.944.9925 
www.cvcog.org 

Ph. 325.944.9666 | Fax 325.944.9925 
www.cvcog.org  

~ 
CONCHO VALLEY 

COUNCIL OF GOVERNMENTS 

http://www.cvcog.org/
http://www.cvcog.org/


PUBLIC SAFETY SENSITIVE 

PUBLIC SAFETY SENSITIVE 

Concho Valley Council of 
Governments (CVCOG) 

Region #10 Central Texas 
Regional Interoperable 

Communications Plan (RICP) 

  
Dated: 30 June 2022 
 

Distribution is limited to those parties authorized by the CVCOG. The point of contact 
(POC) for this document is the CVCOG. Current contact information for the POC can be 
found in Section 1 of this document. 

ThXAS ASSOCIATION OP 
R EGIONAL COUNCILS 

Rl 

e 
CONCHO VALLEY 

COUNCIL Of" COYERh./41Nl'S 



Concho Valley Council of Governments, Region 10  
Regional Interoperable Communications Plan 

June 2022  Page | ii 
PUBLIC SAFETY SENSITIVE 

Regional Interoperable Communications Plan 

Approval & Authorization Page 
On July 13, 2022, the Membership of Region 10 Concho Valley Council of 
Governments, adopted the Regional Interoperable Communications Plan (RICP). 
This plan was updated on 29 November 2021, and the RICP was presented to 
the Emergency Preparedness Advisory Committee on August 10, 2022. The 
RICP was approved by the CVCOG Executive Committee on August 10, 2022. 
The CVCOG region includes the Counties of Coke, Concho, Crockett, Edwards, 
Irion, Kimble, Mason, McCulloch, Menard, Reagan, Schleicher, Sterling, Sutton, 
Tom Green, counties, and all jurisdictions and/or public safety agencies within 
these counties.  

Signed:   

 
 

Executive Director      Date  
 
 
 
 



Concho Valley Council of Governments, Region 10  
Regional Interoperable Communications Plan 

June 2022  Page | iii 
PUBLIC SAFETY SENSITIVE 

Texas Association of Regional Councils 
01 Panhandle Regional Planning Commission (PRPC)  
Counties Served: Armstrong, Briscoe, Carson, Castro, Childress, Collingsworth, Dallam, 
Deaf Smith, Donley, Gray, Hall, Hansford, Hartley, Hemphill, Hutchinson, Lipscomb, 
Moore, Ochiltree, Oldham, Parmer, Potter, Randall, Roberts, Sherman, Swisher, Wheeler 
02 South Plains Association of Governments (SPAG)  
Counties Served: Bailey, Cochran, Crosby, Dickens, Floyd, Garza, Hale, Hockley, King, 
Lamb, Lubbock, Lynn, Motley, Terry, Yoakum 
03 Nortex Regional Planning Commission (NORTEX)  
Counties Served: Archer, Baylor, Clay, Cottle, Foard, Hardeman, Jack, Montague, 
Wichita, Wilbarger, Young 
04 North Central Texas Council of Governments (NCTCOG)  
Counties Served: Collin, Dallas, Denton, Ellis, Erath, Hood, Hunt, Johnson, Kaufman, 
Navarro, Palo Pinto, Parker, Rockwall, Somervell, Tarrant, Wise 
05 Ark-Tex Council of Governments (ARK-TEK)  
Counties Served: Bowie, Cass, Delta, Franklin, Hopkins, Lamar, Morris, Red River, Titus 
Counties in TX and Miller Co., AR 
06 East Texas Council of Governments (ETCOG)  
Counties Served: Anderson, Camp, Cherokee, Gregg, Harrison, Henderson, Marion, Panola, Rains, Rusk, Smith, Upshur, Van Zandt, 
Wood 
07 West Central Texas Council of Governments (WCTCOG)  
Counties Served: Brown, Callahan, Coleman, Comanche, Eastland, Fisher, Haskell, Jones, Kent, Knox, Mitchell, Nolan, Runnels, Scurry, 
Shackelford, Stephens, Stonewall, Taylor, Throckmorton 
08 Rio Grande Council of Governments (RGCOG)  
Counties Served: Brewster, Culberson, El Paso, Hudspeth, Jeff Davis, Presidio 
09 Permian Basin Regional Planning Commission [PBRPC]  
Counties Served: Andrews, Borden, Crane, Dawson, Ector, Gaines, Glasscock, Howard, Loving, Martin, Midland, Pecos, Reeves, Terrell, 
Upton, Ward, Winkler 
10 Concho Valley Council of Governments (CVCOG)  
Counties Served: Coke, Concho, Crockett, Irion, Kimble, Mason, McCulloch, Menard, Reagan, Schleicher, Sterling, Sutton, Tom Green, 
Edwards  
11 Heart of Texas Council of Governments (HOTCOG)  
Counties Served: Bosque, Falls, Freestone, Hill, Limestone, McLennan 
12 Capital Area Council of Governments (CAPCOG)  
Counties Served: Bastrop, Blanco, Burnet, Caldwell, Fayette, Hays, Lee, Llano, Travis, Williamson 
13 Brazos Valley Council of Governments (BVCOG)  
Counties Served: Brazos, Burleson, Grimes, Leon, Madison, Robertson, Washington 
14 Deep East Texas Council of Governments (DETCOG)  
Counties Served: Angelina, Houston, Jasper, Nacogdoches, Newton, Polk, Sabine, San Augustine, San Jacinto, Shelby, Trinity, Tyler 
15 South East Texas Regional Planning Commission (SETRPC)  
Counties Served: Hardin, Jefferson, Orange 
16 Houston-Galveston Area Council (H-GAC)  
Counties Served: Austin, Brazoria, Chambers, Colorado, Fort Bend, Galveston, Harris, Liberty, Matagorda, Montgomery, Walker, Waller, 
Wharton 
17 Golden Crescent Regional Planning Commission (GCRPC)  
Counties Served: Calhoun, DeWitt, Goliad, Gonzales, Jackson, Lavaca, Victoria 
18 Alamo Area Council of Governments (AACOG) 
Counties Served: Atascosa, Bandera, Bexar, Comal, Frio, Gillespie, Guadalupe, Karnes, Kendall, Kerr, McMullen, Medina, Wilson 
19 South Texas Development Council (STDC)  
Counties Served: Jim Hogg, Starr, Webb, Zapata 
20 Coastal Bend Council of Governments 
Counties Served: Aransas, Bee, Brooks, Duval, Jim Wells, Kenedy, Kleberg, Live Oak, Nueces, Refugio, San Patricio 
21 Lower Rio Grande Valley Development Council (LRGVDC)  
Counties Served: Cameron, Hidalgo, Willacy 
22 Texoma Council of Governments (TEXOMA)  
Counties Served: Cooke, Fannin, Grayson 
23 Central Texas Council of Governments (CTCOG)  
Counties Served: Bell, Coryell, Hamilton, Lampasas, Milam, Mills, San Saba 
24 Middle Rio Grande Development Council (MRGDC)  
Counties Served: Dimmit, Kinney, La Salle, Maverick, Real, Uvalde, Val Verde, Zavala 



Concho Valley Council of Governments, Region 10  
Regional Interoperable Communications Plan 

June 2022  Page | iv 
PUBLIC SAFETY SENSITIVE 

Record of Change  

This Regional Interoperable Communications Plan (RICP) is subject to information 
and/or equipment updates and changes. The use of this Record of Change helps 
manage the RICP modifications throughout the life of this document. 
Change # Description Change Date Approved By 
001 Held RICP Workshop 29NOV2021  
002 Finalized Draft for EPAC Approval 30JUN2022  
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
  



Concho Valley Council of Governments, Region 10  
Regional Interoperable Communications Plan 

June 2022  Page | v 
PUBLIC SAFETY SENSITIVE 

Executive Overview 
This document establishes a Regional Interoperable Communications Plan (RICP) for 
the Concho Valley Council of Governments Region 10. The RICP is intended to 
document the distribution of funding build-out and migration of regional communication 
system(s) to a P25 Compliant Standards-Based Shared System and reference revisions 
to policies and procedures in addition to operational guidance. 
 “From terrorism to tornadoes, whatever happens, everyone is involved in truly a team 
effort,” Steve McCraw, Director. 

Recognizing the need for an overarching emergency communications strategy to 
address communication deficiencies that exist at the regional level, this guide provides 
the governance and authority needed to decide on the grant funding disbursement for 
regional interoperable communications. This document includes, on a strategic level, 
equipment requirements, policies and procedures that explain the equipment’s 
operational use, training that must occur on the new equipment, the build-out plan of 
communications systems to achieve region-wide interoperability, and usage by all 
relative agencies on a daily basis. 
This document establishes a RICP for Region 10: 35 municipalities within 14 counties in 
the Central area of Texas. 
The RICP is intended to document the Regional Interoperable Migration Plan (RIMP) 
and outline the priorities for public safety communications related objectives.  
It specifies public safety, public service, and non-governmental emergency responders’ 
daily operations and emergency response activities available within the designated area, 
who controls each resource, and what rules of use or operational procedures exist for 
activation and deactivation of each resource. 
The RICP is aligned with the National Emergency Communications Plan (NECP) and the 
Statewide Communications Interoperable Plan (SCIP) goals and objectives for achieving 
P25 interoperability.  
  



Concho Valley Council of Governments, Region 10  
Regional Interoperable Communications Plan 

June 2022  Page | vi 
PUBLIC SAFETY SENSITIVE 

The 2014 NECP sets forth five strategic goals based on the SAFECOM Interoperability 
Continuum that provide continuity with the 2008 NECP. Collectively, the NECP goals 
aim to enhance emergency communications capabilities at all levels of government and 
across disciplines in coordination with the private sector, non-governmental 
organizations, and communities across the nation: 

NECP 
(National Emergency Communications Plan) 

Goal 1 
Governance and Leadership: Enhance decision-making, coordination, 
and planning for emergency communications through strong 
governance structures and leadership. 

Goal 2 
Planning and Procedures: Update plans and procedures to improve 
emergency responder communications and readiness in a dynamic 
operating environment. 

Goal 3 
Training and Exercises: Improve responders’ ability to coordinate and 
communicate through training and exercise programs that use all 
available technologies and target gaps in emergency 
communications. 

Goal 4 
Operational Coordination: Ensure operational effectiveness through 
the coordination of communications capabilities, resources, and 
personnel from across the whole community. 

Goal 5 
Research and Development: Coordinate research, development, 
testing, and evaluation activities to develop innovative emergency 
communications capabilities that support the needs of emergency 
responders. 

  



Concho Valley Council of Governments, Region 10  
Regional Interoperable Communications Plan 

June 2022  Page | vii 
PUBLIC SAFETY SENSITIVE 

Table of Contents 
1 Introduction ............................................................................................................ 1 

1.1 Regional Interoperable Communications Plan Points of Contact ....................... 1 
1.2 Regional Participating Agencies ........................................................................ 3 
1.3 Focus Group Sessions ...................................................................................... 3 
1.4 RICP Ratification Process ................................................................................. 3 

2 Governance ............................................................................................................ 4 

2.1 Statewide Governing Body ................................................................................ 5 
2.2 Regional Governance Authority ......................................................................... 6 
2.3 Regional Interoperable Communications Sub-Committee ................................. 6 
2.4 Regional Governing Body Responsibilities ........................................................ 7 
2.5 Meeting Schedule ............................................................................................. 7 
2.6 RICP Maintenance and Update ......................................................................... 7 

3 Current State .......................................................................................................... 8 

3.1 Regional System ............................................................................................... 8 
3.2 Mobile Communications Command Program .................................................... 9 

4 Future System(s) .................................................................................................. 10 

4.1 Approach and Methodology ............................................................................ 10 
4.2 Planning by County ......................................................................................... 10 

4.2.1 Coke County ......................................................................................... 10 
4.2.2 Concho County ..................................................................................... 11 
4.2.3 Crockett County .................................................................................... 13 
4.2.4 Edwards County ................................................................................... 15 
4.2.5 Irion County .......................................................................................... 16 
4.2.6 Kimble County ...................................................................................... 18 
4.2.7 Mason County ...................................................................................... 20 
4.2.8 McCulloch County................................................................................. 22 
4.2.9 Menard County ..................................................................................... 24 
4.2.10 Reagan County ..................................................................................... 26 
4.2.11 Schleicher County................................................................................. 27 
4.2.12 Sterling County ..................................................................................... 28 
4.2.13 Sutton County ....................................................................................... 30 
4.2.14 Tom Green County ............................................................................... 32 

4.3 Planning Summary .......................................................................................... 34 

5 Priorities ............................................................................................................... 35 

5.1 Coke County ................................................................................................... 35 
5.1.1 Priority/Goal Description:  Radio Replacement Cycle ........................... 35 
5.1.2 Priority/Goal Description:  Backup Power ............................................. 36 

5.2 Concho County ............................................................................................... 37 
5.2.1 Priority/Goal Description:  Acquiring Cellular PTT Functions ................. 37 
5.2.2 Priority/Goal Description:  Backup Power Upgrades ............................. 37 
5.2.3 Priority/Goal Description:  Radio Replacement Cycle ........................... 38 



Concho Valley Council of Governments, Region 10  
Regional Interoperable Communications Plan 

June 2022  Page | viii 
PUBLIC SAFETY SENSITIVE 

5.3 Crockett County .............................................................................................. 38 
5.3.1 Priority/Goal Description:  Radio Infrastructure Upgrades ..................... 38 
5.3.2 Priority/Goal Description:  Radio Replacement Cycle ........................... 39 

5.4 Edwards County .............................................................................................. 39 
5.4.1 Priority/Goal Description: Radio Replacement ...................................... 39 

5.5 Irion County ..................................................................................................... 40 
5.5.1 Priority/Goal Description:  Dispatch Upgrades ...................................... 40 
5.5.2 Priority/Goal Description:  Radio Replacement Cycle ........................... 40 
5.5.3 Priority/Goal Description:  Radio System Infrastructure ........................ 41 

5.6 Kimble County ................................................................................................. 41 
5.6.1 Priority/Goal Description:  Radio System Infrastructure ........................ 41 
5.6.2 Priority/Goal Description:  Dispatch Upgrades ...................................... 42 
5.6.3 Priority/Goal Description:  Radio Replacement Cycle ........................... 42 

5.7 Mason County ................................................................................................. 43 
5.7.1 Priority/Goal Description:  Dispatch Console Replacement ................... 43 
5.7.2 Priority/Goal Description:  Radio Replacement Cycle ........................... 43 

5.8 McCulloch County ........................................................................................... 44 
5.8.1 Priority/Goal Description:  Radio System Infrastructure ........................ 44 
5.8.2 Priority/Goal Description:  Mobile Command Trailer .............................. 44 
5.8.3 Priority/Goal Description:  Radio Replacement Cycle ........................... 45 
5.8.4 Priority/Goal Description:  Satellite Communications ............................ 45 

5.9 Menard County ............................................................................................... 46 
5.9.1 Priority/Goal Description:  Dispatch Console and CAD Upgrade ........... 46 
5.9.2 Priority/Goal Description:  Radio Replacement Cycle ........................... 46 
5.9.3 Priority/Goal Description:  Satellite Capability ....................................... 47 
5.9.4 Priority/Goal Description:  Radio System Infrastructure ........................ 47 

5.10 Reagan County ............................................................................................... 48 
5.10.1 Priority/Goal Description:  Backup Power ............................................. 48 

5.11 Schleicher County ........................................................................................... 48 
5.11.1 Priority/Goal Description:  Radio Replacement Cycle ........................... 48 
5.11.2 Priority/Goal Description:  Dispatch Upgrades ...................................... 49 

5.12 Sterling County ............................................................................................... 49 
5.12.1 Priority/Goal Description:  Radio Replacement ..................................... 49 
5.12.2 Priority/Goal Description:  Radio Infrastructure Upgrades ..................... 50 
5.12.3 Priority/Goal Description:  Communication Specific Training ................. 50 

5.13 Sutton County ................................................................................................. 51 
5.13.1 Priority/Goal Description:  Radio System Infrastructure ........................ 51 
5.13.2 Priority/Goal Description:  Radio System Replacement Cycle ............... 51 
5.13.3 Priority/Goal Description: Satellite Communications Capability ............. 52 

5.14 Tom Green County .......................................................................................... 52 
5.14.1 Priority/Goal Description:  Radio Replacement ..................................... 52 
5.14.2 Priority/Goal Description:  Additional P25 VHF Repeater on COSA with 
talkgroups and more capability for responders and dispatch. .......................... 53 



Concho Valley Council of Governments, Region 10  
Regional Interoperable Communications Plan 

June 2022  Page | ix 
PUBLIC SAFETY SENSITIVE 

5.14.3 Priority/Goal Description:  LTE coverage is an issue and although there 
are boosters available, there will still be a need for additional and supplemental 
coverage at times. ........................................................................................... 53 

6 CVCOG Regional Priorities .................................................................................. 55 

6.1 COG Priority Radio Replacement .................................................................... 55 
6.2 COG Priority Radio System Infrastructure ....................................................... 56 
6.3 COG Priority Dispatch Center Technologies ................................................... 56 
6.4 Planning Summary .......................................................................................... 58 

Appendix A Participating, Counties, Jurisdictions, and Agencies ........................ A-1 

Appendix B Timeline/Milestone/Cost Estimate, Basic Requirements ................... B-1 

Appendix C Regional Communications Assessment ............................................. C-1 

Appendix D References ............................................................................................ D-1 

Appendix E Glossary ................................................................................................ E-1 

List of Tables 
Table 1: Participating Counties/Jurisdictions/Agencies ................................................ A-1 
Table 2: CVCOG POC Information .............................................................................. A-2 
Table 3: CVCOG State Agencies POC Information ..................................................... A-3 
Table 4: CVCOG Federal Agencies POC Information ................................................. A-4 
Table 6: Nongovernmental Agencies POC Information ............................................... A-5 
Table 7: Amateur Radio Teams POC Information ....................................................... A-5 
Table 8: Regional CASM AM POC Information ........................................................... C-1 

List of Figures 
Figure 1: Texas Governance Organization Chart ............................................................ 5 
 
 
 
  



Concho Valley Council of Governments, Region 10  
Regional Interoperable Communications Plan 

June 2022  Page | x 
PUBLIC SAFETY SENSITIVE 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

This page intentionally left blank 
 
 



Concho Valley Texas Council of Governments, Region 10 
Regional Interoperable Communications Plan 

June 2022  Page | 1 
PUBLIC SAFETY SENSITIVE 

1 Introduction 
The Regional Interoperable Communications Plan (RICP) is a strategic plan that: 

− Establishes a regional vision for the future state of local emergency 
communications. 

− Sets regional goals and priorities for addressing deficiencies in the region’s 
emergency communications structure. 

− Provides recommendations and milestones for emergency response providers 
and relevant government officials to improve their communications capabilities. 

The RICP includes the Regional Governance Structures (RGOV), and Regional 
Interoperable Migration Plans (RIMP).  
Concho Valley Council of Governments and Texas Department of Public Safety - 
Communications Service and the Texas Department of Transportation partnered in the 
development of this Regional Interoperable Communications Plan. 
Several referenced sources that aided in the production of this document, or which might 
help clarify parts of it, are contained in Appendix D.  A Glossary of Terms in included as 
Appendix E. 
The following is the multidisciplinary team for establishing and completing initiatives and 
milestones relative to the RICP scope or timeframe. 

1.1 Regional Interoperable Communications Plan Points of Contact 

Regional Plan Coordinator (Primary): 
Agency Name: Concho Valley Council of Governments (CVCOG) 
POC Name:  Nicole Nixon 
Title:   Public Safety Manager 
Address:  5430 Link Rd, San Angelo, TX 76904 
Office Phone:  325-944-9666 Ext. 262 
Cell Phone:   325-234-2439 
E-Mail:   nicole.nixon@cvcog.org  

Alternate Primary: 
Agency Name: Concho Valley Council of Governments (CVCOG) 
POC Name:  Beth Holland-Mull 
Title:   Public Safety Program Coordinator 
Address:  5430 Link Rd, San Angelo, TX 76904 
Office Phone:  3325-944-9666 Ext. 269 
E-Mail:   beth.holland-mull@cvcog.org   
  

mailto:nicole.nixon@cvcog.org
mailto:beth.holland-mull@cvcog.org


Concho Valley Texas Council of Governments, Region 10 
Regional Interoperable Communications Plan 

June 2022  Page | 2 
PUBLIC SAFETY SENSITIVE 

State of Texas POC: 

Agency Name:   Texas Department of Public Safety (TxDPS) 
POC Name:                         Linda Moreno  
Title:                                     Communications Supervisor 
Address:                              11612 Scott Simpson Blvd, El Paso, TX 79936 
Cell Phone:                          915-217-8419 
24/7 Phone:                         915-217-8419 
E-Mail:                                  linda.moreno@dps.texas.gov    
 
Agency Name:   Texas Department of Public Safety (TxDPS) 
POC Name:                         Marlee Smith 
Title:                                     Communication Supervisor 
Address:                              2405 S Loop 250 W, Midland, TX, 79703 
Cell Phone:                          432-254-0533 
24/7 Phone:                         432-254-0533 
E-Mail:                                  marlee.purvissmith@dps.texas.gov   
 
 
 
  

mailto:linda.moreno@dps.texas.gov
mailto:marlee.purvissmith@dps.texas.gov


Concho Valley Texas Council of Governments, Region 10 
Regional Interoperable Communications Plan 

June 2022  Page | 3 
PUBLIC SAFETY SENSITIVE 

1.2 Regional Participating Agencies 

The list of counties and cities represented in the RICP, along with POC emergency 
phone numbers, can be found in Appendix A. Appendix A also includes information on 
other regions and/or counties that are participating in this regional communications 
system.  

1.3 Focus Group Sessions 

The CVCOG annual Focus Group Session will take place no later than the last day of 
May of each fiscal year and, unless otherwise designated, will occur during the regularly 
scheduled meeting of the CVCOG Homeland Security Advisory Committee – 
Communications Sub-Committee. The group will identify and/or re-evaluate: 

− Areas and agencies lacking operability/interoperability. 

o Identify and plan to overcome gaps in regional operable/interoperable 
communications, policies, and training.  

− Accomplishments and status of projects.  

o Progress along the Interoperability Continuum in an appropriate category 
that best fits the specific agency and/or local area. Re-evaluate regional 
requirements as technology evolves and circumstances dictate. Review 
communications related SOPs created by the included agencies, to 
preclude conflicts or non-compliance with current standards or initiatives. 

− Initiatives and priorities for funding. 

o Prioritize and recommend projects for funding based on Statewide 
Communications Interoperability Plan (SCIP) priorities and initiatives. 

This information will be submitted annually to the Office of the Texas SWIC to be 
integrated into the revised SCIP Initiatives, and revised SCIP Funding Plan. 

1.4 RICP Ratification Process 

After customizing the RICP template with regional policy and procedure information, 
formally identifying the regional governance structure, and providing a high-level design 
to reach a regional public safety Shared System for voice communications, the following 
ratification procedure will be employed: 

1. The Texas Interoperable Communications Coalition (TxICC) Technology 
Advisors and the Communications Area Managers of the Texas Department of 
Public Safety, Public Safety Communications Service will collaborate with the 
COGs in their regions on the final review and compliance of the RICP. RICPs 
must be compliant with the NECP, National Incident Management System 
(NIMS), National Response Framework (NRF), Core Capabilities, and the Texas 
SCIP (TxSCIP).  

2. The COGs will develop a review and comment period for participating agencies, 
jurisdictions, and counties.  

3. The RICP documents approved at the COG will be submitted to the Statewide 
Interoperability Coordinator (SWIC) at the Office of the SWIC, and to the State 



Concho Valley Texas Council of Governments, Region 10 
Regional Interoperable Communications Plan 

June 2022  Page | 4 
PUBLIC SAFETY SENSITIVE 

Coordinator for Communications (SCC) at the Governor’s Division of Emergency 
Management.  

4. The Office of the Governor, Homeland Security Grants Division, and the Office of 
the SWIC have final authority over statewide communications interoperability.  

2 Governance  
The RICP addresses the following objectives set forth in the 2014 NECP.  
NECP Objectives:  

− To facilitate the development of effective governance groups and designated 
emergency communications leadership roles. 

− To integrate strategic and tactical emergency communications planning efforts 
across all levels of government. 

− To develop coordinated grant requirements that promote Federal participation 
and coordination in communications planning processes, governance bodies, 
joint training and exercises, and infrastructure sharing. 

− Emergency responders employ common planning and operational protocols to 
effectively use their resources and personnel. 

− Emergency responders have shared approaches to training and exercises, 
improved technical expertise, and enhanced response capabilities. 

− CVCOG has integrated preparedness, mitigation, response, and recovery 
capabilities to communicate during significant events. 

 

  



Concho Valley Texas Council of Governments, Region 10 
Regional Interoperable Communications Plan 

June 2022  Page | 5 
PUBLIC SAFETY SENSITIVE 

2.1 Statewide Governing Body 

Texas interoperable communications plans and governance is directed and approved by 
the Texas Governor. Figure 1, the Texas Governance Organization Chart, identifies 
support positions from the Governor’s Office down to the regional level. 
 

 
Figure 1: Texas Governance Organization Chart  

  



Concho Valley Texas Council of Governments, Region 10 
Regional Interoperable Communications Plan 

June 2022  Page | 6 
PUBLIC SAFETY SENSITIVE 

2.2 Regional Governance Authority 

In accordance with the: 

− Texas Emergency Management Statutes Code 421, and   
− Texas Statewide Communications Interoperable Plan (SCIP),  

Texas regions will develop governance structures which will provide oversight for the 
development and implementation of (1) the regional integrated public safety radio 
systems, and (2) the RIMPs.   
Regions will adopt existing or create new governance agreements that provide 
supervision in the use of appropriated money, including money from relevant federal 
homeland security grants, for the purposes of designing, implementing, and maintaining 
a regional integrated public safety radio communications system that provides 
interoperability between local, state, and federal agency first responders. 
Regions will develop, implement, and train on the common regional SOP, consistent with 
guidelines in the National Incident Management System (NIMS), the National Response 
Framework (NRF), and the National Emergency Communications Plan (NECP). 

2.3 Regional Interoperable Communications Sub-Committee 

The RICP was developed under the authority of the Region 10 Concho Valley Council of 
Governments. On July 13, 2022, the Region 10 Concho Valley Council of Governments 
appointed members to the Emergency Preparedness Advisory Committee (EPAC), 
designated as an advisory committee to the Region 10 Concho Valley Council of 
Governments.  
Membership is open to all and includes representatives from the following public safety 
and public service disciplines:   

− Critical Infrastructure Utilities 
− Emergency Management 
− Emergency Medical Services 
− Federal 
− Fire/Rescue/EMS 
− Law Enforcement 
− Nongovernmental Organizations (NGOs) 
− Public Health 
− Public Works 
− Private Partners 
− State 

  

http://www.dps.texas.gov/dem/GrantsResources/txEmerMgtStatutes.pdf


Concho Valley Texas Council of Governments, Region 10 
Regional Interoperable Communications Plan 

June 2022  Page | 7 
PUBLIC SAFETY SENSITIVE 

2.4 Regional Governing Body Responsibilities 

The Concho Valley Council of Governments Emergency Preparedness Advisory 
Committee (EPAC) will:  

− Ensure the RICP is maintained and updated at regular intervals, or as critical 
updated information is identified. 

− Ensure the dissemination of updated plans to all participating agencies.  
− Ensure training requirements are established in support of the RICP. 
− Ensure the initiation of Memoranda of Understanding (MOUs) and Mutual Aid 

Agreements (MAAs) for interoperable communications. 
− Ensure the promotion of regular interoperable equipment/solutions testing; assist 

agencies with test evaluations, and dissemination of the results. 
− Ensure the promotion of interoperable communications capabilities through 

trained communications personnel. 
− Schedule annual Focus Group Meetings.  

2.5 Meeting Schedule 

The Emergency Preparedness Advisory Committee meets regularly at Concho Valley 
Council of Governments, 2801 W 306 Loop A, San Angelo, TX 76904, on the second 
Wednesday of each month, as needed. 

2.6 RICP Maintenance and Update 

The CVCOG Stakeholders will regularly revisit the RICP and: 

− Discuss initiative progress and status. Identify potential new initiatives. 
− Determine if existing initiatives have become a higher/lower priority. 

Updates to this document can be recommended by any of the participating agencies or 
by the Office of the SWIC. Requests for modifications or additions to this document 
should be submitted to the RICP POC for distribution to the CVCOG EPAC.  
Where revisions are necessary, the CVCOG Stakeholders will revise the specific 
section(s), record the change(s) on the “Record of Change” page, submit the updated 
section(s) to the Regional Plan Coordinator, and provide a courtesy copy to the Office of 
the SWIC. Revisions to the RICP will require review from the Emergency Preparedness 
Advisory Committee (EPAC) and endorsement from the CVCOG General Membership.  
Agencies participating in this plan will be formally notified within 30 days of any approved 
modifications or additions to this RICP. Revisions to the RICP adopted by reference and 
current subsequent versions can be requested from the Office of the SWIC when 
necessary. 
 



Concho Valley Texas Council of Governments, Region 10 
Regional Interoperable Communications Plan 

June 2022  Page | 8 
PUBLIC SAFETY SENSITIVE 

3 Current State  
The CVCOG regional systems are summarized below. A description of the methodology 
for gathering some information on regional communications assets is contained in 
Appendix C. 

3.1 Regional System 

Texas has adopted the “Project 25 Standard” as the technology solution and long-term 
interoperability goal for voice public safety agency communications. The TxSCIP directs 
the foundation for statewide interoperable communications to be based on the 
Department of Homeland Security (DHS)/Emergency Communications Division (ECD) 
“System-of-Systems Approach for Interoperable Communications”. The system-of-
systems definition is: “A system-of-systems exists when a group of independently 
operating systems comprised of people, technology, and organizations are connected, 
enabling emergency responders to effectively support day-to-day operations, planned 
events, or major incidents.” 1  
Utilizing the system-of-systems recommendations, and in compliance with the TxSCIP, 
each system in the region will develop high-level strategic plans to implement a regional 
interoperable communications system which will become part of the Texas system-of-
systems. 
With a system-of-systems approach, planners are able to consider how technology is 
evolving to maintain system connections and overcome interoperability challenges. This 
approach allows for greater consideration for backwards-compatibility, standard 
technical interfaces, and migrating to advanced technologies.  
Core Capabilities 
The National Planning Scenarios2 and the establishment of the National Preparedness 
Guidelines3 steered the focus of homeland security towards a capabilities-based 
planning approach. Capabilities-based planning focuses on planning under uncertainty, 
as the next danger or disaster can never be forecast with complete accuracy. Therefore, 
capabilities-based planning takes an all-hazards approach to planning and preparation 
which builds capabilities that can be applied to a wide variety of incidents. 
For the past several years, states and urban areas have used capabilities-based 
planning to perform baseline assessments of their homeland security efforts by 
comparing their current capabilities against the Core Capabilities identified in the 
National Preparedness Goal and the Emergency Support Function (ESF)4 annexes.  
This approach identified gaps in current capabilities and focused efforts on identifying 
and developing priority capabilities and tasks for the jurisdiction. 
In September 2011, DHS released the first edition of the National Preparedness Goal5 in 
response to Presidential Policy Directive 8: National Preparedness (PPD-8). The 
National Preparedness Goal describes our nation’s security and resilience posture 
through Core Capabilities, which represent an evolution from the Target Capabilities List 

 
1 http://www.safecomprogram.gov/NR/rdonlyres/FD22B528-18B7-4CB1-AF49-
F9626C608290/0/SOSApproachforInteroperableCommunications_02.pdf 
2 National Planning Scenarios: http://www.fema.gov/pdf/media/factsheets/2009/npd_natl_plan_scenario.pdf 
3 National Preparedness Guidelines: http://www.fema.gov/pdf/emergency/nrf/National_Preparedness_Guidelines.pdf 
4 ESF Annexes: http://www.fema.gov/pdf/emergency/nrf/nrf-esf-all.pdf 
5 National Preparedness Goal: http://www.fema.gov/pdf/prepared/npg.pdf 

http://www.fema.gov/pdf/media/factsheets/2009/npd_natl_plan_scenario.pdf
http://www.fema.gov/pdf/emergency/nrf/National_Preparedness_Guidelines.pdf
http://www.fema.gov/pdf/emergency/nrf/nrf-esf-all.pdf
http://www.fema.gov/pdf/prepared/npg.pdf


Concho Valley Texas Council of Governments, Region 10 
Regional Interoperable Communications Plan 

June 2022  Page | 9 
PUBLIC SAFETY SENSITIVE 

(TCL). The Core Capabilities address five mission areas (Prevention, Protection, 
Mitigation, Response, and Recovery). 

3.2 Mobile Communications Command Program 

The Mobile Communications Command Program (MCCP) has been established by the 
DPS and will be used to provide and/or restore emergency communications due to 
natural disasters (such as hurricanes, floods, tornadoes, etc.) and man-made disasters 
caused by terrorist or criminal activities. DPS is the designated first responder state 
agency and will continue to implement and manage the MCCP equipment. The MCCP 
may include: 

− Command/Communications Trailers 
− Primary Towing Vehicles 
− P25 Compliant Portable Radios with Trunking 
− Cellular on Wheels (COWs) 
− Trunking Site on Wheels (SOWs) 
− Computers for each Command Trailer 
− Suitcase Digital Repeaters  
− IP Gateway Devices 
− FRS Radios 
− Portable Generators 
− Cargo Trailers 
− Portable Gateway Devices 
− Video Downlink for Helicopters 
− Satellite Telephones and Radios 
− HF Radio Equipment 

When called upon to support planned events, respond to hostile events or natural 
disasters, the MCCP assets can provide augmentation to expand the area of coverage 
of existing systems, assist with wireless communications during planned events if 
necessary, or provide critical communications capabilities to local systems damaged 
during a hostile event or natural disaster. 
To request MCCP assets, follow the same procedure you would for any other request, 
by working with the local emergency management coordinator via a State of Texas 
assistance request (STAR). 
 
  



Concho Valley Texas Council of Governments, Region 10 
Regional Interoperable Communications Plan 

June 2022  Page | 10 
PUBLIC SAFETY SENSITIVE 

4 Future System(s)  
4.1 Approach and Methodology 

Representatives from the CVCOG were gathered in a workshop with representatives 
from across the region. The workshop was used to develop the current RICP to 
determine where the counties currently stand with planning for public safety 
interoperable voice and data communication systems and associated funding. The need 
that every representative in the workshops discussed most often was the need for 
additional funding to complete interoperability projects.  

4.2 Planning by County 

The following sections list, by county, initiatives that have been completed, areas where 
deficiencies still exist, and plans for future systems to address those deficiencies. 

4.2.1 Coke County 
Coke County is a rural county in Texas that has the Sheriff's Office, Robert Lee 
Volunteer Fire Department, Robert Lee Volunteer EMS, Bronte Volunteer Fire 
Department, and Bronte Volunteer EMS. It is unknown how many portable radios have 
maintenance and repair issues within these agencies. Both ambulances have mobile 
units with dual head. 6 Sheriff's Units have mobile units. There is an unknown number of 
mobile units in fire trucks on both sides of the county. 
Completed:   

− Current have received $100k in grant funding to upgrade existing infrastructure 
for the five radio systems.  

− Some of the currently acquired radios have been upgraded to P25 capable.  
− Recently completed a repeater project for Robert Lee.  
− Just upgraded Sheriff's Office portable to new APX 4000.  
− EMS and Fire on both sides of county are upgrading a portion of their portables 

as well.  
− The Sheriff's Office has applied for an equipment grant to replace all mobile units 

in patrol cars. 
Deficiencies: 

− Funding: Funding streams are limited and county agency budgets are extremely 
tight due to extreme circumstances brought on by the pandemic. 

− Antiquated Radios: Agencies within the county are having both portable and 
mobile radios reach end of life. Additionally, due to the changing make up of 
frequency bands in the county, multiband radios would be ideal to address the 
interoperability problems faced by responders. This project should start with the 
Fire/EMS radios that are end of life, especially portables which currently do not 
exist. 

− Coverage Concerns: Portable radio coverage in the north (North of Robert Lee) 
and south ends of the county (South of Tennyson and the county line on SH 208) 
is intermittent at best. Need an additional tower at each location in order to 



Concho Valley Texas Council of Governments, Region 10 
Regional Interoperable Communications Plan 

June 2022  Page | 11 
PUBLIC SAFETY SENSITIVE 

provide proper portable coverage. It may be possible to combine efforts with a 
neighboring county for these tower infrastructure builds.  

− Backup Power: Currently, the tower site and the courthouse do not have backup 
power. When power failure occurs the dispatcher has to rely directly on a 
portable radio, which decreases the ability of dispatch to communicate with all 
responders.  

− Training 
o AUXCOM 
o Basic Trunked Radio System Training 
o CASM  
o COMU EX 
o COMU Training 
o Dispatch 
o FirstNet 
o Regional System Training (Basic Radio) 
o UPS Main Site  

Future Systems: 

− Antiquated Radios: Radio replacement cycle is necessary for the county as 
many responders do not have access to portable radios and many of the mobile 
radios are near end of life and in need of replacement. Funding is needed to 
upgrade the current radios or purchase new ones for some personnel and 
vehicles.  

− Backup Power: The County is in need of either stationary or mobile backup 
power solutions. The current court house and tower location does not have 
sufficient backup power resources, and when power failure occurs they lose 
some capabilities to communicate with responders. 

4.2.2 Concho County 
Concho County communications infrastructure consists of a single centralized tower site 
on the highest point in the county that provides sufficient mobile coverage countywide. 
The Sheriff’s Office acts as dispatch in the county. The County has a set of digital 
channels they operate off of, Eden Fire operates off of their own repeater, and all five fire 
departments in the county (Eden, Eola, Paint Rock, Lake Ivie, and Millersview) operate 
off of this Eden repeater. All the VFDs’ vehicles have radios; however, they do not have 
portables. Currently a plan is in place to send pages directly to text messages to 
alleviate any issues from missing portables. The same system allows custom messages 
to be sent out as well. Currently a plan is being discussed to acquire an app that will 
allow first responders the ability to have two way radio communications over LTE. The 
plan is summarized in the following sections and represents a target solution for a fully 
interoperable area-wide system. 
Completed:   

− Replaced many of the mobile and portable radios for the Sheriff’s Office. The old 
radios were used to equip the VFDs.  

− The county has obtained the mass texting capability to send notifications to first 
responder agencies.  

− Have updated and maintained the communications trailer for the county, acts as 
a backup dispatch.  



Concho Valley Texas Council of Governments, Region 10 
Regional Interoperable Communications Plan 

June 2022  Page | 12 
PUBLIC SAFETY SENSITIVE 

− Maintained the generator backups for dispatch and tower sites.  
− Added a CAD system with limited capabilities for the county.  

Deficiencies: 

− Funding: Funding streams are limited and county agency budgets are extremely 
tight due to extreme circumstances brought on by the pandemic. 

− Backup Power: Currently the generator supplying backup power to the dispatch 
and tower locations is of insufficient size to provide power for extended periods of 
time. The dispatch generator is only able to supply power for the dispatch center, 
when the rest of the Emergency Management building goes without power.  

− Antiquated Radios: Various agencies within the county are having both portable 
and mobile radios reach end of life. Additionally, due to the changing make up of 
frequency bands in the county, multiband radios would be ideal to address the 
interoperability problems faced by responders. This project should start with 
providing portables to those Fire/EMS agencies which do not have them, then 
replacing mobile radios that are at end of life. 

− Coverage Concerns: Portable radio coverage in the north end of the county is 
intermittent at best. Need an additional tower in order to provide proper portable 
coverage.  

− Mobile Communications Vehicle Upgrades: The Gateway in the trailers is over 
12 years old and is in need of an upgrade.  

− Dispatch Capabilities: Need a new and modern console for dispatch that will 
allow full capabilities of the CAD system to be leveraged. 

− Training 
o AUXCOM 
o Basic Trunked Radio System Training 
o CASM  
o COMU EX 
o COMU Training 
o Dispatch 
o FirstNet 
o Regional System Training (Basic Radio) 
o UPS Main Site  

Future Systems: 

− Cellular Two Way Communications: The County is currently focused on 
acquiring technologies and apps that will allow them to have PTT function 
between responders’ cell phones.  

− Backup Power: Backup generators need to be upgraded to provide more power 
to sites and for longer periods of time. Currently, the backup power is insufficient 
to last beyond a day or two at the tower site and the dispatch generator does not 
provide power for all responders in the building.  

− Radio Replacement Cycle: A radio replacement cycle is necessary for the 
County as many responders do not have access to portable radios and many of 
the mobile radios are near end of life and in need of replacement.  

  



Concho Valley Texas Council of Governments, Region 10 
Regional Interoperable Communications Plan 

June 2022  Page | 13 
PUBLIC SAFETY SENSITIVE 

4.2.3 Crockett County 
Crockett County communications ecosystem consists of the Sheriff Department, one 
PSAP, 21 mobile radios, 18 Handhelds, 95% APEX radio's, 1 County EOC, and Fire / 
EMS has 18 mobile radios/35 Handheld, mostly analog. Our county is 2,975 square 
miles. We utilize 6 different radio frequency sets to cover 90% of the county.  The Sheriff 
talks digital encrypted, (ADP), with some talk of going AES encryption. The plan is 
summarized in the following sections and represents a target solution for a fully 
interoperable area-wide system. 
Completed:   

− Networks have text-to-911 capability  
− Sheriff’s office and police department have P25 compliant radios. 
− Purchased a Mobile Command platform with various communications 

capabilities.  
Deficiencies: 

− Funding: Funding streams are limited and county agency budgets are extremely 
tight due to extreme circumstances brought on by the pandemic. 

− AES encryption: The County currently uses ADP encryption which falls outside 
the specifications for P25 compliance. The county has been in discussions to 
transition to AES from ADP.  

− Coverage Concerns: The southern and northwest portions of the county have 
coverage dead zones that are concerning for first responders when they have to 
respond to an incident in the area.  

− Multiband Radios: The County is in need of additional multiband radios to help 
support responses where other counties or state agencies are responding and do 
not have the local programming or frequency band. The local school system just 
put in a UHF system that will be difficult to interoperate with local responders 
without additional radios or programming.  

− Antiquated Radios: Various agencies within the county are having both portable 
and mobile radios reach end of life. Additionally, due to the changing make up of 
frequency bands in the county, multiband radios would be ideal to address the 
interoperability problems faced by responders. This project should start with the 
Fire/EMS radios that are end of life.  

− LTE: LTE coverage in the county is intermittent and nonexistent in certain 
portions. Cellular connectivity is greatly relied upon as both a primary and 
secondary means of communications and it is necessary to have sufficient 
coverage. 

− Radio System Infrastructure: The County needs to update all the repeaters for 
the system. They are reaching end of life and all of the supporting equipment is 
becoming costly to maintain.  

− Radio System Infrastructure: There are several sites (was 8, now 6) within the 
COG that have no connectivity to the COR of GATRRS due to loss of funding 
while the project was in the middle of completion. The current costs for the 
County to connect and maintain these nodes of the system is very high and 
unmanageable. Without these costs, the primary system would be easier to 
maintain.  

− EOC Communications: The EOC currently relies on a single carrier and service 
for broadband support. In order to operate under difficult circumstances with the 



Concho Valley Texas Council of Governments, Region 10 
Regional Interoperable Communications Plan 

June 2022  Page | 14 
PUBLIC SAFETY SENSITIVE 

proper redundancy, the EOC needs to update the current broadband service and 
consider a redundant carrier to provide service if the primary is compromised.  

− Satellite Capability: The County currently does not have satellite capability. 
Past equipment and services have expired and left the county without these 
critical resources.  

− Training: 
o AUXCOM 
o Basic Trunked Radio System Training 
o CASM  
o COMU EX 
o COMU Training 
o Dispatch 
o FirstNet 
o Regional System Training (Basic Radio) 
o UPS Main Site  

Future Systems: 

− Radio Infrastructure Upgrades: The radio system is in need of upgrading to 
ensure the dead zones in the county are covered. The County may decide to 
partner with other neighboring counties to combine efforts to cover dead zones in 
the extreme margins of their counties as well.  

− Radio Replacement Cycle: The County is in need to get all agencies on a radio 
replacement cycle. The first set of radios that is in need to be upgraded are all of 
the Fire and EMS mobile and portable radios.  

 
  



Concho Valley Texas Council of Governments, Region 10 
Regional Interoperable Communications Plan 

June 2022  Page | 15 
PUBLIC SAFETY SENSITIVE 

4.2.4 Edwards County 
Edwards County is a rural county with a population of 1600 permanent residents but 
with a large absentee landowner, covering 2002 square miles with various types of 
terrain. The plan is summarized in the following sections and represents a target 
solution for a fully interoperable area-wide system. 

Completed: 

− Ordered 4 P-25 compliant mobile radios to replace 4 out of date mobile radios. 
− Middle Rio Grande Council of governments has upgraded all trunked radio 

towers. 

Deficiencies: 

− Funding: Funding streams are limited and County agency budgets are 
extremely tight due to extreme circumstances brought on by the pandemic and 
current border crisis. 

− Replace outdated hand held radio for Sheriff’s Office. 
− Add an addition tower on southwest part of county to improve radio 

communications. 
− Funding. 
− Upgrade dispatch console.  

Future Systems: 

− Add 1 repeater site in areas lacking communications.  
− License plate reader. 
− License plate reader interface. 

 
 
  



Concho Valley Texas Council of Governments, Region 10 
Regional Interoperable Communications Plan 

June 2022  Page | 16 
PUBLIC SAFETY SENSITIVE 

4.2.5 Irion County 
Irion County has a VHF P25 phase one system with a recently replaced GTR8000 
repeater for the Sheriff’s Department. Fire, EMS and the County have a used Quantar 
VHF P25 capable phase one repeater operating in Analog Mode only. Dispatching 
comes from a 2 position MIP 5000 console system. Control stations access the LE and 
Fire repeaters with on-site control stations and a single point to point link that extends 
the console control to a base station at the repeater site. This station controls the 
Sterling County Sheriff’s P25 repeater and dispatches all Sterling LE and FD Traffic and 
pages. Irion Fire and EMS Departments are dispatched by voice and pagers. Tower site 
communications is generator and UPS backed. 
Completed:   

− NA 
Deficiencies: 

− Funding: Funding streams are limited and County agency budgets are extremely 
tight due to extreme circumstances brought on by the pandemic. 

− Antiquated Radios: The Fire and EMS agencies in the county are in need of 
updated radios to help support the current mission. The Fire group is a volunteer 
agency and has been without new radios, both portable and mobile, for a great 
deal of time.  

− Dispatch Upgrade: The current dispatch console is outdated and in need of 
upgrading and replacement. The manufacturer no longer supports this equipment 
with parts.   

− Coverage Concerns: Due to the movement of a leased radio tower site, some 
coverage has improved; however, to the west and near Barnhart, coverage is 
much weaker.    

− AES Encryption: The County needs to upgrade to AES level encryption to allow 
for secure communications for Law Enforcement and other agency activities, as 
needed.  

− Training 
o AUXCOM 
o Basic Trunked Radio System Training 
o CASM  
o COMU EX 
o COMU Training 
o Dispatch 
o FirstNet 
o Regional System Training (Basic Radio) 
o UPS Main Site  

Future Systems: 

− Dispatch Console and CAD Upgrade: The County is in need of a new console 
for dispatch. The current console is end of life and no longer supported by the 
manufacturer with parts for maintenance.  

− Radio Replacement Cycle: As highlighted above, the County is in need of new 
portable and mobile radios, some multiband radios included. The first priority for 
this cycle would be to replace the mobile radios in the vehicles, then portables 



Concho Valley Texas Council of Governments, Region 10 
Regional Interoperable Communications Plan 

June 2022  Page | 17 
PUBLIC SAFETY SENSITIVE 

that responders carry on them. VFDs and other agencies with small budgets are 
included in this project.   

− Radio System Infrastructure: The current radio system infrastructure does not 
allow for coverage in the extreme west and near Barnhart in parts of the county. 
New tower sites are needed in order to provide this necessary coverage. 
Consideration of partnerships with neighboring counties to combine costs and 
efforts are being made.  

  



Concho Valley Texas Council of Governments, Region 10 
Regional Interoperable Communications Plan 

June 2022  Page | 18 
PUBLIC SAFETY SENSITIVE 

4.2.6 Kimble County 
Kimble County is a rural county that relies on a single radio tower to provide coverage 
for the Police, Sheriff, EMS, and three Fire agencies. The county currently has a PSAP 
and an EOC that can be activated if necessary. The current radio system is not 
operating as it has in the past due to the collapse of a 350’ tower and the replacement 
donated tower only being 150’ and not providing the same level of coverage.  
Completed:   

− County has Text to 9-1-1 capability. 
− The county is currently transitioning radios to P25 compliant.  
− Have identified a funding source for replacement of the Sheriff’s Department’s 

mobile and portable radios.  
Deficiencies: 

− Funding: Funding streams are limited and county agency budgets are extremely 
tight due to extreme circumstances brought on by the pandemic. 

− Coverage Concerns: Due to the loss of the 350’ tower, the coverage supplied 
by the replacement 150’ tower is not the same or sufficient for operations within 
the county. Currently there are many coverage concerns due to the loss of this 
tower and the county is very large so the outlying areas are no longer in 
coverage.   

− Radio System Infrastructure: The County is needs to replace the 350’ tower 
that collapsed. The coverage provided by the replacement is insufficient in all 
locations that were previously covered. Adding additional sites to the current 
system would probably be the most cost effective and provide the best coverage. 

− Multiband Radios: The County needs additional multiband radios to help 
support responses where other counties or state agencies are responding and do 
not have the local programming or frequency band. The local school system just 
put in a UHF system that will be difficult to interoperate with local responders 
without additional radios or programming.  

− Antiquated Radios: Various agencies within the county are having both portable 
and mobile radios reach end of life. Additionally, due to the changing make up of 
frequency bands in the county, multiband radios would be ideal to address the 
interoperability problems faced by responders. This project should start with the 
Fire/EMS radios that are end of life 

− Training 
o AUXCOM 
o Basic Trunked Radio System Training 
o CASM  
o COMU EX 
o COMU Training 
o Dispatch 
o FirstNet 
o Regional System Training (Basic Radio) 
o UPS Main Site  

Future Systems: 

− Radio System Infrastructure: The current radio system infrastructure does not 
allow for coverage in the extreme fringes of the county. New tower sites are 



Concho Valley Texas Council of Governments, Region 10 
Regional Interoperable Communications Plan 

June 2022  Page | 19 
PUBLIC SAFETY SENSITIVE 

needed in order to provide this necessary coverage. Consideration of 
partnerships with neighboring counties to combine costs and efforts are being 
made.   

− Dispatch Consoles and CAD Upgrade: The County is in need of a modern 
CAD system to allow dispatch personnel and responders to have a greater level 
of situational awareness and record keeping for all incidents that take place in 
the county. Additionally, they are in need of additional dispatch stations in the 
PSAP and a console at the EOC.  

− Radio Replacement Cycle: As highlighted above, the County is in need of new 
portable and mobile radios, some multiband radios included. The first priority for 
this cycle would be to replace the mobile radios in the vehicles, then portables 
that responders carry on them. VFDs and other agencies with small budgets are 
included in this project. 

  



Concho Valley Texas Council of Governments, Region 10 
Regional Interoperable Communications Plan 

June 2022  Page | 20 
PUBLIC SAFETY SENSITIVE 

4.2.7 Mason County 
Mason County is a county that holds a single conventional radio system with three 
channels that support Sheriff, Fire, and EMS operations. Currently there are 12 mobile 
units and 35 portable radios in use in the county. The plan is summarized in the 
following sections and represents a target solution for a fully interoperable area-wide 
system. 
Completed:   

− Migration to a fully compliant-P25 based radio system is taking place.  
− New radios that have been purchased are P25 compliant. LE have been 

completely outfitted with new radios, Fire and EMS are still in need of new radios.  
− The County has fully replaced all radio system components (servers, cabling, 

antennas, etc.) and is currently in the process of replacing the generator.  
− The County recently added a CAD system to their dispatch and compatible 

MDTs for responder vehicles.  
Deficiencies: 

− Funding: Funding streams are limited and county agency budgets are extremely 
tight due to extreme circumstances brought on by the pandemic. 

− Antiquated Radios: The Fire and EMS agencies in the county are in need of 
updated radios to help support the current mission. The Fire group is a volunteer 
agency and has been without new radios, both portable and mobile, for a great 
deal of time. Additionally, the Road and Bridge department needs new radios to 
help support public safety agencies. Will need at least 8 portable and 3 mobile 
units that are P25.  

− Dispatch Upgrade: The current dispatch console is outdated and in need of 
upgrading and replacement.   

− Coverage Concerns: The northern portion of the county has areas lacking 
sufficient coverage, especially in the Fredonia area.   

− Training: 
o AUXCOM 
o Basic Trunked Radio System Training 
o CASM  
o COMU EX 
o COMU Training 
o Dispatch 
o FirstNet 
o Regional System Training (Basic Radio) 
o UPS Main Site  

Future Systems: 

− Dispatch Communications: The County has a planned upgrade of the dispatch 
console but is short of the $100K in funding needed.  

− Radio Replacement Cycle: As highlighted above, the County is in need of new 
portable and mobile radios, some multiband radios included. The first priority for 
this cycle would be to replace the mobile radios in the vehicles, then portables 
that responders carry on them. VFDs and other agencies with small budgets are 
included in this project.   



Concho Valley Texas Council of Governments, Region 10 
Regional Interoperable Communications Plan 

June 2022  Page | 21 
PUBLIC SAFETY SENSITIVE 

− Public Safety Communications Training: As new and more modern radios and 
systems are purchased, responders will need to have update training on the 
limitations and capabilities of the new and different equipment.   

  



Concho Valley Texas Council of Governments, Region 10 
Regional Interoperable Communications Plan 

June 2022  Page | 22 
PUBLIC SAFETY SENSITIVE 

4.2.8 McCulloch County 
McCulloch County is the second largest county in the COG at 1100 square miles and 
has an outdated set of conventional radio systems. There are 149 total subscriber units 
across all Sheriff, Police, Fire, EMS and Volunteer Fire/EMS agencies. There is two 
dispatch centers in the county and a hospital that are all in use of the radio systems.  
Completed:   

− County has Text to 9-1-1 Capability 
− The County is currently transitioning radios to P25 compliant, law enforcement 

and paid fire and EMS agencies have transitioned to P25.  
− Added a gateway to the public safety communications capability.  
− Purchased APX 4000 portable and mobile radios for the Sheriff’s Department. 

Deficiencies: 

− Funding: Funding streams are limited and county agency budgets are extremely 
tight due to extreme circumstances brought on by the pandemic. 

− Coverage Concerns: There are coverage concerns in the west, northern, and 
southeastern portions of the county.  

− Radio System Infrastructure: The County needs to upgrade the system with 
additional sites to provide coverage to known dead zones. The current radio 
system can be considered unsafe for responders due to lack of coverage in 
areas where major fires have occurred. Cell phones had to be relied upon for 
dispatch and the coverage for cell was spotty at best.   

− Satellite Capability: Currently the County has no satellite connectivity which 
would serve as a critical backup for responders if LMR and cellular networks are 
compromised in some way or for areas where coverage is lacking.  

− Deployable Backup Power: Recent events have shown that reliability of the 
electrical grid is not always what it is believed to be. The County needs to have 
additional deployable backup power to allow for sufficient power supplies in the 
event that primary and possibly even secondary power supplies fail.  

− Multiband Radios: The County is in need of additional multiband radios to help 
support responses where other counties or state agencies are responding and do 
not have the local programming or frequency band. The local school system just 
put in a UHF system that will be difficult to interoperate with local responders 
without additional radios or programming.  

− Antiquated Radios: Various agencies within the county are having both portable 
and mobile radios reach end of life. Additionally, due to the changing make up of 
frequency bands in the county, multiband radios would be ideal to address the 
interoperability problems faced by responders.  

− Mobile Command and Communications Capability: McCulloch County relies 
heavily on partner and neighboring agencies to provide assistance during 
emergencies. A part of the assistance provided includes the use of the mobile 
command platforms. Often times the county has no resources that can be relied 
upon.  

− Additional Amateur Radio Resources: The County is limited in the Amateur 
Radio resources it has available to it and relies upon the volunteer operators to 
provide the equipment. It would be ideal if the EM had its own equipment 
upgraded to better serve responders as an efficient backup for communications. 



Concho Valley Texas Council of Governments, Region 10 
Regional Interoperable Communications Plan 

June 2022  Page | 23 
PUBLIC SAFETY SENSITIVE 

− County Internet Service: The County is currently plagued by slow internet 
service which severely delays responder’s ability to use critical networks for 
operations. For example, officers have exorbitant download times when 
transitioning in-car and body camera footage over.   

− Training: 
o AUXCOM 
o Basic Trunked Radio System Training 
o CASM  
o COMU EX 
o COMU Training 
o Dispatch 
o FirstNet 
o Regional System Training (Basic Radio) 
o UPS Main Site  

Future Systems: 

− Radio System Infrastructure: The current radio system infrastructure does not 
allow for coverage in the extreme west, north and southeastern parts of the 
county. New tower sites are needed in order to provide this necessary coverage. 
Consideration of partnerships with neighboring counties to combine costs and 
efforts are being made.  

− Mobile Command Trailer: The County is in need of a mobile command platform 
to allow for remote operations in the parts of the county that have no 
infrastructure. There are often types of incidents that require a mobile command 
platform and currently the County has to borrow one, if available. 

− Radio Replacement Cycle: County is in need to engage in a radio replacement 
cycle to replace radios that are old and end of life.    

− Satellite Communications:  The County is in need of a backup communications 
method that will allow for communications to take place in parts of the county 
where LMR and cellular systems are insufficient.  

  



Concho Valley Texas Council of Governments, Region 10 
Regional Interoperable Communications Plan 

June 2022  Page | 24 
PUBLIC SAFETY SENSITIVE 

4.2.9 Menard County 
The County of Menard has one communications tower with two repeaters on it that are 
P25 capable. The communications tower is backup powered with a generator. The 
Menard County Sheriff’s Office operates on a digital channel with the three volunteer fire 
departments in the county operating on one analog channel, but the repeater is digitally 
capable. The three fire departments are identified as the Menard Vol. Fire Department, 
Hext Vol. Fire Department, and the Ft. McKavett Vol. Fire Department. The Menard 
County Sheriff’s Office dispatch center has one Zetron console and two PSAPS. The 
console only has the Menard County Sheriff’s Office channel card in it. The Sheriff’s 
Office operates with 13 mobile radios in patrol units, all of which are digital capable and 
programmed to Texas Interoperable Communication Standards. The Sheriff’s Office also 
has 7 portable radios which are digital capable. The Sheriff’s Office serves as the EOC 
for the County of Menard. EMS service is contracted out to Eden EMS which operates 
and is dispatched on the Menard County Sheriff’s Office Channel. Eden EMS has two 
ambulances in Menard County, both of which have a mobile digital radio. Eden EMS has 
four portable digital capable radios. Hext Vol. Fire Department has one digital mobile 
radio and one portable which is digital capable. Ft. McKavett has three mobile radios 
which are digital capable. Menard Vol. Fire Department has five mobile digital capable 
radios and four mobile analog only radios. Menard Vol. Fire Department has 10 digital 
capable portables and 7 analog portables. Menard County Emergency Management has 
4 digital portable radios. Menard OEM has a type three incident command trailer with a 
Gateway with two VHF, one UHF, and one 800 MHz radio. It also has GMRS and Family 
Band capabilities.  
Completed:   

− Networks have text-to-911 capability.  
− Migration of P25 compliant standards-based systems within the COG is currently 

taking place. 
− Public Safety Communications added a mobile gateway system. 
− Purchased mobile command trailer. 
− Most agency radios are P25 compliant. 
− Some new handheld radios were updated to P25 . 

Deficiencies: 

− Funding: Funding streams are limited and county agency budgets are extremely 
tight due to extreme circumstances brought on by the pandemic. 

− Antiquated Radios: Various agencies within the county are having both portable 
and mobile radios reach end of life. Additionally, due to the changing make up of 
frequency bands in the county and surrounding areas, multiband radios would be 
ideal to address the interoperability problems faced by responders. 

− CAD Upgrade: The County does not currently have a CAD system that allows 
for dispatch personnel to properly track incidents and responders and allow for 
back end record keeping of all incidents.  

− Coverage Concerns: The southeast portion of the county has limited LMR 
coverage and there are known dead zones in a critical area, the tri-county road 
area.  

− Satellite Capability: Currently the County has no satellite connectivity which 
would serve as a critical backup for responders if LMR and cellular networks are 
compromised in some way.  



Concho Valley Texas Council of Governments, Region 10 
Regional Interoperable Communications Plan 

June 2022  Page | 25 
PUBLIC SAFETY SENSITIVE 

− Additional Amateur Radio Resources: The County is limited in the Amateur 
Radio resources it has available to it and relies upon the volunteer operators to 
provide the equipment. It would be ideal if the EM had its own equipment 
upgraded to better serve responders as an efficient back up for communications.  

− Deployable Backup Power: Recent events have shown that reliability of the 
electrical grid is not always what it is believed to be. The County needs to have 
additional deployable backup power to allow for sufficient power supplies in the 
event that primary and possibly even secondary power supplies fail.  

− Dispatch Communications: The current dispatch console is at end of life and 
the manufacturers no longer provide replacement parts for maintenance 
purposes. The current process to replace parts involves third party auction sites. 
A new console will not only be an upgrade for M&E but also would allow for 
greater levels of recording and interoperability with modern CAD systems.  

− Training: 
o AUXCOM 
o Basic Trunked Radio System Training 
o CASM  
o COMU EX 
o COMU Training 
o Dispatch 
o FirstNet 
o Regional System Training (Basic Radio) 
o UPS Main Site  

Future Systems: 

− Dispatch Console and CAD Upgrade: The County is in need of a modern CAD 
system to allow dispatch personnel and responders to have a greater level of 
situational awareness and record keeping for all incidents that take place in the 
county.  

− Radio Replacement Cycle: As highlighted above, the County is in need of new 
portable and mobile radios, some multiband radios included. The first priority for 
this cycle would be to replace the mobile radios in the vehicles, then portables 
that responders carry on them. VFDs and other agencies with small budgets are 
included in this project.  

− Satellite Capability: The County is in need of satellite capabilities to allow for 
redundant communications and possibly to provide communications support in 
areas where coverage is lacking.  

− Radio System Infrastructure: The current radio system infrastructure does not 
allow for coverage in the extreme north and south parts of the county. New tower 
sites are needed in order to provide this necessary coverage. Consideration of 
partnerships with neighboring counties to combine costs and efforts are being 
made.   

  



Concho Valley Texas Council of Governments, Region 10 
Regional Interoperable Communications Plan 

June 2022  Page | 26 
PUBLIC SAFETY SENSITIVE 

4.2.10 Reagan County 
Reagan County is a rural county with two conventional radio systems, each with two 
repeaters. One system is used by the County Sheriff and the other the Fire/EMS 
services. There are approximately 35 mobile and 55 portable radios on the VHF radio 
system. There are two PSAPs used by the Sheriff and an EOC that can be activated if 
necessary.  
Completed:   

− County has text to 9-1-1 Capability. 
− Routinely replaced repeaters as needed.  
− Added the Fire/EMS radio system with two sites to help alleviate radio traffic.  

Deficiencies: 

− Funding: Funding streams are limited and county agency budgets are extremely 
tight due to extreme circumstances brought on by the pandemic. 

− Backup Power: Currently the County is in need of additional backup power 
sources. The current ones are in need of replacement and there are locations 
that are lacking any backup source at all. Two of the radio tower sites are in need 
of generators backup due to the age of the current generators that are obsolete 
and failed during the 2021 Ice Storm.  

− Training 
o AUXCOM 
o Basic Trunked Radio System Training 
o CASM  
o COMU EX 
o COMU Training 
o Dispatch 
o FirstNet 
o Regional System Training (Basic Radio) 
o UPS Main Site  

Future Systems: 

− Backup Power: The two radio system tower locations are in need of backup 
power sources. When primary power is lost the radio system experiences 
intermittent loss to functionality. Manufacturers have ended the maintenance 
support and no longer make parts for these models.   

  



Concho Valley Texas Council of Governments, Region 10 
Regional Interoperable Communications Plan 

June 2022  Page | 27 
PUBLIC SAFETY SENSITIVE 

4.2.11 Schleicher County 
The Schleicher County Sheriff's Office utilizes eight Motorola XTS 2500 mobile radios 
and ten Motorola XTS 2500 portable radios. The Sheriff's Office dispatch is equipped 
with two 911 terminals. The Sheriff's Office provides dispatch service for the Schleicher 
County EMS and VFD. Schleicher County EMS is equipped with two Motorola XTS 2500 
mobile radios and two Motorola XTS 1500 portables. Schleicher VFD is equipped with a 
combination of twelve Motorola Astro and Spectra Plus mobiles and three Motorola XTS 
1500 portables. 
Completed:   

− County has text to 9-1-1 capability. 
Deficiencies: 

− Funding: Funding streams are limited and county agency budgets are extremely 
tight due to extreme circumstances brought on by the pandemic. 

− Antiquated Radios: The Law, Fire, and EMS agencies in the county are in need 
of updated radios to help support the current mission. The Fire group is a 
volunteer agency and has been without new radios, both portable and mobile, for 
a great deal of time.  

− Dispatch Upgrade: The current dispatch console is outdated and in need of 
upgrading and replacement. The manufacturer no longer supports this equipment 
with parts.   

− Training 
o AUXCOM 
o Basic Trunked Radio System Training 
o CASM  
o COMU EX 
o COMU Training 
o Dispatch 
o FirstNet 
o Regional System Training (Basic Radio) 
o UPS Main Site  

Future Systems: 

− Radio Replacement Cycle: As highlighted above, the County is in need of new 
portable and mobile radios, some multiband radios included. The first priority for 
this cycle would be to replace the mobile radios in the vehicles, then portables 
that responders carry on them. VFDs and other agencies with small budgets are 
included in this project. 

− Dispatch Console and CAD Upgrade: The County is in need of a new console 
for dispatch. The current console is end of life and no longer supported by the 
manufacturer with parts for maintenance.  

  



Concho Valley Texas Council of Governments, Region 10 
Regional Interoperable Communications Plan 

June 2022  Page | 28 
PUBLIC SAFETY SENSITIVE 

4.2.12 Sterling County 
Sterling County is a VHF P25 phase one system with a shared repeater for Sheriff, Fire, 
and EMS. Fire also has a VHF P25 phase one repeater online with minimal use so far, 
and a standalone (unconnected) VHF 3 channel trunked site also available. The plan is 
summarized in the following sections and represents a target solution for a fully 
interoperable area-wide system. 
Completed:   

− Upgraded Sheriff, Fire, and EMS mobile and portable radios to P25 complaint. 
− Have updated to allow text to 9-1-1. 
− Upgraded the generator for the tower site.  
− Updated the antenna positioning on the tower to be more efficient.  
− Upgraded the feed lines and antennas on the tower.  

Deficiencies: 

− Funding: Funding streams are limited and county agency budgets are extremely 
tight due to extreme circumstances brought on by the pandemic.  

− Coverage Concerns: There are various dead zones in the south part of the 
county, especially along FM2139 and TX163. An engineering assessment needs 
to be completed to identify the coverage problems, to include the analog 
coverage that EMS is struggling with.  

− Antiquated Radios: Various agencies within the county are having both portable 
and mobile radios reach end of life. Additionally, due to the changing make up of 
frequency bands in the county, multiband radios would be ideal to address the 
interoperability problems faced by responders.  

− Radio System Infrastructure: There are several sites (was 8, now 6) within the 
COG that have no connectivity to the COR of GATRRS due to loss of funding 
while the project was in the middle of completion. Motorola quoted approximately 
$125,000 to update to GATRRS specs but that is without establishing the 
connectivity to the system, which would be a separate expense.  

− AES Encryption: The County needs to upgrade to AES level encryption to allow 
for secure communications for Law Enforcement and other agency activities, as 
needed.  

− Dispatch Capability: EMS units are still dispatched on analog and there are 
some issues with the transmissions being heard properly. Only approximately 
50% of the time transmissions are clearly broadcast.  

− Training 
o AUXCOM 
o Basic Trunked Radio System Training 
o CASM  
o COMU EX 
o COMU Training 
o Dispatch 
o FirstNet 
o Regional System Training (Basic Radio) 
o UPS Main Site  

 
 



Concho Valley Texas Council of Governments, Region 10 
Regional Interoperable Communications Plan 

June 2022  Page | 29 
PUBLIC SAFETY SENSITIVE 

Future Systems: 

− Radio Replacement Cycle: The County needs to get all agencies on a radio 
replacement cycle. The first set of radios that is in need to be upgraded are all of 
the Sheriff, Fire, and EMS mobile radios.  

− Radio Infrastructure Upgrades: A minimum of $125,000 is needed to update 
the radio infrastructure to be compliant with the specifications of the GATRRS 
system. The region as a whole has 6 sites that were ready for connection to the 
system when funding ran out. An assessment for the region is necessary to allow 
for the most efficient buildout of new sites, if necessary, and the upgrade of 
existing sites. Costs for connecting into the system and fees are not included in 
this estimate.  

− Communication Specific Training: Communications specific training has been 
made a lower priority overall for the county due to budgetary concerns. There is a 
need for basic and advanced levels of training for responders who specialize in 
communications positions.  

  



Concho Valley Texas Council of Governments, Region 10 
Regional Interoperable Communications Plan 

June 2022  Page | 30 
PUBLIC SAFETY SENSITIVE 

4.2.13 Sutton County 
Sutton County is a county that has a single radio site radio system with a single 
conventional frequency that is shared among that public safety agencies in the county. 
The plan is summarized in the following sections and represents a target solution for a 
fully interoperable area-wide system. 
Completed:   

− Upgraded mobile and portable radios to APX all band radios in 2019; this is a 
continuing process. 

− Upgraded to two dispatch consoles in 2021. 
− Upgraded the County CAD System in 2021. 
− Replaced a repeater approximately 4 years ago.  
− PSAPs have acquired text to 9-1-1 capability.  

Deficiencies: 

− Funding: Funding streams are limited and county agency budgets are extremely 
tight due to extreme circumstances brought on by the pandemic.  

− Coverage Concerns: Sutton County has several dead zones that include areas 
on IH-10 from the 285 mile post area to the west towards the Crockett County 
line and from the 420 mile post area to the east towards the Kimble County line. 
From Ranch Road 1312 onto SCR 110 (Glasscock Road) merging to SCR410. 
Then starting from IH-10 from the 392 mile post (Caverns Road) stretching from 
RR1989 to where it changes to SCR 410 down to RR189 (Old Juno Road) that 
runs towards Hwy 277S. In our eastern county area, we have the mile post area 
429 (Harrell Road) that goes north to SCR 307 (River Road) and to the south 
there is SCR313 that turns into SCR314. 

− Antiquated Radios: Various agencies within the county are having both portable 
and mobile radios reach end of life. Additionally, due to the changing makeup of 
frequency bands in the county, multiband radios would be ideal to address the 
interoperability problems faced by responders. 

− Satellite Capability: Currently the County has no satellite connectivity which 
would serve as a critical backup for responders if LMR and cellular networks are 
compromised in some way. LMR and Cellular coverage is already a concern in 
portions of the county.  

− Radio System Infrastructure: The coverage concerns above are the primary 
reason for the need of additional radio infrastructure in order to cover portions of 
the county that currently have little to no LMR coverage.  

− Mobile Command and Communications Capability: Sutton County relies 
heavily on partner and neighboring agencies to provide assistance during 
emergencies. A part of the assistance provided includes the use of the mobile 
command platforms. Unfortunately, it is possible that the same incident could 
impact Sutton’s neighbors, requiring the County to acquire the same capability 
from a farther out source. During recently flooding events that cut off the county 
from neighboring partners, the need for this type of platform was brought to a 
greater level of attention among responders in the county.   

− Training 
o AUXCOM 
o Basic Trunked Radio System Training 
o CASM  



Concho Valley Texas Council of Governments, Region 10 
Regional Interoperable Communications Plan 

June 2022  Page | 31 
PUBLIC SAFETY SENSITIVE 

o COMU EX 
o COMU Training 
o Dispatch 
o FirstNet 
o Regional System Training (Basic Radio) 
o UPS Main Site  

Future Systems: 

− Radio System Infrastructure: The County is in need of additional radio system 
infrastructure to allow for more portions of the county to have sufficient coverage 
for public safety operations.  The county is willing to work with neighboring 
counties experiencing the same type of coverage issues to pool efforts in 
acquiring additional tower sites to provide coverage or a location for antennas for 
multiple counties.  

− Radio Replacement Cycle: Over the next 10 years the county agencies are 
going to need to replace all mobile and portable radios for all agencies.   

− Satellite Systems: Currently the County has no satellite communications 
capability and is in need of acquiring a couple of units to provide supplemental 
communications during times when the primary communications are 
compromised.  
  



Concho Valley Texas Council of Governments, Region 10 
Regional Interoperable Communications Plan 

June 2022  Page | 32 
PUBLIC SAFETY SENSITIVE 

4.2.14 Tom Green County 
San Angelo Public Safety Communications (SAPSC) is the 911 answering point for all of 
Tom Green County. We dispatch Police, Fire, EMS, and Volunteer FDs. Our Center has 
7 CAD stations with Harris radio monitors. Each CAD also has a backup mobile radio. 
There is one radio devoted to our VFDs and surrounding counties. For the Police radios, 
we have approximately 200 portable Harris radios and 100 mobile Harris radios. These 
radios use either DES, or a combination of DES/AES encryption. Our radio system is a 
Harris P25 Phase II trunked 800 MHz system. We currently have DPS, TPWD, and 
TABC on our system that uses Motorola radios. The Fire side uses Harris radios. The 
Hospital also has a radio in each of its ERs. Our VFDs are a 150 radio system that is 
patched into our Center's 800 MHz system. We have one EOC, secondary, dispatch 
center that has 4 radio/CAD positions. The plan is summarized in the following sections 
and represents a target solution for a fully interoperable area-wide system. 
Completed:   

− New P25 Phase 2 radio system installed approximately 6 years ago.  
− Recently upgraded the Hexagon RMS system.  
− Most responders are P25 compliant.  
− Have updated to allow text to 9-1-1. 
− ASU alert system was updated to allow for ASU community updates.   
− County Weather alert system was updated to allow for automated alerts to be 

sent out via phone, text, and email.  
− Reverse 911 system was integrated into the county wide alert structure.  
− Upgraded the city fire alerting system in fire stations.  
− County agreed to pay for additional licenses for VFDs to get station alerting. 
− Upgraded all of the mobile cellular devices in the fire/EMS vehicles (33 vehicles) 

to Netmotion. Police also conducted the same project on their vehicles (100+ 
vehicles). 

− Operations Department has a new mobile command post that contains several 
communications capabilities with others being looked into for the future.  

− The City is currently replacing the VOIP phone system with a hosted PBX 
system.  

− Received a Defense Support grant (DEEAG) that has allowed for a new Mobile 
Command Vehicle.  

− In the last five years the City has replaced all of their approximately 120 smart 
phones with FirstNet capable devices.  

− SO has issued phones to first line deputies and command staff.  
− Handheld radios are currently being upgraded over the next three years.  
− ASU has received a grant to upgrade 5 of 16 radios to dual band (VHF and 800 

MHz).  
Deficiencies: 

− Funding: Funding streams are limited and county agency budgets are extremely 
tight due to extreme circumstances brought on by the pandemic. 

− Coverage Concerns: Coverage in the eastern portion of the county has been 
difficult for the VFDs. One additional site will likely provide the necessary 
coverage; however, if the VFDs would transition to P25 they would be able to 



Concho Valley Texas Council of Governments, Region 10 
Regional Interoperable Communications Plan 

June 2022  Page | 33 
PUBLIC SAFETY SENSITIVE 

reconfigure the current system to allow for coverage in the areas that are lacking 
currently.  

− VFD Equipment: VFDs currently have older generation radios that were hand 
me down radios from other agencies within the county.  Some VFDs are ready to 
go to P25 but would be less than 25%. Most are in need of new equipment to 
allow for the transition to digital.  

− Antiquated Radio: Various agencies within the county are having both portable 
and mobile radios reach end of life. Additionally, due to the changing make up of 
frequency bands in the county, multiband radios would be ideal to address the 
interoperability problems faced by responders.  

− LTE: LTE Coverage in the county is intermittent and nonexistent in certain 
portions. Cellular connectivity is greatly relied upon as both a primary and 
secondary means of communications and it is necessary to have sufficient 
coverage. 

− Training 
o AUXCOM 
o Basic Trunked Radio System Training 
o CASM  
o COMU EX 
o COMU Training 
o Dispatch 
o FirstNet 
o Regional System Training (Basic Radio) 
o UPS Main Site  

Future Systems: 

− Radio Replacement Cycle: Over the next 10 years the county agencies are 
going to need to replace all mobile and portable radios for all agencies.   

− Adding a VHF Repeater into COSA: The addition of a VHF repeater into the 
COSA system would allow for the PSAP to have access to both the VHF and 800 
MHz systems, which would allow patching between the two groups when 
needed, and would allow for fewer purchases of multiband radios.  

− Additional Radio Site for VHF: In order to cover the eastern portions of the 
county, it is believed that a single site would be capable to provide this coverage. 
Concho County to the east is also looking to install a new site to help provide 
additional coverage for their county outlying areas. It is possible to have an 
agreement in place to allow a single site to provide coverage for both counties; 
however, an engineering and needs assessment must take place first.  

− LTE Coverage: County agencies need to work with private vendors to identify 
insufficient coverage or support that the companies are providing. Plans and 
agreements can be created or updated to ensure the vendors are properly 
supporting public safety operations through communications.  

  



Concho Valley Texas Council of Governments, Region 10 
Regional Interoperable Communications Plan 

June 2022  Page | 34 
PUBLIC SAFETY SENSITIVE 

4.3 Planning Summary 

The timeline, milestones, and projected costs for the plans delineated above are 
summarized in Appendix B. 

 
 



Concho Valley Texas Council of Governments, Region 10 
Regional Interoperable Communications Plan 

June 2022  Page | 35 
PUBLIC SAFETY SENSITIVE 

5 Priorities 
This section summarizes the CVCOG goals, including a description of timelines 
associated with short-, medium-, and long-term goals. The goals of this RICP are 
aligned with the major lanes of the SAFECOM Interoperability Continuum as well as the 
NECP. 
Goal timelines are defined as the following: 

− Short-term:  includes priorities projected for completion within 3 years from 
ratification of the RICP 

− Medium-term:  includes priorities projected for completion between 3 and 5 
years from ratification of the RICP 

− Long-term: includes priorities projected for completion between 6 and 10 years 
from ratification of the RICP 

5.1 Coke County 

5.1.1 Priority/Goal Description:  Radio Replacement Cycle 
Priority Level: Medium 
Lead Agency: Coke County Sheriff’s Office  

− Coke County Sheriff’s Office  
Point of Contact: 
Agency Name: Coke County Sheriff’s Office  
POC Name: Billy Williams / Misti Heyse  
Title: Chief Deputy Sheriff / Administrative Assistant  
Address: 13 E 7th Street / PO Box 9 
Office Phone: 325-453-2717 
Cell Phone: 325-650-2958 / 325-763-8161 
24/7 Phone: 325-453-2717 
E-Mail:  billy.williams@co.coke.tx.us   misti.hayes@co.coke.tx.us  
Action plan:  

1. Currently we have upgraded all Sheriff’s Office Portable Radios. 
2. Robert Lee EMS, Robert Lee Volunteer Fire. Bronte EMS and Bronte Volunteer 

Fire has been awarded funding through the County to upgrade a limited number 
of portable radios. 

3. Grant application has been submitted to upgrade Sheriff’s Office mobile radios 
for 6 patrol vehicles.  

Funding:  

− Identified funding streams - Currently no specific line item budgeted for 
upgrades. 

− Additional funding needs - Currently working on Grant for assistance to update 
Sheriff’s Office mobile units. 
 

mailto:billy.williams@co.coke.tx.us
mailto:misti.hayes@co.coke.tx.us


Concho Valley Texas Council of Governments, Region 10 
Regional Interoperable Communications Plan 

June 2022  Page | 36 
PUBLIC SAFETY SENSITIVE 

5.1.2 Priority/Goal Description:  Backup Power 
Priority Level: Medium 
Lead Agency: Coke County Sheriff’s Office  

− Coke County Sheriff’s Office  
Point of Contact: 
Agency Name: Coke County Sheriff’s Office  
POC Name: Billy Williams / Misti Heyse  
Title: Chief Deputy Sheriff / Administrative Assistant  
Address: 13 E 7th Street / PO Box 9 
Office Phone: 325-453-2717 
Cell Phone: 325-650-2958 / 325-763-8161 
24/7 Phone: 325-453-2717 
E-Mail:  billy.williams@co.coke.tx.us   misti.hayes@co.coke.tx.us  
 
Action plan: 

1. At this time there is no action plan for generator backup power. 
 
Funding:  

− Identified funding streams – Currently no specific line item budgeted for 
upgrades. 

− Additional funding needs – Would need Grant assistance. 
  

mailto:billy.williams@co.coke.tx.us
mailto:misti.hayes@co.coke.tx.us


Concho Valley Texas Council of Governments, Region 10 
Regional Interoperable Communications Plan 

June 2022  Page | 37 
PUBLIC SAFETY SENSITIVE 

5.2 Concho County  

5.2.1 Priority/Goal Description:  Acquiring Cellular PTT Functions 
Priority Level: High 
Lead Agency: Concho County Sheriff’s Office 

−  Brent Frazier 
Point of Contact: 
Agency Name: Concho County Sheriff’s Office   
POC Name: Brent Frazier 
Title: Chief Deputy  
Address: 152 North Roberts Paint Rock TX 76866  
Office Phone: 325-869-4941 
Cell Phone: 325-456-6447 
24/7 Phone: 325-869-2222 
E-Mail:  brent.frazier@conchosheriff.com   
Action plan:  Discussion with the County Judge to make this a budget item in 2023; free 
trial version will be in place by the summer with a continuation in the new budget year. 
Conversation on use and training for the product will be done throughout the next 6 
months. This system will allow unlimited users to be added in the event of a major 
incident within the county for up to 30 days. 
Funding:  
This new PTT app will be a budget item within the county starting in October 2022. 
Additional funding will be from the individual departments as users may be added to the 
system. 

5.2.2 Priority/Goal Description:  Backup Power Upgrades 
Priority Level: High 
Lead Agency: Concho County Sheriff’s Office 

− Brent Frazier 
Point of Contact: 
Agency Name: Concho County Sheriff’s Office  
POC Name: Brent Frazier  
Title: Chief Deputy   
Address: 152 North Roberts Paint Rock Tx 76866  
Office Phone: 325-869-4941 
Cell Phone: 325-456-6447 
24/7 Phone: 325-869-2222 
E-Mail:  brent.frazier@conchosheriff.com  
Action plan:  Seeking potential grant sources, as well as possibly making this a budget 
item in the future, based upon further discussion with the County Judge and 
Commissioner’s Court. 
Funding:  
County budgeted item in the future. Possible grant funding. 



Concho Valley Texas Council of Governments, Region 10 
Regional Interoperable Communications Plan 

June 2022  Page | 38 
PUBLIC SAFETY SENSITIVE 

5.2.3 Priority/Goal Description:  Radio Replacement Cycle 
Priority Level: High 
Lead Agency: Concho County Sheriff’s Office 

− Brent Frazier 
Point of Contact: 
Agency Name: Concho County Sheriff’s Office  
POC Name: Brent Frazier 
Title: Chief Deputy  
Address: 152 North Roberts Paint Rock Tx 76866  
Office Phone: 325-869-4941 
Cell Phone: 325-456-6447 
24/7 Phone: 325-869-2222 
E-Mail:  brent.frazier@conchosheriff.com  
Action plan:  Continued discussion to make this another future budget, as well as seek 
optional grant funding. 
Funding:  
 County Budgeted item in the future 

− Possible grant funding 
 

5.3 Crockett County 

5.3.1 Priority/Goal Description:  Radio Infrastructure Upgrades 
Priority Level: High 
Lead Agency: Crockett County EMS 

− Eddie Martin 
Point of Contact: 
Agency Name: Crockett County EMS  
POC Name: Eddie Martin 
Title:   
Address:  
Office Phone:  
Cell Phone: 325-226-4808 
24/7 Phone: 325-226-4808 
E-Mail: ems.director@co.crockett.tx.us   
Action plan:  Continue working towards solid dependable radio communications, open 
up the lines of communications with FirstNet to try and improve coverage and reliability. 
Funding:  
We need a sustainable funding source. The County can only put in so much from the tax 
base we have. 



Concho Valley Texas Council of Governments, Region 10 
Regional Interoperable Communications Plan 

June 2022  Page | 39 
PUBLIC SAFETY SENSITIVE 

5.3.2 Priority/Goal Description:  Radio Replacement Cycle  
Priority Level: High 
Lead Agency: Crockett County EMS 

− Eddie Martin 
Point of Contact: 
Agency Name: Crockett County EMS  
POC Name:  
Title:   
Address:  
Office Phone:  
Cell Phone:  
24/7 Phone: 325-226-4808 
E-Mail:  ems.director@co.crockett.tx.us   
Action plan:  To upgrade current mobile handheld and repeater systems to ensure P-25 
compliance. 
Funding:  
No Funding source has been identified. 
 
 

5.4 Edwards County  

5.4.1 Priority/Goal Description: Radio Replacement 
Priority Level: Low/Medium/High 
Lead Agency: Edwards County Sheriff’s Office 

− Will Allison 

Point of Contact: 
Agency Name: Edwards County Sheriff’s Office  
POC Name: Will Allison 
Title: Chief Deputy 
Address: 404 W. Austin Str. P.O. Box 156 Rocksprings, TX 78880 
Office Phone: 830-683-4104 
Cell Phone: 325-716-3788 
24/7 Phone: 830-683-4104 
E-Mail: w.allisonecso@swtexas.net 
Action plan:  Research funding opportunities.  Apply for funding opportunities when 
available.  
Funding:  

− County budget 
− Operation Lone Star 
− Operation Stone Garden 

mailto:w.allisonecso@swtexas.net


Concho Valley Texas Council of Governments, Region 10 
Regional Interoperable Communications Plan 

June 2022  Page | 40 
PUBLIC SAFETY SENSITIVE 

 

5.5 Irion County 

5.5.1 Priority/Goal Description:  Dispatch Upgrades 
Priority Level: Low/Medium/High 
Lead Agency: [Insert Text Here] 

− Name  
Point of Contact: 
Agency Name:  
POC Name:  
Title:   
Address:  
Office Phone:  
Cell Phone:  
24/7 Phone:  
E-Mail:    
Action plan:  [Insert known text here such as migration plan, known milestones, order of 
operations, etc.] 
Funding:  

− Identified funding streams 
− Additional funding needs    

 

5.5.2 Priority/Goal Description:  Radio Replacement Cycle 
Priority Level: Low/Medium/High 
Lead Agency: [Insert Text Here] 

− Name  
Point of Contact: 
Agency Name:  
POC Name:  
Title:   
Address:  
Office Phone:  
Cell Phone:  
24/7 Phone:  
E-Mail:    
Action plan:  [Insert known text here such as migration plan, known milestones, order of 
operations, etc.] 
Funding:  

− Identified funding streams 
− Additional funding needs    



Concho Valley Texas Council of Governments, Region 10 
Regional Interoperable Communications Plan 

June 2022  Page | 41 
PUBLIC SAFETY SENSITIVE 

5.5.3 Priority/Goal Description:  Radio System Infrastructure 
Priority Level: Low/Medium/High 
Lead Agency: [Insert Text Here] 

− Name  
Point of Contact: 
Agency Name:  
POC Name:  
Title:   
Address:  
Office Phone:  
Cell Phone:  
24/7 Phone:  
E-Mail:    
Action plan:  [Insert known text here such as migration plan, known milestones, order of 
operations, etc.] 
Funding:  

− Identified funding streams 
− Additional funding needs    

   

5.6 Kimble County 

5.6.1 Priority/Goal Description:  Radio System Infrastructure 
Priority Level: Low/Medium/High 
Lead Agency: [Insert Text Here] 

− Name  
Point of Contact: 
Agency Name:  
POC Name:  
Title:   
Address:  
Office Phone:  
Cell Phone:  
24/7 Phone:  
E-Mail:    
Action plan:  [Insert known text here such as migration plan, known milestones, order of 
operations, etc.] 
Funding:  

− Identified funding streams 
− Additional funding needs    

 



Concho Valley Texas Council of Governments, Region 10 
Regional Interoperable Communications Plan 

June 2022  Page | 42 
PUBLIC SAFETY SENSITIVE 

5.6.2 Priority/Goal Description:  Dispatch Upgrades 
Priority Level: Low/Medium/High 
Lead Agency: [Insert Text Here] 

− Name  
Point of Contact: 
Agency Name:  
POC Name:  
Title:   
Address:  
Office Phone:  
Cell Phone:  
24/7 Phone:  
E-Mail:    
Action plan:  [Insert known text here such as migration plan, known milestones, order of 
operations, etc.] 
Funding:  

− Identified funding streams 
− Additional funding needs    

 

5.6.3 Priority/Goal Description:  Radio Replacement Cycle 
Priority Level: Low/Medium/High 
Lead Agency: [Insert Text Here] 

− Name  
Point of Contact: 
Agency Name:  
POC Name:  
Title:   
Address:  
Office Phone:  
Cell Phone:  
24/7 Phone:  
E-Mail:    
Action plan:  [Insert known text here such as migration plan, known milestones, order of 
operations, etc.] 
Funding:  

− Identified funding streams 
− Additional funding needs 



Concho Valley Texas Council of Governments, Region 10 
Regional Interoperable Communications Plan 

June 2022  Page | 43 
PUBLIC SAFETY SENSITIVE 

5.7 Mason County  

5.7.1 Priority/Goal Description:  Dispatch Console Replacement 
Priority Level: High 
Lead Agency: Mason County Sheriff’s Office 

− Joseph Lancaster 
Point of Contact: 
Mason County Sheriff’s Office   
POC Name: Joseph Lancaster 
Title:   
Address:  
Office Phone:  
Cell Phone:  
325 347-5252 
E-Mail: joe.lancaster@co.mason.tx.us   
Action plan:   

− Seek Grant Funding. 
− Identify Equipment. 
− Seek Vendor. 
− Complete Purchase. 
− Install Equipment and meet milestones. 
− Training. 

Funding:  

− $100k in Funding is still needed 
 

5.7.2 Priority/Goal Description:  Radio Replacement Cycle 
Priority Level: Medium 
Lead Agency: Mason County Sheriff’s Office 

− Joseph Lancaster 
Point of Contact: 
Mason County Sheriff’s Office  
POC Name: Joseph Lancaster 
Title:   
Address:  
Office Phone:  
Cell Phone:  
325 347-5252 
E-Mail: joe.lancaster@co.mason.tx.us   
Action plan:  

− Seek Grant Funding. 



Concho Valley Texas Council of Governments, Region 10 
Regional Interoperable Communications Plan 

June 2022  Page | 44 
PUBLIC SAFETY SENSITIVE 

− Identify Equipment. 
− Seek Vendor. 
− Complete Purchase. 
− Install Equipment and meet milestones. 
− Training. 

Funding:  

− 22- P25 Handheld units $61k is still needed 
− 11- Mobile Units $65k is still needed    

 

5.8 McCulloch County 

5.8.1 Priority/Goal Description:  Radio System Infrastructure 
Priority Level: Low/Medium/High 
Lead Agency: [Insert Text Here] 

− Name  
Point of Contact: 
Agency Name:  
POC Name:  
Title:   
Address:  
Office Phone:  
Cell Phone:  
24/7 Phone:  
E-Mail:    
Action plan:  [Insert known text here such as migration plan, known milestones, order of 
operations, etc.] 
Funding:  

− Identified funding streams 
− Additional funding needs    

 

5.8.2 Priority/Goal Description:  Mobile Command Trailer 
Priority Level: Low/Medium/High 
Lead Agency: [Insert Text Here] 

− Name  
Point of Contact: 
Agency Name:  
POC Name:  
Title:   
Address:  
Office Phone:  



Concho Valley Texas Council of Governments, Region 10 
Regional Interoperable Communications Plan 

June 2022  Page | 45 
PUBLIC SAFETY SENSITIVE 

Cell Phone:  
24/7 Phone:  
E-Mail:    
Action plan:  [Insert known text here such as migration plan, known milestones, order of 
operations, etc.] 
Funding:  

− Identified funding streams 
− Additional funding needs    

 

5.8.3 Priority/Goal Description:  Radio Replacement Cycle 
Priority Level: Low/Medium/High 
Lead Agency: [Insert Text Here] 

− Name  
Point of Contact: 
Agency Name:  
POC Name:  
Title:   
Address:  
Office Phone:  
Cell Phone:  
24/7 Phone:  
E-Mail:    
Action plan:  [Insert known text here such as migration plan, known milestones, order of 
operations, etc.] 
Funding:  

− Identified funding streams 
− Additional funding needs    

 

5.8.4 Priority/Goal Description:  Satellite Communications 
Priority Level: Low/Medium/High 
Lead Agency: [Insert Text Here] 

− Name  
Point of Contact: 
Agency Name:  
POC Name:  
Title:   
Address:  
Office Phone:  
Cell Phone:  
24/7 Phone:  



Concho Valley Texas Council of Governments, Region 10 
Regional Interoperable Communications Plan 

June 2022  Page | 46 
PUBLIC SAFETY SENSITIVE 

E-Mail:    
Action plan:  [Insert known text here such as migration plan, known milestones, order of 
operations, etc.] 
Funding:  

− Identified funding streams 
− Additional funding needs    

 

5.9 Menard County 

5.9.1 Priority/Goal Description:  Dispatch Console and CAD Upgrade 
Priority Level: High 
Lead Agency: Menard County Sheriff’s Office 

− Buck Miller 
Point of Contact 
Agency Name: Menard County Sheriff’s Office  
POC Name: Buck Miller  
Title: Sheriff   
Address: 208 Tipton Street  
Office Phone: 325-396-4705  
Cell Phone: 325-456-7674  
24/7 Phone:  325-396-4705  
E-Mail: bbm6413@yahoo.com   
Action plan:  Secure Funding. 
Funding:  

Private Foundations. 
CVCOG Grants. 
    

5.9.2 Priority/Goal Description:  Radio Replacement Cycle  
Priority Level: High 
Lead Agency: Menard Office of Emergency Management 

− Jeff Whitson 
Point of Contact: 
Menard OEM  
POC Name: Jeff Whitson  
Title: EMC   
Address: 206 East San Saba Street, Menard, Texas 76859  
Office Phone: 325-396=4682 
Cell Phone: 325-456-1251  
24/7 Phone: 325-396-4705 
E-Mail:  menardemc@co.menard.tx.us   



Concho Valley Texas Council of Governments, Region 10 
Regional Interoperable Communications Plan 

June 2022  Page | 47 
PUBLIC SAFETY SENSITIVE 

Action plan:  Secure Funding. 
Funding:  

Private Foundations. 
− CVCOG Grants.  

 

5.9.3 Priority/Goal Description:  Satellite Capability 
Priority Level: Medium  
Lead Agency: Menard Office of Emergency Management 

− Jeff Whitson 
Point of Contact: 
Menard OEM  
POC Name: Jeff Whitson  
Title: EMC   
Address: 206 East San Saba Street, Menard, Texas 76859  
Office Phone: 325-396=4682 
Cell Phone: 325-456-1251  
24/7 Phone: 325-396-4705 
E-Mail:  menardemc@co.menard.tx.us   
Action plan:  Secure Funding. 
Funding:  

− Private Foundations. 
− CVCOG Grants.  

 

5.9.4 Priority/Goal Description:  Radio System Infrastructure 
Priority Level: LOW 
Lead Agency: Menard Office of Emergency Management 

− Jeff Whitson 
Point of Contact: 
Menard OEM  
POC Name: Jeff Whitson  
Title: EMC   
Address: 206 East San Saba Street, Menard, Texas 76859  
Office Phone: 325-396=4682 
Cell Phone: 325-456-1251  
24/7 Phone: 325-396-4705 
E-Mail:  menardemc@co.menard.tx.us   
Action plan:  Secure Funding. 
Funding:  

− Private Foundations. 



Concho Valley Texas Council of Governments, Region 10 
Regional Interoperable Communications Plan 

June 2022  Page | 48 
PUBLIC SAFETY SENSITIVE 

− CVCOG Grants.  
    

5.10 Reagan County  

5.10.1 Priority/Goal Description:  Backup Power 
Priority Level: Low/Medium/High 
Lead Agency: [Insert Text Here] 

− Name  
Point of Contact: 
Agency Name:  
POC Name:  
Title:   
Address:  
Office Phone:  
Cell Phone:  
24/7 Phone:  
E-Mail:    
Action plan:  [Insert known text here such as migration plan, known milestones, order of 
operations, etc.] 
Funding:  

− Identified funding streams 
− Additional funding needs  

 
 

5.11 Schleicher County 

5.11.1 Priority/Goal Description:  Radio Replacement Cycle 
Priority Level: High 
Lead Agency: Schleicher County Sheriff’s Office 

− Jason Chatham 
Point of Contact:  
Agency Name: Schleicher County Sheriff’s Office   
POC Name: Jason Chatham  
Title: Sheriff   
Address: 4 S. Divide, Eldorado, TX 76936   
Office Phone: 325-853-2737  
Cell Phone: 325-450-1970  
24/7 Phone: 325-853-2737  
E-Mail:  j.chatham@co.schleicher.tx.us   
Action plan: We are acquiring quotes and seeking funds to replace the County’s 
antiquated radio systems.  



Concho Valley Texas Council of Governments, Region 10 
Regional Interoperable Communications Plan 

June 2022  Page | 49 
PUBLIC SAFETY SENSITIVE 

Funding:  

− Due to budget constraints, we are exploring grant opportunities through the 
Office of the Governor and Criminal Justice and Homeland Security Grant. 

− In addition to outdated radios, the County has an aging radio repeater system 
and radio tower. 
 

5.11.2 Priority/Goal Description:  Dispatch Upgrades 
Priority Level: High 
Lead Agency: Schleicher County Sheriff’s Office 

− Jason Chatham 
Point of Contact: 
Agency Name: Schleicher County Sheriff’s Office  
POC Name: Jason Chatham  
Title: Sheriff   
Address: 4 S. Divide, Eldorado, TX 76936  
Office Phone: 325-853-2737 
Cell Phone: 325-450-1970  
24/7 Phone: 325-853-2737  
E-Mail: j.chatham@co.schleicher.tx.us   
Action plan We will acquire quotes and seek funding to replace the dispatch radio 
console. 
Funding:  

− We will seek grants through the Office of the Governor and Criminal Justice and 
Homeland Security Grant. 

− In addition to outdated radios, the County has is utilizing an old radio repeater 
system and a very old radio tower. 
 

5.12 Sterling County 

5.12.1 Priority/Goal Description:  Radio Replacement 
Priority Level: Medium/High 
Lead Agency:  Sterling County 

− Deborah Horwood / Dow Ferguson 
Point of Contact: 
Agency Name: Sterling County  
POC Name: Deborah Horwood / Dow Ferguson  
Title: County Judge / Fire Chief   
Address: PO Box 819, Sterling City, TX 76951  
Office Phone: 325-650-4775 
Cell Phone: 325-650-4775  
24/7 Phone: 325-650-4775, 325-242-5775 



Concho Valley Texas Council of Governments, Region 10 
Regional Interoperable Communications Plan 

June 2022  Page | 50 
PUBLIC SAFETY SENSITIVE 

E-Mail: d.horwood@co.sterling.tx.us  d.ferguson@co.sterling.tx.us    
Action plan:  Start funding for replacement – 13 Mobiles, 10 portables needed 
Funding:  

− County needs to Budget FI 2022/23 along with outside funding.  Need Grant 
Funding. 

− Additional funding needs. Need assistance in funding from either State, Federal 
Grants or Local Foundations Grants. 
 

5.12.2 Priority/Goal Description:  Radio Infrastructure Upgrades  
Priority Level: Medium/High 
Lead Agency: Sterling County 

− Deborah Horwood / Dow Ferguson 
Point of Contact: 
Agency Name: Sterling County  
POC Name: Deborah Horwood / Dow Ferguson 
Title: County Judge & Fire Chief   
Address: PO Box 819, Sterling City, TX 76951  
Office Phone: 325-650-4775 
Cell Phone: 325-650-4775  
24/7 Phone: 325-650-4775, 325-242-575 
E-Mail: d.horwood@co.sterling.tx.us  d.ferguson@co.sterling.tx.us  
Action plan:  Continue looking for funding sources for upgrade and connectivity to core. 
Funding:  

− Identified funding streams- Outside Funding Needed. 
− Additional funding needs. 

 

5.12.3 Priority/Goal Description:  Communication Specific Training 
Priority Level: Low/Medium 
Lead Agency: Sterling County 

− Deborah Horwood / Dow Ferguson 
Point of Contact: 
Agency Name: Sterling County  
POC Name: Deborah Horwood / Dow Ferguson  
Title: County Judge & Fire Chief   
Address: PO Box 819, Sterling City, TX 76951  
Office Phone: 325-650-4775 
Cell Phone: 325-650-4775  
24/7 Phone: 325-650-4775, 325-2425775  
E-Mail: d.horwood@co.sterling.tx.us  d.ferguson@co.sterling.tx.us  
 

mailto:d.horwood@co.sterling.tx.us
mailto:d.ferguson@co.sterling.tx.us


Concho Valley Texas Council of Governments, Region 10 
Regional Interoperable Communications Plan 

June 2022  Page | 51 
PUBLIC SAFETY SENSITIVE 

Action plan:  Some training on Communication Operation through Dow Ferguson/Fire 
Chief – EMC Assistant – We contract out to Mertzon (Irion County for Primary Dispatch). 
We have very little input on their training. 
Funding:  

− Identified funding streams – Local. 
− Additional funding needs. 

 

5.13 Sutton County 

5.13.1 Priority/Goal Description:  Radio System Infrastructure 
Priority Level: High 
Lead Agency: Sutton County Sheriff’s Office 

− DuWayne Castro 
Point of Contact: 
Agency Name:  Sutton County Sheriff’s Office  
POC Name:   DuWayne Castro 
Title:    Chief Deputy 
Address:    401 E. Oak Street, Sonora, TX 
Office Phone:   325-387-2288 
Cell Phone:   325-226-3629 
24/7 Phone:   325-387-2288 
E-Mail:     duwayne.castro@co.sutton.tx.us 
Action plan:  Our Agency will continue to look for funding to help cover the projects 
(Additional Repeaters for Better Coverage).  Procurement procedures will be followed for 
ordering and installation.    
Funding:  

− Identified funding streams - Grant Money. 
− Additional funding needs.  

 
 

5.13.2 Priority/Goal Description:  Radio System Replacement Cycle 
Priority Level: Medium 
Lead Agency: Sutton County Sheriff’s Office 

− DuWayne Castro 
Point of Contact: 
Agency Name:  Sutton County Sheriff’s Office  
POC Name:   DuWayne Castro 
Title:    Chief Deputy 
Address:    401 E. Oak Street, Sonora, TX 
Office Phone:   325-387-2288 



Concho Valley Texas Council of Governments, Region 10 
Regional Interoperable Communications Plan 

June 2022  Page | 52 
PUBLIC SAFETY SENSITIVE 

Cell Phone:   325-226-3629 
24/7 Phone:   325-387-2288 
E-Mail:     duwayne.castro@co.sutton.tx.us 
 
Action plan:  Our Agency will continue to look for funding to help cover the projects 
(End of Life Cycle for our Radio Systems).  Procurement procedures will be followed for 
ordering and installation.    
Funding:  

− Identified funding streams - Grant Money.  
− Additional funding needs. 

 

5.13.3 Priority/Goal Description: Satellite Communications Capability 
Priority Level: Medium 
Lead Agency: Sutton County Sheriff’s Office 

− DuWayne Castro 
Point of Contact: 
Agency Name:  Sutton County Sheriff’s Office  
POC Name:   DuWayne Castro 
Title:    Chief Deputy 
Address:    401 E. Oak Street, Sonora, TX 
Office Phone:   325-387-2288 
Cell Phone:   325-226-3629 
24/7 Phone:   325-387-2288 
E-Mail:     duwayne.castro@co.sutton.tx.us 
   
Action plan:  Our Agency will continue to look for funding to help cover the projects 
(Implementation of Satellite Communications for Emergency/Tactical Operations).  
Procurement procedures will be followed for ordering and installation.    
Funding:  

− Identified funding streams - Grant Money. 
− Additional funding needs. 

 

5.14 Tom Green County 

5.14.1 Priority/Goal Description:  Radio Replacement 
Priority Level: High 
Lead Agency: Tom Green County Sheriff’s Office 

− Lt. Burleigh Locklar 
Point of Contact: 
Tom Green County Sheriff’s Office  



Concho Valley Texas Council of Governments, Region 10 
Regional Interoperable Communications Plan 

June 2022  Page | 53 
PUBLIC SAFETY SENSITIVE 

POC Name: Lt. Burleigh Locklar  
Title: Operations Lieutenant   
Address: 222 W. Harris, San Angelo 76903  
Office Phone: 325-655-8111  
Cell Phone: 325-450-1427  
E-Mail:  burleigh.locklar@co.tom-green.tx.us    
Action plan:  Replace current radios with dual band. This would alleviate the need for a 
VHF repeater. Continue to seek funding sources. 
Funding: None at this time 

− Additional funding needs. 
    

5.14.2 Priority/Goal Description:  Additional P25 VHF Repeater on COSA 
with talkgroups and more capability for responders and dispatch.  

Priority Level: High (if unable to acquire dual band mobile radios. If dual band radios 
are acquired then this would not be a priority or goal.) 
Lead Agency: [Insert Text Here] 

− Name  
Point of Contact: 
Agency Name:  
POC Name:  
Title:   
Address:  
Office Phone:  
Cell Phone:  
24/7 Phone:  
E-Mail:    
Action plan:  [Insert known text here such as migration plan, known milestones, order of 
operations, etc.] 
Funding:  

− Identified funding streams 
− Additional funding needs    

 

5.14.3 Priority/Goal Description:  LTE coverage is an issue and although 
there are boosters available, there will still be a need for additional 
and supplemental coverage at times. 

Priority Level: Low/Medium/High 
Lead Agency: [Insert Text Here] 

− Name  
Point of Contact: 
Agency Name:  



Concho Valley Texas Council of Governments, Region 10 
Regional Interoperable Communications Plan 

June 2022  Page | 54 
PUBLIC SAFETY SENSITIVE 

POC Name:  
Title:   
Address:  
Office Phone:  
Cell Phone:  
24/7 Phone:  
E-Mail:    
Action plan:  [Insert known text here such as migration plan, known milestones, order of 
operations, etc.] 
Funding:  

− Identified funding streams 
− Additional funding needs    

  



Concho Valley Texas Council of Governments, Region 10 
Regional Interoperable Communications Plan 

June 2022  Page | 55 
PUBLIC SAFETY SENSITIVE 

6 CVCOG Regional Priorities 
This section summarizes the CVCOG goals, including a description of timelines 
associated with short-, medium-, and long-term goals. The goals of this RICP are 
aligned with the major lanes of the SAFECOM Interoperability Continuum as well as the 
NECP. 
Goal timelines are defined as the following: 

− Short-term:  includes priorities projected for completion within 3 years from 
ratification of the RICP 

− Medium-term:  includes priorities projected for completion between 3 and 5 
years from ratification of the RICP 

− Long-term: includes priorities projected for completion between 6 and 10 years 
from ratification of the RICP 

6.1 COG Priority Radio Replacement 

Priority/Goal Description: CVCOG counties have almost all identified antiquated 
and single band radios that are in need of replacement for nearly all their agencies, 
especially the Volunteer Fire and EMS agencies. Due to the frequency differences in the 
region, many of the counties need to transition from single band radios to multiband 
radios, to allow for mutual aid to take place when they need to support one another.  

Priority Level: High        Priority Time: Short 

Lead Agency: CVCOG 
Point of Contact:  
Agency Name: Concho Valley Council of Governments (CVCOG) 
POC Name:  Nicole Nixon 
Title:   Public Safety Manager 
Address:  5430 Link Rd, San Angelo, TX 76904 
Office Phone:  325-944-966 Ext. 262 
Cell Phone:   325-234-2439 
E-Mail:   nicole.nixon@cvcog.org 
Action plan:  

1. Identify the needs of each county for portable and mobile radios. 
2. Identify a funding source for annual radio purchasing.  
3. Identify a prioritized list of each county’s needs.  

Funding:  

− Identified funding streams  
• No identified funds. 

 



Concho Valley Texas Council of Governments, Region 10 
Regional Interoperable Communications Plan 

June 2022  Page | 56 
PUBLIC SAFETY SENSITIVE 

6.2 COG Priority Radio System Infrastructure  

Priority/Goal Description: CVCOG counties are nearly all in the same situation as 
far as radio system infrastructure is concerned. Most of the system infrastructure in the 
region is aging and in need of high level maintenance or replacement. Additionally, many 
of the counties have dead zones in their coverage in the fringe portions of their counties. 
Many of the counties are interested in forming partnerships to share large purchases on 
infrastructure (e.g., a tower on county lines that could be used by multiple counties in 
need of coverage in that area).  

Priority Level: High        Priority Time: Medium 
Lead Agency: CVCOG 
Point of Contact:  
Agency Name: Concho Valley Council of Governments (CVCOG) 
POC Name:  Nicole Nixon 
Title:   Public Safety Manager 
Address:  5430 Link Rd, San Angelo, TX 76904 
Office Phone:  325-944-966 Ext. 262 
Cell Phone:   325-234-2439 
E-Mail:   nicole.nixon@cvcog.org 
Action plan:  

1. Acquire the ability to conduct a third party engineering assessment for the COG 
to identify the best path forward in upgrading county and regional 
communications infrastructure to allow for counties to potentially pool resources 
for infrastructure that may be placed in county border regions.  

Funding:  

− Identified funding streams  
• ICTAP Technical Assistance provides ENG assessment. 

 

6.3 COG Priority Dispatch Center Technologies 

Priority/Goal Description: Several of the counties within the CVCOG have identified 
aging dispatch equipment that is either near or at the end of life for maintenance support 
from the manufacturers. Dispatch consoles provide a valuable resource for incident 
tracking and logging, as well as many capabilities dispatchers currently may not have. 
The CVCOG will need to assess the priority of counties that have the oldest and most 
outdated equipment to be the highest priority for replacement.  

Priority Level: Low        Priority Time: Medium 
Lead Agency: CVCOG 
Point of Contact:  
Agency Name: Concho Valley Council of Governments (CVCOG) 
POC Name:  Nicole Nixon 
Title:   Public Safety Manager 
Address:  5430 Link Rd, San Angelo, TX 76904 



Concho Valley Texas Council of Governments, Region 10 
Regional Interoperable Communications Plan 

June 2022  Page | 57 
PUBLIC SAFETY SENSITIVE 

Office Phone:  325-944-966 Ext. 262 
Cell Phone:   325-234-2439 
E-Mail:   nicole.nixon@cvcog.org 
  
Action plan:  

− Identify which counties have the highest priority for dispatch equipment 
replacement. 

− Identify a funding source to replace high priority agencies equipment.  
Funding:  

− Identified funding streams  
• No identified funding sources at this time.  

− Unconfirmed funding streams  
• APCO Grants. 
• NENA Grants.  



Concho Valley Texas Council of Governments, Region 10 
Regional Interoperable Communications Plan 

June 2022  Page | 58 
PUBLIC SAFETY SENSITIVE 

6.4 Planning Summary 

The timeline, milestones, and projected costs for the plans delineated above are 
summarized in Appendix B.  
 
 
 



Concho Valley Texas Council of Governments, Region 10 
Regional Interoperable Communications Plan 

June 2022  Page | A-1 
PUBLIC SAFETY SENSITIVE 

APPENDIX A PARTICIPATING, COUNTIES, 
JURISDICTIONS, AND AGENCIES 

Table 1: Participating Counties/Jurisdictions/Agencies 

Region/County/Urban Area Agency Phone# 
Coke County  
Concho County  
Crockett County  
Edwards County  
Irion County  
Kimble County  
Junction, City of  
Mason County  
Menard County  
McCulloch County  
Brady, City of   
Schleicher County  

Sterling County  

Sutton County  
Sonora, City of  
Tom Green County  
San Angelo, City of  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 
  



Concho Valley Texas Council of Governments, Region 10 
Regional Interoperable Communications Plan 

June 2022  Page | A-2 
PUBLIC SAFETY SENSITIVE 

Concho Valley Council of Governments Emergency Preparedness Advisory 
Committee 

Table 2: CVCOG POC Information 
NAME JURISDICTION TELEPHONE E-MAIL 

Judge Hal Spain Coke County (325) 453-2641 hal.spain@co.coke.tx.us 
Judge David Dillard Concho County (325) 869-0197 david.dillard@co.concho.tx.us 
Judge Fred Deaton Crockett County (325) 392-2965 fred.deaton@co.crockett.tx.us 
Judge Souli Shanklin Edwards County (830) 683-6122 countyjudge@swtexas.net 
Judge Molly Criner Irion County (325) 835-4361 m.criner@co.irion.tx.us 
Judge Delbert Roberts Kimble County (325) 446-2724 delbert.roberts@co.kimble.tx.us 
Judge Jerry Bearden Mason County (325) 347-5556 county.judge@co.mason.tx.us 
Judge Frank Trull McCulloch County (325) 792-6870 frank.trull@co.mcculloch.tx.us 
Judge Brandon Corbin Menard County (325) 396-4789 countyjudge@co.menard.tx.us 
Judge Jim O’Bryan Reagan County (325) 277-1382 jim@reagancounty.org 
Judge Charlie Bradley Schleicher County (325) 853-2593 countyjudge@co.schleicher.tx.us 
Judge Deborah 
Horwood Sterling County (325) 650-4775 d.horwood@co.sterling.tx.us 

Judge Rachel Duran Sutton County (325) 387-2711 rachel.duran@co.sutton.tx.us 
Judge Steve Floyd Tom Green County (325) 653-3318 steve.floyd@co.tom-green.tx.us 
Jerry Huffman, EMC Tom Green County/COSA (325) 657-4230 jerry.huffman@cosatx.us 
Randy Harris, 
Constable Tom Green County (325) 659-6408 randy.harris@co.tom-green.tx.us 

    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    

 
  



Concho Valley Texas Council of Governments, Region 10 
Regional Interoperable Communications Plan 

June 2022  Page | A-3 
PUBLIC SAFETY SENSITIVE 

State Agencies Contact Information 
Table 3: CVCOG State Agencies POC Information 

State Agency  POC Name Emergency Contact Information 
Statewide Interoperability 
Coordinator      Karla Jurrens        (281) 517-1240  

   
   
   
   
   
   
   

 
  



Concho Valley Texas Council of Governments, Region 10 
Regional Interoperable Communications Plan 

June 2022  Page | A-4 
PUBLIC SAFETY SENSITIVE 

Federal Agencies Contacts 
Table 4: CVCOG Federal Agencies POC Information 

Federal Agency  POC Name Emergency Contact Information 

Federal Bureau of Investigation Michael Davis (214) 797-1256; 
michael.davis@ic.fbi.gov  

Alcohol, Tobacco, and Firearms James Whatley (281) 372-3262;  
james.whatley@atf.gov  

United States Forest Service Bruce Silvey (936) 366-1033 

US Army Corps of Engineers Sam Gramlich (409) 384-5716; 
samuel.j.gramlich@usace.army.mil  

Representative Drew Darby Cheryl DeCordova (325) 658-7313; 
cheryl.decordova@house.texas.gov 

State Senator Charles Perry Laura Lewis (325) 481-0028; 
laura.lewis@senate.texas.gov 

US Representative August Pfluger Karin Kuykendall (325) 659-4010; 
karin.kuykendall@mail.house.gov 

Federal Emergency Management 
Agency Gary Jones (940) 898-5399 

  

mailto:michael.davis@ic.fbi.gov
mailto:james.whatley@atf.gov
mailto:samuel.j.gramlich@usace.army.mil
mailto:cheryl.decordova@house.texas.gov
mailto:laura.lewis@senate.texas.gov
mailto:karin.kuykendall@mail.house.gov


Concho Valley Texas Council of Governments, Region 10 
Regional Interoperable Communications Plan 

June 2022  Page | A-5 
PUBLIC SAFETY SENSITIVE 

Nongovernmental Agencies and Contact Information 
Table 5: Nongovernmental Agencies POC Information 

Organization POC Name Emergency Contact Information 

Salvation Army  Louis Melindez (936) 634-5132; 
louis_melindez@uss.salvationarmy.org  

Texas Baptist Men Jim Pinkston (214) 334-9482; 
jim.pinkston@texasbaptistmen.org  

Red Cross Glenna Harkness (936) 634-6013; 
redcross@suddenlinkmail.com  

Amateur Radio Teams 
Table 6: Amateur Radio Teams POC Information 

Name/Location Email Phone Organization Call-sign 
     
     

mailto:louis_melindez@uss.salvationarmy.org
mailto:jim.pinkston@texasbaptistmen.org
mailto:redcross@suddenlinkmail.com


Concho Valley Texas Council of Governments, Region 10 
Regional Interoperable Communications Plan 

June 2022  Page | B-1 
PUBLIC SAFETY SENSITIVE 

APPENDIX B TIMELINE/MILESTONE/COST ESTIMATE, 
BASIC REQUIREMENTS 

[Add CVCOG Timeline/Milestones/Cost Estimate from Excel sheet] 



Concho Valley Texas Council of Governments, Region 10  
Regional Interoperable Communications Plan 

June 2022  Page | C-1 
PUBLIC SAFETY SENSITIVE 

APPENDIX C REGIONAL COMMUNICATIONS 
ASSESSMENT  

CASM Overview 
The Communication Assets Survey and Mapping (CASM) tool provides the ability for 
representatives of public safety agencies to collect, store, and visualize communication 
assets, and analyze interoperability gaps. 
The communications asset information contained in CASM was used in assessing 
communications capabilities in the CVCOG to aid in preparing the RICP. 
Authorization to view data for a particular area or State is controlled by the 
Administrative Manager (AM); each user must have a username and password in order 
to login.  
The Regional CASM Administrative Manager/POC is listed in the following table: 

Table 7: Regional CASM AM POC Information 

POC Name Phone# Email Area of Responsibility 
Karla Jurrens 512-424-2104 karla.jurrens@dps.texas.gov  State of Texas 

mailto:karla.jurrens@dps.texas.gov


Concho Valley Texas Council of Governments, Region 10  
Regional Interoperable Communications Plan 

June 2022  Page | D-1 
PUBLIC SAFETY SENSITIVE 

APPENDIX D REFERENCES 
National 

− A Guide for Statewide Communications Interoperability Plan (SCIP) 
Implementation, (DHS/CISA): https://www.dhs.gov/publication/ictapscip-
resources  

− American Radio Relay League (ARRL): www.arrl.org  

− APCO International: www.apcointl.org  

− Auxiliary Communications Field Operations Guide (AUXFOG) is a reference for 
auxiliary communicators who directly support backup emergency 
communications for State/local public safety entities or for an amateur radio 
organization supporting public safety. 
https://www.dhs.gov/safecom/resources.   

− Cybersecurity and Infrastructure Security Agency (CISA):  
https://www.dhs.gov/safecom/resources.   

− Communications Unit Leader Training: 
http://www.dhs.gov/video/communications-unit-leader-training  

− DHS CISA FY2019 TA/SCIP Guide Highlights & Offerings: 
https://www.dhs.gov/sites/default/files/publications/FY2019%20TA_SCIP_Guide_
5.0_10_31_18_FINAL_508.pdf  

− Department of Homeland Security Target Capabilities List (TCL): 
https://www.fema.gov/pdf/government/training/tcl.pdf  

− Department of Homeland Security Universal Task List (UTL): 
http://www.ncrhomelandsecurity.org/ncr/downloads/Universal%20Task%20List.p
df  

− EMAC: www.emacweb.org   

− FCC ULS: http://wireless.fcc.gov/uls/index.htm?job=home 

− Federal Communications Commission (FCC): 
o FCC Enforcement Bureau: www.fcc.gov/eb  
o FCC Public Safety & Homeland Security Bureau: www.fcc.gov/pshs  
o FCC Special Temporary Authority (STA): 

https://www.fcc.gov/media/radio/special-temporary-authority  

− Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA): www.fema.gov  

− First National Strategy for Homeland Security: 
https://www.dhs.gov/publication/first-national-strategy-homeland-security  

− Government Emergency Telecommunications Service (GETS): 
http://www.dhs.gov/gets  

− Homeland Security Information Network (HSIN): https://www.dhs.gov/homeland-
security-information-network-hsin   

https://www.dhs.gov/publication/ictapscip-resources
https://www.dhs.gov/publication/ictapscip-resources
http://www.arrl.org/
http://www.apcointl.org/
https://www.dhs.gov/safecom/resources
https://www.dhs.gov/safecom/resources
http://www.dhs.gov/video/communications-unit-leader-training
https://www.dhs.gov/sites/default/files/publications/FY2019%20TA_SCIP_Guide_5.0_10_31_18_FINAL_508.pdf
https://www.dhs.gov/sites/default/files/publications/FY2019%20TA_SCIP_Guide_5.0_10_31_18_FINAL_508.pdf
https://www.fema.gov/pdf/government/training/tcl.pdf
http://www.ncrhomelandsecurity.org/ncr/downloads/Universal%20Task%20List.pdf
http://www.ncrhomelandsecurity.org/ncr/downloads/Universal%20Task%20List.pdf
http://www.emacweb.org/
http://wireless.fcc.gov/uls/index.htm?job=home
http://www.fcc.gov/eb
http://www.fcc.gov/pshs
https://www.fcc.gov/media/radio/special-temporary-authority
http://www.fema.gov/
https://www.dhs.gov/publication/first-national-strategy-homeland-security
http://www.dhs.gov/gets
https://www.dhs.gov/homeland-security-information-network-hsin
https://www.dhs.gov/homeland-security-information-network-hsin


Concho Valley Texas Council of Governments, Region 10  
Regional Interoperable Communications Plan 

June 2022  Page | D-2 
PUBLIC SAFETY SENSITIVE 

− Lessons Learned Information Sharing: https://www.fema.gov/media-
library/assets/documents/104192   

− National Emergency Communications Plan: https://www.dhs.gov/national-
emergency-communications-plan  

− National Incident Management System (NIMS) Information: 
https://www.fema.gov/national-incident-management-system   

− National Interoperability Field Operations Guide (NIFOG): 
https://www.dhs.gov/publication/fog-documents  

− National Interagency Fire Center (NIFC): www.nifc.gov  

− National Interagency Incident Communications: www.fs.fed.us/fire/niicd  

− National Preparedness Guidelines: https://www.dhs.gov/national-preparedness-
guidelines  

− National Public Safety Telecommunications Council (NPSTC): www.npstc.org  

− National Regional Planning Council (NRPC): www.nrpc.us  

− National Response Framework: https://www.fema.gov/media-library-
data/1466014682982-
9bcf8245ba4c60c120aa915abe74e15d/National_Response_Framework3rd.pdf  

− National Response Plan: https://www.dhs.gov/xlibrary/assets/NRP_Brochure.pdf  

− National Telecommunications & Information Admin (NTIA): 
https://www.ntia.doc.gov/home   

− National Wildfire Coordinating Group (NWCG): www.nwcg.gov  

− FCC public safety radio pool eligibility for statewide use of interoperability 
channels within Texas: http://publicsafety.fcc.gov/pshs/releases/index.htm  

− Radio Reference: www.radioreference.com  

− SAFECOM: https://www.dhs.gov/safecom   

− SAFECOM Training and Exercise: 
https://www.dhs.gov/safecom/training-and-exercises  

− Statewide Communications Interoperability Plan (SCIP):  
http://www.txdps.state.tx.us/LawEnforcementSupport/communications/interop/do
cuments/texasSCIP.pdf   

− The Communication Assets Survey and Mapping (CASM) tool is a web-based 
application that provides the ability for representatives of public safety agencies 
within an urban area or state to collect, store, and visualize data about agencies, 
communication assets, and how agencies use those assets. 
https://www.dhs.gov/safecom/resources.   

− The National Interoperability Field Operations Guide (NIFOG) is a collection of 
technical, operational, and regulatory reference material for radio technicians 
responsible for radios that can be used in disaster response applications, and for 
emergency communications planners. 

https://www.fema.gov/media-library/assets/documents/104192
https://www.fema.gov/media-library/assets/documents/104192
https://www.dhs.gov/national-emergency-communications-plan
https://www.dhs.gov/national-emergency-communications-plan
https://www.fema.gov/national-incident-management-system
https://www.dhs.gov/publication/fog-documents
http://www.nifc.gov/
http://www.fs.fed.us/fire/niicd
https://www.dhs.gov/national-preparedness-guidelines
https://www.dhs.gov/national-preparedness-guidelines
http://www.npstc.org/
http://www.nrpc.us/
https://www.fema.gov/media-library-data/1466014682982-9bcf8245ba4c60c120aa915abe74e15d/National_Response_Framework3rd.pdf
https://www.fema.gov/media-library-data/1466014682982-9bcf8245ba4c60c120aa915abe74e15d/National_Response_Framework3rd.pdf
https://www.fema.gov/media-library-data/1466014682982-9bcf8245ba4c60c120aa915abe74e15d/National_Response_Framework3rd.pdf
https://www.dhs.gov/xlibrary/assets/NRP_Brochure.pdf
https://www.ntia.doc.gov/home
http://www.nwcg.gov/
http://publicsafety.fcc.gov/pshs/releases/index.htm
http://www.radioreference.com/
https://www.dhs.gov/safecom
https://www.dhs.gov/safecom/training-and-exercises
http://www.txdps.state.tx.us/LawEnforcementSupport/communications/interop/documents/texasSCIP.pdf
http://www.txdps.state.tx.us/LawEnforcementSupport/communications/interop/documents/texasSCIP.pdf
https://www.dhs.gov/safecom/resources


Concho Valley Texas Council of Governments, Region 10  
Regional Interoperable Communications Plan 

June 2022  Page | D-3 
PUBLIC SAFETY SENSITIVE 

https://www.cisa.gov/sites/default/files/video/NIFOG%202.01_508%20FINAL%20
VERSION%205%2011%2022.pdf   

− Wildland Fire Communications: https://www.nifc.gov/NIICD/  
− Wireless Priority Service (WPS): http://www.dhs.gov/wps  

Texas 
− Texas Government Charter 421: 

http://www.dps.texas.gov/dem/GrantsResources/txEmerMgtStatutes.pdf  
− Texas Statewide Interoperability Channel Plan or (TSICP) and MOU:  

http://www.txdps.state.tx.us/LawEnforcementSupport/communications/interop/do
cuments/tsicpMOU.pdf   

− Texas Communication Field Operations Guide: 
https://casmnextgen.com/pslib/index.php/webview?docid=186   

− Training and Exercises Templates: 
− https://pslib.casmnextgen.com/pslib/index.php/webview (Search for ‘Texas’) 
− RGCOG RSOP: https://www.preparingtexas.org/index.aspx    
− Alabama–Coushatta Tribe of Texas is a federally recognized tribe of Alabama 

and Koasati in Polk County, Texas. http://www.alabama-coushatta.com/  

COGs 
− 01 Panhandle Regional Planning Commission (PRPC): www.theprpc.org  

https://www.txregionalcouncil.org/display.php?page=PRPC.php   

− 02 South Plains Association of Governments (SPAG): www.spag.org  
https://www.txregionalcouncil.org/display.php?page=SPAG.php   

− 03 Nortex Regional Planning Commission (NORTEX): www.nortexrpc.org  
https://www.txregionalcouncil.org/display.php?page=NORTEX.php   

− 04 North Central Texas Council of Governments (NCTCOG): www.nctcog.org  
https://www.txregionalcouncil.org/display.php?page=NCTCOG.php   

− 05 Ark-Tex Council of Governments (ARK-TEK): www.atcog.org  
https://www.txregionalcouncil.org/display.php?page=ARKTEX.php   

− 06 East Texas Council of Governments (ETCOG): www.etcog.org  
https://www.txregionalcouncil.org/display.php?page=ETCOG.php   

− 07 West Central Texas Council of Governments (WCTCOG): www.wctcog.org  
https://www.txregionalcouncil.org/display.php?page=WCTCOG.php   

− 08 Rio Grande Council of Governments (RGCOG): www.riocog.org  
https://www.txregionalcouncil.org/display.php?page=RGCOG.php   

− 09 Permian Basin Regional Planning Commission (PBRPC): www.pbrpc.org  
https://www.txregionalcouncil.org/display.php?page=PBRPC.php   

− 10 Concho Valley Council of Governments (CVCOG): www.cvcog.org  
https://www.txregionalcouncil.org/display.php?page=CVCOG.php   

https://www.cisa.gov/sites/default/files/video/NIFOG%202.01_508%20FINAL%20VERSION%205%2011%2022.pdf
https://www.cisa.gov/sites/default/files/video/NIFOG%202.01_508%20FINAL%20VERSION%205%2011%2022.pdf
https://www.nifc.gov/NIICD/
http://www.dhs.gov/wps
http://www.dps.texas.gov/dem/GrantsResources/txEmerMgtStatutes.pdf
http://www.txdps.state.tx.us/LawEnforcementSupport/communications/interop/documents/tsicpMOU.pdf
http://www.txdps.state.tx.us/LawEnforcementSupport/communications/interop/documents/tsicpMOU.pdf
https://casmnextgen.com/pslib/index.php/webview?docid=186
https://pslib.casmnextgen.com/pslib/index.php/webview
https://www.preparingtexas.org/index.aspx
http://www.alabama-coushatta.com/
http://www.theprpc.org/
https://www.txregionalcouncil.org/display.php?page=PRPC.php
http://www.spag.org/
https://www.txregionalcouncil.org/display.php?page=SPAG.php
http://www.nortexrpc.org/
https://www.txregionalcouncil.org/display.php?page=NORTEX.php
http://www.nctcog.org/
https://www.txregionalcouncil.org/display.php?page=NCTCOG.php
http://www.atcog.org/
https://www.txregionalcouncil.org/display.php?page=ARKTEX.php
http://www.etcog.org/
https://www.txregionalcouncil.org/display.php?page=ETCOG.php
http://www.wctcog.org/
https://www.txregionalcouncil.org/display.php?page=WCTCOG.php
http://www.riocog.org/
https://www.txregionalcouncil.org/display.php?page=RGCOG.php
http://www.pbrpc.org/
https://www.txregionalcouncil.org/display.php?page=PBRPC.php
http://www.cvcog.org/
https://www.txregionalcouncil.org/display.php?page=CVCOG.php


Concho Valley Texas Council of Governments, Region 10  
Regional Interoperable Communications Plan 

June 2022  Page | D-4 
PUBLIC SAFETY SENSITIVE 

− 11 Heart of Texas Council of Governments (HOTCOG): www.hotcog.org  
https://www.txregionalcouncil.org/display.php?page=HOTCOG.php   

− 12 Capital Area Council of Governments (CAPCOG): www.capcog.org  
https://www.txregionalcouncil.org/display.php?page=CAPCOG.php   

− 13 Brazos Valley Council of Governments (BVCOG): www.bvcog.org  
https://www.txregionalcouncil.org/display.php?page=BVCOG.php   

− 14 Deep East Texas Council of Governments (DETCOG): www.detcog.org  
https://www.txregionalcouncil.org/display.php?page=DETCOG.php   

− 15 South East Texas Regional Planning Commission (SETRPC): www.setrpc.org  
https://www.txregionalcouncil.org/display.php?page=SETRPC.php   

− 16 Houston-Galveston Area Council (H-GAC): www.h-gac.com   

− https://www.txregionalcouncil.org/display.php?page=H-GAC.php   

− 17 Golden Crescent Regional Planning Commission (GCRPC): www.gcrpc.org  
https://www.txregionalcouncil.org/display.php?page=GCRPC.php   

− 18 Alamo Area Council of Governments (AACOG): www.aacog.com  
https://www.txregionalcouncil.org/display.php?page=AACOG.php   

− 19 South Texas Development Council (STDC): www.stdc.cog.tx.us  
https://www.txregionalcouncil.org/display.php?page=STDC.php   

− 20 Coastal Bend Council of Governments (CBCOG): www.CBCOG98.org      
https://www.txregionalcouncil.org/display.php?page=CBTCOG.php   

− 21 Lower Rio Grande Valley Development Council (LRGVDC): www.lrgvdc.org  
https://www.txregionalcouncil.org/display.php?page=LRGVDC.php   

− 22 Texoma Council of Governments (TEXOMA): www.texoma.cog.tx.us  
https://www.txregionalcouncil.org/display.php?page=TCOG.php   

− 23 Central Texas Council of Governments (CTCOG): www.ctcog.org  
https://www.txregionalcouncil.org/display.php?page=CTCOG.php   

− 24 Middle Rio Grande Development Council (MRGDC): www.mrgdc.org  
https://www.txregionalcouncil.org/display.php?page=MRGDC.php 

  

http://www.hotcog.org/
https://www.txregionalcouncil.org/display.php?page=HOTCOG.php
http://www.capcog.org/
https://www.txregionalcouncil.org/display.php?page=CAPCOG.php
http://www.bvcog.org/
https://www.txregionalcouncil.org/display.php?page=BVCOG.php
http://www.detcog.org/
https://www.txregionalcouncil.org/display.php?page=DETCOG.php
http://www.setrpc.org/
https://www.txregionalcouncil.org/display.php?page=SETRPC.php
http://www.h-gac.com/
https://www.txregionalcouncil.org/display.php?page=H-GAC.php
http://www.gcrpc.org/
https://www.txregionalcouncil.org/display.php?page=GCRPC.php
http://www.aacog.com/
https://www.txregionalcouncil.org/display.php?page=AACOG.php
http://www.stdc.cog.tx.us/
https://www.txregionalcouncil.org/display.php?page=STDC.php
http://www.cbcog98.org/
https://www.txregionalcouncil.org/display.php?page=CBTCOG.php
http://www.lrgvdc.org/
https://www.txregionalcouncil.org/display.php?page=LRGVDC.php
http://www.texoma.cog.tx.us/
https://www.txregionalcouncil.org/display.php?page=TCOG.php
http://www.ctcog.org/
https://www.txregionalcouncil.org/display.php?page=CTCOG.php
http://www.mrgdc.org/
https://www.txregionalcouncil.org/display.php?page=MRGDC.php


Concho Valley Texas Council of Governments, Region 10  
Regional Interoperable Communications Plan 

June 2022  Page | D-5 
PUBLIC SAFETY SENSITIVE 

RSOP Links to Referenced Documents 
Texas Statewide Communications Interoperability Plan (SCIP):  
http://www.txdps.state.tx.us/LawEnforcementSupport/communications/interop/document
s/texasSCIP.pdf  
Texas Statewide Interoperability Channel Plan (TSICP):  
http://www.txdps.state.tx.us/LawEnforcementSupport/communications/interop/document
s/tsicpMOU.pdf  
Texas Communication Field Operations Guide: 
https://www.dps.texas.gov/LawEnforcementSupport/communications/interop/documents/
txCommFldOpsGuide.pdf  
Texas Training and Exercises Templates: 
https://www.dps.texas.gov/dem/Preparedness/exerciseUnit/TrainExerPlan.htm  
 
 
 

http://www.txdps.state.tx.us/LawEnforcementSupport/communications/interop/documents/texasSCIP.pdf
http://www.txdps.state.tx.us/LawEnforcementSupport/communications/interop/documents/texasSCIP.pdf
http://www.txdps.state.tx.us/LawEnforcementSupport/communications/interop/documents/tsicpMOU.pdf
http://www.txdps.state.tx.us/LawEnforcementSupport/communications/interop/documents/tsicpMOU.pdf
https://www.dps.texas.gov/LawEnforcementSupport/communications/interop/documents/txCommFldOpsGuide.pdf
https://www.dps.texas.gov/LawEnforcementSupport/communications/interop/documents/txCommFldOpsGuide.pdf
https://www.dps.texas.gov/dem/Preparedness/exerciseUnit/TrainExerPlan.htm


Concho Valley Texas Council of Governments, Region 10  
Regional Interoperable Communications Plan 

June 2022  Page | E-1 
PUBLIC SAFETY SENSITIVE 

APPENDIX E GLOSSARY  
Item/Acronym Definition 

ADP Advanced Digital Privacy 

AES Advanced Encryption Standard 

AM Administrative Manager 

APCO Association of Public-Safety Communications Officials 

ARRL American Radio Relay League 

AUXCOM Auxiliary Communications 

CAD Computer Aided Dispatch 

CASM Communication Assets Survey and Mapping 

CVCOG Concho Valley Council of Governments 

COG Council Of Governments 

COMU Communications Unit 

COMU EX Communications Unit Exercise 

COW Cellular on Wheels 

CV Concho Valley 

DHS Department of Homeland Security 

EMAC Emergency Management Assistance Compact 

EMC Emergency Management Coordinator 

EMS Emergency Medical Services 

EOC Emergency Operations Center 

ESF Emergency Support Function 

FCC Federal Communication Commission 

FEMA Federal Emergency Management Agency 

GATRRS Greater Austin/Travis County Regional Radio System 

GETS Government Emergency Telecommunications Service 

GPS Global Positioning System 

HSIN Homeland Security Information Network 

Interoperable Ability of a system to use the parts or equipment of another system 

LE Law Enforcement 

LMR Land Mobile Radio 

LTE Long Term Evolution 

MAA Mutual Aid Agreement 

MCCP Mobile Communications Command Program 

MDT Mobile Data Terminal 



Concho Valley Texas Council of Governments, Region 10  
Regional Interoperable Communications Plan 

June 2022  Page | E-2 
PUBLIC SAFETY SENSITIVE 

Item/Acronym Definition 
MHz Abbreviation for megahertz. 5 MHz = 5,000,000 Hz or 5,000 kHz. 

MOU Memorandum of Understanding 

Mutual Aid Personnel, equipment, or services provided to another jurisdiction 

NECP National Emergency Communications Plan 

NGO Nongovernmental Organizations 

NIFC National Interagency Fire Center 

NIFOG National Interoperability Field Operations Guide 

NIMS National Incident Management System 

NPSTC National Public Safety Telecommunications Council 

NRF National Response Framework 

NRPC National Regional Planning Council 

NTIA National Telecommunications and Information Administration 

NWCG National Wildfire Coordinating Group 

OEM Office of Emergency Management 

P25 Project 25 

POC Point of Contact 

PSAP Public Safety Answering Point  

RGOV Regional Governance Structures  

RICP Regional Interoperable Communications Plan 

RIMP Regional Interoperable Migration Plans  

RSOP Regional Standard Operating Procedures  

Rx Receive 

SCC State Coordinator for Communications  

SCIP Statewide Communication Interoperability Plan 

SOP Standard Operating Procedure 

SOW Site on Wheels 

STAR State of Texas Assistance Request 

TCL Target Capability List 

TSICP Texas Statewide Interoperability Channel Plan  

Tx Transmit 

TxDPS Texas Department of Public Safety 

TxICC Texas Interoperable Communications Coalition 

TxSCIP Texas Statewide Communications Interoperability Plan 

UPS Uninterruptable Power Supply 

UTL Universal Task List 



Concho Valley Texas Council of Governments, Region 10  
Regional Interoperable Communications Plan 

June 2022  Page | E-3 
PUBLIC SAFETY SENSITIVE 

Item/Acronym Definition 

VHF 
Very High Frequency – For public safety LMR, usually refers to 
VHF High Band with a range of 136 to 164 MHz VHF Low Band 
has a frequency range below 100 MHz 

WPS Wireless Priority Service 

 



Revised cost for upgrade to MIP Accounting System 

Description Original Reguest Revised Request 

line Item Segment Length, add 3 digits $ 7,470.00 $ 7,470.00 
License for Security Software $ 1,972.86 $ 1,972.86 
Staff Training $ 5,940.00 $ 5,940.00 
license for Requisition and Purchase Order Software $ 4,993.75 $ 4,993.75 
MIP Cloud Conversion $ 21,364.82 $ 29,613.95 

Total $ 41,741.43 $ 49,990.56 
Requistion Request $ 42,000.00 $ 50,000.00 

Reason for increase is due to number of User Access Accounts 3 16 

Note: MIP offered large discount on the user setup fee to cap it at $2,000. This was beneficial since the 
Original Request included a limited time offer on Cloud Conversion 

Variance 

$ 
$ 
$ 
$ 
$ 8,249.13 
$ 8,249.13 
$ 8,000.00 



Services Order Form 

Customer: 

Address: 

Concho Valley Council of Governments 

2801 Loop 306 Ste A 
San Angelo, TX 76904-6567 

Customer contact: Dallas Gray 

Phone: 325) 944-9666 
Fax: 

Email: dallas.aravl@cvcoa.ora 

Order Form Statement of Work: 
Change Une Item segment length 

Pad with zeros 
3databases 

Estimated start date of service: First available 

Date: 4/8/2022 Account number: 21373 

Payment Terms: Due Upon Receipt 
Method of Payment: 

Product: MIP Fund Accounting 

Abila contact: Patrick Callahan 

Phone: 512 861-3176 
Fax: 866.304. 7307 

Email: Patrick.callahan@communitybrands.com 

COST SUMMARY 

Estimated and Authorized. Costs exceeding the estimates authorized in the above Cost Summary will be submitted by Abila for approval by 
Customer prior to being Incurred by Abila. 

Option to pay 50% of Total amount in Cost Summary if over $3,000. 50% due net 30, remainder due upon completion or net 30 Days, whichever 
occurs first, from the date of this Order Form. 

This Client Services Order Form ("Order Form") is entered into 4/8/2022 ("Effective Date") by and between Community Brands, at 10800 Pecan 
Park Blvd, Suite 400, Austin, TX 78750 ("Licensor", "Community Brands", or "we") and Concho Valley Council of Governments 
a with offices located at [see above] ("Ucensee" or "you").This Order Form is subject to Licensor's terms and conditions (the "Terms and 
Conditions"), a copy of which is available on Licensor's website at communitybrands.com/cb-msa-mlp and supersedes all prior, conflicting 
agreements or representations, written or oral between the parties for the Services listed below. Capitalized terms In this Order Form will have the 
meanings given In the Terms and Conditions. 

THIS ORDER FORM GOVERNS All SERVICES DISTRIBUTED BY OR ON BEHALF OF COMMUNITY BRANDS TO YOU. BY DOWNLOADING, INSTALLING, OR 
USING THE SERVICES, YOU AGREE TO BE BOUND BY THE TERMS OF THIS ORDER FORM. IF YOU DO NOT AGREE TO THE TERMS OF THIS ORDER FORM, 
YOU MUST NOT DOWNLOAD, INSTALL, OR USE THE SERVICES, AND YOU MUST DELETE OR RETURN THE UNUSED SERVICES. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto, each by a duly authorized officer, have entered Into this Order Form as of the Effective Date. 

Customer/ Licencee 

Signature: ---------------
Name: 

Title: 

Date: 

Community Brands/ Licensor 
Signature: ______________ _ 

Name: 

Title: 

Date: 



.. 
[!]JP 
MIP FA by Community Brands 

QUOTE DETAILS 

Quote Number: Q-68486 

Quote Date: 04/08/2022 
Quote Expires on: 07/07/2022 

Commencement Date: 04/08/2022 
Contract Term: 12 
Payment Terms: 

PREPARED BY 
MIP FA by Community Brands 
9620 Executive Center Drive N. 
#200 
St. Petersburg , Florida 33702 

Representative: Patrick Callahan 

BILLING INFORMATION PRIMARY CONTACT __,_-a.,,.;........, ............................................... _________ ......_ 

Concho Valley Council of Governments 
2801 Loop 306 Ste A 
San Angelo, TX 76904-6567 

ORDER SUMMARY 

LICENSED SOFTWARE and SAAS 

Dallas Gray 
7133826042 
dallas. g ray@cvcog.org 

The following table provides a description of the licensed software/Saas products to the licensee, in addition 
to the corresponding fees. 

Product Name Qty List Price 

Advanced Security Perpetual 1 $1,795.00 

Year-1 Maintenance & Support: $177.86 

Software Subtotal: $1,795.00 

I TOTALS 

Total I $1 ,972.861 



Services Order Form 

Customer: 

Address: 

Concho Valley Council of Governments 

2801 Loop 306 Ste A 
San Angelo, TX 76904-6567 

customer contact: Hayden Salandy 

Phone: 325.944.9666 
Fax: 

Email: hayden.salandy@cvcog.org 

Order Form Statement of Work: 
Mlcroix Requisitions implementation and training 

Up to 24 hours 

Estimated start date of service: First available 

Date: 2/10/2022 Account number: 213 73 

Payment Terms: Due Upon Receipt 
Method of Payment: 

Product: MIP Fund Accounting 

Abila contact: Patrick callahan 

Phone: 512 861-3176 
Fax: 866.304.7307 

Email: Patrick.callahan@communitybrands.com 

COST SUMMARY 

Service Description 
Total 

Service Type 
Fixed Fee 

Fees: 
$5940.00 

Estimated and Authorized. Costs exceeding the estimates authorized in the above Cost Summary will be submitted by Abila for approval by 
Customer prior to being incurred by Abila. 

Option to pay 50% of Total amount in Cost Summary if over $3,000. 50% due net 30, remainder due upon completion or net 30 Days, whichever 
occurs first, from the date of this Order Form. 

This Client Services Order Form ("Order Form") is entered into 2/10/2022("Effectlve Date") by and between Community Brands, at 10800 Pecan 
Park Blvd, Suite 400, Austin, TX 78750 ("Licensor", "Community Brands", or "we") and Concho Valley Council of Governments 
a with offices located at [see above] ("Licensee" or "you").This Order Form is subject to Licensor's terms and conditions (the "Terms and 
Conditions"), a copy of which is available on Licensor's website at communitybrands.com/cb-msa-mip and supersedes all prior, conflicting 
agreements or representations, written or oral between the parties for the Services listed below. capitalized terms in this Order Form will have the 
meanings given in the Terms and Conditions. 

THIS ORDER FORM GOVERNS ALL SERVICES DISTRIBUTED BY OR ON BEHALF OF COMMUNITY BRANDS TO YOU. BY DOWNLOADING, INSTALLING, OR 
USING THE SERVICES, YOU AGREE TO BE BOUND BY THE TERMS OF THIS ORDER FORM. IF YOU DO NOT AGREE TO THE TERMS OF THIS ORDER FORM, 
YOU MUST NOT DOWNLOAD, INSTALL, OR USE THE SERVICES, AND YOU MUST DELETE OR RETURN THE UNUSED SERVICES. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto, each by a duly authorized officer, have entered into this Order Form as of the Effective Date. 

Customer I Licencee 

Signature: ----------------
Name: 

Title: 

Date: 

Community Brands I Licensor 

Signature: ----------------
Name: 

Title: 

Date: 



.. 
ffi!P 
MIP FA by Community Brands 

· auotE bet Ails . 
_,, .. :c ..•.... ,,, ... ·. :~~~~~,~e:~)\r\::· ...• ~,-'· i< · 

Quote Number: Q-64603 

Quote Date: 06/14/2022 
Quote Expires on: 09/12/2022 

Commencement Date: 02/10/2022 
Contract Term: 12 
Payment Terms: 

Concho Valley Council of Governments 
2801 Loop 306 Ste A 
San Angelo, TX 76904-6567 

ORDER SUMMARY 

MIP FA by Community Brands 
9620 Executive Center Drive N. 
#200 
St. Petersburg, Florida 33702 

Representative: Patrick Callahan 

Hayden Salandy 
325.944.9666 
hayden.salandy@cvcog.org 

LICENSED SOFTWARE and SAAS < .· ... ·.. .··· ... ·.· •. · .. · .·. ·.•... .; : . // . .. . .• . . . . .. . . . . . · .. 
Tti~'%n6wing :tat>ie ·. provid¢s a .de~;;criptlQ!1 ofth~"ii~nse.~ibflw~r~isa~~iprpqlict~: id th~ licens~e. in· addition te>)ne ·correspqnding fees. . . . .. · ·. .. . .. ·. . . . . . . .· . . . -.. . . ~ '· . ~ . . .. . . .· . ·. . , . . . . 

Product Name Qty List Price 

Microix Requisitions -
1 

$2,695.00 
Perpetual License 

Microix Web Companion -
1 

$1,000.00 
Premise 

Microix Requisition Users -
2 

$500.00 
Perpetual License 

Advanced Security Perpetual 1 $0.00 

Year-1 Maintenance & Support: $798.75 

Software Subtotal: $4,195.00 

I TOTALS 

Total I $4,993.751 



II, 

DJJP 
MIP Cloud by Community Brands 

Quote Number: Q-64611 

Quote Date: 07/29/2022 
Quote Expires on: 10/27/2022 

Commencement Date: 09/30/2022 
Contract Term: 15 
Payment Terms: Net 30 

Concho Valley Council of Governments 
2801 Loop 306 Ste A 
San Angelo, TX 76904-6567 

ORDER SUMMARY 

Product Name 

MIP Cloud Conversion 

Executive View Users Cloud 

MIP Cloud Conversion - User -
Subscription 

Software Subtotal: 

Product Name 

Microix Hosting 

Additional Products Subtotal: 

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 

1 

30 

16 

MIP Cloud by Community Brands 
9620 Executive Center Drive N. 
#200 
St. Petersburg , Florida 33702 

Representative: Patrick Callahan 

Hayden Salandy 
325.944.9666 
hayden.salandy@cvcog.org 

List Price 

$9,443.77 

$7,200.00 

$9,600.00 

$26,243.77 

List Price 

$300.00 

$300.00 

Professional Services: During the term of certain applicable Licensed Software/Saas, Licensor may also perform 
certain implementation, consulting and or training service (the "Professional Services") as specified in a written 
statement of work ("SOW"), which shall be subject to the terms and conditions of the this Order Form, Any 
Licensee request resulting in modifications, changes and or additions to the Professional Services described in 
a relevant SOW may incur additional fees and will require a mutually agreed written change order signed by both 
parties. 



Product Name List Price 

Microix Cloud Provisioning $275.00 

MIP Cloud Database Setup on Hosting $300.00 

MIP Cloud Organization Setup on Hosting $495.00 

MIP Cloud User Setup on Hosting $4,655.00 

Services Discount: $2,654.82 

Services Subtotal: $3,070.18 

I TOTALS 

Total I $29,613.951 



Automatic Data Processing (ADP) 

One-Time Cost 

Payroll Processing 

HR On-Boarding 

Time Solution 

One-Time Implementation for New Services 6,500.00 

6,500.00 

Renewing Services: 

Payroll Processing utilizing CVCOG proprietary time reporting system 

Tax and compliance reporting, Affordable Care Act, 1099 and W-2 

Payroll Payment Options: Direct Deposit or check signing and stuffing 

Garnishment Payment Service 

Annualized Cost 

21,600.00 

19,200.00 

15,120.00 

55,920.00 

Electronic Payroll reports for Record Retention and importing into accounting system 

Provide Wage, Tax and Health Coverage statements, available as paperless option 

Ability to track new hire applications 

Employee Benefits 

Filing all Federal and State tax reports and payments 

New Services: 

Time Collection 

Grant-Project-Line ltem-Activity-Misc.-Jurisidiction code allocation 

Calculate Vacation Accrual 

Calculate Indirect Allocation 

5-Year Cost 

108,000.00 

96,000.00 

75,600.00 

279,600.00 



Integrating time and 
attendance with 
payroll - this leads 
to a cost efficiency 
of 14 % over a manual 
approach or an 
approach that is not 
integrated. 

- PriceWaterhouseCoopers LLP 

·-·--I·-·- O '!)_ --- •,,_ 

0 0---:_ 
'.!J -

-. . ......... .... ... 

TE CHNOLOGY IN ACTION 

ADP Workforce Now 
Essential Time 

ADP Workforce Now Essential Time is an automated employee time and labor 
management solution that can help you tighten control over your labor costs by 
proactively reducing overtime through real-time labor tracking and scheduling 
forecasts, in addition to improved wage and hour compliance and payro(( accuracy. 
Enable supervisors to complete routine tasks and simplify employee scheduling in 
a fraction of the t ime so your managers can spend more time analyzing labor data 
and addressing issues that impact productivity and profits. 

Focus on your business - Leave the time and labor management to ADP 

With continued pressure to reduce costs, employers need to take a more proactive 
approach to managing employee time and maximizing productivity. Automating 
time and labor management can be one of the fastest ways for you to improve 
your bottom line. 

ADP's Workforce Now Essential Time Module is an ideal time and labor 
management solution. It provides a complete set of tools to schedule, track, and 
measure workforce performance. Through seamless integration of time and 
attendance, scheduling, and absence management, you'(( have access to accurate, 
up-to-the-minute information, eliminating the need for duplicate data entry and 
enabling you to make informed workforce management decisions. 

Compatible and flexible solution - No installation or maintenance of 
hardware or software 

With Workforce Now Essential Time, your time and labor management solution is 
hosted at our secure data center - eliminating the need for you to install or 
maintain any software or hardware. You enjoy complete peace of mind knowing 
that ADP takes care of everything - data backups, software updates, and 
network security measures that include 24/7 monitoring of unauthorized access 
attempts, plus industry leading 128-bit encryption Secure Socket Layer (SSL) and 
firewall protection. 

Collection and calculation 

ADP Workforce Now Essential Time automates the error-prone process of 
coHecting and tracking employee time manually. Its parameter-driven, rules-based 
engine accommodates complex pay policies, such as multiple pay codes, rounding 
rules, overtime calculations, and multiple wage rates. Accurate time calculation 
with Workforce Now Essential Time begins with flexible, intelligent data 
collection via PC, biometric, telephone, wireless, and ID badge card devices. 
You enjoy accurate data coHection wherever your workforce is located. 

Your employees will welcome access to data, such as hours worked, accrual 
balances, schedules, and ability to request time off. Your managers will have all 
the real-time da ta they need to make better decisions and keep a tight control 
over labor costs. Also reduced is the time employees spend on payroll-related 
matters, and administrative time that managers spend grappling with time and 
labor management questions and issues. 

The inf ornwtion cont.}in~d m this p!c,poS<1l is co,1tid~nl.h1I ~rlrl propr ieli"l'Y, and should nol be shared with md1v1duals outside of ynur comp:..n;o. ADP. h~ 
AOP logo. ADP Workfa,ce Now, AOP Strwnline, Pay h1··Pa,. Ente,prise eTI \[, St"ndO"t RUN Powe,e by ADP.ADP Vantage HCM a1d Alway, 
Desiyning ro~ Pe.1plo aro trariom3•ks of AOP, h\( All otilf:r u1a·ks are he premert)1 cf irrespective 0\-vn,e,5 Ci 2022 ADP. Inc All 19"\ts.rese·¥ed 



. -----.. .... 
""'""'···,,. : .- •- -----~ 

Requ.tttTUMOff X 

1--- ·I 

k-l,r--,tin2" 

: : c i7 Mc. 

1 • t 10 n 

TECHNOLOGY IN ACTIO N 

Automate the scheduling process 

ADP Workforce Now Essential Time helps companies to streamline their 
scheduling process and schedule adequate staffing coverage. By automating the 
scheduling process you: 
• Prevent unauthorized work 
• Highlight attendance issues before they impact morale and profitability 
• Manage groups that work rotating or variable shifts more easily 
• Identify potential over and understaffing issues 

Make better decisions with better information 

ADP Workforce Now Essential Time does more than supply you with accurate, 
real-time data. It makes data available in a variety of ways, providing you with 
actionable insights to make better decisions concerning your most important -
and most expensive - resource ... your people. 

ADP's automated time and labor management solution: 
• Uses one centralized collection, calculation, and t racking tool, so the 

information you need to access is always up-to-date 
• Provides you with daily visibility to costs and budget impacts 
• Enables you to share information with your managers, empowering them to 

help you lower your organization's labor costs 
Provides information to help you comply with government labor reporting 
requirements 

Improve productivity with self service 

Self service enables you to provide better service to your employees, while 
freeing your managers and administrators to focus on core business matters. 
Employees and supervisors can get the answers themselves. Authorized users will 
be able to view hours worked, schedules and paid time off balances on line 
24 hours a day prior to initiating time off requests. Supervisors and managers can 
readily access their own information, as well as that of employees who report to 
them so critica l requests such as time off can be acted upon in a timely manner. 
In addition, with online help at your fingertips, you and your employees can get 
answers to questions in minutes and quickly take advantage of new features as 
they become available. 

Employees: 

• Can access hours, schedules, and accrual balances without manager or 
HR interface 

• Use tools such as built-in templates to request time off or shift coverage 

Managers: 

• Gain easy access to scheduling, accrual balances, and total hours worked to 
make better and faster decisions in response to employee requests 

• Can spend more time fo cusing on core responsibilities 

Self-service can also significantly enhance communication and productivity within 
your organization by reducing the cost of HR transactions, improving employee 
satisfaction, and contributing to reduced employee turnover 

The mfom1J.tio11 contained in th\~ propo~l i!> confiderHh'll dr1d prop, 1el(lry. ,md 'Jhould nu l 01?' 5har~d with individuals outside of 70ur company. ADP, the 
ADP logo, ADP Workforce Now, ADP St,o:wline, Pw y·Pay, Entec rise e TIM[, StondOo . RUN Powered by ADP, ADP Vant:,g• fiCM 2nd Always 
Des.igning for Pe-ople .are trad mlrks of AD~. Inc All other m.1rks a~e I~ property of their ri!~ctive ~.-mers O 2022 ADP. Inc. All rignts reserved 



•- ,-

-- . 
----.A' ·- ·-

/' - .. :.~. 
,,., . ' 

I'. 
' \' 

t• -

TECHNOLOGY IN ACTION 

ADP Workforce Now Essential Time is the workforce management solution 
for your company 

When you select ADP Workforce Now Essential Time, you benefit from the 
stability and resources of a recognized industry leader. From implementing your 
system to del ivering ongoing support, ADP is constantly there for you. You'll 
benefit from a totally unified system with these added advantages: 

• Start using ADP Workforce Now Essential Time without a major capital 
investment 

• Because there is no long term cont ract , ADP has a powerful incentive to 
continually provide upgrades and service excellence 

• Unlike other time and attendance vendors, ADP doesn't require you to 
purchase equipment. Simply add hardware as your needs change 

• Data can be electronically transferred to and from your payroll service without 
having to re-key it - whether you have an ADP payroll product or not 

• With ADP payroll, employees can view their in-and-out punches directly on 
their ADP pay stubs 

• Upgrades and changes are always compatible with ADP payroll services 

By automating your time and attendance, ADP Workforce Now Essential Time 
gives your company a tremendous efficiency boost. You can save money through 
improved accuracy and reduced labor expenses, while accelerating your payroll 
process in the bargain. 

ADP Workforce Now Essential Time summarizes year-to-date attendance 
information such as tota l hours worked, vacation and sick time, plus exception 
information. This makes it a tremendous he lp for performance evaluations. It also 
compiles easy-to-retrieve records of employees' actual in-and-out punches. This 
helps you comply with government regulations, including the provisions of the 
FLSA, while eliminating the need to store most paper files. 

Reporting - Manage labor more effectively 

Workforce Now Essential Time provides valuable management reports so 
you can easily analyze labor costs and make better decisions. Standard 
reports can be scheduled in advance and include: 

Timecard reports 

Payroll reports 

Strategic 
reports 

Data 
analytics 

Review in and out times, as well as daily tota ls for 
each employee (supervisors and payroll 
administrators) 
Verify payroll totals by reviewing each employee's 
hours for the pay period 

Analyze absences and late punches for evaluations 
and performance reviews 

Helps ensure that you have appropriate coverage for 
each shift 

7 

j 

lh mformat ion contained m th1, prooos.:il is co'1fidenu.i! and orop1letar.•. and should not he Shared with 10Ulviduals outside of you~ comr ... 1ny ADP, the 
AOP logo, AOP Woil<forco Now, ADP S1 '"3mline. Pay b1 Pa1•, En1e, ris, eTIME, Slon<IOJ , RUN Powered by ADP. ADP V•n .-ge H(M '"" Alwoy, 
Oe.'iigrnng for People are tratlern,m< ~of ADP, he All other ri 1,1r,cs are he prcpertyof 1heir re.soective C\'1.'T"lerS t· 2022 ADP, fr1c. All rignts res.erv~d 



Sales Order 
Quote Number 
02-2022-413421 1 

Company Information 

Concho Valley Council of Governments 
2801 Loop 306 
Ste A 
San Angelo, TX 76904-6567 
United States 

Recurring Fees and Considerations 

Executive Contact 

Nancy lanuario 
Director of Finance 
nancy.ianuario@cvcog.org 
(325) 944-9666 
x{259} 

Number of Employees: 200 on Concho Valley Council of Governments , Company Code R3U 

r:i':l Monthly Processing 

Workforce Now Time and Attendance 
• Essential Time 

Count 

200 

Custom client integration between ADP modules 200 

@Total Annual Investment 

Workforce Now Services 

0 Other Considerations 
Implementation 
• Implementation for Workforce Now Time and Attendance 

Min 

$265.00 

• Implementation for Custom client integration between ADP modules 

@ Total Other Considerations 

Implementation and Setup 
Implementation Discount Value 

Estimated Total Net Implementation 

Base Rate 

$5.30 

$1.00 

Monthly 

$1,060.00 

$200.00 

Annual 

$12,720.00 

$2,400.00 

Total Annual 

$15,120.00 

Setup 

$1,000.00 
$5,500.00 

Total Setup 

$9,400.00 
($2,900.00) 

$6,500.00 



Sales Order 
Quote Number 
02-2022-413421 1 

Important Project and Billing Information 

Billing for Essential Time will begin on the date Essential Time is available for use by the CLIENT in a production environment. The 
billing count is based on all non-terminated employees in the Time Module. This count includes practitioners and supeivisors. 

Other 
ADP Fees for seivice frequency and method will follow that of the parent company code. 

Summary 

Estimated Annual Net Investment $15,120.00 Total Net 
Implementation: 

$6,500.00 

The ADP Seivices Listed on this Sales Order are provided at the prices set forth herein and in accordance with the ADP Master 
Seivices Agreement (or other similar agreement governing ADP's seivices), which shall include any appendix, exhibit, 
addendum, schedule or other similar document attached thereto or accompanying this Sales Order. By signing below you are 
acknowledging and agreeing to such terms and conditions and to the listed prices. 

ADP, Inc. Client: Concho Valley Council of Governments 

Signature: Signature: 

Name: Name: 

Title: Title: 

Date: Date: 



Sales Order 
Quote Number 
02-2022-413421 1 

Workforce Now Included Services 

Essential Time 
• Time Collection 
• PTO Management & Reporting 
• Request & Approval Workflows 
• ADP Portal with Customized Content 

• Rule Based Calculations 
• Scheduling 
• Mobile Access 
• Paid Time Off Accruals 

Thank you for your consideration 



ADP Workforce Now 
Master Services Agreement 

ADP, Inc.: (referred to herein as "ADP") 

One ADP Boulevard 
Roseland, New Jersey 07068 
United States 

Client: (referred to herein as "Client") 

Concho Valley Council of Governments 
2801 Loop 306 
Ste A 
San Angelo, TX 76904-6567, United States 

Attention 
Nancy lanuario 

(Effective Date) 

This Amendment modifies, amends, and supplements the terms and conditions of the ADP Workforce Now® Master Services Agreement, 
Global Master Services Agreement, or such equivalent terms and conditions or agreement between ADP and Client (the "Agreement''). AD_P and 
Client agree that ADP shall provide Client with the following additional services in accordance with the terms set forth herein and In the 
Agreement. It is understood that to the extent this Amendment modifies an Agreement that does not include any reference to annexes as set 
forth herein, references to such annexes are for illustration purposes only and do not define, limit, or otherwise affect the meaning of any 
provisions hereof or as set forth in the Agreement. The terms set forth in each annex listed below and attached hereto is incorporated into the 
Agreement in full by this reference as if set forth in full therein. 

f-N NEX C: ITIME AND ATTENDANCE SERVICES 

BY SIGNING BELOW, CLIENT ACKNOWLEDGES THAT THEY HAVE REVIEWED THE ENTIRE AGREEMENT INCLUDING THE TERMS 
AND CONDITIONS IN EACH ANNEX CORRESPONDING TO SERVICES PURCHASED PURSUANT TO THE SALES ORDER. 

If there is a conflict between this Amendment and the Agreement (or any amendment or addendum to the Agreement) or if the Agreement 
contained terms for services that were not purchased at the time the Agreement was executed, this Amendment shall govern with respect to the 
services listed above. The terms set forth herein replace in their entirety any duplicative terms set forth in the Agreement. 

ADP, Inc. CLIENT 

(Signature of Authorized Representative) (Signature of Authorized Representative) 

(Name - Please Print) (Name - Please Print) 

(Title) (Title) 

(Date) (Date) 

ADP Proprietary and Confidential 02-2022-413421.1 ADP Workforce Now 

Version 12 (08312020) Cover-2 



ADP Workforce Now I Annex C 
Time and Attendance Services 

1 ADP Time & Attendance Services. ADP will provide Client with those time & attendance services delivered via ADP Workforce 
Now ("ADP Time & Attendance Services"). ADP Time and Attendance Services are available for use in a limited number of 
countries outside the United States, although certain restrictions and requirements may apply. 

2 Time & Attendance Hardware. If ADP agrees to provide Client with the data collection devices (e.g. Timeclock, HandPunch, etc.) 
(the "Time & Attendance Hardware") as described in the Sales Order, the following terms will apply: 
2.1 If Client procures Time & Attendance Hardware, Client shall provide and maintain an installation environment (including all 

power, wiring and cabling required for installation) as specified in the manufacturer's product documentation and other written 
instructions provided to Client by ADP. 

2.2 Regarding Time & Attendance Hardware provided on a subscription basis only, Client shall not make any alterations or attach 
any devices thereto that are not provided by ADP, nor shall Client remove same from the place of original installation without 
ADP's prior consent. All right and title in the Time & Attendance Hardware procured on a subscription basis is, and at all 
times shall remain, that of ADP and a separate item of personal property of ADP, notwithstanding its attachment to other 
items or real property, and promptly upon termination of the ADP Time & Attendance Services, for any reason whatsoever, 
Client shall, at its expense, return such Time & Attendance Hardware in good condition, in accordance with ADP's 
instructions, normal wear and tear excepted. If such Time & Attendance Hardware is not promptly returned, Client agrees to 
purchase same at fair market value. Repairs and replacements required as a result of any of the following shall not be 
included in any maintenance services and shall be charged at ADP's then current rates: (i) damage, defects, or malfunctions 
resulting from misuse, accident, neglect, tampering, unusual physical, or electrical stress, or causes other than normal or 
intended use; (ii) failure of Client to provide and maintain a suitable installation environment: (iii) any alterations made to or 
any devices not provided by ADP attached to the Time & Attendance Hardware; and (iv) malfunctions resulting from use of 
badges or supplies not approved by ADP. 

2.3 Maintenance Fees. Maintenance services for the Time & Attendance Hardware apply automatically to Time & Attendance 
Hardware obtained under the subscription option (and any charges therefore are already included in the monthly time and 
attendance subscription fees). The costs for maintenance services for Time & Attendance Hardware under the purchase 
option are not included in the purchase price for such equipment; a separate annual maintenance fee applies. Client, under 
the purchase option, may terminate its receipt of maintenance services by providing written notice to ADP no less than thirty 
(30) days prior to the end of the then current annual coverage period. ADP is not required to rebate to Client any 
maintenance fees relating to a current or prior coverage period. (NOTE: If Client selects the purchase option but opts not to 
receive (or terminates) maintenance services hereunder by executing a waiver of maintenance services, any such services 
provided by ADP at Client's request will be subject to ADP's then current charges for such services.) No Time & Attendance 
Hardware maintenance is done at the Client site. Client shall bear all delivery/shipping costs and all risk of loss during 
shipmenUdelivery of Time & Attendance Hardware relating to maintenance services. 

2.4 Maintenance Services. ADP will maintain the Timeclock Equipment to be free from defects in material and workmanship as 
follows: Any parts found to be defective (except as specifically excluded below) shall be replaced or repaired, at ADP's or its 
designee's option, without charge for parts or labor, provided that the Time & Attendance Hardware has been properly 
installed and maintained by Client and provided that such equipment has been used in accordance with this Agreement or 
other accompanying documentation including, but not limited to, Client's Sales Order provided by ADP or its designee and 
has not been subject to abuse or tampering. 

2.5 Biometrics. 
2.5.1 Definitions. 

2.5.1.1 "Biometric Data" includes the information collected by timedocks and software that use finger and/or hand 
scan technology, which potentially may include Biometric Identifiers and Biometric Information. 

2.5.1.2 "Biometric Identifier" means a retina or iris scan, fingerprint, voiceprint, or scan of hand or face geometry. 
2.5.1.3 "Biometric Information" means any information, regardless of how it is captured, converted, stored, or 

shared, based on an individual's biometric identifier used to identify an individual. 
2.5.1.4 "Biometric Services" means services provided by ADP to Client via the use of timeclocks and software in 

connection with ADP's provision of Time & Attendance Services, to the extent such timeclocks or software 
collect, store or use Biometric Data. 

2.5.1.5 "Biometric User" means Client's employees or independent contractors who are requested or required by 
Client to use Biometric Services to record their attendance, hours worked or other work-related data. 

2.5.2 Additional Terms. Biometric Services are optional. In certain jurisdictions, there are laws and regulations that govern 
the collection, use, and retention of biometric information, which potentially may apply to Client's use of Biometric 
Services. To the extent Client elects to use Biometric Services, Client agrees to comply with all such laws and 
regulations in accordance with this Agreement and Section 3.2 of the Annex A. In the event Client is unwilling to 
comply with laws and regulations relating to Biometric Services, Client will be able to continue to use Time & 
Attendance Services without Biometric Services. The following terms and conditions apply to Biometric Services to 
the extent Biometric Services are part of the scope of Services. 
2.5.2.1 Requirements for Receipt of Biometric Services. Before any Client or Biometric User is permitted to use 

any Biometric Services in a jurisdiction where laws and regulations potentially govern such use, Client will 
comply with the following requirements, in addition to any other requirements imposed by potentially 
applicable law (to the extent there is a conflict between the requirements below and the requirements of 
potentially applicable law, Client will comply with potentially applicable law): 

2.5.2.2 Client Biometric Information Policy. Client will implement, distribute and make available to the public, a 
written policy establishing Client's policy with respect to the use of Biometric Data. Such policy will include: 

---- --·---··- ---------
ADP Proprietary and Confidential 
Version 11 (08312020) 

ADP Workforce Now 
C-1 



ADP Workforce Now I Annex C 
Time and Attendance Services 

2.5.2.2.1 a retention schedule and guidelines for permanently destroying Biometric Identifiers and Biometric 
Information; 

2.5.2.2.2 a commitment to destroy Biometric Data when the initial purpose for collecting or obtaining such 
identifiers or information has been satisfied or within 3 years of the individual's last interaction with 
Client, whichever occurs first; and any additional requirements as required by applicable law. 

2.5.2.3 Biometric User Notice and Consent. Client will provide notice and procure and retain appropriate consents 
or releases from Biometric Users in the manner and to extent the same are required by applicable law, 
including: 
2.5.2.3.1 notifying Biometric Users in writing that Client, its vendors, and/or the licensor of Client's time and 

attendance software are collecting, capturing, or otherwise obtaining Biometric Users' Biometric 
Data, and that Client is providing such Biometric Data to its vendors and the licensor of Client's 
time and attendance software; such notice will specify the purpose and length of time for which 
Biometric User's Biometric Data is being collected, stored, and used; 

2.5.2.3.2 obtaining a written release or consent from Biometric Users (or their legally authorized 
representative) authorizing Client, its vendors, and licensor of Client's time and attendance 
software to collect, store, and use the individual's Biometric Data for the specific purpose 
disclosed by Client, and authorizing Client to provide such Biometric Data to its vendors and the 
licensor of Client's time and attendance software; and if requested by ADP, providing to ADP 
copies of the required consents or releases collected and retained by Client, and/or certifying to 
ADP that such consents or releases have been obtained. 

2.5.2.4 Retention and Purging of Biometric Data. Client will work with ADP to ensure that Biometric Data is 
retained and purged in accordance with applicable law. To the extent necessary for the purging or deletion of 
such Biometric Data, Client agrees to provide timely notification to ADP of the termination of the employment, 
or the satisfaction of the purpose for which Biometric Data was collected with respect to any given Biometric 
User. ADP is not responsible for Client's failure to provide timely notification of the termination of the 
employment, or the satisfaction of the purpose for which Biometric Data was collected with respect to any 
given Biometric User. 

2.5.2.5 Storage of Biometric Data in Timeclocks. Client agrees that it shall use a reasonable standard of care 
consistent with potentially applicable law to store, transmit and protect from disclosure any paper or electronic 
biometric data collected in timeclocks. Such storage, transmission, and protection from disclosure shall be 
performed in a manner that is the same as or more protective than the manner in which Client stores, 
transmits and protects from disclosure other confidential and sensitive information, including personal 
information that can be used to uniquely identify an individual or an individual's account or property, such as 
genetic markers, genetic testing information, account numbers, PINs, driver's license numbers and social 
security numbers. 

2.5.3 Third Party Beneficiary. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in the Agreement, Client agrees that ADP and 
licensor of any applicable Biometric Services (and their respective successors and assigns) are third party beneficiaries 
of this Agreement solely as it relates to Biometric Services. 

2.5.4 Additional Tenninatlon Provisions for Biometric Services. If ADP determines that Client has failed to comply with 
any potentially applicable laws and regulations applicable to the Biometric Services, ADP may, in its sole disaetion and 
upon notice to Client, immediately suspend or terminate the Biometric Services. 

2.6 Third Party Software. Notwithstanding Sections 5 of Annex A, the Client shall be subject to the additional licensing or acces 
terms set forth at (i) www.adp.com/tlmterms.aspx if the Client has purchased ADP Workforce Now Enhanced Time or 
(ii) www.adp.com/wfrnlicenseterms if the Client has purchased ADP Workforce Manager Services. 

-----·----·-- ---

ADP Proprietary and Confidential 
Version 11 (08312020) 

ADP Workforce Now 
C-2 



July 14, 2022 

~ 
CONCHO VALLEY 

COUNCIL OF GOVERNMENTS 
5430 link Ro~d • San Angelo, TX 76904 

The CVCOG contracts for the Xerox C8070H units in the Ad min and 911 areas w ill expire on 10/02/2022 . 
These units are leased from Xerox. 

The Xerox C8070H un it in the Head Start area is on a short term lease from Total Office Solutions until 

the ordered C8170H unti l is avai lable from Xerox. 

We have received proposa ls to replace al l three un its wi th C8170H machines from both Xerox and Total 
Office Solutions. The terms of the contracts are sim ilar, but Xerox is slightly less expensive. 

Total Cost of Ownership comparison 

Lease Maint Tota l B&W rate 

pmt pmt base pmt B&W incl (overage) 

TOS $516.70 $177.00 $ 693.70 30,000 $ 0.0059 

Xero x $668 .70 $ - $ 668.70 25K ea $ 0.0051 

Total Life of 5 yr 

Historical usage monthly contract 

Color 9,079 $ 1,101.35 $ 66, 080.83 

B&W 17,162 $ 1,082 .70 $ 64,962.14 

The current situation allows for a di rect comparison of serv ice qua lity. 

Probable 

Color rate Monthly 

$ 0.0449 $ 407 .65 

$ 0.0456 $ 414.00 

Total Office Solutions 

Xerox 

On Ju ne 9th , we call ed Xerox to report an issue with wrinkled output on the Admin area mach ine. Xerox 
first attempted to have a COG employee walk through troubleshoot ing, t hen schedu led a technician to 
come out a few days la ter . The technician arrived with the wrong model part, and the correct part had 
to be ordered. The part was shipped direct ly to COG, and an employee installed it on June 12 th . If it had 

required a technician to install, it wou ld likely have taken a few more days. 

On June 16, we called Total Office Solutions to report the Head Sta rt area machine was giving an error of 
"toner waste cartridge full" and would not operate . TOS sent a salesman over with the correct part and 
the unit was operational within a few hours. 

Due to the negligible di fference in price, the substantial difference in response times and the ability to 
support a loca lly owned business, the Procurement Department would like to recommend the Total 
Office Solution contract to replace al l t hree Xerox machines. 

Amy Bri ley 
Purchaser I 



STATE SALARY SCHEDULE 

• State Salary Schedule due to Governor's Office August 17, 2021. Salary Schedule must contain: 

o Classification for each position and specify the salaries for that position 

o All levels reflected must show Min, Mid, and Max, on each position 

o Salary comparison must not exceed the State Salary Schedule 



Changes to State Salary Schedule as compared to previous approved schedule: 

• Page 1, Salary Schedule Structure 
o Salary Group, Exempt position (Executive Director) 

• Page 2 

• Moved Federal Salary Cap from $199,300 to $205,700, per Federal regulations 

posted January 2, 2022 

o Starting with Page 2 State Salary Comparability schedule: 

• Page 3 

• The State changed Class Code 1605 to 827, moving from 828, lowering the 

amount paid for that Class Code 

o Error on previous schedule for the State Min on Class Code 1584 corrected. No effect 

on CVCOG salary schedule 

o On the Human Resource Generalist Specialist position: 

• Page 4 

• The State changed the Salary Group associated with Class Code 1586, from 822 

to 823, increasing the pay for this Class Code 

• The State changed the Salary Group associated with Class Code 1588, from 823 

to 825, increasing the pay for this Class Code 

o On the Purchaser position: 

• Page 5 

• The State eliminated the 819 Salary Group associated with a PurchaserClass 

Code 1934. The Salary Group is now 820 

• Due to the State change above, Level IV was _moved to 822 Salary Group for 

Class Code 1935 

o Class Code associated with Programmer/IT Auditor was corrected to reflect 0244. 

CVCOG currently not reflecting staff in this position 

• Page 6 
o The State changed Class Code 1605 to 827, moving from 828, lowering the amount paid 

for that Class Code 

o Assistant Executive Director being moved to Program Director level. Previously under 

Assistant Program Director level. 

o Addressing/GIS Specialist under CVCOG had a separate Salary Group schedule. In fY 22-

23, position moved to follow CVCOG Salary Group A or 8 schedule. 

• Page 7 

o Changed Manager title from Homeland Security/Criminal Justice to Public Safety 

o Changed Coordinator title from Homeland Security/Criminal Justice to Public Safety 

o New position added, Public Safety Program Specialist, for Radio Infrastructure Project 

• Page 8 
o The State changed Class Code 1605 to 827, moving from 828, lowering the amount paid 

for that Class Code 

• Page 9 
o Drivers changed from CDL/Non-CDL to Demand Response or Fixed Route 

• Page 13 and 14 
o Head Start Center Directors changed to reflect correct title of Site Supervisor 



• Page 16, CVCOG Salary Group A 
o Due to employee raises and market hiring rates putting CVCOG staff over the CVCOG 

Salary Group A schedule, Salary Group A04 Min was changed to match the State rate. 

o The percentage between each Salary Group was changed from 5% to 4%. With the 

change made to the beginning Salary Group we did not want to employee raises to be 

higher than Programs could afford. 

• Page 17, CVCOG Salary Group B 
o Due to employee raises and market hiring rates putting CVCOG staff over the CVCOG 

Salary Group B schedule, Salary Group 810 Min was changed to match the State rate. 

o The percentage between each Salary Group remained at 5%, as there was no impact to 

the current staff pay budgeted by the Programs. 

• Page 20, Head Start Administrative Salary Schedule 
o The Head Start program received a 2.28% COLA which permanently moved the salary 

schedule, as required by the awarding agency. 

• Page 21. Head Start Service Provider Salary Schedule 
o The Head Start program received a 2.28% COLA which permanently moved the salary 

schedule, as required by the awarding agency. 

• Skill-Base Pay Certifications schedule Page 1 thru 5 
o Skill-Base Pay Certifications schedule in a new schedule this year. Training and Pay are 

subject to budget availability. 

o The Certification schedule identifies each program, the certifications available, and if 

offered, the associated payout for the certification. 

o This schedule will assist Program Directors, Employees, and the Human Resource 

Department in identifying certifications and the standard payout associated with the 

certifications. 



CONCHO VALLEY COUNCIL OF GOVERNMENTS SALARY SCHEDULE STRUCTURE 

RATE STRUCTURE 

Rate Structure is based on tenure in current position, comparable experience, job band market, and/or received meri ts. Rate is subject to available funding. 

PLAN LEVELS 

Level I is for 0-3 Years - Level requires littl e or no previous t raining or experience. Work is usua lly performed under close supervision. 

Level II is for 3-10 Years or New Hire with required Certi fica tions - Level requires previous training or experience and specific sk ill. Work is 

usually performed under moderate supervi sion . 

Level Ill is for 10-15 Years and/or Level requires a high leve l of responsibility, training, experience and competence. Work is usua lly performed 

under minimal supervision . 

Level IV is for 15+ Years and/or Level requires a high level of responsib ility, training, experience and competence. Work is usu ally performed 

under minimal supervision. 

M ERIT SALARY INCREASE 

Merit salary increa se consists of an increase in the employee's base salary within the range of the employee's sa lary group. Classified employees 

whose job performance and productivity in their current position is consisten tly above what is norma lly expected and requ ired . 

RATE ADJUSTMENT 

Rate adjustments are made based on job performance, level of responsibi lity, direct ly related experience and internal equity. Consideration is given to 

the job band market. Job band is based on the posi t ion descrip tion, The posit ion descript ion is used to determine fair labor market rate for the position. 

Intern al equity is the comparison of posit ions within the organiza tion. Comparison is not based on titl e, but is ba sed on tasks performed, experience and 

level of respon si bil ity . 

SALARY GROUP 

Salary Group A - Includes paraprofessional, administrative support, maintenance, service, and technician posi t ions 

Salary Group B - Includes mainly pro fessional and managerial positions 

Salary Group CVTD - Includes transi t and in terci ty bus drivers and dispatchers 

Salary Group HS Admin - Includes Head Start Administrative staff 

Sa lary Group HS Centers - Includes Head Start service providers at Head Start Centers 

Exempt - This is for the Executive Director sala ry which is set by the CVCOG Governing Board. Care fu l considera tion should be given to 

the Federal Salary Cap. As of January 2, 2022, th e sa lary cap is $205,700 

Co1uho Vall y Council of Governm<!nts 

rv 22-23 

Statl• Sa lary Comparison Report 

Sal;u v StfUChJ f(' 

P,1cc 1 of 22 



CONCHO VALLEY COUNCIL OF GOVERNMENTS STATE SALARY COMPARABI LITY 

FY 2022-2023 

Salary 
De(!artment Po sit ion Group 

Execut ive Executive Director 

Administriltive Support 

Director or finance 

Level I B26 
Leve! II 827 

Level Ill B28 

Level IV B29 

Assistant Director of Finance/Procurement 

Level I B24 

Level II B25 

level Ill B26 

Level IV 827 
Fina nee Manager 

Leve l ! B24 
Level II 825 

Level Ill B26 

level IV B27 
Finance Speciali st 

Leve l I B14 

Level II 815 
l evel Ill 817 
Leve! IV B19 

Accou nting Technician/Receptionist 

Level I All 
Level II Al3 
Level 111 B14 

l evel IV BJ5 
Record Retention Officer 

level I 014 

Level II 816 
Level Ill BJ8 
Level IV B20 

Administrative Assistant 

Level I A09 
Level II Al 1 

Leve! Ill A13 
Level IV Al5 

Receptionist/Procurement Clerk 

Level I All 
Level II AB 

Leve! Ill B!4 

Level IV B15 

Class 
Code 

Exempt 

1620 

1621 
1622 

1623 

1602 

1603 
1604 

1605 

1602 

1603 
1604 

1605 

1012 
1014 
1016 

1018 

1000 

1002 
10!2 

10]4 

7405 

7407 

7409 
74] l 

0150 

0152 

0154 

0 156 

1000 
1002 

!012 
1014 

Number 

of CVCOG 
Positions Min 

$ 70,000.00 

s 69,415.00 $ 
$ 72,885.75 $ 

s 76,530.04 $ 
$ 80,356.54 s 

$ 49,320.10 $ 

s 51,786.10 s 
s 69,415 .00 s 
$ 72 ,885 .75 s 

s 49,320.10 

5 51,786.10 

s 69,415 .00 

s 72,885 .75 

s 14.56 

s 1$.28 

s 16.85 $ 

s 18.58 s 

s 11.95 

s 12.93 

$ 14.56 
$ 15.28 

s 14.56 

s 16.05 

$ 17.69 s 
s 19.51 s 

s 11.05 s 
s 11.95 $ 
$ 12.93 $ 

s 13.98 s 

$ 11.95 s 
s 12.93 $ 

s )4 .56 s 
s 15.28 s 

Ccincho V.all('V Council nl Gnvemm('nU 

FV'l l3 
Si dl e S.t ldl)' Ccm1111U.lbi11 111 

CVCOG CVCOG State State State 

Mid Max Min Mid Max 

s 205,700.00 s 70,000.00 s 345,250.00 

85,065.72 s 100,716.51 s 69,415.00 s 93,406.00 s 117,397.00 

89,3 19.01 $ 105,752.34 s 76,356.00 $ 102,747 .00 $ !29,)37.00 

93,784.96 $ 111,039.96 s 83,991 .00 s 113,022 .00 s 142,052.00 

98,474 .21 $ 116,591.95 s 92,390.00 s 124,323.00 $ 156,256.00 

60,440.10 $ 71,560.16 s 59,004 .00 s 77,862 .00 s 96,720.00 

63,462 .11 s 75,138.16 s 63,104.00 s 83,298.00 s 103,491.00 

85,065 .72 $ 100,7 16.51 s 69,415.00 s 93,406.00 $ 117,397.00 

89,319 .01 s 105,752.34 s 76,356.00 s 102,747.00 s 129, 137.00 

60,440.10 7 1,560.16 s 59,004 .00 $ 77,862 .00 s 96,720.00 

63,462.1] s 75,138.16 s 63,104.00 s 83,298.00 $ 103,491.00 

85,065.72 s 100,716.51 s 69,415.00 s 93,406.00 s 117,397.00 

89,319 .0 1 s 105,752.34 76,356.00 102,747 .00 s 129,137.00 

17.84 s 21.12 14.97 19.30 s 23 .62 

18.73 $ 22 .18 ]5 .85 s 20.44 s 25.02 

20.65 s 24 .45 J 7.78 s 22 .93 s 28.08 

22.77 s 26.96 s 20.31 26.73 s 33.15 

14.65 s 17.34 s 12.66 16.27 s 19.88 

15.84 s 18.76 s 14 .15 18.23 s 22.30 

17.84 s 21.12 s ]4 .97 19.30 s 23.62 

18.73 $ 22 .18 ] 5.85 20.44 s 25.02 

17.84 s 21.12 s 14.97 s 19.30 s 23.62 

19.67 $ 23.29 s ] 6.79 s 21 .65 s 26.50 

21.68 $ 25.67 s ) 9.00 s 24 .99 s 30.99 

23.91 s 28.30 s 21.71 s 28.59 s 35.48 

13.54 $ 16.03 $ 11 .43 s 14.10 s 16.76 

14.65 $ 17 .34 s 12.66 s 16.27 s 19.88 

15.84 $ 18.76 s 14 .15 s 18.23 $ 22.30 

17.14 s 20.29 s 15.85 s 20.44 s 25.02 

14.65 $ 17 .34 s 12 .66 16.27 $ 19.88 

15.84 s 18.76 s 14.15 s 18.23 s 22.30 

17.84 s 21.12 s 14.97 $ 19.30 s 23.62 

18.73 s 22 .18 s 15.85 s 20.44 $ 25.02 

,l 0122 



CONCHO VALLE¥ COUNCIL OF GOVERNMENTS STATE SALARV COMPARABILITV 

FY 2022-2023 

Sala ry 
Depa,tment Position Group 

Human Resources Services 

Direct or of Human Resources 

Level I 826 

level II 827 
Level 11 1 828 

Level IV 829 
Human Resource Gcneralis 1 Supcrvlsor 

Level I 820 

Level II 821 

Level Ill B23 

Level IV B25 
Human Resource Coordinator/Payroll 

Level I B15 

Level II 817 

Leve l Il l B19 
Level IV 621 

Human Resou rce Assistant 

Level I B12 

Level 11 B14 

Level Ill 816 
Leve l IV B18 

Arfmini s. l r.:itive Ass1s lc1 nt 

Level I A09 

Level II All 

Level Il l A13 
Level IV A15 

Class 
Code 

1620 

1621 

1622 

1623 

1583 

1584 

1586 

1588 

1291 

1292 

1293 

1294 

1727 

1729 

1731 

1733 

0150 

0152 

0154 

0156 

Numbe r 

of CVCOG 

Positions Min 

$ 69,415.00 s 
s 72,885.75 s 
$ 76,530.04 $ 

s 80,356.54 s 

$ 19.51 s 
s 20.48 s 

22.58 $ 

24 .90 $ 

15.28 s 
16.85 $ 

18.58 s 
20.48 s 

13.20 

14.56 

s 16.05 

s 17.69 

$ 11 .05 

s 11.95 

$ 12.93 

$ 1398 

Coru::ho V,11!~ Counol nf G01;',e1nmf!nt\ 

n22'2l 
S.l•le~l•ry (Of!llUloibd1ty 

CVCOG CVCOG State Sta te State 

Mid Max Min Mid Max 

85,065.72 s 100,716.51 69,4 15.00 s 93,406 .00 $ 117,397.00 

89, 319.01 s 105,752.34 76,356.00 s 102,747.00 s 129,137.00 

93,784 .96 $ 111,0 39 .96 83,991.00 $ 113,022.00 $ 142,052.00 

98,474.21 s 116,591.95 92,390.00 $ 124,323.00 $ 156,256.00 

23 .91 s 28 .30 21 .71 s 28.59 s 35 .48 

25.10 s 29.72 23 21 s 30.58 s 37.96 

27.67 s 32.77 2G.53 s 34 99 s 43 .46 

30.51 $ 36.12 s 30,.34 s 39 57 $ 49 76 

18.73 $ 22.18 15.85 s 20.44 s 25.02 

20.65 $ 24.45 17.78 $ 22.93 s 28.08 

22.77 $ 26.96 20.31 s 26.73 s 33 .15 

25 .10 s 29.72 23.21 s 30.58 s 37 .96 

16.18 s 19.16 s 13.38 s 17.22 s 21.06 

17.84 s 21 .12 s 14.97 s 19.30 $ 23 .62 

19.67 $ 23 .29 s 16.79 s 21.65 $ 26.50 

21.68 s 25.67 s 19.00 s 24.99 s 30.99 

13.54 $ 16.03 $ 11 .43 s 14.10 $ 16.76 

14.65 s 17.34 s 12.66 s 16.27 s 19.88 

15.84 s 18.76 $ 14.15 s 18.23 s 22.30 

17.14 s 20.29 s ] 5.85 s 20.44 25.02 

l ain 



CONCHO VALLEY COUNCIL OF GOVERNMENTS STATE SALARY COMPARAB ILITY 
FY 2022-2023 

Number 

Salary Class of CVCOG CVCOG CVCOG State State State 
De~artment Po sition Group Code Positions Min Mid Max Min Mid Max 

Procurement Services 

Contract/Purchase r/Open Records Manager 

level I B21 1984 s 20.48 s 25.10 $ 29.72 s 23.21 $ 30.58 s 37.96 
Level II B23 1986 $ 22.58 $ 27.67 s 32.77 $ 26.53 $ 34.99 $ 43.46 

Leve l Ill B25 1960 s 24.90 $ 30.51 $ 36. 12 s 30.34 s 40.05 s 49.76 
Level IV B27 1962 $ 35.04 s 42.94 $ 50.84 s 36.71 s 49.40 $ 62 .09 

Procurement Manager/Trainer 

Level I 820 1558 s 40,575.77 s 49,724.2 2 s 58,872.72 s 45,158.00 s 59,473.00 s 73,788.00 

Level II 822 1559 $ 44,734 .78 $ 54,820.95 $ 64,907. 17 $ 51,61 4 00 s 68,047.00 $ 84,479 .00 
Level 111 824 1560 s 49,320.10 s 60,440.10 s 71,560. 16 s 59,004.00 s 77,862.00 $ 96,720 .00 

Level IV 826 1561 s 69,415.00 s 85,065.72 s 100,716.51 s 69,415.00 s 93,406.00 s 117,397.00 
Purchaser 

Level I 816 1932 16.05 19.67 23.29 s 16.79 $ 21.65 s 26.50 
level II 818 1933 17.69 21.68 25.67 $ 19.00 s 24 .99 s 30 .99 

Leve.I Il l B20 1934 19.51 23.9 1 28.30 $ 21.71 $ 28.59 $ 35.48 
Level IV 822 1935 21.51 26.36 31.21 s 24 .81 s 32.H s 40.61 

Program Coordinator 

Level I B12 1930 13 .20 s 16.18 19.16 s 13 .38 $ 17 22 s 21.06 
l evel II B14 1931 14.56 s 17.84 21.12 $ 14 .97 $ 19.30 $ 23.62 

Level Ill B16 1932 16.05 s 19.67 s 23.29 $ 16.79 $ 21.65 $ 26.50 
Level IV B18 1933 17.69 s 21.68 $ 25.67 s 19.00 s 24.99 s 30 .99 

Cnnc ho Valli-y Council ol Govemm en,,. 

FV 12 1'l 
.')late Sii lary Comp Moib1l1ly .i of 12 



CONCHO VALLEY COU NCIL OF GOVERNMENTS STATE SALARY CO M PARABILITY 

FY 2022-2023 

Salary 
Department Posi t ion Grou p 

Network/Information Technology Services 

Director of Information Tcchnology•lnfrastructure 

Leve l I B26 
Level II B27 

Level Ill 828 
Level IV B29 

Computer Opera tine Specia list 

Level I B12 
Level II B14 

Level 111 B16 

Level IV 818 
System s Support Spec,al, st 

Level I 813 
Level II 815 

Level Ill 817 
Level IV 8 19 

Syste ms Analyst 

Level I 816 

Level II 818 
Level Il l 820 
Level IV 822 

Programmer/IT Audi tor 

Level I 819 
Level II B21 

Level Ill 823 
Level IV 825 

Class 
Cod e 

1620 

1621 

1622 

1623 

0260 

0261 

0262 

0263 

0228 

0229 

0230 

023 1 

0252 

0253 
0254 

0255 

0241 

0242 
0243 
0244 

Numbe r 

o f CVCOG 

Posit ions Min 

s 69,4 15.00 s 
s 72,885.75 $ 

s 76,530.04 $ 
$ 80,356.54 $ 

$ 13.20 5 
5 14.56 s 
5 16.05 s 
s 17.69 s 

2 

s 13.86 s 
s 15.28 s 
s 16.85 s 
5 18.58 s 

s 16.05 s 
s 17.69 $ 

s 19.51 s 
5 21.51 s 

18.58 $ 
20.48 5 

5 22.58 s 
s 24 .90 s 

Concho V•llcy Counol ol Govt1nmen1\ 

FY 12 2l 
St ille 5.1li1ryCompa1,1h1hty 

CVCOG CVCOG State State State 

Mid Max M in Mid Max 

85,065 .72 s 100,716.5 1 s 69,415 .00 s 93,406.00 s 117,397.00 

89,319.01 s 105,752.34 $ 76,356.00 $ 102,747 .00 $ 129,137.00 

93.784 .96 $ 111,039.96 $ 83,991 .00 s 113,02 2.00 $ 142,052.00 

98,474 .21 $ 116,591.95 $ 92,390.00 $ 124,323 .00 s 156,256.00 

16.18 s 19.16 s 13.38 s 17.22 s 21 .06 
17.84 s 21.12 $ 14,97 $ 19.30 s 23.62 
19.67 s 23.29 s 16.79 s 21.65 s 26.50 

21 .68 s 25.67 s 19,00 s 24 ,99 $ 30.99 

16.99 s 20.12 s 14.15 s 18.23 s 22.30 
18,73 s 22.18 s 15.85 s 20.44 s 25.02 
20,65 s 24.45 s 17,78 s 22.93 s 28.08 
22 .77 s 26.96 s 20.31 s 26 .73 s 33.15 

19,67 s 23.29 s 16,79 21.65 s 26.50 

21.68 s 25.67 s 19.00 24 .99 $ 30.99 

23 .91 s 28.30 $ 21 .71 28.59 s 35.48 

26 .36 s 31.21 s 24 .81 32 .7 1 s 40.61 

22 .77 26.96 $ 20.31 26.73 s 33.15 
25.10 5 29.72 s 23 .21 s 30.58 5 37.96 
27 .67 s 32.77 s 26.53 s 34.99 s 43.46 

30.51 s 36.12 s 30.34 5 40.05 5 49.76 

:.or 11. 



CONCHO VALLEY COUNCIL OF GOVERNMENTS STATE SALARY COMPARABILITY 

FY 2022-2023 

Salary 
Department Position Group 

Regional Services/Economic Developm ent District 

Solid Waste Coordinator/Loa n Officer/Finance Mgr 

Level I B24 

Level II 825 
Level Ill B26 
Level IV B27 

Assistant Executive Director 

Level I B26 
Level II B27 

Level Ill B2 8 
Level IV B29 

Regional Services Grant Wri ter (VISTA) 

Level I B17 

Level II 819 
Level 111 B21 
Level IV 823 

CVEDD Revolving Loan Specialist 

Level I 817 
level 11 B19 

Level Ill 821 
Level IV B23 

Address ing/GIS Special ist 

Level I B18 
Level II B20 

Level Ill 822 
Level IV B24 

Class 
Code 

1602 

1603 

1604 

1605 

1620 

1621 

1622 

1623 

0516 

0517 

0518 

0519 

1260 

1261 
1262 

1263 

0270 

0271 
0272 

0273 

Number 

of CVCOG 
Positions Min 

s 49,320.10 s 
s 51,786.10 $ 

s 69,415.00 s 
s 72,885 .75 s 

s 69,415.00 s 
5 72,885.75 5 
5 76,530.04 s 
s 80,356.54 s 

5 16.85 s 
5 18.58 s 
5 20.48 s 
s 22.58 

s 16.85 

s LB.SB 

s 20.48 5 
s 22 .58 s 

s 17.69 s 
s 19.51 s 
s 21.51 s 
5 23 .71 s 

CantM V-'!lry Couru::11 () I Gf1V1""10ml'nll 

nnn 
i l ,Ut' \ .. t;uy Cn111p.1,r.1hU1fy 

CVCOG CVCOG State State State 

Mid Max Min Mid Max 

60,440.10 $ 71,560.16 $ 59,004.00 s 77,862.00 $ 96,720.00 

63,462 .11 $ 75,138.16 s 63,104 .00 s 83,298.00 s 103,491.00 

85,065.72 s 100,716.51 $ 69,415 .00 s 93,406.00 s 117,397.00 

89,319.01 s 105,752.34 s 76,35G.OO s 102,747.00 s 129,137.00 

85,065 .72 5 100,716.51 s 69,415 .00 s 93,406.00 s 117,397.00 

89,319.01 5 105,752.34 s 76,356.00 s 102,747.00 s 129,137.00 

93,784 .96 s 111,039.96 s 83,991.00 s 113,022.00 s 142,052.00 

98,474.21 s 116,591.95 s 92,390.00 s 124,323.00 $ 156,256.00 

20.65 s 24.45 $ 17.78 s 22 .93 s 28.08 

22.77 s 26.96 s 20.31 s 26.73 s 33.15 

25.10 5 29.72 5 23 .21 30.58 s 37.96 

27.67 5 32.77 s 26.53 34 .99 5 43.46 

20.65 5 24.45 s 17.78 22 .93 s 28.08 

22.77 s 26.96 s 20.31 26.73 s 33.15 

25.10 s 29 .72 s 23 .21 30.58 s 37.96 

27.67 $ 32 .77 $ 26.53 34.99 s 43.46 

21.68 s 25 .67 s 19.00 $ 24 .99 s 30.99 

23.91 s 28.30 $ 21 .71 s 28.59 s 35.48 

26.36 31.21 5 24 .81 32.71 s 40.61 

29.06 s 34.40 s 28.37 37.43 s 46.50 

l.of 12 



CONCHO VALLEY COUNCIL OF GOVERNMENTS STATE SALARY COMPARABILITY 

FY 2022·2023 

Salary 
Departme-nt Position Group 

911 Emergency Communications 

Di rector of Public Safe ty 

level I B26 

Level II B27 

Level Ill B28 

Level IV B29 
911 Program Mani1gcr 

Level I B22 

l evel II 824 

Level Ill 826 

level IV 827 
91 1 GIS Specialis l • Lead 

Level I 820 

level II 822 

Level Ill 824 

Level IV B26 
911 GI$ Specialist 

Level I B18 

Level II 620 
Level Il l B22 

Level IV B24 

Crimina l Jus tice/Homeland Security Prog l'a m 

Criminal Justice lnstrucror~ Training Specialist 

Level I CJOl 

level II CJ02 

Level Ill CJ03 
Level IV CJ04 

Pubflc Safety Manager 

Level I B22 

Level II 823 

Level Ill B24 

level IV 62S 
Pub he Sarety Coordinator 

Level I 8 17 

level II B18 

level Ill B19 

Level IV B20 
Pubhc Safely Program S.p.eci:alist 

Level I B17 

Level II B18 
Level 111 B19 

Level IV 820 

Class 

Code 

1620 

162 1 

1622 

1623 

0272 

0273 

02 74 

! 62] 

0271 

0272 

0273 

0274 

0270 

0271 

0272 

0273 

1783 

1784 

1785 

1786 

1600 

1601 

1602 

1603 

1570 

1S71 

1572 

1573 

1570 

157[ 

1572 

1573 

Number 

of CVCOG 

Posi tion s Min 

s 69,4 15.00 s 
s 72,885.75 $ 

$ 76,530.04 s 
$ 80,356.54 s 

2 
$ 44 ,734 .78 s 
s 49,320.10 s 
$ 69,4 15.00 $ 
$ 72,885.75 $ 

s 19.51 $ 

s 21.51 s 
s 23.71 s 
s 33 .37 s 

s 17.69 s 
s 19.51 $ 

21.51 s 
23.71 $ 

s 36,976,00 s 
5 42,244.00 $ 

s 48,278 .00 s 
s 55,184.00 

$ 44,734.78 

s 46,971.52 

s 49,320.10 

s 51 ,786.10 

s 16.85 s 
s 17.69 

s 18 .58 

s 19.51 

s 16.85 s 
s 17.69 $ 
s 18.58 $ 

s 19.51 $ 

(rio(l,c, V.tlky (m1M£ll 1ll 6aVt' lllml'nh 

f't 1l 1l 
S1.i.rn °!.,ll,it J' Cnmp;,1.1 b1hl'I 

CVCOG CVCOG Stilte State State 

Mid Max Min Mid Max 

85,065 .72 s 100,716.51 s 69,415 .00 s 93,406.00 s 11 7,397 .00 

89,319.01 s 105,752.34 76,356.00 s 102, 74 7.00 s 129, 137.00 

93,784 .96 s 111,039.96 83,991.00 s l 13,022.00 s 142,052 .00 

98,474 .21 s 116,591.95 92,390.00 s 124,323.00 s 156,256.00 

54,820.95 s 64,907. 17 51,614 .00 s 68,047.00 s 84,479 .00 

60,440.10 $ 71,560.16 59,004 .00 s 77,862.00 s 96,720.00 

85.065.72 $ 100,7 16.5 1 69,415.00 s 93,406.00 s 117,397.00 

89,319.0 ] $ 105,7 52 .34 76,356.00 s 102,747.00 s 129,137.00 

23.91 .$ 28.30 s 21.7 1 s 28.59 s 35.48 

26.36 s 31 .21 s 24 .8 1 $ 32.71 s 40 .61 

29.06 s 34.40 s 28.37 s 37.43 s 46.50 

40.90 s 48.42 s 33.37 44.9 1 s 56.44 

21.68 s 25.67 s 19.00 $ 24 .99 30.99 

23 .91 s 28.30 21.7 1 s 28.59 35 .48 

26.36 s 31.21 s 24.8 1 s 32.7 1 40.61 

29 .06 s 34.40 $ 28.37 $ 37 .43 46 .50 

!i.1,1 1~ S:lliliry Group 

47,688.00 s 58,399.00 s 36,97600 s 47,68800 58,399 .00 "" 
55,602 .00 $ 68,960.00 s 42,244.00 $ 55,602 .00 68,960.00 ... 
63,616.00 s 78,953.00 s 48, 278.00 s 63,61 6.00 s 78,953.00 8l l 

72,789.00 s 90,393.00 $ 55,184.00 $ 72,789.00 s 90,393 .00 .,, 
54,820.95 s 64,907. 17 $ 51,614.00 s 68,047 .00 $ 84,479.00 

57,562.00 s 68, 152.53 s 55, 184 .00 s 72,789.00 s 90,393 .00 

60,440.10 $ 71 ,560.16 s 59,004.00 $ 77,862 .00 s 96,720.00 

63,462 .11 75, 138.16 $ 63,104.00 $ 83,298.00 s 103,491.00 

20.65 24 .45 s 17.78 s 22.93 s 28.08 

21.68 25.67 s 19.00 s 24 .99 s 30.99 

22.77 26.96 s 20.31 s 26.73 s 33. 15 

23.91 28.30 s 21.71 s 28.59 35.48 

20 .65 24 .45 s 17.78 s 22.93 s 28.08 

21.68 s 25.67 s 19.00 s 24.99 s 30.99 

22.77 s 26.96 $ 20.31 s 26.73 $ 33 .15 

23.91 s 28.30 s 21.71 s 28.59 s 35.48 

7of 22 



CONCHO VAl lEY COUNCIL OF GOVERNMENTS STATE SALARY COMPARABILITY 

FY 202-2-2023 

Number 

Salary Class of CVCOG CVCOG CVCOG State State State 
Oe~artment Po'iition Group Code Positions Min Mid Max Min Mid Max 

CV Transit Dis trict 

Director of Transportation 

Level I B26 1620 s 69,4 15.00 s 85,065 .72 100,716.51 s 69,415.00 $ 93,406.00 $ 11 7, 397.00 

Level II 827 1621 $ 72,885.75 $ 89,319.01 105,752.34 s 76,356.00 s 102,747.00 $ 129,137.00 

Level Il l 828 1622 $ 76,530.04 $ 93,784.96 111,039.96 $ 83,991.00 $ 113,022 .00 $ 142,052.00 

Level IV 829 1613 s 80,356.54 s 98,4 74 .21 116,591.95 s 92,390.00 s 124,323.00 $ 156,256.00 

Assistant Director of Transportation 

Level I B24 1602 s 49,320.10 s 60,440.10 71,560.16 s 59,004.00 s 77,862.00 $ 96,720.00 

Level II B25 1603 s 51,786.10 s 63,462.11 75,138.16 s 63,104.00 s 83,298.00 $ 103,491.00 

Level Ill B26 1604 s 69,415 .00 s 85,065 .72 s 100,716.51 $ 69,415.00 s 93,406.00 s 117,397.00 

Level IV 827 1605 s 72,885 .75 s 89,319.01 s 105,752.34 s 76,356.00 102,747.00 s 129,137.00 

Finance Manager/ Project Manager 

Level I B24 1602 $ 49,320.10 s 60,440.10 s 71,560.16 $ 59,004.00 $ 77,862.00 s 96,720.00 

Level II B25 1603 s 51,786.10 s 63,462.11 s 75,138.16 $ 63,104.00 s 83,298.00 $ 103,491.00 

Level Ill B26 1604 s 69,415 .00 s 85,065.72 $ 100,716.51 $ 69,415.00 s 93,406.00 s 117,397.00 

Level IV B2 7 1605 $ 72,885.75 $ 89,319.0 1 s 105,75234 $ 76,356.00 s 102,747.00 $ 129,137.00 

Regional Coordina tor/Grant Writer/Office Administrator 

Level I B17 1570 $ 35,050.87 s 42,953.65 $ 50,856.47 $ 36,976.00 s 47,688.00 s 58,399.00 

Level II B18 1571 s 36,803.42 $ 45,101.33 $ 53,399.29 s 39,521.00 s 51,985.00 s 64,449.00 

Level Ill Bl9 1$72 $ 38,643.59 $ 47,3$6.40 s 56,069.25 $ 42,244.00 $ 55,602.00 s 68,960.00 

Level IV B20 1573 s 40,575.77 s 49,724.22 s 58,872.72 s 45,158.00 s 59,473.00 s 73,788.00 

Research Specialist 

Level I B17 0602 s 16.85 $ 20.65 s 24.45 s 17.78 s 22.93 s 28 .08 

Leve l II B19 0604 s 18.58 s 22 .77 $ 26.96 $ 20.31 26.73 s 3315 

Level Ill B2 1 0606 s 20.48 s 25.10 s 29.72 s 23.21 30.58 s 37.96 

level IV B23 0608 s 22.58 s 27.67 s 32.77 s 26.53 34.99 s 43.46 
Finance Specialist 1 

Level I B14 1012 14.56 s 17.84 s 21 .12 $ 14.97 19.30 s 23.62 

level II Bl S 1014 15.28 s 18.73 s 22.18 s 1585 s 20.44 s 25 .02 

Level Ill 817 1016 16.85 s 20,65 s 24.45 $ 17.78 s 22.93 $ 28.08 

Level IV 8 19 1018 18.58 $ 22.77 s 26.96 s 20.31 s 26.73 s 33.15 

Data £n1ry/ColleC11ons 

Level I All 1000 $ 11.95 $ 14.65 s 17.34 s 12.66 s 16.27 $ 19.88 

Level II A13 1002 $ 12.93 s 15,84 s 18.76 $ 14.15 s 18.2 3 s 22.30 

Level Il l B14 1012 $ 14 .56 $ 17.84 $ 21.12 $ 14.97 s 19.30 $ 23.62 

level IV 815 1014 s 15.28 s 18.73 $ 22.18 $ 15.85 $ 20.44 s 25.02 

Operation Safety M an;:1gcr 

Level I B24 1G02 s 49,320.10 s 60,440.10 $ 71,560.16 s 59,004.00 s 77,862.00 s 96,720.00 

Level II B25 1603 s 51 ,786. 10 s 63,462. 11 $ 75,138.16 s 63,104.00 s 83,298.00 s 103,491.00 

Level Ill B26 1604 s 69,415.00 s 85,065 .72 $ 100,716.51 s 69,415 .00 s 93,406.00 s 117,397.00 

Level IV B27 1605 s 72,885.75 $ 89,319.01 $ 105,752 .34 $ 76,356.00 $ 102,747.00 s 129,137.00 

Safety & Comploance Specialist 

Level I 817 1S70 s 16.85 s 20.65 s 24.45 $ 17.78 s 22 .93 s 28.08 

Level II B18 1571 s 17.69 s 21.68 $ 25.67 $ 19.00 s 24.99 s 30.99 

Level Ill B19 1572 s 18 .S8 s 22.77 s 26.96 s 20.31 s 26.73 s 33 .15 

Level JV B20 1573 s 19.51 $ 23.9 1 s 28.30 $ 21.71 s 28.59 35.48 
cashier 

Level I A07 0055 s l0.22 s 12 .52 s 14.82 s 10.42 s 12.83 s 15.23 

level II A09 0057 $ 11.05 s 13.54 s 16.03 s 11.43 s 14.10 s ] 6.76 

Level Ill Al l 0059 s 11.95 s 14.65 $ 17.34 s 12.66 s 16.27 19.88 

level IV AJ3 0134 s 12.93 $ 15.84 $ 18.76 s 14. 15 s 18.23 22.30 

Concho V;JlleyCnunol ct Gnvem rnrnu 

F'l' ll 2l 
St.il l! S.lary (Ornp.,u~tli1 1t w- Kol 21 



CONCHO VALL EY COUNCIL OF GOVERNMENTS STATE SALARY COMPARABILITY 

FY 2022-2023 

Number 

Salary Class of CVCOG CVCOG CVCOG Sta te State Sta te 
Department Posi tion Group Code Positions Min Mid MaK Min Mid Ma• 

CV Transit Di strict 

Road Supervisor 3 
Level I 820 1583 s 40,575.77 s 49,724.22 s 58,872 .72 45,158 .00 s 59,473.00 s 73,788 .00 

Level II 82 1 1584 s 42,604 .55 s 52,210.43 s 61,8 16.35 48,278 .00 s 63,616,00 $ 78,953.00 

Level Ill B22 1586 s 44,734.78 $ 54,820.95 $ 64,907.17 51,614 .00 s 68,047 .00 s 84,479.00 

Level IV 823 1588 $ 46,971.52 $ 57,562.00 s 68,152.53 55,184.00 $ 72,789 .00 $ 90,393.00 
Assistant Road Supervisor 

Level I B17 1580 s 16.85 $ 20.65 s 24.45 17.78 $ 22.93 $ 28.08 
Level II B18 1581 s 17.69 $ 21.68 $ 25.67 s 19.00 $ 24,99 $ 30.99 

Level 111 B19 1582 s 18.58 $ 22.77 $ 26.96 s 20.31 s 26.73 $ 33.15 
Level IV 820 1583 $ 19.51 s 23.91 $ 28.30 $ 21 .71 $ 28.59 $ 35.48 

Demand Res.ponse Bus Dr,ve, 38 Sto11l' S,.tl~rv Grnup 

Level I CVTDOl 0134 s 14.00 $ 17.16 $ 20.31 s 14.15 $ 18.23 $ 22.30 All 

Level II Al 5 0136 $ 13.98 $ 17.14 $ 20.29 s 15.85 $ 20.44 s 25.0 2 
Level Ill Al7 0138 $ 15.12 18.53 s 21.94 s 17.78 s 22 .93 s 28.08 
Level IV B18 1550 s 17.69 2 1.68 25 .67 s 19.00 s 24.99 s 30.99 

Fixed Route Bus Driver 18 Stille !..ll•r'y CirOllp 

Level I CVTD02 1550 $ 16.00 19.61 $ 23.21 $ 17.78 $ 22.93 s 28.08 6 1) 

Level II B18 1S51 $ 17.69 21.68 s 25.67 $ 19.00 s 24 ,99 s 30,99 
Level Il l 819 1552 18.58 22 .77 26.96 s 20.31 $ 26.73 5 33.15 
Level IV B20 1553 5 19.51 23.9 1 5 28.30 s 21 .71 s 28.59 s 35.48 

Dispatcher Lead 

level I 617 1570 16.85 20.65 s 24.45 s 17.78 s 22.93 28.08 
l evel II 618 1571 17.69 21.68 5 25.67 s 19.00 s 24 .99 s 30.99 

lev 1111 619 1572 18.58 22.77 $ 26.96 $ 20.31 s 26.73 $ 33.15 
Level IV B20 1573 19.51 23.91 28.30 $ 21.71 $ 28.59 $ 35.48 

Dispa tcher 2 
Level I All 0132 11.95 14 65 s 17.34 s 12 .66 $ ] 6.27 s 19,88 

Level II Al3 0134 s 12.93 s 15.84 $ 18.76 $ 14 .15 $ 18.23 s 22 .30 
Level Ill Al5 0136 s 13 .98 s 17.14 s 20.29 s 15.85 $ 20.44 s 25.02 

Level IV Al7 0138 15.12 s 18.53 s 21.94 $ 17.78 $ 22.93 $ 28 .08 
Maintenance 

Facili ties Manager 

Level I B17 1990 $ 35,050.87 $ 42,95 3.65 $ 50,85 6.47 s 36,976.00 $ 47,688.00 s 58,399.00 

Leve l II 819 1992 $ 38,643 .59 $ 47,356.40 s 56,069.25 $ 42,244.00 s 55,602.00 s 68,960.00 
Level Ill B2 1 1994 $ 42,604 .55 $ 52,210.43 s 61,816.35 5 48,278.00 s 63,616.00 $ 78,953 .00 

leve l IV B23 1995 s 46,971.52 5 57,562 .00 s 68,152.53 5 55 ,184 .00 s 72,789 .00 s 90,393.00 
Maintenance Supervisor 

Level I Al5 9053 $ 29,084 .91 s 35,642.56 $ 42,200.25 $ 32,976.00 $ 42,511.00 $ 52,045.00 

Level II Al.6 9054 s 30,248.30 $ 37,068.27 s 43,888.26 $ 34,91800 $ 45,024 .00 s 55,130.00 

l evel Il l Al7 9055 $ 31,458 .23 $ 38,551.00 s 45,643.79 $ 36,976.00 s 47,688.00 $ 58,399.00 
Level IV AJ9 9056 $ 34,025 .23 $ 41,696.76 s 49,368.32 $ 42,244 .00 s 55,602 .00 s 68,960.00 

Cus. todian/Grou nd skee per 

Level I A05 8003 $ 9.45 s 11 .58 s 13. 71 5 9 .51 $ 11.69 $ 13 .87 
Level II A06 8005 $ 9.82 $ 12 .04 $ 14,25 $ 9.95 s 12.24 s 14.53 

Level Ill ADS 8007 $ 10.63 s 13.0 2 s 15.42 5 10.92 $ 13.45 $ 15.98 
Level IV Al2 8021 5 12.43 $ 15.23 s 18.04 s 13.38 $ 17.22 $ 21.06 

M;:iintenance Specialis t 

Level I A09 9041 $ 11.05 5 13.54 ,$ 16.03 $ 11.43 s 14.10 $ 16,76 
Level II All 9042 $ 11.95 $ 14 .65 $ 17.34 $ 12.66 $ 16.27 s 19.88 

level 111 A12 9043 $ 12.43 s 15 .23 s 18.04 5 13.38 s 17.22 s 21.06 
Level IV Al4 9044 s 13.45 s 16.48 $ 19.51 5 14 .97 $ 19 30 5 23 ,62 

Conchn V.lll~y Coun.cil nl Gmi-rr"men1• 

FY l J 2 1 

St.a le S..l.i ,v Coinp,1.r.ib+il ly 'Jc:i ln 



CONCHO VALLEY COUNCIL OF GOVERNMENTS STATE SALARY COMPARABILITY 
FY 2022-2023 

Salary 
Oee•!lmen! Position Groue 

Maintenance Specialist Vehicle Technician 

Level I Al2 
Level II Al4 

Level Ill Al6 
Level IV Al8 

Area Agency on Aging 
Director of Access and Assistance 

Level I B26 
Level II B27 

Level Ill B28 
Level IV B29 

Access and Assistance Operation Manager 

Level I B22 
Level 11 B23 

Level Ill 824 
Level IV B25 

Access and Assistance Program Specialist 
Level I B17 
Level II 818 

Level Ill B19 
Level IV B20 

Managing Local Ombudsman 
Level I B17 

level II B19 
Level Ill 821 
Level IV B23 

Field Ombudsman 

level I A09 
Level II All 

Level Ill A13 
Level IV BIS 

Access and Assistant Assistant 

Level I A09 
Level II All 

level Ill Al3 
Level IV A15 

Class 
Code 

9417 
9418 
9419 
9420 

1620 
1621 

1622 
1623 

1600 
1601 
1602 
1603 

1570 
1571 
1572 
1573 

3660 
3662 
3663 
3665 

0130 
0132 
0134 

3659 

0130 

0132 
0134 

0136 

Number 
of CVCOG 

Positions Min 

$ 12.43 s 
s 13.45 s 
s 14.54 $ 

s 15.73 $ 

s 69,415.00 s 
s 72,885.75 s 
$ 76,530.04 s 
s 80,356.54 s 

s 44,734.78 s 
s 46,971.52 $ 
s 49,320.10 s 
s 51,786.10 s 

5 

s 16.85 $ 
$ 17.69 s 
$ 18.58 s 
s 19.51 $ 

1 

s 35,050.87 s 
$ 38,643.59 s 
$ 42,604.55 $ 
$ 46,971.52 $ 

$ 11.05 s 
$ 11.95 $ 
$ 12.93 $ 

$ 15.28 $ 

$ 11.05 $ 

s 11.95 $ 
$ 12.93 $ 

$ 13.98 $ 

(Ot'lcho V.1Uey Council of Gove1nmenu 

FY 2113 

Stoilt" 5-itary Comp.arab1l1ty 

CVCOG CVCOG State State State 
Mid Ma• Min Mid Ma• 

15.23 s 18.04 s 13.38 $ 17.22 s 21.06 

16.48 s 19.51 s 14.97 s 19.30 s 23.62 

17.82 s 21.10 s 16.79 s 21.65 s 26.50 

19.28 s 22.82 s 19.00 s 24.99 $ 30.99 

85,065.72 s 100,716.51 s 69,415.00 s 93,406.00 s 117,397.00 

89,319.01 s 105,752.34 $ 76,356.00 s 102,747.00 s 129,137.00 
93,784.96 s 111,039.96 s 83,991.00 s ll3,022.00 s 142,052.00 
98,474.21 $ ll6,591.95 s 92,390.00 s 124,323.00 s 156,256.00 

54,820.95 s 64,907.17 s 51,614.00 s 68,047.00 s 84,479.00 
57,562.00 $ 68,152.53 s 55,184.00 s 72,789.00 s 90,393.00 
60,440.10 s 71,560.16 s 59,004.00 s 77,862.00 s 96,720.00 

63,462.ll s 75,138.16 s 63,104.00 s 83,298.00 s 103,491.00 

20.65 $ 24.45 s 17.78 s 22.93 s 28.08 

21.68 $ 25.67 s 19.00 s 24.99 s 30.99 
22.77 s 26.96 s 20.31 s 26.73 s 33.15 
23.91 $ 28.30 s 21.71 $ 28.59 s 35.48 

42,953.65 $ 50,856.47 s 36,976.00 s 47,688.00 s 58,399.00 
47,356.40 $ 56,069.25 s 42,244.00 $ 55,602.00 s 68,960.00 
52,210.43 $ 61,816.35 $ 48,278.00 s 63,616.00 s 78,953.00 
57,562.00 $ 68,152.53 s 55,184.00 $ 72,789.00 s 90,393.00 

13.54 s 16.03 $ 11.43 $ 14.10 $ 16.76 
14.65 $ 17.34 $ 12.66 $ 16.27 $ 19.88 
15.84 $ 18.76 $ 14.15 $ 18.23 $ 22.30 

18.73 $ 22.18 $ 15.85 s 20.44 $ 25.02 

13.54 $ 16.03 $ ll.43 $ 14.10 $ 16.76 

14.65 $ 17.34 $ 12.66 $ 16.27 $ 19.88 
15.84 $ 18.76 $ 14.15 $ 18.23 $ 22.30 

17.14 $ 20.29 $ 15.85 $ 20.44 $ 25.02 

100122 



CONCHO VALLEY COUNCIL OF GOVERNMENTS STATE SALARY COMPARABILITY 

FY 2022-2023 

Number 
Salary Class of CVCOG CVCOG CVCOG State State State 

!!e11artment fQ.ill!gn Grou11 ~ Positions Min Mid Max Min Mid Max 

211 Information & Referral Services 

2-1-1 l&R Service SpecialiSI 3 
Level I A09 0130 $ 11.05 $ 13.54 $ 16.03 $ 11.43 $ 14.10 $ 16.76 

Level II All 0132 $ 11.95 s 14.65 $ 17.34 s 12.66 $ 16.27 $ 19.88 

Level Ill AB 0134 $ 12.93 $ 15.84 $ 18.76 $ 14.15 $ 18.23 $ 22.30 
Level IV AlS 0136 $ 13.98 $ 17.14 $ 20.29 $ 15.85 $ 20.44 $ 25.02 

2-1-1 l&R Service Specialist - Lead 

Level I B17 1570 s 16.85 s 20.65 $ 24.45 $ 17.78 s 22.93 $ 28.08 

Level II B18 1571 s 17.69 s 21.68 $ 25.67 $ 19.00 s 24.99 $ 30.99 

Level Ill B19 1572 s 18.58 $ 22.77 $ 26.96 s 20.31 s 26.73 $ 33.15 

Level IV B20 1573 $ 19.51 s 23.91 $ 28.30 $ 21.71 s 28.59 $ 35.48 
ADRC Services 

ADRC Program Specialist - Lead 

Level I B17 1570 $ 16.85 $ 20.65 $ 24.45 $ 17.78 s 22.93 $ 28.08 
Level II B18 1571 $ 17.69 $ 21.68 $ 25.67 $ 19.00 s 24.99 $ 30.99 

Level Ill 819 1572 $ 18.58 $ 22.77 $ 26.96 $ 20.31 s 26.73 $ 33.15 

Level IV 820 1573 $ 19.51 s 23.91 $ 28.30 s 21.71 $ 28.59 $ 35.48 
ADRC Program Specialist 

Level I B17 1570 $ 16.85 s 20.65 $ 24.45 $ 17.78 $ 22.93 $ 28,08 

Level II 818 1571 $ 17.69 $ 21.68 $ 25.67 $ 19.00 $ 24.99 $ 30.99 

Level Ill 819 1572 $ 18.58 s 22.77 s 26.96 $ 20.31 s 26.73 $ 33.15 
Level IV 820 1573 $ 19.51 $ 23.91 $ 28.30 $ 21.71 $ 28.59 $ 35.48 

Cont ho V.alley Council of GovHnmen11. 
FY22,21 

St•ll" ~l•ry Comp•ro1bd11y 11 ol 12 



CONCHO VALLEY COUNCIL OF GOVERNMENTS STATE SALARY COMPARABILITY 

FV 2022-2023 

Salary 
Department Position Group 

Foster Grandparent/Senior Companion/Retired Senior Volunteer Program 

Foster Grandparent/Senior Companion Director 

level I B26 
Level II B27 

Level 111 B28 
Level IV B29 

Foster Grandparent/Senior Companion Manager 

Level I B22 
Level II B23 

Level Ill B24 
Level IV B25 

RSVP Specialist 

Level I B17 
Level II B18 

Level 111 B19 
level IV B20 

Administrative Assistant 

Level I A09 
Level II All 

level Ill AB 
Level IV Al5 

Class 

Code 

1620 
1621 
1622 

1623 

1600 
1601 
1602 
1603 

1570 
1571 

1572 
1573 

0130 
0132 
0134 
0136 

Number 

of CVCOG 

~ Min 

s 69,415.00 s 
s 72,885.75 s 
s 76,530.04 $ 

s 80,356.54 s 

$ 44,734.78 s 
s 46,971.52 s 
$ 49,320.10 s 
$ 51,786.10 s 

2 

s 16.85 $ 
$ 17.69 $ 

s 18.58 $ 
s 19.51 s 

s 11.05 s 
s 11.95 s 
s 12.93 s 
s 13.98 s 

Condto Y•lley Counc:,I ol Govemmenb 

fY' 22-23 
St.are 5.l~ry Comp.1u1b1l1ty 

CVCOG CVCOG State State State 

Mid Max Min Mid Max 

85,065.72 s 100,716.51 s 69,415.00 s 93,406.00 s 117,397.00 
89,319.01 s 105,752.34 s 76,356.00 s 102,747.00 s 129,137.00 

93,784.96 $ 111,039.96 s 83,991.00 s 113,022.00 s 142,052.00 
98,474.21 s 116,591.95 s 92,390.00 s 124,323.00 s 156,256.00 

54,820.95 s 64,907.17 s 51,614.00 s 68,047.00 $ 84,479.00 
57,562.00 s 68,152.53 s 55,184.00 s 72,789.00 s 90,393.00 
60,440.10 s 71,560.16 s 59,004.00 s 77,862.00 $ 96,720.00 
63,462.11 s 75,138.16 s 63,104.00 s 83,298.00 s 103,491.00 

20.65 s 24.45 s 17.78 $ 22.93 s 28.08 

21.68 $ 25.67 s 19.00 s 24.99 s 30.99 
22.77 $ 26.96 s 20.31 s 26.73 s 33.15 
23.91 s 28.30 s 21.71 s 28.59 s 35.48 

13.54 s 16.03 s 11.43 s 14.10 s 16.76 
14.65 s 17.34 s 12.66 s 16.27 s 19.88 
15.84 s 18.76 s 14.15 s 18.23 s 22.30 
17.14 s 20.29 s 15.85 s 20.44 s 25.02 

12 ol 22 



CON CHO VALL EY COUNCIL OF GOV ERNMENTS STATE SALARY COM PARABI LITY 

FY 2022-2023 

Sa la ry 
Oe(!artment Position Group 

Head Start Program 

Director of Head Start 

level I HSD0l 
Level II HSD02 

Level Ill H5003 
Level IV HSD04 

Assistant Director of Head Stan 

Leve l I HSD0S 
Level II HSD06 

Level Ill HSD07 
Level IV HSD0S 

HS Education Manager/Coach/Class/Disabili ty 

Level I HSEM0I 

Level II HSEM02 
Level 111 HSEM03 

Level IV HSEM04 
Mental Health/ Hea lth Manager and Pregnant Women 

Level I HSHM0l 

Level II HSHM02 
Level Il l HSH M03 
level IV HSHM04 

FAMCO/Policy Counc il Manager and Pregnant. Women 

Level I H5FP0 I 
level II HSFP02 

level 111 HSFP03 
level IV HSFP04 

ERSEA Specia list/Faci lit ies Manager/Transition/ Class 

Level I HSER0l 
Level II HSER02 

level Ill HSER03 

Level IV HSER04 
EHS Education Ma nager/Coach/Class/Hers 

leve l I EHSEM0l 

Level II EHSEM02 
Level 111 EHSEM03 

Level IV EHSEM04 

Compliance Specia li st/Class/llers/Nutr it1on Manager 

Level I HSCS0l 

Level II HSC502 

Level Ill HSCS03 
level IV HSCS04 

Si te Supervisor/Fam ily Service Wmlcr 

Level I HSCDFS0l 

l evel II HSCDFS02 

level Il l HSCDFS03 

l evel IV HSCDFS04 

Class 

Code 

1620 

1621 
1622 

1623 

1602 

1603 

1604 

1605 

0821 

0822 
0823 

0824 

4411 

4412 
44 13 

4414 

1583 
1584 

1586 

1588 

1583 

1584 

1586 

1588 

1583 

1584 
1586 

1588 

1583 

1584 

1586 

1588 

1580 

1581 

1582 

1583 

Number 

of CVCOG 
Posit ions Min 

s 56,684.39 s 
s 59,518.61 s 
5 62.494.55 5 
s 65,619.27 $ 

s 42,538.74 s 
s 44,665.68 s 
s 46,898 .97 s 
s 49,243 .91 s 

s 40,235.45 s 
s 42,247.22 s 
s 44,359.59 s 
s 46,577.57 s 

s 40,235.45 s 
s 42,247 .22 s 
s 44,359.59 s 
s 46,577.57 s 

s 40,235.45 s 
s 42,247.22 s 
s 44,359.59 s 
s 46,577.57 s 

s 40,235 .45 

s 42,247.2 2 s 
s 44, 359 .59 s 
s 46,577.57 

s 40,235.45 

s 42,247.22 

s 44,359.59 5 
s 46,577.57 s 

s 40,235.4$ s 
s 42,24 7.22 s 
s 44,359.59 s 
5 46,577.57 s 

5 

s 29,070.52 s 
s 30,524.05 5 
s 32,050.25 $ 
s 33,652.76 $ 

Concha \l.11fl t'V Counr1I DI Gnvr 1nmc-n1, 

rv lJ. lJ 
S1.ue ~t,u y Corr,1ur~b1h1 v 

CVCOG CVCOG State State Sta te 
Mid Max Mi n Mid Max 

State SAiary 

69,464 .80 s 82,245.26 69,4 15.00 s 93,406.00 s ll 7,397.00 826 

72,938.04 s 86,357.52 s 76,356.00 s 102,747.00 s 129,137 .00 827 

76,584 .94 s 90,675.40 s 83,991.00 5 113,022.00 s 142,052 .00 828 

80,4 14.19 s 95,209.17 $ 92,390.00 s 124,323.00 s 156,256.00 829 

St.teS-iil•ry 

52,129.78 s 61,720.87 s 59,004.00 s 77,862 .00 s 96,720.00 824 

54,736.27 s 64,806.91 s 63,104.00 s 83,298.00 s 103,491.00 825 

57,473.09 s 68,047 .26 s 69,4 15.00 s 93,406.00 s ll7,397.00 826 

60,346.74 s 71,449.62 s 76,356.00 s 102,747.00 s 129,137.00 827 

S1ate~1ary 

49,307.18 s 58,378.95 s 42,244 .00 s 55,602.00 s 68,960.00 819 

51,772.54 s 61,297.89 s 48,278.00 s 63,616.00 s 78,953 .00 821 

54,361.16 s 64,362.79 s 55,184 .00 s 72,789.00 90,393.00 823 

57,079 .22 5 67,592.43 s 63,104 .00 5 83,298.00 s 103,491.00 825 

Sute ~ l,1ry 

49,307.18 s 58,378.95 42,244 .00 s 55,602 .00 s 68,960.00 819 

51,772 .54 s 61,297.89 s 48,2 78.00 s 63,616.00 s 78,953 .00 821 

54,361.l G 5 64,362.79 s 55, 184.00 s 72,789.00 s 90,393 .00 823 

57,079.22 s 67,580.93 s 63,104.00 $ 83,298.00 s 103,491.00 825 

Sutc~larv 

49,307 .18 s 58,378.95 45,158.00 s 59,473 .00 5 73,788.00 820 

51 ,772 .54 5 61,297.89 48,278.00 s 63,616.00 5 78,953.00 821 

54,361.16 s 64,362.79 s 55,184 .00 s 72,789.00 s 90,393.00 823 

57,079.22 s 67,580.93 s 63,104 .00 s 8 3,298.00 s 103,491.00 825 

SmeS.l1ry 

49,307.18 s 58,378.95 s 45,158.00 s 59,473 .00 s 73,788.00 820 

51,772 .54 s 61,297 .89 s 48,278.00 s 63,616.00 s 78,953 .00 821 

54,361.16 s 64,362.79 s 55, 184.00 s 72,789 .00 $ 90,393 .00 82] 

57,079.22 s 67,580.93 s 63,104 .00 s 83,298.00 s 103,491.00 825 

State Salary 

49,307.18 s 58,378.95 s 45,158.00 5 59,473.00 s 73,788 .00 820 

51,772.54 s 61 ,297 .89 s 48,278.00 s 63,616.00 s 78,953.00 821 

54,361.16 s 64,362.79 s 55, 184.00 $ 72,789.00 s 90,393 .00 82] 

57,079.22 $ 67,580.93 $ 63,104 .00 s 83,298.00 $ 103,491.00 825 

St.ateS.1,uy 

49,307 .18 s 58,378.95 s 45,158.00 s 59,473 .00 s 73,788.00 820 

51 ,772 .54 s 61,297.89 s 48,278 .00 s 63,616.00 s 78,953 .00 821 

54,361.16 $ 64,362. 79 $ 55,184 .00 s 72,789 .00 $ 90,393 .00 82] 

57,079 .22 5 67,580.93 s 63,104.00 s 83,298.00 $ 103,49 1.00 825 

State-Salary 

35,624.93 s 42,179.38 s 36,976.00 s 47,688.00 s 58,399 .00 817 

37,406.18 s 44,288.34 5 39,521.00 s 51,985.00 s 64,449.00 818 

39,276.49 5 46, 502 .76 s 42,244 .00 s 55,602 .00 s 68,960.00 819 

41,240.3 1 $ 48,827.90 s 45, 158.00 s 59,473 .00 s 73,788.00 820 

ll ot1J 



CONCHO VALLEY COUNCIL OF GOVERNMENTS STATE SALARY COMPARABILITY 

FY 2022-2023 

Salary 
Department Posi tion Group 

Site Su pervisor 

Level I HSCOOl 
Level II HSC002 

level Ill HSC003 

Level IV HSC004 
Fam ily Service Worker 

Level I HSFSOl 

Level II HSFS02 

Level Ill H5FS03 
Level IV HSFS04 

Head Start Teacher 

Level I HSTOl 

Level II HST02 

Level 111 HST03 

Level IV HST04 
Early Head Sti1 rt Teacher 

Level I EHSTOl 

Level II EHST02 
level Ill EHST03 
Level IV ErtST04 

Head Sta rt Teacher Assistant 

Level I HSTAOl 
Level II HSTA02 

Level Il l HSTA03 

Level IV HSTA04 
Ea rly Head Stan Floaters 

Level I EHSFOl 
level II EHSF02 
Level Ill EHSF03 
level IV EHSF04 

Receptionis t 

Level I HSROl 

Level II HSR02 

Level Ill HSR03 
Level II/ HSR04 

Hea d Start Cook/Custodian 

Level I HSCCOl 
Level II HSCC02 

Level 111 H5CC03 
Level IV H5CC04 

Head Star t Custod ian 

Level I HSCUOl 

Level II HSCU02 
Level Ill HSCU03 
Level IV HSCUD4 

Class 
Code 

1580 

1581 

1582 

1583 

1570 

1571 

1572 
1573 

1781 

1782 

1783 
1784 

1781 
1782 
1783 
1784 

08\2 

0813 
0814 

0814 

08 12 

08 13 

0814 
0814 

0006 

0132 

0134 

0136 

8 103 
8104 

8108 

8109 

8003 

8005 
8007 

8021 

Numb er 

of CVCOG 
Positions Min 

3 

s 29,070 .5 2 s 
s 30,524 .05 s 
s 32,050.25 s 
s 33,652.76 s 

8 

s 13.39 5 
s 14.06 5 
s 14 .76 s 
$ JS .SO 

22 

11.47 s 
12.04 s 
12.64 
13.28 

30 
11.47 s 
12.04 s 

s l2.64 s 
13.28 s 

24 

s 9.82 s 
s 10.31 s 
s 10.82 s 
s 11.36 s 

3 

s 9 82 s 
$ 10.31 s 
s 10.82 s 
s .11.36 $ 

s 9.74 s 
s 10.22 s 
s 10.73 $ 

s 11.27 $ 
4 

s 9.11 s 
s 9.57 s 
s 10.05 s 
s 10.55 s 

6 

$ 8.32 s 
s 8.73 s 
s 9.17 s 
s 9.63 $ 

Conch() Vo1Llt<y CouNtl nl Govc:r nn1 i:11h 

h '212l 
!i1,nf' S.11J, r11 Cnn1ruuh1l>l't' 

CVCOG CVCOG State State State 

Mid Max Min Mid Max 

S1atcSal.ary 

35,624 .93 s 42, 179 .38 36,976.00 s 47,688 .00 58,399 .00 617 

37,406.18 s 44,288.34 39, 521.00 $ 51,985.00 s 64,449.00 618 

39,2 76.49 s 46,502.76 42, 244.00 s 55,602.00 s 68,960.00 619 

41,240 .31 s 48,827.90 s 45,1 58.00 s 59,473.00 s 73,788.00 610 

State Salary 

16.41 $ 19.43 $ 17.78 s 22.93 28.08 617 

17.23 s 20.40 $ 19.00 s 24.99 30.99 618 

18.09 s 21.42 s 20.31 s 26.73 33 .15 .,. 
19.00 $ 22.49 s 21.71 s 28.59 35.48 B20 

SmcS.l,uv 

14.05 $ 16.64 $ 14.15 s 18.23 22 .30 B13 

14.76 s 17.47 s 15.85 s 20.44 25 .02 BIS 

15.49 18. 34 s 17.78 s 22.93 28.08 Bl7 

16.27 19.26 s 20.31 s 26.73 33 .15 619 

'it.JlPSlluy 

14.05 16.64 s 14.15 s 18.23 22 .30 Bil 

14.76 17.47 s IS.BS s 20.44 25 .02 BIS 

15.49 18.34 s 17.78 s 22 .93 28.08 617 

16.27 s 19.26 s 20.31 s 26.73 s 33.15 619 

St.atl"'Saluy 

12.03 s 14.24 $ 11.43 s 14. 10 16 .76 A09 

12.63 s 14.95 s 12 .66 s 16.27 19.88 All 

13.26 s 1S.70 s 14.15 s 18.23 s 22 .30 All 

13.93 s 15.49 s 14.15 s 18.23 s 22 .30 AU 

SU!l!S-it..ry 

12.03 s 14.24 $ 11.43 $ 14.10 16.76 A09 

12.63 $ 14.95 s 12 .66 $ 16.27 s 19.88 All 

13.26 s 1S.70 s 14.15 s 18.23 s 22 .30 AH 

13.93 s 16.49 $ 14.1S s 18.23 s 22.30 ;.u 

S Jt~Siliry 

11 .93 s 14.13 $ 11.43 $ 14.10 15.75 A09 

12.53 $ 14.83 s 12 .66 s ) 6.27 19 .88 All 

13.15 s 15.58 $ 14.15 $ 18.23 s 22 .30 AH 

13.81 s 16.35 s 1S.8S s 20.44 s 25.02 AIS 

SmcSa~ry 

11.17 $ 13.22 $ 9.51 $ 11.69 13.87 AO'i 

11 .73 s 13.88 s 10.42 s 12.83 s 15.23 Afl7 

12 .31 s 14.58 $ 13.38 s 17.22 s 21.06 Al2 

12 .93 s 15.31 s 14.97 s 19.30 s 23.62 AH 

St.111"'~1.aty 

10.19 s 12.07 $ 9.5] $ 11.69 $ 13.87 /IOS 

10.70 s 12.67 s 9 .95 s 12.24 s 14.53 AD6 

11 .24 s 13.31 s 10.92 s !3.45 $ 15.98 /IOll 

11.80 s 13.97 $ 13.38 s I 7.22 s 21.06 "'' 



CONCHO VALLEY COUNCIL OF GOVERNMENTS STATE SALARY COMPARABILITY 

FY 2022-2023 

Salary Class 
Department f!!.ill!M Group Cade 

Head Start Cook 

level I HSCOl 8116 

Level II HSC02 8117 

Level Ill HSC03 8118 

level IV HSC04 8119 

Head Start Universal Substitute 

level I HSCU0S 0812 

Total Positions 

Number 

of CVCOG 
Positions Mln 

6 

$ 9.11 $ 
s 9.57 s 
$ 10.05 $ 
$ 10.55 $ 

24 s 9.11 $ 

275 

Concho VaU~ Cauntll al Ci~rnmMtl 
fY 12-ll 

St.ale S,atafy ComJMir•bi:ity 

CVCOG CVCOG State State State 
Mid Ma• Min Mid Max 

Slati:S.lary 

11.17 s 13.22 s 9.95 s 12.24 s 14.53 A06 

11.73 $ 13.88 s 10.42 $ 12.83 s 15.23 A07 

12.31 $ 14.58 $ 11.43 $ 14.10 $ 16.76 M)9 

12.93 $ 15.31 $ 12.66 $ 16.27 s 19.88 All 

Smc~l,,y 

11.17 $ 13.22 $ 11.43 $ 14.10 s 16.76 M)9 

l§olJ.Z 



Salary 
Group Min Mid 

A04 $ 18,893.00 $ 23,152.73 $ 
A05 $ 19,648.72 $ 24,078.84 $ 
A06 $ 20,434.67 $ 25,041.99 $ 
A07 $ 21,252.06 $ 26,043.67 $ 
A08 $ 22,102.14 $ 27,085.42 $ 
A09 $ 22,986.22 $ 28,168.84 $ 
Al0 $ 23,905.67 $ 29,295.59 $ 
All $ 24,861.90 $ 30,467.41 $ 
A12 $ 25,856.38 $ 31,686.11 $ 
A13 $ 26,890.63 $ 32,953.55 $ 
A14 $ 27,966 .26 $ 34,271.69 $ 
A15 $ 29,084.91 $ 35,642 .56 $ 
A16 $ 30,248.30 $ 37,068.27 $ 
A17 $ 31,458.23 $ 38,551 .00 $ 
A18 $ 32,716.56 $ 40,093 .04 $ 
A19 $ 34,025 .23 $ 41,696.76 $ 
A20 $ 35,386.23 $ 43,364.63 $ 
A21 $ 36,801.68 $ 45,099 .21 $ 
A22 $ 38,273 .75 $ 46,903.18 $ 
A23 $ 39,804.70 $ 48,779 .31 $ 
A24 $ 41,396 .89 $ 50,730.48 $ 
A25 $ 43,052 .77 $ 52,759.70 $ 
A26 $ 44,774.88 $ 54,870.09 $ 
A27 $ 46,565 .87 $ 57,064.89 $ 
A28 $ 48,428.51 $ 59,347.49 $ 

Max 

27,412 .48 $ 
28,508.98 $ 
29,649.34 $ 
30,835.31 $ 
32,068.72 $ 
33,351.47 $ 
34,685.53 $ 
36,072 .95 $ 
37,515.87 $ 
39,016.50 $ 
40,577.16 $ 
42,200.25 $ 
43,888.26 $ 
45,643 .79 $ 
47,469 .54 $ 
49,368 .32 $ 
51,343.06 $ 
53,396.78 $ 
55,532 .65 $ 
57,753.95 $ 
60,064.11 $ 
62,466 .68 $ 
64,965.34 $ 
67,563.96 $ 
70,266.52 $ 

Min Mid Max 

9.08 $ 11.13 $ 13.18 

9.45 $ 11.58 $ 13.71 

9.82 $ 12 .04 $ 14.25 

10.22 $ 12.52 $ 14.82 

10.63 $ 13 .02 $ 15.42 

11.05 $ 13.54 $ 16.03 

11.49 $ 14.08 $ 16.68 

11.95 $ 14.65 $ 17.34 

12.43 $ 15 .23 $ 18.04 

12.93 $ 15 .84 $ 18.76 

13 .45 $ 16.48 $ 19.51 

13 .98 $ 17 .14 $ 20.29 

14.54 $ 17 .82 $ 21 .10 

15.12 $ 18.53 $ 21.94 

15 .73 $ 19.28 $ 22.82 

16.36 $ 20.05 $ 23.73 

17.01 $ 20 .85 $ 24 .68 

17.69 $ 21.68 $ 25.67 

18.40 $ 22 .55 $ 26 .70 

19.14 $ 23.45 $ 27 .77 

19.90 $ 24 .39 $ 28 .88 

20.70 $ 25.37 $ 30.03 

21.53 $ 26.38 $ 31.23 

22.39 $ 27.44 $ 32.48 

23.28 $ 28 .53 $ 33 .78 

Concho Va lley Counci l of Govern m ents 

FY 22-23 

Salary Group A 

Used 4% between Levels 

Page 16 of 22 



Sala ry 
Group Min Mid Max 

B10 $ 24,910.00 $ 30,526.36 $ 36,142.74 

B11 $ 26,155 .50 $ 32,052.68 $ 37,949.88 

B12 $ 27,463 .28 $ 33,655.31 $ 39,847.37 

B13 $ 28,836.44 $ 35,338.08 $ 41,839.74 

B14 $ 30,278.26 $ 37,104.98 $ 43,931.73 

B15 $ 31,792.17 $ 38,960.23 $ 46,128.31 

B16 $ 33,381.78 $ 40,908.24 $ 48,434.73 

B17 $ 35,050.87 $ 42,953.65 $ 50,856.47 

B18 $ 36,803.42 $ 45,101.33 $ 53,399.29 

B19 $ 38,643.59 $ 47,356.40 $ 56,069.25 

B20 $ 40,575.77 $ 49,724.22 $ 58,872.72 

B21 $ 42,604.55 $ 52 ,2 10.43 $ 61,816.35 

B22 $ 44,734.78 $ 54,820.95 $ 64,907.17 

B23 $ 46,971.52 $ 57,562.00 $ 68,152.53 

B24 $ 49,320.10 $ 60,440 .10 $ 71,560.16 

B25 $ 51,786.10 $ 63,462 .11 $ 75,138.16 

B26 $ 69,415.00 $ 85,065.72 $ 100,716.51 

B27 $ 72,885 .75 $ 89,319.01 $ 105,752 .34 

B28 $ 76,530.04 $ 93,784 .96 $ 111,039.96 

B29 $ 80,356.54 $ 98,474.21 $ 116,591.95 

B30 $ 84,374.37 $ 103,397.92 $ 122,421.55 

B31 $ 88,593 .08 $ 108,567.81 $ 128,542.63 

B32 $ 93,022.74 $ 113,996.20 $ 134,969 .76 

B33 $ 97,673.88 $ 119,696.01 $ 141,718.25 

B34 $ 102,557.57 $ 125,680.81 $ 148,804.16 

B35 $ 107,685.45 $ 131,964.86 $ 156,244.37 

$ 
$ 
$ 
$ 
$ 
$ 
$ 
$ 
$ 
$ 
$ 
$ 
$ 
$ 
$ 
$ 
$ 
$ 
$ 
$ 
$ 
$ 
$ 
$ 
$ 
$ 

Min Mid Max 

11.98 $ 14.68 $ 17.38 

12.57 $ 15.41 $ 18.25 

13.20 $ 16.18 $ 19.16 

13.86 $ 16.99 $ 20.12 

14.56 $ 17.84 $ 21.12 

15.28 $ 18.73 $ 22 .18 

16.05 $ 19.67 $ 23.29 

16.85 $ 20.65 $ 24.45 

17.69 $ 21.68 $ 25.67 

18.58 $ 22 .77 $ 26.96 

19.51 $ 23 .91 $ 28 .30 

20.48 $ 25.10 $ 29.72 

21.51 $ 26.36 $ 31.21 

22 .58 $ 27 .67 $ 32.77 

23 .71 $ 29.06 $ 34.40 

24 .90 $ 30.51 $ 36.12 

33.37 $ 40.90 $ 48.42 

35.04 $ 42 .94 $ 50.84 

36.79 $ 45.09 $ 53.38 

38.63 $ 47.34 $ 56 .05 

40.56 $ 49.71 $ 58.86 

42 .59 $ 52 .20 $ 61 .80 

44.72 $ 54.81 $ 64.89 

46.96 $ 57.55 $ 68.13 

49.31 $ 60.42 $ 71.54 

51.77 $ 63.44 $ 75 .12 

Concho Valley Cou nci l of Governments 

FY 22-23 

Sa lary Group B 

Used 5% between Levels 

Page 17 o f 22 



CVCOG Instructor Salary Schedu le 

Sa lary Class 
Inst ructor, Training Specia list Group Code 

Level I CJOl 1783 

Level II CJ02 1784 

Level Ill CJ03 1785 

Level IV CJ04 1786 

Note: Posirion is comparable to Sta te 

CVCOG CVCOG 

Min Mid 

$ 36,976.00 $ 47,688.00 $ 
$ 42,244.00 $ 55,602.00 $ 
$ 48,278.00 $ 63,616 .00 $ 
$ 55,184.00 $ 72,789.00 $ 

Concho Valley Council of Govern ments 

FY 22-23 

Salary Group lnstruclor 

CVCOG State State State 

Max Min Mid Max Stale Salary Group 

58,399.00 $ 36,976.00 $ 47,688 .00 $ 58,399.00 Bl7 

68,960 .00 $ 42,244.00 $ 55,602 .00 $ 68,960.00 B19 

78,953 .00 $ 48,278 .00 $ 63,616.00 $ 78,953.00 B21 

90,393.00 $ 55, 184.00 $ 72,789.00 $ 90,393 .00 B23 

Page 18 of 22 



CVTD Salary Schedule 

Demand Response Bus Drivers: 
Driver Starting Pay 

Fixed Route Bus Drivers: 
Driver Starting Pay 

Salary 

Group Minimum 

CVTD 01 $ 14.00 

CVTD 02 $ 16.00 

Concho Valley Councll of Governments 
FY 22-23 

Salary Group CVTD 

Midpoint Maximum 

$ 17.16 $ 20.31 

$ 19.61 $ 23.21 

Page 19 of22 



Head Start Administrative Salary Schedule Salary Rate FY 21-22 

Group Minimum Midpoint Maximum Minimum Midpoint Maximum 

Director of Head Start/Nutrition Manager 

Level I HSD0l s 56,684.39 $ 69,464.80 s 82,245.26 55,420.80 67,916.31 80,411.87 

Level II HSD02 $ 59,518.61 $ 72,938.04 s 86,357.52 58,191.84 71,312.12 84,432.46 

Level 111 HSD03 $ 62,494.55 $ 76,584.94 $ 90,675.40 61,101.43 74,877.73 88,654.09 

Level IV HSD04 s 65,619.27 s 80,414.19 s 95,209.17 64,156.50 78,621.61 93,086.79 

Assistant Director of Head Start 

Level I HSD0S $ 42,538.74 $ 52,129.78 $ 61,720.87 41,590.48 50,967.72 60,345.00 

Level II HS006 $ 44,665.68 $ 54,736.27 $ 64,806.91 43,670.00 53,516.11 63,362.25 

Level Ill HS007 s 46,898.97 $ 57,473.09 $ 68,047.26 45,853.51 56,191.91 66,530.36 

Level IV HSO0B $ 49,243.91 $ 60,346.74 $ 71,449.62 48,146.18 59,001.51 69,856.88 

HS Education Manager/Coach/Class/Disability 

Level I HSEM0l $ 40,235.45 $ 49,307.18 $ 58,378.95 39,338.53 48,208.04 57,077.58 

Level II HSEM02 $ 42,247.22 $ 51,772.54 $ 61,297.89 41,305.46 50,618.44 59,931.46 

Level Ill HSEM03 s 44,359.59 s 54,361.16 $ 64,362.79 43,370.73 53,149.36 62,928.03 

Level IV HSEM04 $ 46,577.57 $ 57,079.22 $ 67,592.43 45,539.27 55,806.83 66,085.68 

Mental Health/Health Manager and Pregnant Women 

Level I HSHM0l s 40,235.45 $ 49,307.18 $ 58,378.95 39,338.53 48,208.04 57,077.58 

Level II HSHM02 $ 42,247.22 s 51,772.54 s 61,297.89 41,305.46 50,618.44 59,931.46 

Level Ill HSHM03 $ 44,359.59 s 54,361.16 s 64,362.79 43,370.73 53,149.36 62,928.03 

Level IV HSHM04 $ 46,577.57 s 57,079.22 $ 67,580.93 45,539.27 55,806.83 66,074.43 

FAMCO/Policy Council Manager and Pregnant Women 

Level I HSFP0l $ 40,235.45 s 49,307.18 s 58,378.95 39,338.53 48,208.04 57,077.58 

Level II HSFP02 s 42,247.22 s 51,772.54 s 61,297.89 41,305.46 50,618.44 59,931.46 

Level Ill HSFP03 $ 44,359.59 $ 54,361.16 $ 64,362.79 43,370.73 53,149.36 62,928.03 

Level IV HSFP04 $ 46,577.57 $ 57,079.22 $ 67,580.93 45,539.27 55,806.83 66,074.43 

ERSEA Specialist/Facilities Manager/Transition/Class 
Level I HSER0l $ 40,235.45 s 49,307.18 s 58,378.95 39,338.53 48,208.04 57,077.58 

Level II HSER02 $ 42,247.22 s 51,772.54 $ 61,297.89 41,305.46 50,618.44 59,931.46 

Level 111 HSER03 $ 44,359.59 s 54,361.16 $ 64,362.79 43,370.73 53,149.36 62,928.03 

Level IV HSER04 $ 46,577.57 s 57,079.22 $ 67,580.93 45,539.27 55,806.83 66,074.43 

EHS Education Manager/Coach/Class/lters 

Level I EHSEM0l $ 40,235.45 s 49,307.18 $ 58,378.95 39,338.53 48,208.04 57,077.58 

Level II EHSEM02 $ 42,247.22 s 51,772.54 $ 61,297.89 41,305.46 50,618.44 59,931.46 

Level Ill EHSEM03 s 44,359.59 s 54,361.16 s 64,362.79 43,370.73 53,149.36 62,928.03 

Level IV EHSEM04 $ 46,577.57 $ 57,079.22 s 67,580.93 45,539.27 55,806.83 66,074.43 

Compliance Speciallst/Class/lters/Nutrition Manager 

Level I HSCSOl $ 40,235.45 $ 49,307.18 $ 58,378.95 39,338.53 48,208.04 57,077.58 

Level II HSCS02 $ 42,247.22 $ 51,772.54 $ 61,297.89 41,305.46 50,618.44 59,931.46 

Level Ill HSCS03 $ 44,359.59 $ 54,361.16 $ 64,362.79 43,370.73 53,149.36 62,928.03 

Level IV HSCS04 $ 46,577.57 $ 57,079.22 $ 67,580.93 45,539.27 55,806.83 66,074.43 

When receMng a COLA award from HHS-ACF, it is required that the rate scale be permanently maved by the COLA percentage. 

The rate scale above reflects the COLA awarded FY 22-23 of 2.28% 

Concho Valley Council of Governments 

FY 22-23 

Salary Group HS Admin Page 200122 



Head Start Service Provider Salary Schedule Sa lary 

Group M in imum 

Site Su pervisor/Teacher Assistant : 

Leve l I - CDA HSCDTA0l $ 29,070.52 $ 
Level II - AA HSCDTA02 $ 30,524.05 $ 
Leve l Ill - BA HSCDTA03 $ 32,050.25 $ 
Leve l IV HSCDTA04 $ 33,652.76 $ 
Site Supervisor/Fami ly Service Worker : 

Level I - CDA HSCDFS0l $ 29,070.52 $ 
Leve l II · AA HSCDFS02 s 30,524.05 $ 
Leve l Ill - BA HSCDFS03 $ 32,050.25 $ 
Level IV HSCDFS04 $ 33,652.76 $ 
Site Supervisor: 

Level I - CDA HSCD0l $ 29,070.52 $ 
Level II -AA HSCD02 $ 30,524.05 $ 
Level Ill - BA HSCD03 $ 32,050.25 $ 
Level IV HSCD04 $ 33,652.76 $ 
Family Service Worker : 

Level I - CDA HSFS0l $ 13.39 $ 
Level II - AA HSFS02 $ 14.06 $ 
Level Ill - BA HSFS03 $ 14.76 $ 
Level IV HSFS04 $ 15.50 $ 
Head Start Teacher: 

Level I - (CDA Wa iver) HST0l $ 11.47 $ 
Level II - AA, ECE HST02 $ 12.04 $ 
Level Ill - BA, EHS Specia list HST03 $ 12.64 $ 
Level IV HST04 $ 13.28 $ 
Early Head Start Teacher: 

Level I - (CDA Waiver) EHST0l $ 11.47 $ 
Level II - AA, ECE EHST02 $ 12.04 $ 
Level Ill - BA, EHS Specialist EHST03 $ 12.64 $ 
Level IV EHST04 $ 13.28 $ 
Head Sta rt Teacher Assistant: 

Level I - no experience HSTAOl $ 9.82 $ 
Level II - with experience, CDA HSTA02 $ 10.31 $ 
Level Ill - AA HSTA03 $ 10.82 $ 
Level IV - BA HSTA04 $ 11.36 $ 
Early Hea d Start Teacher Floater : 

Level I - no experience EHSFOl $ 9.82 $ 
Level II - w ith experience, CDA EHSF02 $ 10.31 $ 
Level Ill - AA EHSF03 $ 10.82 $ 
Level IV - BA EHSF04 $ 11.36 $ 

Midpoint M aximum 

35,624.93 $ 42,179.38 

37,406.18 $ 44,288.34 

39,276.49 $ 46,502.76 

41,240.31 $ 48,827.90 

35,62 4.93 $ 42,179.38 

37,406.18 $ 44,288.34 

39,276.49 $ 46,502.76 

41,240.31 $ 48,827.90 

35,624.93 s 42,179.38 

37,406.18 $ 44,288.34 

39,276.49 s 46,502.76 

41,240.31 $ 48,827 .90 

16.41 $ 19.43 

17.23 $ 20.40 

18.09 $ 21.42 

19.00 $ 22.49 

14.05 $ 16.64 

14.76 $ 17.47 

15.49 $ 18.34 

16.27 $ 19.26 

14.05 $ 16.64 

14.76 $ 17.47 

15.49 $ 18.34 

16.27 $ 19.26 

12.03 $ 14.24 

12.63 $ 14.95 

13.26 $ 15.70 

13.93 $ 16.49 

12.03 $ 14.24 

12.63 $ 14.95 

13.26 $ 15.70 

13.9 3 $ 16.49 

Cone.ho Valley Counr.i l of Govcmmcnts 

FY 22-23 
Salilry Grou p HS Ce nters 

Minimum 

28,42 2.49 

29,843 .61 

31,335.79 

32,902.58 

28,422.49 

29,843 .61 

31,335.79 

32,902.58 

28,422.49 

29,843.61 

31,335.79 

32,902.58 

13.09 

13.75 

14.43 

15.16 

11.21 

11.77 

12.36 

12.98 

11.21 

11.77 

12.36 

12.98 

9.60 

10.08 

10.58 

11.11 

9.60 

10.08 

10.58 

11.11 

Rate FY 21-22 

M id point M aximum 

34,830.79 41,239.12 

36,572.33 43 ,30 1.08 

38,400.95 45,466.13 

40,320.99 47,739.44 

34,830.79 41,239.12 

36,572.33 43,301.08 

38,400.95 45,466.13 

40,320.99 47,739.44 

34,830.79 41,239.12 

36,572.33 43,301.08 

38,400.95 45,466.13 

40,320.99 47,739.44 

16.04 19.00 

16.85 19.95 

17.69 20.94 

18.57 21.99 

13.74 16.27 

14.43 17.08 

15.15 17.94 

1S.91 18.83 

13.74 16.27 

14.43 17.08 

15.15 17.94 

15.91 18.83 

11.76 13.92 

12.35 14.62 

12.97 15.35 

13.61 16.12 

11.76 13.92 

12.35 14.62 

12.97 15.35 

13.61 16.12 

21 of 22 



Head Start Service Provider Salary Schedule Salary 

Group Minimum Midpoint Maximum 

Receptionist: 

Level I HSR0l $ 9.74 $ 11.93 $ 14.13 

Level II HSR02 $ 10.22 $ 12.53 $ 14.83 

Level Ill HSR03 $ 10.73 $ 13.15 $ 15.58 
Level IV HSR04 $ 11.27 $ 13.81 $ 16.35 

Head Start Cook/Custodian: 

Level I HSCC0l $ 9.11 $ 11.17 $ 13.22 

Level II HSCC02 $ 9.57 $ 11.73 $ 13.88 

Level Ill HSCC03 $ 10.05 $ 12.31 $ 14.58 

Level IV HSCC04 $ 10.55 $ 12.93 $ 15.31 

Head Start Cook: 

Level I HSC0l $ 9.11 $ 11.17 $ 13.22 

Level II HSC02 $ 9.57 $ 11.73 $ 13.88 

Level Ill HSC03 $ 10.05 $ 12.31 $ 14.58 

Level IV HSC04 $ 10.55 $ 12.93 $ 15.31 

Head Start Custodian: 

Level I HSCU0l $ 8.32 $ 10.19 $ 12.07 

Level II HSCU02 $ 8.73 $ 10.70 $ 12.67 

Level Ill HSCU03 $ 9.17 $ 11.24 $ 13.31 

Level IV HSCU04 $ 9.63 $ 11.80 $ 13.97 
Head Start Universal Substitute: 

Level I HSCU0S $ 9.11 
When receiving a COIA award from HHS-ACF, it is required that the rote scale be permanently moved by the COIA percentage. 

The rote scale above reflects the COIA awarded FY 22-23 of 2.28% 

Concho Valley Council of Governments 
FY 22-23 

Salary Group HS Centers 

Rate FY 21-22 

Minimum Midpoint Maximum 

$ 9.52 $ 11.67 $ 13.81 

$ 10.00 $ 12.25 $ 14.50 

$ 10.50 $ 12.86 $ 15.23 

$ 11.02 $ 13.50 $ 15.99 

8.91 10.92 12.93 

9.36 11.46 13.57 
9.82 12.04 14.25 

10.31 12.64 14.97 

8.91 10.92 12.93 
9.36 11.46 13.57 
9.82 12.04 14.25 

10.31 12.64 14.97 

8.13 9.97 11.80 
8.54 10.47 12.39 
8.97 10.99 13.01 
9.42 11.54 13.66 

8.91 

22 of 22 



SKILL-BASE PAV CERTIFICATIONS 

Training and Pay are subject to budget availability 



SKILL-BASE PAY CERTIFICATIONS (Training and Pay are subject to budget availability) 

Certifications are Program Specific, based on the needs of the program 

Certification Rewards should be for skills that will help employees gain greater perspetive of the program and the ability for self-management skills 

Certified employees must understand the overall process and be able to apply their skills when necessary 

Type of Payout for Certification: 
Pay Raise : can be $ rate or % increase 

Bonus System (Can be used for retention of skilled workers.) 

Program Directors must: 
Identify potential jobs 

Identify the specific skills needed for the job at time of hire and what will be needed to participate in Skill-based Pay 

Before identifying a skill, consideration must be given as to if the skill will become obsolete over time 

Evaluate the potential costs and benefits: 

Do the benefits outweigh the costs to the organization? (i.e. Training development, delivery, and time for training) 

Will the higher skill result in a lower labor cost due to leaner staffing needs? 

Director must develop the appropriate techniques that will be used to assess the new skill, knowledge and comptetencies 

Director should determine the dollar amount for the acquired skill and the type of payout 

The following are Identified skills and the associated payout: 

HEAD START PROGRAM 
Rates cannot be stacked, if education continued. Only the difference between the certifications will be paid. 

Child Development Assoociate (CDA) 

Associate Degree Early Childhood Development (AAS) 

Bachelor Degree Early Childhood Development (BS) 

PROCUREMENT 

Pay Rate Increase 

$0.25 
$0.60 
$1.00 

This certification is only required for Procurement staff that are Purchasers. Program will pay for travel, materials, course, and one certification attempt. 

Any retesting or course attendance will be the responsibility of the employee. 

Certified Texas Contract Developer 

HUMAN RESOURCES 

Pay Rate Increase 

3.00% 

Pay increase is only for the initial certification. Staff will be required to maintain their certification, but no additional pay increase will be offered. 

SHRM Certified Professional 

SHRM Senior Certified Professional 

Pay Rate Increase 

2.50% 
5.00% 

1 of S 



SKILL-BASE PAY CERTIFICATIONS {Training and Pay are subject to budget availability) 

FINANCE 

The Executive Director and Director of Finance are required to receive their Investment certificates, every two years. There is no pay increase 

with this certification. Ten hours of training are required. 

New Executive Director or new Director of Finance must receive their first Investment certificate within 12 months of taking position 

Finance staff are encouraged to attend trainings that will assist them with their growth and in staying abreast of all Federal and State regulations, 

related to grants and COGs. There will be no pay increases associated with these trainings. Webinars are highly encouraged. 

Texas Association of Regional Councils. Director of Finance can attend twice a year. (February and September) 

Executive Director attends three times a year. (February, June, and September) 

The following are training recommendations: 

Federal Grant Procurement: How to Prepare Request for Proposals 

Federal Grant Procurement Under Duress 

Cost Allowability for Program Staff: Can We Charge This to Our Federal Grant 

Indirect Cost Recovery for Local Governments 

Federal Grant Policy 

Federal Grant Human Resources Policies 

Federal Grant Audit 

How to effectively treat Audit Findings 

Charging Facility Costs to Federal Grants 

Fundamentals of OMB's Uniform Grant Guidance (2 CFR 200) 

Grantees and Personal Identifiable Information (PII) 

Non-federal Share, How to determine match and what can be used for match 

Closing Out Federal Grant Awards 

Texas State Comptroller Purchasing/Contract Development 

Training for State and Local Records Managers (TSLAC) 

TCDRS annual training, only one time attendance is necessary as the trainings are repetitive 

Any trainings offered by the Program Awarding Agencies, are encouraged 

2 of 5 



SKILL-BASE PAY CERTIFICATIONS (Training and Pay are subject to budget availability) 

INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY DEPARTMENT 
One Certification, per year, is budgeted for each staff member. Prior approval of the Program Director is required. 

Program will pay for self-study material, to include books and one (1) online prep material, not to exceed $200.00. 

Program will pay for 1st attempt at certification test. Any re-test will be the employee's responsibility 

Certifications approved for System Support Specialist 

One Certification, per year is budgeted from either Category 1 or 2 

Category Certifcation 

1 CompTiaA+ 

Google IT Support Professional Certificate 

Microsoft 36S Fundamentals 

Microsoft Azure Fundamentals 

Certifcation 

ITIL Foundation 

CompTia Network+ 

CompTia Security + 

Certifications approved for the Program Director, as it applies to job functions 

One Certification, per year is budgeted from either Category 1 or 2 

Category Certifcation 

1 Microsoft Certified: Azure 

Administrator Associate 

Microsoft Certified: Identity and 

Access Administrator 

Certifcation 

PMI Certified Associate in Project 

Management (CAPM) 

Certified Scrum Master (CSM) 

System Security Certified 

Practitioner (SSCP) 

Pay Rate Increase 

2.00% 

2.00% 

2.00% 

2.00% 

Pay Rate Increase 

3.00% 

3.00% 

3.00% 

Pay Rate Increase 

2.00% 

2.00% 

Pay Rate Increase 

3.00% 

3.00% 

3.00% 

3 of 5 



SKILL-BASE PAY CERTIFICATIONS (Training and Pay are subject to budget availability) 

The following are recommended courses that Network staff are encouraged to complete as 

it will enhance their understanding of technologies. These will not necessitate a raise. 

SQL - Ultimate MySQL Bootcamy: Udemy 

HTML & CSS - Certification Course for Beginners: Udemy 

Responsive Web Design Certification: FreeCodeCamp 

Customer Service Basics: Improve your Service Now: Udemy 

Quality Assurance Certification 

ACCESS AND ASSISTANCE 

AIRS Community Resource Specialist (Comprehensive l&R) 

Required for all full-time 211 IRA Staff 

This is added value for additional staff in support roles 

AIRS Community Resource Specialist A/D (specific to Aging and 

Disability target populations) Required for full-time 

ADRC IRA Staff 

This is added value for additional staff in support roles 

AIRS Community Resource Specialists - Database Curator 

Requirement for 211 Program, must have at least one 

Certified Ombudsman (STLCO) requirement for full-time 

Ombudsman roles 

Ombudsman II certification (STLCO) after 2-years as Certified 

Ombudsman, staff can seek this certification 

This is added value for additional staff in support roles 

Certified Benefits Counselor (TLSC) requirement for full-time 

Benefits Counseling staff 

This is added value for additional staff in support roles 

Certified Benefits Counselor II (TLSC) 

This is added value for additional staff in support roles 

Certified Benefits with Advance Directives (TLSC) 

This is added value for additional staff in support roles 

Evidence Based Intervention Certifications 

Added value to allow direct service to programs 

Pay Rate Increase 

3.00% 

Pay Rate Increase 

3.00% 

Pay Rate Increase 

5.00% 

Pay Rate Increase 

5.00% 

Pay Rate Increase 

3.00% 

Pay Rate Increase 

5.00% 

Pay Rate Increase 

3.00% 

Pay Rate Increase 

3.00% 

Pay Rate Increase 

5.00% 

4 of 5 



SKILL-BASE PAV CERTIFICATIONS (Training and Pay are subject to budget availability) 

PUBLIC SAFETY 
The following certification can be attained by staff, but is not required for their job duties. No additional pay increases with the certifications. 

GISP Certified Geographic Information Systems (GIS) Professional 
ENP Emergency Number Professional Certification 

5 of 5 



CVCOG PROGRAMS 

• CVCOG Summary 

• Administrative 

• Non-Project 

• Procurement Department 

• Human Resources Department 

• Information Technology Department 

• Link Road Facility Management Department 

• Concho Valley Transit District 

• Head Start 

• Senior Volunteer Programs 

o Foster Grandparent 

o Senior Companion 

o Retired Senior Volunteer Program (RSVP) 

• Access and Assistance Programs 

o Area Agency on Aging 

o Aging Disability Resource Center (ADRC) 

o 211 Information and Referral 

• Public Safety Programs 

o 911 Emergency Communications 

o Homeland Security 

o Criminal Justice 

• Regional Services Programs 

o Concho Valley Economic Development District 

o Solid Waste 

o Community & Economic Development Assistance 

o Volunteers in Service to America (VISTA) 



Program Budget Summary 

The Investment/Budget Committee is responsible for reviewing and recommending to the Executive 

Board, the budgets for: 

1. The Administrative budget and the proposed Indirect Rate for FY 22-23 and; 

2. The FY 22-23 budgets for the Central Service Centers consisting of: 

• Human Resources Department 

• Procurement Department 

• Information Technology Department 

• Link Road Facility Management Department 

The budgets for the CVCOG Programs are approved by the awarding agencies so do not require approval 

from the Executive Board, at this time. The Executive Board does approve the request to apply and 

accept the Program awards, but these requests are brought individually to the Board, by the Programs. 

However, the Programs are responsible for funding Administrative and the Central Service Centers. 

Therefore, the Program budgets are presented to show the Committee that the presented 

Administrative and Central Service Centers' budgets can be funded by the Programs. 

All budgets presented reflect the funding of the proposed CVCOG Salary Schedule and Fringe Benefits. 

Administrative Budget Page 4 

• The Administrative Department consists of 90% of the Executive Director, 22% of the Assistant 

Executive Director/Regional Services Director, 89% of the Finance Manager/CVEDD Revolving 

Loan Specialist, 10% of the HR Administrative Assistant used for Board meetings, 5-Finance staff 

members, and the Receptionist 

• Total budget increase over FY 21-22 is 0.88%. Requesting an Indirect Rate for FY 22-23 of 6.16%. 

The current rate for FY 21-22 is 6.20%. 

• The budget is allocated to the Programs and Central Service Centers based on total Personnel 

Costs x the Indirect Rate. 

• Salaries and Fringe are up 23% due to the addition of the Assistant Director in February of this 

year. This position is training to take over the Director of Finance position. We are also 

reflecting the addition of a Finance Specialist to be hired in April 2023. 

• Audit & Legal decreased 15%. The new contract with the firm started this past year and the 

amount was less than originally budgeted. 

• Costs are up for all Central Service Centers and the Administrative budget is reflecting their 

share of the costs. 

• Contract Services decreased 90%. The previous budget was related to the move to Link Road. 

• Supplies decreased 68%. The previous budget was related to the move to Link Road. 

• Copier expenses increased 284%. With the move to Link Road, Administrative took over the 

responsibility of the 3-Business Centers. This cost includes 3 copiers and the associated copier 

supplies. 

• Dues and Fees decreased 56%. The majority of this decrease is related to HR taking over the 

responsibility of Payroll preparation with ADP. 

Page 1 of 3 



• Postage decreased 33%. With the permanent move to Link Road, CVCOG closed their PO Box. 

In addition, there has been a decline in the number of items being mailed. 

Non-Proiect Budget Page 5 
• The Non-Project budget reflects the utilization of CVCOG County Membership Dues 

Procurement Budget Page 7 

• The Procurement Department consists of 6 staff members. 

• The Procurement budget is allocated to the Programs, Administrative and the other Central 

Service Centers based on the $ amount of Purchase orders. 

• The budget is reflecting a 3.34% increase over FY 21-22 

• The majority of the increase is associated with 2-employees receiving Certification pay. The 

budget also includes the travel costs and fees associated with the training. 

Human Resources Budget Page 9 

• The Human Resources Department consists of 4 staff members. The HR Administrative Assistant 

will bill 10% of her time to Administrative for the time spent at the Executive Committee 

Meetings. 

• The Human Resources budget is allocated to the Programs, Administrative and the other Central 

Service Centers based on the number of employees in each program. 

• The budget is reflecting a 27.56% increase over FY 21-22 

• The majority of this increase is associated with HR taking over the payroll preparation with ADP. 

• The budget is also reflecting pay adjustments for certifications to be received during the year. 

Information Technology Budget Page 11 

• The Information Technology Department consists of 3 staff members. 

• The Information Technology budget is allocated to the Programs, Administrative and the other 

Central Service Centers based on the number of email accounts in each program. 

• The budget is reflecting a 1.43% increase over FY 21-22 

• The department is reflecting pay adjustments for certifications to be received during the year. 

Link Road Facility Management Budget Page 13 

• The Link Road Facility Management Department consist of a Facility Manager that is split 

between Link Road and Transit and one full-time Maintenance Tech 

• The Facility budget is allocated to the Programs, Administrative and the other Central Service 

Centers based on square footage of office space occupied. 

• The budget is reflecting an overall increase of 23.11% over FY 21-22. 

• Part of the increase is due to the actual cost for Janitorial Services. The cost for the service is 

over twice what we originally budgeted. 

• The budget also reflects CVTD beginning to recoup the amount of local funds they provided for 

the construction at Link Road. So as not to cause financial burden on the Programs, the 

repayment of construction costs will be spread out over 20-years. This is the same number of 

years EDA will hold a lien on the Link Road facility. 

Program Revenue Changes for FY 22-23 Page 2 

• Federal is reflecting a 10% increase. This increase is due to the Head Start COLA and to Transit 

carrying forward unspent federal funds from FY 21-22 due to COVID/ ARP funding and lack of 

local match necessary to request the funds. 

Page 2 of 3 



• We are reflecting the final spend of COVID/ARP funding. The amount being spent in FY 22-23 is 

a 91% decrease over FY 21-22. 

• State Federal is reflecting a 4% increase. This is due to Transit and Area Agency on Aging 

carrying forward prior year funds due to COVID/ ARP funding and lack of local match necessary 

to request the funds. 

• State funding is reflecting a decrease of 27%. Part of this decrease is due to 911 not knowing 

the amount of FY 22-23 equipment funding to be received so no amount was recorded. They 

expect to know by October 2022. 

• Overall, we are reflecting a 17% decrease in funding when compared to FY 21-22. The majority 

of this is related to COVID and ARP one-time funds. 

Page 3 of 3 



I 
\ 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 

L-

Concho Valley Council of Governments 
Organizational Chart 

-- - - --------- , Executive Board l 
Concho Va lley Tra nsi t I 

I ,- ' 
District Board I 1 Economic Developm •nt : 

I --- - ------- - - l 1 Dish·ict Board I 

Executive Director 
I 

I 
\ _________ _____ 

I I 

r Accounting/ Finance f Human Res0t1Tces l Information Teclmology l 

[ Procurem n t/ Ass ts J [ R ception.ist/Travel ) r Payroll ] 

[ Head Start l r ' [ ) 911 ER Retired and S nior Senior CVEconom i.c ADRC 

Com munications Vo]unteer P rogram Companions Development 
~ J Dish·ict 501 ©6 

r ' '-

l 
r 

r ' rim inal I-Iom .land cu rity Foster 211 
Concho 

Justi Grandpa rents Information 
Valley Transit J and Ref nal 

District I_ J 
I_ 

\._ / [ VISTA 
1 / ' / ' Sol id Ar a Agency on 

Waste Aging 

'- ~ '- J 

CVCOG Program Review Page 1 of 37 

' 

J 



CONCHO VALLEY COUNCIL OF GOVERNMENTS Fiscal Yea, October 1 lhtough Svptember 30 

PROGRAM SUMMARY 

Federal 

COVI0-19 and ARP Funding 
Stale Administrated Federal 
Stale 
Program Income 
Local Funds 
lnlenlsl 
lnKlnd 
Membership l>Jes 

Total Program Revonuo 

Adminis1ralivaCos1s 

-Svrvices 
Procurement 5e1Vlcos 
Human Resou""'5ofvlces 
Facl111y Cost Allocation 

Tolal Penenne I 

Total Cost Allocations 

Ddcplc Salaries 
Slipcnd • FGP/SCP Volunlocrs 

Uniforms 
lta:ogoition 

Auclit&Lcpl 

c-s.niocs 
HeadSwtScniocs 
AAA Meals 
Pus-Tluu Funds 
HeadSwtT&TA 
Tnvd-ln Region 

Tm·d-OutofR<gion 
Tm-cl Advisory 
Meals 
Tm-d-Vol1111-
Fud & Lubricant 
Vchidc MlinlaWl<C 
Tnsp~-cMaiat<mmco 
Cowlly Facility Real 
Ulililics 

Buildmg/Llnd Purdme 

Bldg MIUlll<IWlCC 
Capi!al Facility 1mp1m._ 
Supplies 
Head Slllll. Supplies 

Project~ 

~ 
Capi!al Equipmccl 
Copier 
lnsunnce 

Cell Phones 
lntanct 

Printins 
Ad., & Promolicm 
Publialiom 

Tninifl& 
Ducowrccs 
CorMlllru<ltions 
POSU&<ffn:ight 
911 Scniccs 

Otha 
Coffee Expense 
P~-sicals/Safi;c:,· 
lnKind Otha 
E.'Cffllth-cDinxlorAllowmoc: 
Gcncrd Assembly 

Sub-Total Program ExpondHuros 

FY 16-17 

ACTUAL 
7 797 820.84 

3 044 980.15 
3,712 377.77 

239,997.44 
1,628 926.95 

10046.76 
2 482 198.52 

95139.90 
19 011 490,33 

3,653,523.96 
. 
. 

1,588,513.24 

5 242.037,20 

842,877.28 

6778.37 
. 
. 

317.6118,60 

1167 354.23 

3 560947.92 
315 375.BO 

10 888.61 
58 875.02 
18,110.95 

428,090.19 
27,138.49 

418,837.65 

41,138.06 

23 629.16 
18 838.77 

63 027.02 
1592.09 

139 086.79 
55 378.93 

352906.06 
1 813.13 

242.004.00 
149,290.25 
46,737.64 

62,656.85 
157 ,!184.56 
145,461.39 

63,208.73 
112171.78 

55655.02 
1028483.55 

28614.86 
94 655.71 
26 731.1S 
21,816.31 
15,028.25 
9,723.71 
1,362.75 

64,976.24 
22.504.68 

102.627.64 
8,978.50 

1.811,139.85 
4,739.25 
1.621.08 

18,711.57 
2,482,198.52 

355.49 
1 975.53 

12,335,089.52 

FY 17-18 

ACTUAL 
8,195,810.46 

. 
2 799,623.39 
4 120,664.77 

236,769.99 
1,526,247.15 

7,851.06 
2 114,888.89 

99620.63 
19 103 276.36 

3.912,898.!18 
. 
. 

1,740,973.05 

5 653,872.03 

912,067.51 

6757.52 
. 
. 

307,544.42 
1 226,369,45 

3 609,744.67 
317,713.33 
20388.94 
34,057.22 
41.935.54 

513.428.65 
32,759.12 

406,488.37 

133.472.21 
37,356.86 

23,716.14 
66455.32 

1,874.02 
149,107.46 

56,427.52 
439895.25 

4,542.25 
304190.40 
149.m.90 
54.816.40 

. 
132,881.44 

. 
175.903.08 
61.431.70 
17,575.47 

189,231.72 
579,309.80 

16 686.21 
98,706.65 
17774.50 
22 380.26 
20,358.09 
5,597.42 
1,378.28 

54,783.82 

24.383.02 

106,924.03 

8.494.34 
2,127,575.34 

8,487.15 
2,025.78 

16.659.67 
2,114,688.89 

518.97 
2,702.19 

12,204,585.61 

FY 18-19 
ACTUAL 

8,726,253.20 

2,566,928.13 
5,019,941.20 

221850.63 
1,599 663.14 

17,615.36 
2.366,995.62 

108,130.05 

20 619,Jn.53 

4,612,739.91 
. 
. 

1,995,030.02 

6,607,769.93 

880,120.46 

202.484.25 
. 

326,178.89 
1,408,783.60 

3,197264.19 
309147.47 

3806.72 
57,959.06 
17.604.33 

592,578.52 
4,353.23 

403,604.79 
. 

21,018.86 

31 8118.09 

84306.50 
4,193.24 

198,333.24 
58,202.53 

434,508.16 
2,141.22 

359 814.21 
281,884.47 

71,615.37 
. 

160,826.27 
. 

165,299.73 

77431.10 
161,484.52 
23,649.00 
11,185.76 
27,799.48 

116 407.80 
8 996.20 

15 081.52 
29 046.13 

2 833.71 
411.92 

21.107.38 

24.742.55 
147,568.86 

9.910.10 

3.042. 703.44 
61.118.92 

1,899.03 
24.485.20 

2,368,995.82 
34.50 

2,035.95 
12,639,795.09 

FY 19-20 
ACTUAL 

9,814,471.95 
1,740,909.48 
2,886 795.63 

3590206.27 
160 907.92 

1654601.26 
10 058.96 

1 646,002.58 
101,528.33 

21805482.38 

6,714,752.62 
47,992.69 

. 
2,911,806.65 

9,674.552.16 

725,840.99 

266469.49 
144242.05 
260687.18 
331,263.83 

1728 703.54 

. 
355491.52 

18171,69 
46753.44 
44546.58 

610,389.60 
39,783.63 

537,720.53 

47761.72 
72759.77 

13167.58 
21538.04 

1 596.30 
257,886.63 

28078.25 
3391181.39 

6,769.87 
455195.33 
286196.72 
147972.46 

2240000.00 
305269.06 

8,515.00 
198281.97 
132 028.62 

3,035.28 
85,262.53 

643997.59 
49721.13 

122,584.14 

10133.37 
18383.75 
12 813.62 
4929.50 

270.84 

6327.54 
90,637.36 

174,018.61 

9,378.35 

1,222,173.10 

13.718.50 
781.97 

15,822.14 
1,848 002.58 

467.52 
1 793.12 

10,750,128.22 

FY 20-21 

ACTUAL 
9 250,256.28 
3,023 301.78 
2 452,070.06 
4,287 887.35 

161,376.38 
1657235.59 

15,785.24 
1 319,885.38 

103,360.53 

22.270,758.56 

7,042,346.07 
. 

3,108,270.93 

10 150,617.00 

687,995.22 

302,694.90 
340,437.71 
266,072.43 
379,317.43 

1996417.69 

. 
375541.50 
51934.60 
54802.98 
20,088.73 

665,013.72 
3,110.25 

599,008.16 
14,081.40 

103604.14 

12222.26 
4,789.26 

406,571.21 
20,975.17 

359,029.94 

629.47 
337753.20 
281,843.51 
161,498.12 

. 
306.207.60 
697,759.49 

262483.56 
118,769.94 
370,967.53 
134,915.62 
118,190.13 
38,949.42 

137940.59 
13 919.06 
21629.83 
18,197.91 
7 375.18 
1,502.07 

5,488.70 
45,118.54 

174149.33 
8,404.30 

1,789,179.79 

317,859.03 
531.92 

13 675.15 
1 .319,665,38 

. 
3,227.91 

9 618,605.60 

FY21·22 
BUDGET 

9,383 954.00 

4874248.00 
3 544,997.52 
5,743 497.78 

121,842.69 
1,545,615.66 

17,467.00 
2,042,715.00 

107,050.00 
27,381,387.65 

7,280 781 .58 
57,828.81 

111,625.00 

3,720,874.50 

11,171,109.89 

691,528.70 

406,415.88 
402,289.72 
302,080.31 
278,530.85 

2,080,825.46 

. 
351,388.00 

7,400.00 
103.016.96 
21,030.00 

526,018.89 
45,798.40 

513,413.06 

67,000.00 
85502.00 
39434.63 
78,773.62 

4,000.00 
412,769.00 
68,200.00 

328,810.19 
9,064.00 

494545.60 
284,269.50 
139,426.01 

. 
188.749.17 

. 
235,205.40 

117,558.87 
184,000.00 
61,900.00 

4,581,094.55 
51,133.30 

119,946.15 
8,500.00 

42,403.78 
47,389.90 

8,820.00 
500.00 

11.665.55 
49.895.20 

164,879.04 

21.884.80 

2.016.000.00 
158,500.00 

2,200.00 
18,645.08 

2,042,715.00 

500.00 
4,000.00 

13,737,743.63 

Grand Total Program ExpondHurcs ==1=B,.,744==,4=8=0=.9=5==1=9=,0=8=4,.,82=7=.0=9===a20=,6=5=6=,34=B.=62===a2=2,=1=53=,3=8=3=,9=2==2=1,=76=5=,6=4=0=.2=9==2=6,=9=B9=,6=7=8=.9=8~ 

RevenuoovorExpendtture•====2s .. 1,.,o.,0=9====1a2,=44=9====d;(3=6=,9=71;,il==dl;;;34;;;7,1;,9;,;0=2)b===50=5=,1=1=8====39=1=,7=0=9~ 

CVCOG Program Rovhtw Pace 2 of 37 

FY22-23 

BUDGET 
10 295 604.00 

432824.00 
3.687 813.55 
4,190,742.17 

213,022.00 
1,629,135.59 

9067.00 
2 202141.00 

100461.00 
22.761 010,31 

7,683,010.96 

3,562,599.08 

11245610.03 

692,832.46 

404 318.58 
389733.91 
383668.77 
330665.90 

2.201419.62 

. 
358,501.00 

5,625.00 
75,003.05 
18,552.00 

717,510.45 
11,027.05 

494,199.90 
50,000.00 
75682.00 

40139.02 
104 707.72 

4000.00 
414,525.00 
66,918.00 

458,179.23 

8034.60 
320179.36 
282720.00 
138490.72 

. 
159 573.35 

110997.00 
153,943.99 
117,099.97 

70,311.19 
20,808.05 
62,520.00 
47,069,61 

133,259.36 
18,959.60 
18,075.08 
32,028.00 
13,435.00 

1,828.23 

10,000.00 

43.557.19 

189.553.55 

18.256.00 
1,605,838.10 

11.342.57 
2,150.00 

18.435.00 
2.202, 141.00 

500.00 
4000.00 

8,707,673.94 

22,154,703.59 

606,307 



Q Executive/Finance Organization Chart ,~ 
CONCHO VALLEY 

COUNCIL OF GOVERNMENTS 

r ' Direc tor of Human Resources 

(Fe lici te Jones) 

'- ./ 

I 
I 

I 
I 

I 
I 

I 
I 

I 
I 

I 
I 

I 
I 

I 
I 

I 
I 

I 
I 

I 
I 

/ ' HR Adm in Assistant 

(Stephanie Laney) 

('10% E ecutive) 
'-

I 
I 

I 
I 

I 

I 
I 

I 

I 
I 

CVCOG Progra m Revie w Page 3 of 37 

/ 

I 

/ 

Executive Board 

I 

E 'ecutive Direc to r 

Oohn A us tin Sto kes) 

(90% VCOG, 10% CVEDD) 
'-----------,------------,------

1 I 

Ass is tant Execu tive D irecto r (35%)/ Regiona l 

Services Dir ctor (65 %) 

(Erin H rna ndez) 

/ 

Directo r of F i11ance (100 %) 

(Na ncy lanu a rio) 

,' , _________________ _ 
I 

/ 

'-
I 

r 
Fi nance Ma nag r (89%) / 

VEDD Loa n Specia lis t (11 % ) 

Gill Ram o n) 
'-

r 
Record Retention Offi c r 

Accounting T ch (100%) 

(Cheryl hank ) 

' 

Assis ta11t Director of F inance (100%) 

(Michae l Mee k) 

r 

\.. 

I 

Finance Manager / 

Asse ts (100 %) 

(Ne re lyn Da lton) 

Receptionis t/ Accounting 

T ch (100 %) 

(E te r Yba rra) 

/ 

'-

' 

\.. ______________ __,,.) '------------ .) 

' 

I 

Finance Manager 

CVTD (100%)/ Projects 

(Audrey Aguirre) 

I 
/ 

(100 %) CVTD Finance 

De partme nt ,md G rant 

Manage me nt 

'-

"\ 

' 



CONCHO VALLEY COUNCIL OF GOVERNMENTS Fiscal Year October 1 through September 30 

ADMINISTRATIVE 

Salaries/Wages 

Incentives and Certifications 

Fringe Benefrts 

Administrative Costs 

Network Services 

Procurement Services 

Human ResourceServices 

Facil~y Cost Allocation 

Audit & Legal 

Contract Services 

Travel-In Region 
Travel-Out of Region 

Rent 

Utilities 

Supplies 

Copier 

Insurance 

Cell Phones 

Printing 

Ads & Promotions 

Publications 

Training 

Dues and fees 

Communications 
Postage/freig,ht 

Total Personne I 

Total Cost Allocations 

Sub-Total Program Expenditures 

Pra,r.i m Allout ion 

Hunun Racw= 

Procumncnt 

Fx:iltiy 

VISTA 

Solid\V:i.stc 

CEDAF 

Grand Total Program Expenditures 

Economic Dc\·d opmcnt Di.strict 

91 1 ER Communictions 

Criminal Jusbcc Ae:1dcmy 

Crimi~ Justice Planning 

CriminaJ J11Sticc PurcluscofScniccs 

Criminal Justice VAWA 

Homc:l;mi:t Security 

T~11 

An::1 Agency on Aging 

ADRC 

211 lnfonn:ition & Rcfcrr:l 

Foster GrandpMCnt 

Senior Com~nion 

RSVP 

Head Start 

CVCOG Program Review Page 4 of 37 

FY 16-17 

ACTUAL 

491 ,911 

177,358 

669 ,269 

0 

15,360 

0 

0 

9,532 

24,892 

36,651 

0 

5,706 

7,243 

59,874 

9,825 

4,503 

(7,729) 

8,384 

1,611 

2,187 

359 

984 

3,319 

28.715 

3,831 

8,834 

174,297 

868 ,457 

~laris:J: elu1 Erinr:t 

272.lOO.t I 

318.)02.69 

217.880.l9 

80.7Kl.47 

67,017.46 

28,544.07 

6.82l.S3 

7l,872.22 

533,609.34 

87J2t.05 

36.638.00 

6.339,31 

20.824.06 

IJl, 11 7.79 

3,562. 186.9 I 

562.344,01 

?9,099.l5 

11 3,288.58 

70,636.7') 

44 ,902.60 

134,226.40 

5,680,6 16,06 

12,135,278.89 

FY 17-18 

ACTUAL 

517,961 

-
194,553 

712 ,514 

0 

24,733 

0 

0 

19,082 

43,815 

35,000 

0 

7,758 

12,865 

58,635 

0 

6,000 

(5 ,272) 

9,250 

1,355 

2,050 

2,750 

1,225 

5,625 

32,394 

4,109 

12,807 

186,551 

942,880 

Ps;r~s:;ntacs: 12 I.!$: 
~ 

0.02 

0.03 

0.02 

0.0 1 

0.01 

0.00 

0.00 

0.01 

0.04 

0.01 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0,01 

0.29 

o.os 
0.01 

0.01 

0.01 

0.00 

0.01 

0.47 

1.00 

FY 18-19 

ACTUAL 

492,909 

-
191,857 

684,766 

0 

26,146 

o 
0 

20,929 

47,075 

33,388 

2,631 

4,225 

10,195 

52,520 

0 

4,433 

(12,858) 

8,956 

(56) 

1,121 

333 

741 

1,950 

24,100 

0 

9,134 

140,813 

872 ,654 

~ Am2uni Al~altd 

16,78850 

19.622 .68 

1.3,423.44 

4,977.12 

4, 128.89 

l,7S858 

420.53 

4,674.42 

32 ,875.22 

5,392. 10 

2,257.24 

390.56 

l ,282.9S 

8,324.49 

219,463.3] 

34,645 .54 

4,873.26 

6,979.61 

'1 ,351 .87 

2,766.41 

8,269.S7 

349,977.93 

747,644.22 

6.16" 

FY 19-20 

ACTUAL 

360,758 

-
122,940 

483,698 

0 
10,971 

15,638 

6,303 

46 ,242 

79 ,154 

34,575 

897 

5,061 

2,659 

0 

o 
25,065 

(21 ,438) 

0 

0 

992 

90 

790 

361 

23.275 

0 

12,363 

84,690 

647,542 

FY 20-21 

ACTUAL 

340,122 

-
122,090 

462 ,212 

0 

15,196 

7,045 

7,201 

42,732 

72,174 

33,414 

2, 153 

6,260 

1,358 

0 

0 

8,887 

(7,180) 

1,486 

0 

584 

1,129 

1,162 

4,772 

28,413 

0 

4,113 

86,551 

PY bcus Returned 

620,937 

FY 21-22 

BUDGET 

413,930 

3,000.00 

149,254 

566,184 

0 

20,949 

8,247 

6,865 

37,208 

73,269 

51,000 

25,000 

11,859 

11,437 

0 

0 

62,369 

1,194 

0 

0 

4,015 

500 

1,250 

3,600 

31 ,759 

o 
10,507 

214,490 

(112,795) 

741,148 

FY 22-23 

BUDGET 

490,847 

-
168,526 

659 ,373 

0 

26,658 

9,292 

10,594 

38,302 

84,847 

42,542 

2,500 

13,418 

9,840 

0 

0 

19,750 

4,590 

2,111 

0 

3,850 

0 

1,279 

3,740 

14,009 

0 

7,085 

124,714 

(121,289) 

747,644 



CONCHO VALLEY COUNCIL OF GOVERNMENTS Fiscal Year October 1 through September 30 
NON-PROJECT 

Local Funds 

Membership Dues 

Total Program Revenue 

Salaries/Wages 

Overtime 
Incentives and Certifications 

Fringe Benefits 

AdministrativeCosts 

Network Services 

Procurement Services 

Human ResourceServices 
Facility Cost Allocation 

Total Personnel 

Total Cost Allocations 

Recognition - Employee 
Contract Services 
Travel-In Region 
Travel-Out of Region 
Supplies 
Copier 
Ads & Promotions 
Dues and fees 

Postage/freight 
Other 

Coffee Expense 
Executive Director Allowance 
General Assembly 

Sub-Total Program Expenditures 

FY 16-17 FY 17-18 FY 18-19 
ACTUAL ACTUAL ACTUAL 

1,092.46 601.13 7,683.79 
4,306.90 8,987.62 14,796.45 
5,399.36 9,588.75 22,480.24 

96.75 - 2,390.11 

- - -
28.05 - 515.48 

124.80 - 2,905.59 

19.08 - 387.05 

- - 87.75 

- - -
- - -
- - -

19.08 - 474.80 

1,314.15 1,668.23 2,612.15 

- - 1,000.00 

- - -
- 179.90 644.60 
- 9.48 537.05 
- - 113.84 

- - -
861.72 3,413.42 820.26 

- - 13.50 
11.87 245.00 -

736.72 851.56 664.78 
·•·· ·355.49, '•:.518.97 ,·-· 34.50 
···1,975:53< 2,702'.19 . 2;035;9'5· 

5,255.48 9,588.75 8,476.63 

FY 19-20 FY 20-21 
ACTUAL ACTUAL 

1,522.45 741.45 
8,194.73 14,645.10 
9,717.18 15,386.55 

197.50 -

- -
42.29 -

239.79 -

17.69 -
- -
- -
- -
- -

17.69 -

94.20 3,537.70 

- -
234.89 -

- -
3,392.87 -

26.38 8.62 
1,050.00 5,837.98 
1,618.75 6TT.09 

- -
- -

781.97 203.88 
467ls2·:, • >,:;: ·., 

,.1,793:12-, ·Ji;227l9:f: 
9,459.70 13,493.18 

FY 21-22 
BUDGET 

-
14,270.00 
14,270.00 

-

-
-
-

-
-

130.94 

-
-

130.94 

4,270.00 
-
-
-

1,500.00 

-
-

1,869.06 
500.00 

-
1,500.00 

; ,. ·~OO'iOO 
:' )tor:tQ'loo'; 

14,139.06 

Grand Total Program Expenditures 5,399.36 9,588.75 11,857.02 9,717.18 13,493.18 14,270.00 

Revenue over Expenditures 10,623.22 1,893.37 

Note: Salaries/Wages in prior years are for time spent fund raising and researching new grants 

CVCOG Program Review Page 5 of 37 

FY22-23 
BUDGET 

14,270.00 
14,270.00 

-
-

285.26 

-
-

285.26 

4,270.00 
-
-
-

1,500.00 

-
-

1.714.74 
500.00 

-
1,500.00 
· soo.:oo• 

:' ·14,000.{00 
13,984.74 

14,270.00 

(0.00) 



e 
CONCHO VALLEY 

/' 

'-

COUNCIL OF COVERNMENTS 

/' 

\. 

Proctuement Program 
Manager 

(Danielle Echols) 

r 
Procurement 

Processing 

(VACA T) 

'-

Procurement Organization Chart 

I' 

/ 

"\ 

Executive Board 

Executive Director 

(John Austin Stokes) 

Director of Finance 

(Nancy Ianuario) 

Assistant Director of Finance 

(Michael Meek) 

Contract Specialis t/Purchaser II 
(Jaylon S ales) 

/ 

/ ' Procu rement 
Processing '-

(Teiauda 
San tellano) 

' 

r 
Pm chasing II 

(Justin Lowney) 

Purchasing I/Processing 

(Angel Rodriguez) 

,I 

CVCOG Program Review Page 6 of 37 

,I 



CONCHO VALLEY COUNCIL OF GOVERNMENTS Fiscal Year October 1 through September 30 

PROCUREMENT SERVICES COST CENTER 

Salaries/Wages 

Incentives and Certifica tions 

Fringe Benefils 

AdministrativeCosts 

Network Services 

Procurement Services 

Human ResourceServices 

Faciltiy Cost Allocatk>n 

Tr:wcl•ln Region 
T n ,·d-Out of Region 
Fucl & Lubricant 
Vcluclc M:iintenmc.c 
Supplies 
Computcr/Sonw:1.rc 
Copier 
Cell Phones 

Ads & Promotions 
Training 
Dues and fees 

Postagc/fn:ight 

Tot~I Pcrsonne I 

Total Cost Allocations 

Sub•Total Program Expenditures 

FY 16-17 

ACTUAL 

FY 17-18 

ACTUAL 

FY 18- 19 

ACTUAL 

-

FY 19-20 

ACTUAL 

112.797 

55,965 

166,762 

12,415 

10,174 

5,251 

17,991 

45,631 

20 

1,059 

1,276 

5,576 

161 

30 

297 

40 

221 

23 

FY 20-21 

ACTUAL 

214,134 

95,916 

310,049 

21,006 

20,296 

7, 532 

40,1 01 

88,938 

725 

1,948 

5,296 

15 

2,823 

FY 21-22 

BUOGET 
208,955 

3,000.00 

110,572 

322,527 

19,964 

33,519 

6,865 

34,091 

94,439 

2,000 

3,000 

500 

3,000 

~----~----~----"----~'------..... --8,705 10,807 6,500 

FY 22-23 

BUDGET 
211 ,043 

9,275.05 

107,459 

327,776 

20,194 

35,544 

9,081 

34,077 

98,896 

500 

3,000 

3,000 

2,000 

3,000 

500 

1,000 

13,000 

Grand Total Program Expenditures ====:============ = ================;;,;,======;;;,;;;,;,~ 
Note: Expenses allocated to Programs based on S amount of Program Procurements 

223,298 409,795 425.466 439,674 

Department consists or 6 employees to perform procurement for progra ms 

~ fr::u:tD1Ht:Ulbs: ~ 
P1ot1am Aloutktfl llldm - -Admini.wauon 97.716.00 0.02 s 9,191.5] 
Non-Proj«-1 ),(XX).00 0 .00 s 215.:16 
Nct111urt 

19 1,5 16.00 0.l)I 1.8,110.70 
l lwnai,lle,ourco 

.0,-461.00 0.01 •,ll1.2.5 
LlokRo-l 1'2,!,,02.00 0.()1 1.A,]O,U6 
SohdWutcc 

66 . .w'JDO 0.01 lii.lll.71 
f.conomir. ~'ti,opnm. l.Mlnel l-''9.00 0.00 J65.'J9 
EDU AdJ~ 

ViJta 
1.000.00 0.00 ""' IJ 11 ER Com111UNQlkln., 

1,6-4 1,f,6 1,61 0.36 1!>6. 100.1.5 
CtimiMIJIUti«A~y l7,U6.C•:> 0.01 s l ,51 1.1.5 
CJ !Jt.ming 

CJ J1n~Jiub« ~._.,. 
17.!.i06..l0 0.00 J,66,t.61 

CJ VAWA. 
6,137.95 0.00 640.69 

I lomdand .s«unty 'J,766.00 0.00 92161 
l=• 1.271.016.99 0.18 s 111,522.9) 
Alu~,inA.ga"lS 192,500.00 0.1)4 s 1!,J04.27 
AORC 

'J.J,716,09 0.00 s 2, 165.71 
2 11 lnfotmalKID .I. RdCn.J 

2,700.00 0.00 256.74 

'"""°"""'"""' lS.36200 0.01 s :1.'11.60 
SmiorC~ 15.915.00 0.00 s LS l <J.97 
RSV1' 

17. 115.00 0.00 s 1.6'1J7 
lla.JSwt 

757.ltU0 0, 16 s 71,9')5..26 

•,c.Jl,906.'1 1.00 s •J9.67J.IS 

CVCOG Program Review Pa.ge 7 of 37 



t 

/ 

CONCHO VALLEY 
COUNCIL OF GOVERNMENTS 

Human Resources 
Organizational Chart 

Executive Director 
(John Austin Stokes) 

'"----------------,----------"' 

I 

'-

/ 

' 

Director of Human Resources 
(F elici tee Jones) 

Human Resource Supervisor 
(Felicia Lindsey) 

/ 

, 

Payroll/HR 
Coordinator 

(Renate Cortez) HR/ Admin Assistant 
(Stephanie Laney) 

CVCOG Program Review Page 8 of Page 37 



CONCHO VALLEY COUNCIL OF GOVERNMENTS Fiscal Year October 1 through September 30 

HUMAN RESOURCES SERVICES COST CENTER 

SalariesM/ages 

Incentives and Certifications 

Fringe Benefits 

Administrative Costs 

Networi< Services 

Procurement Services 

Human ResourceServices 

Facility Cost Allocation 

Travel-In Region 

Travel-Out of Region 

Conference F·ccs 

Supplies 

Computcr/Soft\'lare 

Copier 
T raining 

Dues and fees 
Postage/freight 

Total Personnel 

Total Cost Allocations 

Sub-Total Program Expenditures 

FY 16-17 

ACTUAL 

-

-

-
-

FY 17-18 

ACTUAL 

-
-

-
-

-
-

FY 18-19 

ACTUAL 

-

FY 19-20 

ACTUAL 

124.129 

47,137 

171,266 

12,593 

10,672 

41,755 

20,784 

85,804 

271 

2,967 

3.433 

3,604 

300 
11 ,959 

113 

22,647 

FY 20-21 

ACTUAL 

147,911 

53,032 

200,943 

13,620 

12,192 

33,592 

19,280 

78,683 

107 

1.391 

2.604 
1.771 

1.093 

19,769 

350 

27,086 

FY 21-22 

BUDGET 

160,384 

2,000 

71,350 

233,734 

14,468 

16,759 

960 

23,061 

55,248 

1.500 

1.000 

1.000 
2,000 

1.000 

2.000 
3,500 

20,000 

550 

32,550 

FY 22-23 

BUDGET 
192,037 

9,500 

80,463 

282,000 

17,374 

17,772 

4,133 

-
35,857 

75,137 

1,500 

1,000 

1,000 

2.000 
1,000 

2.000 
3,500 

40,468 

550 

53 ,018 

Grand Total Program Expenditures ===================2=7=9=,7=1=7=====3=0=6,=7=1=3=====3=2=1=,5=3=2= ====4=1=0'=1=5=5 
Note: Expenses allocated to Programs based on number of employees In Program 

Department consists of 4 employees to cover all staffing needs for CVCOG 

ec[i f!!:J i•ui 12 b.- ~ 
p,ocfl11"1 Alloculon !.iml!!= !llwl<!! ~ 
Adm.i~at1011 0 .03 10.594.40 

l'rocurcmcn1 6 0.02 9,080.92 

Nct\HJtL. 0 ,0 1 4,!»40.46 

fx1luy I 5 0.0 1 2,270.23 

SolidW.astc: 04 0.00 605.39 

COBG 01 0.00 s 1S l.3S 
V,st, 

0.00 l .513.49 
~liC IX''Clcptn,cnt Oi\ll1 1 0.5 0.00 756,J.1 

El)!) Md,.,.~ng 
0.00 1,513 .49 

911 F.R Communicaooo, 0.03 12. 107.119 

Cnm.uu.l JU$11cc Aa&:my 0.00 1..5 1.3 .49 
CJPlanrung o .. u 0.00 66S.93 
I lo:ndmd S«unty 1.56 0.01 2,361.04 
Tran.tll 77 S 0.29 117,295.19 

l\.rca Arcncy on A~mg 0.03 12,107.89 

ADRC 0.0 1 3,026.9 7 
211 lnformo.tion & Rcfanal 0.01 4,S40.46 

Foster Giandparcnt 0 .00 1,513.49 

Senior Companion 0.00 1,513.49 
f{:S VJ' 0 ,0 1 3,02 6.97 
lic;wJS111't 145 0 ,54 21 9.4 S5.Sl 

271.00 1.00 410,1S4.78 

I luman R~«:$ 

Total Pos!Uon, 27S.OO 

CVCOG Program Review Page 9 of 37 



t 

r 

CONCHO VALLEY 
COUNCIL OF GOVERNMENTS 

/ 

Information Technology 
Organizational Chart 

Executive Director 
(John Austin Stokes) 

Director of Infonnation Teclmology 
(Hayden Salandy) 

' 

'--- ------.--------

t 
System Support 

Technician 
(Douglas Futrell) 

System Support 
Specialist 

(Matthew Kuhn) 

CVCOG Program Revi ew Page 10 of Page 37 



CONCHO VALLEY COU ClL OF GOVERNMENTS F1scal Vear Oclober 1 truough Sept~mber 30 

1NFORMATION TECHNOLOGY COST CENTER 

Salanes/W.a gaa 

runi;e Benefrts 

A.dm1nist!'atrve Cos.ts. 

Network SeMcn 
P10c1,mem~t s.rviets 

Huma n ResourcaServices 

Facility Cot.t Allocation 

Cualnt l Sc ,,·ICC"~ 

Trarrl-ln ~rgloG 

S1pplin: 

P roj c-l"I £q11lpmc1.1: 

Comp111, r/Sofhnrc>: 

Tot:il Personnel 

Tot.al Ca5t Alloc.:iitlan.s 

c.w.. 
T_. flil' IT SU.fl 

"-s..,,1-
:S• i&.:la. 

lluol-+-aJ..MM....,_..,.. 

c~-~a..:.. Clf>b...1111. ..--.) 

Oni-:cs..,.1-ro 

kvUrC--. S)..U. 

E!,OP'l llr-n 

t,.rt,,plmffSt..Jf 

o.&.z.i,f«rrsun 

l~ f,.rT St..,/i 

mcwr.- ~~ 
~li,,_....,......_k..J tS...:.-ITl 

~m...lsllMtho , ,. 

M1 ijl'o,jtft !of ... M lil~lr!i (' S2 ftlO, IN" fflli1 K f l 

D,wa..,,u""il'M:l!(VCOGI 

c.cr.."".~""'lllleltl!r 
nffc,.,,,;a, .. 14: 

'SOl ~ l,1:-

lb!N h d,,.,, .,M111a tn, 

....... locN"'4c (1'l"'~lbo,,nf'$.JZ..~ n.ol ._ __ 
•• -d/ Wo:b f' .... --c 

s.ott..1r• ~tlaiMaMupc,rHn1 

ai-t-1 • wm MIMI 

,t,,,,1"""'8~)~tn 

... . ,.,~ iy.-M.tr.t.5',ppo,t 

IM-Tln\eMl(n 'IIOII 

'"'"-"'~o... ou,,""=' 
A-'T,KDIOISJ'll,rft, 

Cc-II Pli•.111n 

Trwl"f"J: 
D1t11t1d f tt1 

Comm• 11iatiou 

Sub,Tocal Program bpendituriu 

FY 16-17 FY 17°1 8 FY 16- 19 

ACTUAL ACTUAL ACTUAL 

77.328 61,27$ 114 ,10( 

17,976 20,764 34,626 

95 ,J0,4 102.030 149.)28 

15.353 ,6.500 19,8.90 

7,55(1 8 .251 9 ,1 30 

22,910 24,'1 51 29 ,020 

1,~65 1 

6, 16S 2,-1 1:5 

2,047 366 
1,234 

1,824 

66 

433 951 
83\ 

580 199 
47 

6 ,676 

2.5"' 
"60 

1 407 

1.695 

12,317 9,639 12,172 

1,940 

•2 
088 •Bt> 

59• 
1.350 

1,350 

3.199 
7,708 8,107 8.360 

360 36<) 300 
31D 05 

31.340 
12 ,89tl 22,S!kl 47,433 

FY 19-20 FY2Q..21 FY 2 1-22 FY 22-23 

ACTUAL ACTUAL BUOGEl' BUDGET 

14 5.{189 179,631 184,864 15-4,626 

2.000 9,500 

57 ,239 87, i. 22 82,935 63.253 

20J.229 266.752 269,799 227,331 

14.9$1 17.268 16.701 14,009 

1,49"; 3,682 6.9.41 18.21 1 

3,228 ti .799 4,577 4.5"0 

19,351 20,974 21 ,302 34.680 

39,024 46,723 -49,521 71 .440 

;00 I 1.~ 1 1.~00 I 1,500 : 5.000 I 
4,6 16 ,,,oo 1.000 7.000 

27 500 500 

180 500 500 

30 135 1.500 1.500 

412 1,500 1,500 

2.896 849 1,000 1,000 

1,270 710 2.000 2.000 

4 ,878 1.977 55,000 l ,000 

4,218 ,.un 
3,000 3-.000 

660 

45.000 
7,000 

1-4,979 17,032 44,093 128,680 

2665 3,037 3 ,570 3.570 

42 70 70 
400 440 

1•5 145 
80 

10000 10,000 
g,168 ZB.650 
1,000 1,000 

3600 1,500 1 980 
1,656 1.00$ 1.985 

288 ,s, 300 300 

1,415 1,415 

8.-446 8.995 .9,500 g_500 

64.625 

2,250 2,690 

2.750 2.750 2,750 

120 
724 798 l.600 1.600 ., 100 100 

ao.12a 28,759 52,1122 -0,736 

56.J0S 51,:592 162.515 139,916 

Grand Tobi PrQCJram E,;pe-ndlturu __ ,.n;a1,..2;aao9.,__.:.1•. •~••;.;.'"a,..-.:2.:;25;;;,•;;;>;;.• _....;:>.:;••;;;,5;;;5;;:.8 _ _:3:;:G;:;S,068::;:::_...,;48:;;:.:,;1,8::;l:,;:S ___ ....;:480::::.,:,7:.;:3.:,.7 
Nate; LJ'pcn,os alloc.ated to Program• buC'd on number of emall .accounts 

FY 19-20 incre.ue rclaled to .addiliom1I s1.aff rTH!'fflbcr ,added. FY 20-21 o11ddcd ano more m embc:!r ta mfft progr.am dem~,. 

l'n;,p,.,.~.
......,_."
l'K.:IWUIIIUII 

F, cilliy 
,.._._R-__ 

F.,;.......ia:[k..,.i._,..-1~ 

f-Vl.) ,Ydn,u""' 

~11F.kc---~
c,_11wca:cM~ 

c,,,_,_. 
ll..,,d.,,ad S...:,,ul)' ,,_ 

211 lrJ'ffllUIM!il.K,rfonJ 

F-Gr-i,...r

,._c..,_. 
Rm 
lluJ,._, 

---... ~to ,....,__ -o,oµ~ s zu~ 11 

0.01}1 S U.H• 4!I 

OOO'JJ • ,•U..o& 

G.0JM J7,77J1 • 

0.00!1 4,0 .I.OI 

0.0111 f.,U6J1 

O.OO'J I S 4,UU~ 

0.0i'n l S &,&IJ °' 

O.IQ'JI S SU l'-.lJ 

0.0U1 5 &,Uli.1' 

O.OU J S i,IUU 

Gl ).ti S U.•.~11 

0,01U S l i,H-40 

0,011.1 S I.IIL1J 

o.1m,,. s 11:,-nH 
all(J")J , .. u 10f. ... aixn, J.u,,.. 
aon, s 10., ,1.1? 

?-' tl JUJ S 1°',li- u .41 

..... UtUl~!JC,>....,fo.,.•Auh ___ ~IIO~,O,~----"LO,CC...S'--'" CC' ·cc' 'cc.' '-',.." 

fo,..Jf,ull!Aa:-U.tiofJ=:---,~,d~OO~ 

CVCOG Procnm P..e:vlew Paee l1 of 37 



/ 

/ 

' 

CONCHO VALLEY 
COUNCIL OF GOVERNMENTS 

,-

\.. 

r 

Facility Management 
Organizational Chart 

Executive Director 
(John Austin Stokes) 

Director of Transit 
(Jeffery York) 

Facilities Manager 
(Ryan Jans a) 

_) 

Maintenance Tech 
(Leonel Lopez) 

Maintenance Tech 
(Juan Aguilar) 

CVCOG Program Review Page 12 of Page 37 



CONCHO VALLEY COUNCIL OF GOVERNMENTS Fer.cal Year October 1 ttYough September JO 
FACILITY MAINTENANCE. COST CENTER- U"lk Road 

Sa.larlesMJagcs 
Incentive, a nd CertifJCalions 

Fringe Benefits 

Adml'll$trativeCQ1l:ts 

Netwof'k Serv\Ces 

Procurement SeMCe-S 

Human Res°'-l'·Cl!! ScMCeS 

Faciity CostAloc.iltion 

Total Personoc 1 

Tobi Cos t Allocalions 

Uniforms 

Contnact SorviCCli 

Tr::avel-ln Region 

Facilrty Improvement 
Southland P:,rk Leiir.e 

Cnpital Construction-local 

IToUi l Utilities 

Gas Utiitics 

W eter utwties 

Trash Service:. 
Electric l.ltities 

Sovthland Storm Water Fee 

!Tobi BU11ding Ma~ 

Floo< 

Geoetatoc Mailtenance 
I'¥ F"iiter Maiitenance 

AC Mainlenance 

Pest Conu~ 

Non-Vehicle Ma(lten~nce 

Angelo Watl!f AO Service 

Misc Electrical Maintenance 

Misc Building Miin1em:mce 

Misc Plumbing MainleMnce 
ClNTAS (m att., mops a nd t erry cloths) 

Suppl~ 

Cluning Suppie,; 

Geoe1B!S1.-ppf;e:s 

klsuranc:e 

I Phys lea 1s1Sor.1y 

r•-A!.•Sd\it:c 
~tw,,>[ 

Af:D (lldtl:wll.,,,.. 

r ..... f....l~s.--.-iGc 

Loop 306 

FY 16-17 

ACTUAL 

19.~00 I 

15,910 

1,932 

3,718 

2,340 

2, 11 8 

266 

\.766 
753 

3,017 

•.508 

"4 ,010 

.!98 

61 9 

619 

loo;::i 306 

FY 17-1• 

ACTUAL 

22.396 

13.280 

3S,676 

5.754 

20.se• 
26,342 

2, '.231 

« ,338 

760 

2,825 

3,6"6 

36.559 
528 

17.390 

41• 
5,377 

1,-40& 

1,757 

168 

5,504 

562 
2,200 

6,073 

5,11 2 

961 

395 

570 

325 

loop 306 

FY 13-19 

ACTUAL 

22.56 1 

15. 108 

37 ,669 

5 ,017 

1,133 

20,369 

26 ,52• 

37,861 

729 

2,946 

3,149 

30,358 

679 

19,235 

2.524 

7, 13.-4 

405 

2, 192 

270 

3,901 

1.4•• 
1.365 

5,709 

3,1 96 

2,5 13 

704 

524 

180 

loop 306 

FY 19-20 

ACTUAL 

23 ,620 

14 .685 

38 ,305 

2.8 17 

2.629 

6,613 

1,063 

15,122 

312,000 

3 12,000 

30,991 

857 

3 ,1 06 

3.875 

23 .1 53 

24.567 

l .S07 
9,1.(9 

495 

1,877 

1,528 

7,079 

909 

1,723 

6,058 

4,252 

1,806 

8,206 1 

5S5 

203 

262 

90 

Loop 306 

FY 20-21 

ACTUAL 

22 ,603 

13,379 

JS,982 

2 ,•36 

2 ,667 

25,038 

1,109 

31 ,2.S0 

~1 • I 
114 

312,000 

312.000 

43,713 

1,037 

3.075 

3,401 

33,U t 
2,339 

23,602 

10,980 

495 

I 99 7 

923 

4,726 

2 ,518 

1.963 

2.8,464 

5,015 

23 ,453 

6,8561 

570 

570 

Bolh Fi1cilities 

FY 21 -22 

BUDGET 

23,179 

500 

16,711 

•0,390 

2.500 

4,190 

7,049 

1.14"4 

1(,893 

67 ; .. I 
1,:300 

153,333 

130,000 

23 ,333 

. ... ,57 
1,792 

3,392 

3.776 

34 914 

283 

35,118 

4.157 

6.11!6 

2.917 

769 

5, 133 

2463 

667 

6,58" 
-4,7-41 

1,501 

6.817 
3,798 

3.019 

11.161 I 

J,e,7 

3,364 

200 

28 3 

Link Road 

FY22-23 

BUDGET 

54 ,•18 

26,367 

80,735 

"4 ,977 

4,443 

H!,3CM 

2~270 

21,9'5 

140.: 1 
500 

JO.ODO 

30,000 

54,738 

6.360 

3.B12 

4.266 

38,lOO 

88,195 

8.200 

3,000 

38,000 

565 

2,382 

546 

24,000 

8,000 

3,502 

15,860 

HOO 
11 ,260 

24.251 I 

9,453 

J ,s,1 

5.000 

350 

267 

Sub-Tobi Program E.1.penditures._l ---------•-'o.:.:.8..:.37'-'-1 ---'7'-'0.:.:,8.c19'-'-l ---'6.:..:3·.:..:50;.:;9_.l ___ ..:.3.:..:82::;,3cc77.:....i.1 _ _ 4.:.;1;.:;S:.:·• .:.:•2:..J..I ___ l.:..:2:.:9:.:,57.;.•;..i..l ___ ..:.' .:..:•';.:;·O;.:;O=Z I 
Grand Tot:a l Program fapenditu rn ------===•=0=4=37=====11=2._a,.11._ ___ 1,.21.._10_2 __ ===•3=5=••=0=4 ==4ll= J,.o .. 7<;.. ____ ,e;.;4;,;,M,;;7...,===,.4=7l=,7,.B;;.2 

Note: Expenses 3.!loc.2tcd to Progr;1rn:5- based on square tootago 0<:cuplcd at Link R0.1 d 

-&>ACl4ll~-

11]1~4 

,t l)l'.Cu;

.-1)11.( t liwlirl( H;n,lc.ato, 

-">'1C,rD<T100n1n1Hp,, rtOfr,u , .. 
"' .,VP 

tlluun 

vm 

...... .. U., (........,lr• t.-...:1 

r.« r-ix-.. 

Sq 1991:Ht WMPd 

JlLOO 

'""' 1'.50 

ll?.-00 

IJ0.00 

"'°' ,.,_., 
<tSU)) 

JSO.IO 

zms 
urn 

'""'° I0.00 

t:14.00 

UJS-CICl 

1_1.t!UlO 

1..U.00 

usu» 
Lll0.00 ...... ., 

'11.00 

,uoo 

,.,. 9.!191.1, ,~. 11.5-«.99 

1.lO'J.00 ,.,. 11,'80.f], 

, .... S,UU I .. ,. 6, I J0.1 1 

2.S.<JS7.l7 

U,611.Sl ~-
'·"" 
LJ"' ID,!.11.19' 

l .,U" (,,7!19.4& 

OJM,C 3,96152 

11.!.)1'1: ft7, / U . l6 

0.51" 2,04,6,l 

J.UX ll/117.JS 

10m. J.l,1'!>52 

l.Jl" J..l,6,10.2S 

,,,. }S,l!,J.l9 

.U,>0,.11 

1.1,,ii JA.016.!>9 

J.4,,!,1.90 

'·"" 14 )16. 19 

, ... 11 ,!0155 

.:,61.1.00 

---------'~'-~"~'·"~--....;'::;"':;::·""':::, ml.lSt eqwl 100% 
C:-,mon~p.oeclT•~1N~ordl<ooml 2..1 ,512 

i'K~yoffll:u _ _________ -"20"--> 

To lal otliu, 'f',O<~ ----------==== 

l!.o2m.l1 

""' 5106 

""' 
"°' 

, _ _,,1,1.11 

~'tU& 

[l;f 

"" 
"" 
"" 
"" 

'°" 
'"" 
"" 
"" 



[ CVTD Board 

E eculive Director 
(John Austin Stokes) ~ 

Concho Valley 
Transit 

Organizational Chart CONCHO VALLEY 

Dii-ec tor of Finan e 
(Nancy hmuario) 

Finan Manager 
(AudJ· y Aguirre) 

De elopm nt 
Coordinator/ 
Grant Writer / 

Office 
Administrator 

( ' \C Nf) 

CVT Finance 
Specialist 

(Devin Williams) 

Accounting 
Technician 
(V cant) 

Dir tor of Transit 
(Jeff York) 

COUNCIL OF GOVERNMENTS 

Assjs tan t Director 
(Ryan I Te rrera) 

Operation and Safely 
Manager 

(O' Keith W atherspoon) 

Research 
peciahst 
(Amos 

Ojwang) 

Safety / Training 
and Compliance 
(Blanca Cardo na) 

Vehicle 
Maintenance 

(Bobb 
S hwe rnte r) 

F ixed Route 
Supervisor 

(Randy Schne ider) 

Lead 
Driver 

(Christina 
Abarca) 

Fixed Rout 
Drive rs 
FT (10) 
PT (7) 

Operations and Safety 
Manager 

(Jerami Warren) 

Demand Response 
Sup rvisor 

(Jess Cavin) 

Lead Driver 
(Johnathm1 Clover) 

Demand Respons 
Drivers 
FT (12) 

Rural Road 
Sup rvjsor 

(Dustin Medders) 

Lead Dispatch 
(L She ffi e ld) 

is patchers 
(2) 

Greyhound Lead 
(Al xis Jim nez) 

Facilities Manager 
(Ryan Jan a) 

Bujlding 
Maintenance 

(Juan Aguilar) 
(Leonel Lopez) 

Lead Driver (2) 
(Brenda l lodges) 

(Carl Lohman) 

Rural Drivers 
FT (14) 
PT (2) 

CVCOG Program Review Page 14 of Page 37 PTCashi r 
(1) 



CONCHO VALLEY COUNCIL OF GOVERNMENTS Fiscal Year Oc:tobor 1 tluough September 30 
Concho Valle)' Transit Dlsllk:I 

Fadmal 

COVID-19 Funding 
Stale Admlnlsltalecl Federal 
Slate 
l'nlgram lncoma 

Local Funds 
lnKind-Toll~ 

T•I Pnlsntm Rovonua 

Totall'onloMGI 

Admlnis!rativoCosts 

NolwolltSoMcos 
Procutemonl Servlcos 
Human RolOUICOSemc:os 
Fadllly COst Allocation 

Total Cost All-11ona 

~ 

Audit&: Lcsal 
C-Savica 
Pus,Thni Funds 
Tm-cl-ID Rqian 
Tm,:I.OmofRqim 

Fuel&: Lubricaml &: Tua 
TmpVohidoMainlmamce 
Caunly Fm:ility Rail 
Utilida 
Buildina/L=d Puidwc 
BldaMaintalaDcc 
Copit&!Fm:ilitylmpm'CDICIIIS 
Sapplia 
Project Equipment 
ComputcrlSoftwo 
Copilll Equipment 
Copia 
Insurance 
Cdll'boacs 
lnlcma 
Priming 
Ads&: Pnimoliom 
Publialiom 
Tl'lininJ 
Dues 1111d fees 
Corrmumicaliam 
~ 
Other 

Cotra:"
Ph)'SicablSafcty 
lnlCmdOthcr 

s~b-T•I ""'9ram Expenditures 

FY 16-17 
ACTUAL 
1,427 625.00 

-
1413 771.92 

611399.00 
177,995.17 

1537156.97 
90828.00 

..... 774.06 

1559540.50 

-
725,229.58 

2,2114.770.08 

366,654.03 

-
16,817.44 

383,471.47 

5733.31 
16735.95 

144697.21 
41138.06 

3283.31 
11383.32 

352 310.19 
242004.00 
120000.00 
21,471.88 . 
18,458.28 

157,994.58 
29,454.99 . 
52.229.77 

727119.23 
1 083.14 

89,047.95 
23787.77 
21,816.31 
6,369.35 
2999.38 
1362.75 

80 529.74 
9429.20 

75698.94 
3585.33 
4,183.98 

884.36 
16852.87 
90628.00 

2.350 260.83 

FY17-18 

ACTUAL 
1,601,172.00 

-
1,344,913.36 
1 035.267.00 

202,628.63 
1,448 852.48 

110621.00 
5 741854.45 

1,840 120.56 

-
-

843,149.38 

2,683 269.94 

432,976.07 

15466.40 
448"2.47 

1516.19 
18474.87 

188-279.78 
133472.21 

3407.48 
9774.29 

439134.50 
304190.40 
120000.00 
25475.14 . 
63142.52 

-
90,080.70 
10,255.28 

188 352.72 
579309.BO 

3539.05 
93,848.00 
15.325.52 
22.380.26 
14.213.85 
4,026.81 
1378.28 

45817.62 
4613.77 

78658.85 
3992.36 
8014.22 
1174.22 

13852.17 
110621.00 

2.809 922.04 

FY 18-19 
ACTUAL 
1703482.00 

-
919,510.00 
843,920.00 
178,485.22 

1 505,987.24 
28889.00 

5.178.233,48 

2.041 521.18 

-
-

981,335.92 

3.022.857,10 

402,644.67 

91,290.52 

-
-

3,748.58 
497,683.75 

2,071.42 
17,804.33 

162-218.84 

-
3_,:211_87 

18 201.43 
433622.39 
359814.21 
120000.00 
27,398.58 

-
28439,35 

-
95,088.83 
28835.48 

1080.00 
11185.78 
3611.41 

109848.00 
8,185.39 

15081.52 
19,088.62 

738.58 
411.92 

13,762.88 
3,256.47 

122,804.00 
4,244.25 

60,718.92 
1.234.25 

14654.25 
28889.00 

1,707,131.73 

FY 19-20 
ACTUAL 
2686548.00 
1142975.44 
1198351.00 

823,556.00 
118,910.02 

1,532,447.85 
120,903.00 

7621,691.31 

1873933.81 
47992.69 

-
982,513.20 

2.784,439.50 

219,378.08 

47132.88 
55585.40 
72,747.11 

3,079.54 
397922.81 

14,171.41 
23944.58 

162021.95 
47781.72 

1.920.92 
1043.89 

339039.87 
455195.33 
120000.00 
40978.11 

2,240 000.00 
112.218.32 

8,515.00 
95,943.22 
3,035.28 

84,232.53 
519042.00 

2,898.13 
107,741.24 

8,898.79 
15338.58 
4,315.06 

159.57 
270.B4 

1.213.54 
86,732.79 

147520.92 
3,463.25 
3,989.48 

-
14,568.79 

120.903.00 
4 764.716. 11 

FY20-21 
ACTUAL 
1950067.20 
1902646.19 

895,578.00 
609300.00 
105,258.12 

1 532,273.18 
39940.00 

7035060.89 

2 186 324.156 

-
-

1,019,905.15 
~-, .... 1, 

217,372.86 

80221.15 
118229.67 
88.528.66 
22.859.18 

525.211.92 

43,350.42 
20088.73 
77055.41 
14081.40 

16.00 

-
357977.73 
337753.20 
120,000.00 

48947.53 

-
155 047.37 
897759.49 
153799.98 
100831.98 

9537.78 
118190.13 

1017.48 
121,373.00 

6 840.38 
15146.26 
11,778.56 

341.00 
1 502.07 

-
17485.52 

148537.98 
2 777.60 

16,621.47 
326.04 

12 424.13 
39940.00 

2.850750.56 

FY21•22 
BUDGET 
1,948 510.00 
3898225.00 
1240191.00 

820928.00 
81826.69 

1 ?G'7822,38 

20400.00 
9107903.07 

2283798.35 
57628.81 
34,500.00 

1,249,088.40 

~-'15.56 

223,162.94 

134075.35 
167069.29 
99549.20 
11367.23 

'"'-~"'-~.91 

5000.00 
21030.00 

7000.00 

-
1 500.00 

10000.00 
321810.19 
494545.80 
120,000.00 

24065.70 

-
45000.00 

-
128,812.21 

-
5000.00 

3014637.00 
2800.00 

103548.88 
3700.00 

15403.78 
5189.90 

200.00 
500.00 

-
15539.20 

133879.04 
3443.32 
8 500.00 

700.00 
13685.08 
20400.00 

4 525.887.88 

GnanctTot:a1""'9ramExpandltures==s=,=01=a=',S02.===36===-5.=74=1=1654.===45===""'"5."'2Z7"""',&"'72.-=58=====7,=94=7=,0=78=·=42===-a5,582,==1=92.==1=9===••=7=86,=1=4=7.=35= 

RII...-Ollllf'Expandltures...,_=240==,'D=1='=68==========(=49=1439.='==1231===='=325,387====·=11=)====452,=--888.50i=iii=ia==-32=1=,7=55=·=72= 

NOTE: lhelnnllt - FlscalYOlt lsSeplemberthrough Aulllffl. 
FY 111-lll used prior wear funds to purchase vehicles 
FY 19-20 used prloryur funds to purchase land at O.ristoval Road 

FY 19-20, FY 20-21. and FY 21·22 "'8eclfntl CDVID and ARP fundln1 

FY 22•23 -.i and State Fodenl award Increases are due lo the requirement •o-d COVtD and ARP fundlna first. Fedora! and State Fedenl app-llon funds_,, carried f-rd. 

Clny -rd.,..... funds are due to lack of local funds required to match federal award In order to request the -.i fundlnf 

Appropriations are based on lqlslatlw formulas that look at population, _.ra11on denslly, rewnuo ....,de mUos, and•--• lndlvlduals In rural areaL 

CVCOG Program Review Page 15 of 37 

FY22-23 
BUDGET 
2 674,842.00 

1273544.76 
640928.00 
172022.00 

1455423.46 
42 599.00 

6.459,359.22 

2371599.03 

1,190,587.88 

~ !1&7 188.91 

219,463.31 

124405.71 
121522.93 
117:HIS.19 
18532.35 

601219.49 

700.00 
18552.00 
6.000.00 

50000.00 
500.00 

7.000.00 
451179.23 
"""179.36 
120000.00 
25490.72 

-
64 568.12 

110997.00 
1111.598.32 

-
18.779.05 
62.520,00 

1000.00 
115"37,38 

2109.80 
18075.08 

4000.00 
200.00 

1 828.23 

-
14279.45 

158_5Sll-5!i 

1.050.00 
8500.00 

850.00 
10200.00 
42599.00 

1889846.07 

5.853,052.47 

606,306.75 



Head Start/ 
Early Head Start 

Organizational Chart 

Executive Board 

Executive Dir ctor 
(John Austin Stokes) 

Director of H ead Start 
(Carolina Ra mond) 

Assistant Dir c tor 
(Ste pha nie He rnandez) 

e 
CONCHO VALLEY 

COUNCIL OF GOVERNMENTS 

,-------- ----- --- --, 
I 

l ___ Policy Cormcil ___ : 

Co mpliance a nd 
Nutrition Sp cia lis t 

(M a ry Hus ted) 

H S Edu ca tion 
Manage r 

(Che ryl May berry) 

H ea lth and Menta l 
H alth Manag r 

(M lis a M iranda) 

Family and 
Community 

Manager 
(Stacy Walker) 

ERSEA and 
Faciliti s Manag r 

(Of lia Baron) 

EI-IS Edu a tion 
Manag r 

(Stepha nie 
H ernandez) 

Chris toval HS 
- Site Sup -•rvisor/ 
Fami ly Service Worker 
-Teachers 
-Teacher Assis tan ts 
- usto,lian 

Eden HS 
Site Supervisor/ F11mily 
Servic, Worker 
Tea h rs 
Tea h r Assistant 
Cook 
Custodian 

Eldorndo HS 
Site Supervis r/ Family 

rvice Worker 
Teachers 
Teacher Assistant 

ok/Cu tod ian 

Menard HS & EH 
Site upervisor/ Family 
Servi e Worker 
Teach rs 
Tea her Assistants 
Cook/ us todian 

CVCOG Progra m Revi ew Page 16 of Page 37 

Ozona HS 
Site Supervisor/ Family 
Service Worker 
Tea hers 
Tea her ssis tants 
Custodian 
Cook 

Bia kshea r HS 
Site Supervisor 
Family crvice Work r 
Tead1ers 
Teach ·r Assistants 
Recep tionist 
Cook 
Cu todian 

Day HS 
Si te Supervisor 
Fa mily Servi c Worker 
Teachers 
Teacher As istants 
Receptionist 
Cook 
C ustodian 

Rio Vista HS 
Site Supervisor 
Famil rvice Work r 
Teach rs 
Teacher Assistants 
Receptionist 
Cook 
Cus todian 

Dav EHS 
Si te Su pervisor 
Fam ily Servi c Worker 
Teachers 
Tea her Assistants 
Receptionist 

ook 
us tod ian 

Rio Vista EHS 
Site Supervisor 
Fa111.ily Servi e Worker 
Teachers 
Tead1cr Assistants 
Recepti onist 
Co k 
Cust dian 



CONCHO VALLEY COUNCIL OF GOVERNMENTS Fisca\ Year October 1 U,rough September 30 

HEAD START 

Federal 
COVID-19 Funding 

Stale Administrated Federal 

Program Income 

Local Funds 

lnKind 
Total Program Revenue 

Salaries/Wages 

O,,ertime 

lncenlives and Certlficat!ons 

Fringe Benefits 

AdministrativeCosts 

Netwo/'X Services 
Procurement Services 
Human ResourceServlccs 

Facility Cost Allocation 

Total Personne I 

Total Cost Allocations 

Dclqpt< Costs 
Coolr.lct Sm:i~ 

Head Stan Scn~ces 

!foul Start T & T A 

Tra\'tl •ln Region 
Tr:ivd-Out ofRl.-gion 

Meals 

Fuel & Lubric.-mt 

Vchjclc MainlL·n.'Ulcc 

County Facility Rent 

U11Ji1jcs 

Site Ctr fainl.Cn3nc-c 
Upital Faci lity Improvements 
Supplies 
MC:::ld Swt Supplies 

Compul cr/Softw:m:: 

Capital Equipm(._-nt 

Copier 
lnsuf"3ncc 

Printing 

Ads & Promotions 
Training 

Dues :u1d fei.:s 
CornmuniC'.l. lion:s 

Posugc/freigh1 

Physical1'$::i.fL1Y 

lnKind Other 

Sub•Total Program Expenditures 

FY 16-17 

ACTUAL 
5,717,4TT .35 

175,874.93 

1,154.50 

5.981 .27 
1,9TT,510.00 

7,877,998.05 

1.105.216,36 

497,235.23 

1,602,451 .59 

258.103.24 

1,138.17 

28,002.95 

288,044.36 

3.560.947.92 
27,157.20 

27.138.49 
23,829.18 

4,1 13.46 

128,767.07 

27,712.00 

25,265.96 

66,198.57 

27,794, 10 

63,208.73 

6 ,077.88 

2,943.00 
1,722.68 
4,154.70 

2,154.95 
8 ,665, 13 

1,941.08 

1.977,510.00 
5,987,502. 10 

FY 17-18 

ACTUAL 

5,923,507.69 

181 ,650.70 
1,527.90 

549.52 
1,613,993.48 

7,721 ,229.29 

1, 147.419.44 

546,062.58 

1,693,482.02 

273.108.79 

1,066. 32 

30,904.20 

305,079.31 

3,609.744.67 

63,784.50 

32.759.12 
37,356.86 

9,403.75 

65.00 

139.725.97 

28.243.25 
29,3-41 .26 

49,738.92 

23.647.27 
61 ,431.70 

5,612.70 
2,514.64 

153.37 
1,419.37 

4,022.81 

9.097.83 
1,085.58 

1,613,993.48 

5,723,142.05 

FY 18-19 

ACTUAL 
6,340.260.82 

219,209.59 
2,4 17.43 

1,800.00 

1.906.058.97 
8,469,746.81 

1,562.138.00 

6 14,457.41 

2,176,595.41 

289,900.61 

68,612.80 

38,009.07 

396,522.48 

3.197.264 .19 

72,080.30 

4,353.23 

21 .018.86 
14,383.32 

172.45 

189,51 1.23 

160,400,00 

44 ,416.79 

134.366.92 

32.823.30 

77,431.10 

7,942 .23 
3,541 .75 

1.390.21 
1.946.24 

10.477.76 

15.960.67 

1,141.16 

1,906,058.97 

5,896,700.68 

FY 19-20 
ACTUAL 

6,385,064 .07 

358.390.04 

3-43.504.43 
228.41 

3,390.00 

1.319. 136.87 

8,409,713.82 

3,591 ,32 1.36 

1.589.4 16 .56 

5,180,737.92 

380,724.88 

141 ,531.46 

27.918.63 

153,841 .84 

40,241 .59 

744,258,40 

74,241.41 
39,783.63 

72.759.77 
4,043.43 

253,605.19 

158,850.00 

106,994.35 

193,050.74 

58.32i.70 

132,028.62 

25,982.52 
9,502.00 

2.425.27 

761.83 

11 ,452.77 

20.611 .77 

1,217.09 

1,319, 136.87 

2,484,769.96 

FY 20-21 

ACTUAL 

6,528,913.72 

247.338.n 
437.987.57 

19,335.13 

1,077,978.34 

8,311 ,553.53 

3.511.527.20 

1,581 ,286.06 

5,092,813.26 

3-45,011 .60 

123,145.16 

68.781 .36 
159,331.41 

43,598.13 

739,867.66 

88,566.25 

3 ,110.25 

103.604.14 

5,604.98 

402.016.42 

-
150,800.00 

112.550.59 

151 ,160.23 

73,719.23 

118,769.94 

119,732.86 

27,71 1.17 

10,615.80 
2,053.07 

1,073.94 

955.93 
7,176.14 

20,469.77 

876.59 

326.97 

1.on.978.34 

2,478,872.61 

FY21-22 

BUDGET 

6,525.667.00 
676,023.00 

473,060.00 

11.000.00 

1,541.095.00 
9,227,045.00 

3.61 1,470.66 

6 1,000.00 

1,866,2 12.35 

5,558,683.01 

344,082.48 

125,695.64 

35 ,253.45 

164.TT1.09 

37.446 .83 

707,249.49 

-
63.000.00 

45,798.40 

85,502.00 

-
396,005.18 

5,000.00 

1.000.00 

152,349.50 

115.360.31 

143,749. 17 

32,589.06 

117,556.87 

30,000.00 

142.1 08.55 
26,527.99 

10,753.92 
13,000.00 
4,500.00 

12,000.00 

20.000,00 

3,216.73 

1,541,095.00 

2,961 ,112.68 

Grand Tota \ Expenditures ===7='=877-=, 9=9=8=.0=5=====7=, 7.,2;;;1~, 7=0;.;;3.,.3;.;;B;..._...;;8,b,4;.;;6.;,9;.;;, 8=1 ;;;8-.;,S.,7 = =.,.;;8,6,4;.;;0.;,9•;.;;7.;,6;;;6·.;,2;;8==~8;;;,J;,;1;.;;1;;;,5;.;;5;;3;.;;· 5.;,3==.,,,;9;,:;,22;;;;,;7;;;,0;,;45;;;;,;.1~8 

Revenue over Expend~ures ============(4=7=4=.0=9=)====='=7=1-=7=6)'======'(=5;;;2·;.;;4;;;6)~============';.;;0;,;.1~8) 

NOT'E: The Head :St.art. Gr:ant Ve.;1r Is JtJnc 1 through May 31. CACFP Nutrition Award period is October 1 throu,.h September 30. 
FY 16-17 Budget reflects .a 1.8" mandated COLA .11ward. 
FY 17-18 Budt!;et reflects mand.;1ted 1% COlA 3wJrd. 
FY 18·19 Budget refll!!cts 2.6% mandated COLA :.ward. 
FY 19-20, FY 20-2l, FY U-22 :ind FY 22-23 t"eflect.s COVI0-19 Supplemental 1undfnlol 
FY l.9-20 Budp,:et refl ects l. 77% m.1ndated COLA award. lncn::.ase in .St.ate F~der.it funds is due to CACFP (Nutrition) . Federal award increase Is due to remov.al of Delegate. 

Rent. Utility and Oullding Maint. lnaeasf! Is due to SAISD centers and Meals is related to CACFP ~ward and remov"I of Delef!:atc . 

FY 20-21 Budget reflects 2% m;mcfated COtA and a O.ualitv Improvement fondinR inu-e;;ue that was ui,:ed to sustain emolovee benefi ts, total fund [ng increase is $283,86~ 
FY 21·22 Budf.:et reflll"'r:ts 1.22% m.iind::ated COLA 
FY 22·23 Budget refleas 2,.88% mandated COLA and a Quality lmpro~ment funding inae;ne that was used to sustain employee benefits, total rundinf. lncre..ise is $178,40S 
Per the Award, Admini5tntion C.;ip is 15" of award. FY 22·23 ls proJcct:inR an Administrative Percentage of 11 ,91" 

CVCOG Program Review Page 11 of 37 

FY 22-23 

BUDGET 

6.704.272.00 

432.824.00 

473.060.00 

11.000.00 
1,681. 73-4,00 

9,302,890.00 

3,876,019.12 

1,804,596.95 

5,680,616.06 

3-49,977.93 

106,633.47 

71 ,998.26 

219,455.51 

48.745.52 

796,810.69 

70,420.00 

11 .027.05 

75,682.00 

3,000.00 

396005.00 
5,000.00 

150,800.00 

113.000.00 

95,005.23 

25,169.00 

117.099.97 

25,229.00 

10,754.00 
13,000,00 

4 .500.00 

6 ,038.00 

20.000.00 
1,000.00 

1.000.00 

1,681,734.00 

2,825,463.25 

9,302,890.00 

j0.00) 



Senior Volunteer 
Programs 

Organizational Chart 

RSVP 
Specialist 
(Max Aim 
Bowlin) 

RSVP 

RSVP 
Specialist 

(T resa 
Covey) 

CVCOG Program Review Page 18 of Page 37 

Executive Board 

Executive Director 
(John Austin Stokes) 

Director of S ni r Volunteer 
.Programs 

(Nolen M ars) 

SCP 

Foster Grand parent/ 

Senior Co1npanion Manager 
(Cle1nentine Urista) 

@ 
CONCHO VALLEY 

COUNCIL OF GOVERNMENTS 

FGP 



CONCHO VALLEY COUNCIL OF GOVERNMENTS Fiscal Year October 1 through September 30 

FOSTER GRANDPARENT PROGRAM 

Federal 
Slate 
Loc:al Funds (covered grant writing) 

Interest 
lnKind 

Total Program Revenue 

Salaries/Wages 
Ovellime 
Incentives and Certifications 
Fringe Benefi1s 

Admlnls1ratlveCosts 

Network Services 
Procurement Services 
Human Resoun:eServlces 
Facility Cost Allocation 

Total Personne I 

Total Cost Allocations 

Stipend· FGP/SCP Volunteers 

Unifonns 
Recognition 
Contract Services 
Travel-In Region 
Travel-Out of Region 
Meals 
Travel-Volunteer 
S11pplies 
Copier 
Insurance 
Printing 
Dues and fees 
Postage/ficight 
Physicals/Safety 
lnKind Other 

Sub-Total Program Expenditures 

FY 16-17 
ACTUAL 

374,225.47 
. 

10.00 
. 

49,890.90 
424,126.37 

50,971.66 

. 
11,867.37 

62,839.03 

10,123.34 

226.35 
. 
. 

9,537.95 
19,887.64 

205,412.79 
2,790.40 

31,636.20 
. 

223.53 
590.53 

6,697.88 
38,790.03 

2,342.94 
328.80 
586.94 

24.38 
100.00 
175.68 

1,808.70 
49,890.90 

341,399.70 

FY 17-18 
ACTUAL 

363,668.31 
. 
. 
. 

45,561.60 
409,229.91 

52,624.20 

. 
12,110.08 

64,734.28 

10,441.23 

180.00 
. 
. 

10,923.90 
21,545.13 

195,991.12 
. 

32,388.99 
. 

765.97 
1,544.99 
5,947.51 

35,055.71 
2,731.00 

164.72 
586.94 

. 
175.00 
157.03 

1,879.92 
45,561.60 

322,950.50 

FY 18-19 FY 19-2D 
ACTUAL ACTUAL 

387,416.40 365,764.69 
. 5,000.00 

- . 
- . 

48,283.00 21,046.00 
435,699.40 391,830.69 

59,739.78 57,823.18 

- . 
13,150.58 12,791.80 

72,890.36 70,614.98 

9,709.08 5,192.10 

2,201.34 4,344.33 
. 306.39 
. 2,251.68 

11,114.73 9,886.02 
23,025.15 21,980.52 

197,925.22 219,016.18 
1,365.98 2,000.14 

35,903.71 30,918.61 
. . 

367.45 317.56 
1,530.68 1,304.08 
5,645.80 2,190.26 

36,337.03 18,120.30 
4,933.23 1,978.25 

232.98 262.88 
581.61 443.80 
41.40 55.63 

195.00 500.00 
255.52 361.50 

5,985.28 720.00 
48,283.00 21,046.00 

339,783.89 299,235.19 

ldYnr 

FY 20-21 FY 21-22 FY22-23 
ACTUAL BUDGET BUDGET 

356,919.43 413,573.00 424,092.00 

10,632.96 5,000.00 5,316.00 
. . . 

0.32 . . 
4,681.00 42,120.00 41,808.00 

374,233.71 460,693.00 471,216.00 

50,135.68 54,978.64 58,277.36 

. 500.00 . 
11,118.41 11,601.23 12,359.43 

61,254.09 67,079.87 70,636.79 

4,150.65 4,152.24 4,351.87 

2,609.79 4,189.85 4,443.06 
1,192.89 986.39 2,411.60 
1,167.10 1,144.24 1,513.49 
7,660.82 7,325.46 10,588.19 

16,781.25 17,798.18 23,308.21 

239,095.50 219,844.00 220,363.00 

4,944.35 1,200.00 3,400.00 
28,497.08 38,237.75 35,787.00 

. 1,000.00 . 
17.92 1,700.00 750.00 

. 3,000.00 5,345.00 
2,909.16 10,248.82 11,000.00 
7,166.95 45,600.00 45,600.00 
6,685.69 4,800.00 3,750.00 

166.55 600.00 750.00 
739.05 750.00 712.00 
23.40 2,200.00 2,500.00 

240.00 514.38 525.00 
146.72 600.00 981.00 
885.00 3,400.00 4,000.00 

4,681.00 42,120.00 41,808.00 
296,198.37 375,814.95 377,271.00 

Grand Total Program Expenditures 424,126.37 409,229.91 435,699.40 391,830.69 374,233.71 460,693.00 471,216.00 

Revenue over Expendlturos==============================o.=oo= 

NOTE: Grants are awarded In 3 year Increments. 

Federal Award Period Is July lhru June 
State Award Period is September thru August 

CVCOG Program Review Page 19 of 37 



CONCHO VALLEY COUNCIL OF GOVERNMENTS Fiscal Year October 1 through Seplember 30 

SENIOR COMPANION 

Federal 

Stale 
Local Funds 

Interest 
lnKind 
CVCOG Membership Dues 

Total Program Revenue 

SalarieslW8tlOS 

OVertime 

Incentives and Certifications 

FrtngeBenelits 

AdmlnislrativeCosts 

Nelwork Services 

Procurement Services 
Human ResourceServices 
Facir,ty Cost Allocation 

Total Pensonne I 

Total Cost AllocaUons 

Stipend - FGPISCP Volun...,. 

Uniforms 
Recognition 
Conttuct Smiccs 
r .. ,.1-1n Region 

Travel-Out or Region 

Me>ls 
Tm·cl-Voluntecr 

Supplies 

Comput<r/Son,.,,,.. 
Copier 
lm=u,ce 

Printing 

Dues and recs 
Postoge/rrcight 
01hcr 

PhysicolslS1Ue1y 

lnKindOlhcr 

Sub-Total Program Expendlt11ro1 

FY 16-17 
ACTUAL 

218,493.02 

10,00 

-
8,391.23 

-
226 894.25 

37,654.16 

-
8,718.28 

46 372.44 

7,470.58 

212.22 
. 
-

5,663.06 

13,345.86 

109,963.01 
2,364.90 

25,874.67 
. 

171.46 

590.52 

3,164.94 
14,525.04 

1,040.08 
. 

188.28 
469.07 

24.37 

100.00 

58.38 
638.65 

250.00 
6,391.23 

167,814.60 

FY 17-18 FY 18-19 FY 1&-20 

ACTUAL ACTUAL ACTUAL 

229,962.46 225,113.98 227,393.52 

- - 6,475.00 

20.00 

- - -
18,268.55 18,118.00 10,762.00 

. . 

248 251.01 243,231.98 244,630.52 

37,535.95 37,639.12 39,010.20 

. 
8,843.03 8,266.81 8,624.70 

46,178.88 45,905,93 47 634.90 

7,447.10 6,114.67 3,503.36 

118.77 1,386.37 3,058.10 

249.26 
1,156.56 

7.278.04 7,395.30 6,116.36 

14,843.91 14 896.34 14,083.64 

121,722.21 111,222.25 136,475.34 

18,852.75 371.32 2.000.14 
. 19,393.20 17,712.63 
. . . 

702.87 493.06 480.02 
1,029.97 945.42 782.47 

3.284.26 2,552.10 1,664.94 
19,818.75 21,865.50 9,957.95 

1,578.43 2,766.44 1,228.37 
. 

101.96 129.12 117,40 

469.07 465.19 390.97 
. 27.60 165.75 

150.00 130.00 350.00 

121.72 104.84 310.65 

1,127.58 3,845.67 513.35 
18,266.55 18,118.00 10,762.00 

187,228.12 182,429.71 182,911.98 

FY 20-21 FY 21-22 FY22-23 

ACTUAL BUDGET BUDGET 

227,970.15 250,398.00 256,992.00 

11,831.21 6,475.00 6,791.00 

- - -
0.40 - -

4,732.00 22,100.00 19,000.00 

- - -
244,533.76 278 973.00 282,783.00 

37,851.16 35,309.32 37,427.88 

. 500.00 -
8,373.62 7,498.90 7,474.72 

46224.78 43 308,22 44 902.60 

3,134.43 2,680.78 2,766.41 

1,733.06 4,189.85 2,887.99 

897.93 549.20 1,519.97 

779,91 743,76 1,513.49 

5,549.36 4,389.51 6,759.48 

12,094.69 12.553.10 15,447.33 

136,446.00 131,544.00 138,138.00 

3,639.83 1,200.00 1,525.00 

17,848.46 29,210.20 22,499.07 
1,000.00 -

275.18 1,000.00 1,052.00 

- 1,800.00 3,041.00 

1,266.16 6,000.00 7000.00 
13,808.22 22,600.00 21,318.00 

2,385.77 1,927.13 3,000.00 
4,745.00 . -

79.92 575.00 400.00 
556.59 575.35 560.00 

15.60 1,500.00 900.00 
167.50 200.00 200.00 
208,93 500.00 800.00 

- - -
39.05 1,380.00 3,000.00 

4,732.00 22,100.00 19,000.00 

186,214.21 223111.68 222,433.07 

Grand Total Program Expendlt11ros 227,532.90 248,251.01 243,231,98 244,630.52 244,533.68 278,973.00 282,783.00 

Revenue owr Expendltllros ==l.(6.,3=8=.6=5"=) =======.,;..===~===...;o,;,;.O;;;B~==..;.====ll,;;O·;;;OO;;:,I 

NOTE: Granu are awarded In 3 year Increments. 
Federal Award Period ls July thru June 

State Award Period Is September thru August 

CVC0G Prog,am Review Page 20 of 37 

~~Uffiewortcd 

to write MW award 



CONCHO VALLEY COUNCIL OF GOVERNMENTS Fiscal Yoar October 1 through 5eplembor 30 

RETIRED SENIOR VOLUNTEER PROGRAM (RSVP) 

FStale 
Local Funds 
Interest 

Total Program Rovonuo 

Salarios/Wagos 
Oveflime 
lncuntMls and cartifocations 
Fringe Benoffls 

AdminlstnltivoCosts 

-5er11ice• 
Proanment 5er-.lais 

Human RosourceServlces 
Facility Cost Allac:aUon 

Total Peraonne I 

Total Cost Allocation• 

Recognition 
C-Scniccs 
Tm-d-lnRqioa 
r .... -.i-0utorltqioa 
Caowy Facili1y Rem 
Supplies 
Compu1er/Sol\wan, 
Copier 
lmunmcc -Prinlm& 
Dues&IICI roes 
Pmtagdfreight 
Ph)sicals/Safciy 

Bub-Total Program Expondltu""' 

FY 18-17 
ACTUAL 

. 

. 

. 

. 

. 

. 

. 

. 

. 

. 

. 

. 

. 

. 

. 

. 

. 

. 

. 

. 

. 

. 

. 

FY17-18 FY 18-19 FY 19-20 
ACTUAL ACTUAL ACTUAL 

. 79,681.67 
. . 
. . 
. . 
. . 79681.&7 

. . 45,269.13 

. . . 
. 13,246.29 

. . 58.515.42 

. 4,306.22 

. . 2 n1.40 

. . 378.39 

. . 843.27 

. 866.80 
. 9186.08 

28.00 
. . 
. . 843.44 

. 
5160.00 

. 31.93 
. . 1 050.00 

. 581.00 
. . 1,038.13 
. . 3,025.17 
. . . 
. . 300.00 
. . 142.50 

. 
. . 12,000.17 

FY 20-21 l'Y21·22 FY22·23 
ACTUAL BUDGET BUDGET 

114 385.79 175 606.00 150,606.00 

62354.18 48226.00 48,452.00 

240.00 . 
7.24 . 

176,987.21 223832.00 199 058,00 

92,498.40 97,554.60 103407.87 

. 1,000.00 . 
30,089.17 31,885.21 30,818.53 

122.587,57 130 439.81 134.226.4D 

8,307.08 8,074.22 8,269.57 

6322.07 8,379.71 10441.19 

1537.07 892.38 1628.37 

2,852.38 2888.97 3028.97 
1,787.44 3337.90 3961.52 

20.806.04 23,373.18 27327.62 

4 919.74 29,299.01 11,446.98 
. 500.00 . 

1,576.05 5,400.00 2700.00 
7,145.00 2000.00 

10,320.00 10,320.00 10320.00 
9502.94 2700.00 2400.00 

900.00 900.00 1492.00 
639.10 1,000.00 600.00 

1153.15 980.00 1132.00 

2030.22 2000.00 2000.00 
1,164.06 4325.00 878.00 

252.50 1,550.00 500.00 
1135.84 3,700.00 2 000.00 

. 200.00 235.00 
33,593.60 70,019.01 37503,98 

Grand Total Program Expondlturos ================7,..9,;,;;68.,1 ... G;:;7"""""17=6a!a,B87=·=2"'1 ===223=•=83=2.=00..,_=1=99.!'=058.=00= 

Rawnua ovarExpondltu""'===============~===~====;;.,.==='i;;0~.00:. 

NOTE: Grants are awarded [I\ 3 year fnaements. 

Fcdenl Aword Poriad Is July thru June 
St.to Aword Period Is SOptember lhru Auaust 

FY 22·23 funds •re less due to ltlOlrina progl'lm from AprH thru March to• July to June procram. Mow, wu made to fallow FGP 
and SCP pnJll'affll. 

CVCOG Program Rovlow Page 21 ol 37 



r 

Access and 
Assistance 

Organizational Chart 
[ Executiv Boa rd ] 

I 
E , culiv • Dir ctor 

(John Aus tin Stokes) 

I 

~ 
CONCHO VALLEY 

COUNCIL OF GOVERNMENTS 

---
----- - - ----- ---- - - - --- "' - ---

- -- -- --
Director of AaA 
(Toni Rob -rts) -- --------- -------------- ---

--- --------------------

[~_RA -OA___,] 

' AaA Nutritfon 
Coordinator 

(Chari 111 llintt) 

AaA Benefi ts 
Coordina tor 
(VACANT) 

Aa d min Assl 
( lelissa Mendez) 

/ 

' Aa A IRA 
Coordinator 

(Regina Duran) 
j 

I 
1anagi ng Lorn! mbudsman / 

II.a.I\ Op ra l io ns Manage r 

(A rnanda ed no) 

I 

/ 

AaA 2n /A DR AaA 
Cnordim1tor I-lousing/ ADRC 

(Mar ha ll lcmenl~) Coordinator 
j 

(Sandra Villanueva) 
.... 

AaA 211 Coord ina to r 
(Vi to ria. lb rra) 

a 211 Coordina tor 
(Nicol ' Rodr iguez) 

' 

CVCOG Program Review Page 22 of Page 37 

' r 

./ '-

-- ... -- .. .. ____ _ 
------- --- ---

' 
AaA Case 

Management 
Coord ina l·or 

0/ACA T) 
/ 

/ 

.... 

ADRC Advisory 
Committee 

Aa A Progra m oordi nator 

Ccrli fied laff Om bud ·1mm 

(Slld hana Car ia) 

Field Ombudsman (I T) 

(Vacan l) 

' 



CONCHO VALLEY COUNCIL OF GOVERNMENTS Fiscal Year october 1 thro,.,gh Seplember 30 

AREAAGENCY ON AGING 

COVID-19 Funding 

Slate Administrated Fadoral 
Slate 
Program Income 
Local Funds 
lnKlnd 
Membenhip 0..... 

Total Pn>9ram Ravanuo 

~ 
0-1imo 
lncomives and Certifications 

Fringe Bonofots 

AdminlslrativoCests 

NcMorkSatvicos -Human ResourcaSetvia!s 
Facility Cost AllocaliGn 

Total Porsonne I 

Total Cost Allocalfons 

lla,opi~oa 
CaotraclScrw>,s 

AAA Meals 
Tnn..i..!n Rqj011 
Tn--d-Ou! oCR,gion 

Tn,-d Ad\isory 

Meals 
Sapplics 
Compcttcr/Sonw... 
Copier ......... 
CdlPhaacs 

l'rilllmg 

Ads &: Promoli=s 
Ducsmd recs 
Canmmuatiom 

Post,gc,'lmght 
Other 
lnKinclOthcr 

S..b-Total Program Expandltun,s 

FY 16-17 

ACTUAL 

-
1 099119.00 

92,727.00 

145.10 
4,485.00 

355 580.39 

28 333.00 
1,580,369.49 

310,995.32 

-
119,956.29 

430,951.61 

69,426.81 

2.589.65 

-
-

59304.08 
131,320.54 

50.00 

208,445.15 

418,837.65 

6,645.16 

13475.84 

303.09 

299.91 

2,913.63 

-
3,654.58 

166.251 

1,478.66 

327.75 

2,119.63 

3,567.18 

2,005.51 

8.75 

355,580.39 
1,019,UG,63 

FY 17-18 

ACTUAL 

-
916,854.00 

89,761.00 

59.50 

25.00 
301 445.26 

28,333.01 
1,336,477.77 

272,073.31 

-
112,623.44 

384 696.75 

82,048.90 

2.324.24 

-
56,463.46 

120836.60 

-
83482.67 

406488,37 

4330.41 

11512.79 

1874.02 

8,619.80 

4042.78 

-
1,470.00 

1544.63 

-
4774.82 

-
1356.65 

-
301445.26 
830 944,00 

FY 18-19 

ACTUAL 

966,107.00 

89,145.00 

3380.00 

52.50 
327,811.85 

28 333.60 
1414B09.95 

288.808.54 

122,394.97 

391 003.51 

52,082.00 

11,805.44 

51.945.25 
115,832.69 

50.00 

107847.17 

<103.604.79 

6674.36 

20.244.58 
1,661.56 

5 739.87 

9140.55 

11,362.82 

-
1,695.00 

2,659.15 

-
5,840.69 

682.14 

3099.75 

327 811.85 
BD791U8 

FY 19-20 

ACTUAL 
87,488.00 

1,053,324.00 

103,148.00 

133.00 
3,100.00 

343,742.71 

28,333.80 
1&1U6U1 

270,095.29 

-
114,150.95 

384~'4.24 

28,260.26 

23,241.24 

18,484.77 

11013.66 
50,432.97 

131,432.90 

174 896.08 

537720.53 

2,935.27 

3825.83 

492.50 

248.57 

9,183.81 

-
18 055.44 

-
1,230.00 

417.36 

2.575.00 

4,589.06 

823.63 

3096.91 

343742.71 
1,103.532.70 

FY20-21 

ACTUAL 
407 ....... 00 

849404.00 
102 974.00 

82.00 
3000.00 

159831.04 

28333.00 
1550 850.04 

254,600.69 

-
104,195.66 

35B796.35 

24,306.71 

22575.37 

39025.39 
9810.32 

55,266.02 

150983.81 

-
247""'.23 

599008.16 

1623.43 

-
-

140.65 

12342.63 

-
7 565,16 

2118.50 

-
7970.01 

587.29 

2068.51 

-
159831.04 

1-041081.81 

FY21-22 

BUDGET 

-
1.244.933.00 

100,188.00 

-
-

417000.00 
28,333.00 

1,790~.oo 

J.48,805.35 

4,500.00 

159,215.35 

512.520,70 

31.725.03 

25139.13 

8 533.12 
10,298.19 

41,524.77 

111 •20.u 

1 000.00 
175,000.00 

513413.06 

BODO.OD 
10,000.00 

2,000.00 

300.00 

9000.00 

6,000.00 

-
2000.00 

3.000.00 

2,500.00 

6,000.00 

-
5,500.00 

417000.00 
1,160 713.06 

Grand Total Program Expandituru ==aa1=,5=81~,9=1=8=.7=8===1=•"=6,4s:77=.35====1a!:,4:a:1aa:4,~750=.48====1a!:,6=1=9,~2=11=.84~=.;1.550~;:;•B;;;&;;,1.~77~=1~,7=B~0£,454~.oo~ 

Rovanuo over Expandlluru ===da(1=,549===·29=1=========0=.4=2=======5=9=.4=7=====57==.4=7====(1=1.=7=i3)6 ===== 
NOTI; The Arn Ac ency an Acinl Grant Yoar 11 Octabc, 1h,_h September. 

FY 15--17 reflects TXDOT 5310 Elderly & Disabled funds 'Pfflt on contract R'l"Vices,, • ward rnovad ta CVEDD tn t:v 17-18 
FY 19-20 COVID-19 S..pplementll funds were received, FY 20-21 i, reflactlnc tha cantlollGd ..,.nd al thase fuods 

FY 21-22 and FY 22-23 wo w1a continue to spend the remaki:ina COvtD-19 1:nd ARP funds. haWl!'Vl!t' they 1:ro not raftocted II the amounts wet"e unknown 

CVCOG Prosram Rovlow Page 23 of 37 

FY22-23 

BUDGET 

-
1,336,813.00 

89,145.00 

-
-

417,000.00 

28,333.00 

1,871,291.00 

361,844.59 

180,699.42 

562,344.01 

34,645.54 

35 CAA.49 

18,304.27 

12,107.89 

48,994.91 
147597,09 

1000.00 

175000.00 

494,199.90 

8,000.00 
25,000.00 

2,000.00 

300.00 
9000,00 

-
6,000.00 

500.00 

8350.00 

3000.00 
. 

s=.oo 
1,000.00 

5500.00 

-
417000.00 

1161.11.9,90 

1,871,291.00 

(0.001 



CONCHO VALLEY COUNCIL OF GOVERNMENTS Fiscal Year October 1 through September 30 

AGING AND DISABILITY RESOURCE CENTER (ADRC) 

COVID-19 Funding 

State Administrated Federal 

State 
Total Program Revenue 

Salaries/Wages 

Overtime 
Incentives and Certifications 

Fringe Benefits 

AdministrativeCosts 

Network Services 

Procurement Services 

Human ResourceServices 

Faciltty Cost Allocation 

Total Personne I 

Total Cost Allocations 

Contract Services 

Travel-In Region 

Travel-Out of Region 

Supplies 

Copier 
Cell Phones 

Printing 
Dues and fees 

Postage/freight 

Other 

Sub-Total Program Expenditures 

FY 16-17 

ACTUAL 
. 
. 

. 

. 

. 

. 

. 

-
. 
. 
-
-
. 

-

-
-
-
-
-
. 
-
. 

-
. 

-

FY 17-18 

ACTUAL 
. 
. 
. 
. 

. 

. 

. 

. 

. 

. 

. 

. 

. 

. 

. 

-
-
. 

-
. 
. 
. 

-
-
. 

FY 18-19 

ACTUAL 
. 

. 

. 

. 

. 

. 

. 

. 

. 

-
. 
. 
. 
. 

-
. 
. 
. 

. 

. 

. 

. 

. 
-
. 

FY 19-20 

ACTUAL 
. 

44,141.42 

118,309.97 

162,451.39 

80,824.51 

. 
32,942.84 

113,767.35 

8,360.77 

3,391.29 

406.98 

1,062.88 

17,447.06 

30,668.98 

14,874.07 

229.19 

945.87 

1,088.86 

826.32 

30.00 

-
-

34.75 
. 

18,029.06 

FY20-21 

ACTUAL 

3,037.56 

34,494.12 

113,889.45 
151,421.13 

65,933.66 

. 
29,376.42 

95,310.08 

6,459.85 

5,924.14 

1,643.06 

2,154.09 

21,770.60 

37,951.74 

10,258.83 

-
. 

2,135.34 

123.20 

1,035.00 
. 

1,519.32 

50.06 
3,037.56 

18,159.31 

FY 21-22 

BUDGET 
. 

68,695.00 

100,924.00 

169,619.00 

68,543.11 

1,000.00 

37,191.21 

106,734.32 

6,606.85 

8,379.71 

196.41 

2,288.49 
16,271.30 

33,742.76 

19,000.00 

1,041.92 

2,000.00 

2,000.00 

1,000.00 

1,000.00 

2,000.00 

500.00 

600.00 

-
29,141.92 

Grand Total Program Expendltures================1=6=2=,46=5=·=39======1=51=1'=42=1=.1=3~=1,;;6;;9;,i;,6=1=9=.0=0 

FY22-23 

BUDGET 

70,280.00 

101,274.00 

171,554.00 

55,398.15 

23,701.40 

79,099.55 

4,873.26 

8,886.12 

2,165.71 

3,026.97 

13,612.53 

32,564.59 

12,057.20 

4,306.00 

12,308.00 

18,651.09 

1,000.00 

4,000.00 

2,000.00 

2,125.00 

600.00 
2,842.57 

59,889.86 

171,554.00 

RevenueoverExpendltures=================='(e:14=·=00:!)=================:1'(0=.=00;f,) 

Program award period Is Soptombar l thru August 31. 

CVCOG Program Review Page 24 of 37 



CONCHO VALLEY COUNCIL OF GOVERNMENTS Fiscal Year October 1 through September 30 

2-1-1 INFORMATION & REFERRAL 

State Administrated Federal 

State 

Local Funds 
Interest 

FY 16-17 

ACTUAL 
198,199.00 

4,614.74 

-
-

FY17-18 
ACTUAL 
95,176.91 
86,394.00 

8.23 

-

FY 18-19 

ACTUAL 
102,228.81 
93,134.92 

-
301.92 

FY 19-20 
ACTUAL 
105,999.47 

96,955.80 

-
69.99 

Total Program Revenue 202,813.74 181,579.14 195,665.65 203,025.26 

Salaries/Wages 
Overtime 
Incentives and Certifications 

Fringe Benefits 

AdministrativeCosts 

Network Services 
Procurement Services 

Human ResourceServices 
Facility Cost Allocation 

Total Personne I 

Total Cost Allocations 

Co111r111:1 Services 
Travel-In Region 
Travel-Ort of Region 
Conference Fees 
Supplies 
Computcr/Softwan: 
Copier 
Cell Phones 

Priming 
Ads & Promotions 
Dues and fees 
Postage/freight 

Sub-Total Program Expenditures 

96,728.77 73,816.80 

- -
42,839.88 34,675.74 

139,568.65 108,492.54 

22,484.51 17,488.03 

1,636.63 1,162.82 

- -
- -

18,532.22 14,242.51 
42,653.36 32,893.36 

9,188.78 35,428.00 

338.57 536.01 
2,563.37 2,452.36 
1,289.00 . 
6,396.18 1,125.89 

- . 
- . 

250.00 . 
283.26 41.92 
120.00 . 
779.00 2,765.50 

96.89 1,108.48 
21,305.05 43,458.16 

91,809.61 109,862.19 

- -
45,293.44 46,654.13 

137,103.05 156,516.32 

18,262.10 11,517.12 

4,140.42 6,584.31 

- 214.36 

- 3,330.68 
16,404.90 14,721.27 
38,807.42 36,367.74 

6,000.00 5,500.00 

700.14 204.98 
2,302.57 -

- . 
1,861.93 2,205.94 
4,891.59 -

- 41.52 
75.00 240.00 

2,432.15 732.48 

- . 
667.32 1,177.59 
522.56 . 

19,453.26 10,102.51 

FY 20-21 
ACTUAL 
92,514.16 

103,211.42 

-
42.23 

195,767.81 

97,312.47 

-
43,527.62 

140,840.09 

9,563.72 

10,920.23 
696.92 

4,177.42 
14,627.57 
39,985.86 

6,000.00 

-
-
-

377.83 

-
228.14 

1,411.50 
12.16 

-
6,870.00 

-
14,899.63 

FY 21-22 
BUDGET 
194,630.00 

4,822.00 

-
-

199,452.00 

87,932.41 

1,500.00 

52,482.58 

141,914.99 

8,784.54 
16,759.42 

117.85 
3,432.73 

14,485.92 
43,580.46 

6,000.00 
552.46 

1,904.09 
. 

2,200.00 
. 

500.00 
500.00 
500.00 

. 
1,200.00 

600.00 
13,956.55 

Grand Total Program Expenditures 203,527.06 184,844.06 195,363.73 202,986.57 195,725.58 199,452.00 

FY22-23 
BUDGET 
194,630.00 

2,537.00 

197,167.00 

73,088.48 

40,200.10 

113,288.58 

6,979.61 

17,772.24 
256.74 

4,540.46 
25,957.37 
55,506,42 

6,000.00 
1,000.00 

5,000.00 
. 

2,200,00 
2,537.00 

500.00 
1,200.00 

500.00 
7,435.00 
1,500.00 

500.00 
28,372.00 

197,167.00 

RevenueoverExpenditures==!:(7=13=·=32="1==£(3~,2=64=.=922)==..::3=0=1.=92~==.::::3=8.=6~9==:,,,;4;;;2.2;;;;;3========~(0~.0~0~) 

NOlE: Receiving level funding. No fund!ng change since FY U•l3 

Program Period Is September through August. 

CVCOG Program Review Page 25 of 37 



I 
I 
I 
I 

Public Safety 
Organizational Chart 

- - - - ' 
CJ I 

I 
T1 ·aining I 

Al lvisory I 
I 

B oanl I 
I 

... - - --1- _,, 

I 
I 
I 

I 
I 
I 
I 
I 

/' ' /' 

Criminal Justice 

I 
911 

[ Executive Board l 

Executive Dir ctor 
Qohn Austin tokes) 

Director of Public Safety 
(Hilda Arredondo-Garibay) 

" / 
I 

Instructor Program Manag r 
911 

Program Manager 
Oeff Lopez) 

'-

(David Faison) 
_.) '-

/' ' 
911 

GIS Lead 
(Roger Garza) 

'- ~ 

r " 9'11 GIS Specic1 lis t 
(PT) 

(Brenda Schn man) 
'- ~ 

(Mason Wheel r) 

I 
r 

911 
GTS Specia list 
(Cody Brooks) 

CVCOG Program Review Page 26 of Page 37 

j \. 

I I ,, 
" r 

911 911 
GIS Specialist GIS Specia list 
(Ac1 ron Lane) Gohn Vasqu z) 

j \. 

' 

~ 
CONCHO VALLEY 

COUNCIL OF GOVERNMENTS 

--------/ I 

,------, : CJ Advisory • 
I 

I EPAC I 
I ______ ; 

1 Committee 
I 

/' 

I "-------r 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 

\. I 
Public Safety 

Manager 
(Nicole Nixon) 

I 

I 
I 

I 
I 

I 
I 

I 
I 

Public Safety 
Coordinator 

(Beth Holland
Mull) 

I 
I 

I 



CONCHO YAU.Ff COUNCIi. OF GOVERNMENTS Fbcal Yoar Oc:lober 1 lluough Septombor 30 
9-1-1 EMERGENCY~TlONS 

Slalu 

l.ac:al Funds 
lnle11111 

-N.-SeMces ---·-FadlllyCOII_, 

I TolllPenonne 

Total Cost Allocatlan1 

C-...Sawa 
Tmd•hlRqioa 
Tmd-OaoCRqioa 
CcullyFICilityR<nt 

Supptia 
Prajcdi;q.;..

c...,.i~ 
Pr.-.., 
Msa..........., T....., 
o.....ir
~ 

~ 
911Scn-ia:s 
OdJcr-<livcAWl)"J 

-TolllProt,-Eapo-

Blennlol 
FY1~18 
ACTUAi. 
24071112.86 

--
UGT.112.lf 

235,1125.75 

. 
113.Q07.84 
J41M•n 

58,033.41 
. 
. 
-

90354.116 
148-'88.37 

-
1832.48 

11 a.a.20 

833.45 
13 732.30 

-
917,815.15 

3108.50 
400.00 

2,000.00 
1,089.55 

10.257.70 
888.83 

11411718.10 
. 

111•--""1.ZC 

Biennial 
FY18-17 FY17-18 FY18-111 
ACTUAi. ACTUAi. ACTUAi. 

2.7195'18.z! 2717847.771 3711.554.06 
I '""'.58 
I 7,822.48 

2.719 .. •.U 2111.&11.n I n21.aa1.10 

287,282.20 251,841.77 316.960.00 

- . 
98,388.57 89,297.35 117,851.82 

38•-77 341131.12 ~u•n.u 

58,750.711 55,038.15 57,881.83 

- . 13.130..84 
. . . 
- -

853111.11 92346.02 111,024.82 
1U.Cli9.10 147-'84.17 182-037.31 

. 500.00 1,855.98 
2""".34 3,1139.17 4498.73 

21176.19 28,841.02 25,077.94 
1.072.25 1,028.65 1.228.47 

50.2511.90 39,874.05 10.D32.05 

-
301384.32 -

5,194.88 4,310.00 3,359.35 
330.00 - 148.91 

4,448.50 81168.00 7,324.50 
435.25 843.58 284.00 

11848.29 18341..84 7740.31 
238.30 204.73 185.58 

1.811, 131.85 2127 575.34 3.042.703.44 

- 400.00 ·---.ss '-"" 124.48 3..104..839.28 

Biennial Blenniol 
FY1fl.20 FY20-21 FY21..ZZ FY22-a 
ACTUAi. ACTUAi. BUDGET llU0GET 

2 ''" 887 .52 I 2 744 703.87 4,380.297.00 2.570.839.00 
I - -
I . -

• .,.. • n.u I "-7U.703.87 ~-o.n1.oo •no.a:11.00 

343,388.88 358.(1411.40 3881199.19 393,984.25 

3,125.00 . 
118,797.83 128,449.73 139,284.19 139,845.09 
H•tll6AI -..90.13 511.219.78 WIOl.34 

33,11114.49 32..848.53 31,84a.&4 32.875.z! 
22.245.57 27230.56 4Ul<IA<5 SJ 316.73 
35552.42 93,444.44 152.432.95 158100.85 
8182.62 8A90.08 8.QOll.71 12107.611 

105""".91 114 AOD.2S 83715.81 67711.76 
205.!171.11 _,, • -n..14 317705.86 u•112.41 

3.08 12.000.00 ,7-.oo 
1823.53 2,741.51 10,000.00 8 """.00 
8.343.02 4.315.97 25,000.00 22-•.52 
2188.72 8118.51 1,500.00 1""".00 

11,888.65 18-.53 30.000.00 ,:i-.sa 
- 155 .... .33 . . 

324.955.59 - 1.424.3411.00 . 
4.327.85 3151.08 5,000.00 5000.00 

- 1111111.00 1000.00 
5114.00 4077.77 10.000.00 10000.00 

288.00 288.00 5.452.58 5500.00 
4708.22 3.977.83 10000.00 10-.00 

210.93 1.D49.IO 1.000.00 1nm.oo 
1.222,173.10 1 719,179.79 2.018.000.00 ,--.10 

97211.02 - - -
U9574UZ 1H3.372.70 3.551 "'1.511 t .... 117.20 

GiandTolll l'rot_, Expondllurn __ 2A07_._..B .. 2ll,..20"""'==-=2,=7,.11.SW2==_,.._ ___ 2.._71._7._.84_,7._.77.._,"'3.=7=Z=1A8U===-'-=2.ffl..._ .. .U._7.U_,..,.2.i.,7'4tii,ii1;70.;;;;U_,7.:!tffld!..._ ... 1_..oo.._ __ 2.570iOii,...8,_39_,.00,_ 

RaftmaeowrEapandlturn•,_~----~..,"!'"'__,;;;•9;;i.&&;;;_ .... ___ ....; .... ______ ""'!,__-;;.!:=2.83;;.,.;.. __ ....; .... ___ .;.. ___ ..,;, ____ .;o.oo=• 

............ ,.... 
NOTll Tllet-1-lEm _ _,.,n_,,_..,,_IJ~ll, ...... Aupm. 

FYZz.21Eq-dbefunded,balthofuncll.,.unbown. Shouldlmowfund,..•mountsomlllfmelnOdober. 

CVCOG Pnlpam RevlewPaae 27 af 37 

--..... , ...... -



CONCHO VALLEY COUNCIL OF GOVERNMENTS Fiscal Year October 1 through September 30 

HOMELAND SECURITY 

State Administrated Federal 
State 
Local Funds 
Interest 

Total Program Revenue 

Salaries/Wages 
Overtime 
Incentives and Certifications 
Fringe Benefits 

AdminlstrativeCosts 

Network Services 
Procurement Services 
Human ResourceServices 
Facility Cost Allocation 

Total Personne I 

Total Cost Allocations 

Contract Services 
Travel-In Region 
Travel-Out of Region 
Travel Advisory Counsel 
Travel-Volunteer 
Vehicle Maintenance 
Supplies 
Project Equipment 
Computer/Software 
Copier 
Insurance 
Cell Phones 
Dues and fees 
Communications 
Postage/freight 

Sub-Total Program Expenditures 

FY 16-17 
ACTUAL 

130,606.08 
18,005.21 

500.00 

-
149,111.29 

56,954.84 

. 
23,889.71 

80,844.55 

13,024.71 
. 
-
. 

29,312.00 
42,336.71 

. 
236.03 

4,092.41 

-
2,063.86 

832.67 
6,271.13 

. 
225.00 

1,776.78 
304.00 

1,234.72 
356.25 

1,932.08 
182.56 

19,307.49 

FY17-18 
ACTUAL 

109,737.20 
17,033.10 

500.00 
-

127,270.30 

54,464.22 

. 
23,527.18 

77,991.40 

12,576.13 
. 
-
. 

21,661.82 
34,237.95 

-
211.70 

4,182.23 
. 

1,553.06 
. 

189.17 
5,530.00 

. 
441.84 
310.00 
978.98 
885.41 

1,660.66 
2.35 

15,945.40 

FY 18-19 
ACTUAL 

125,718.09 

-
-
-

125,718.09 

48,031.58 

-
20,469.89 

68,501.47 

8,973.62 

2,228.43 

-
. 

23,265.69 
34,467.74 

-
-

3,903.30 
2,531.68 

-
. 

345.13 
7,569.60 
7,657.86 

174.68 
466.00 

1,040.81 
25.00 

681.74 
6.00 

24,401.80 

FY19-20 
ACTUAL 
110,756.64 

19,245.81 

-
. 

130,002.45 

63,443.54 

. 
23,929.29 

87,372.83 

6,426.54 

1,695.64 
53.10 

2,125.75 
23,707.54 
34,008.57 

. 

. 
532.26 

1,103.80 

-
. 

1,547.74 
. 
-

15.20 
931.00 

1,276.59 
166.50 
554.07 

6.85 
6,133.81 

FY20-21 
ACTUAL 
118,351.51 

17,106.47 

-
0.51 

135,458.49 

60,628.83 
. 
-

24,679.03 

85,307.86 

5,783.19 

2,592.52 
409.97 

2,399.69 
30,108.88 
41,294.25 

-. 
-
-
-

304.99 
930.55 

-
-
. 

931.00 
1,576.81 

288.89 
576.66 

13.94 
4,622.84 

FY21-22 
BUDGET 

130,000.00 
17,500.00 

-
-

147,500.00 

76,350.24 

1,000.00 

32,327.13 

109,677.37 

6,789.03 

4,189.85 
113.05 

1,144.24 
14,035.98 
26,272.15 

1,000.00 
500.00 

2,488.02 
2,000.00 

-
1,064.00 
1,250.00 

-
-

1,568.46 
340.00 
500.00 
170.00 
500.00 
150.00 

11,550.48 

Grand Total Program Expenditures 142,488.75 128,174.75 127,371.01 127,515.21 131,224.95 147,500.00 

Revenue over Expenditures 6,622.54 (904.45) (1,652.92) 2,487.24 4,233.54 ===================:::::::============================== 
Note: Homeland Security consists of the State Homeland Security Program (SHSP), Law Enforcement Terrorism Prevention Activity (LETPA) 

and HSGD Planning. Cosed atlzcns C0111s Program (CCP) In FY 18-19. The Program Period Is Octoberthru September 
FY 22-23 ls rellcc:tlng award for Radio lnhastnlcture which Includes a Project Specialist to oversee a 1.5 million equipment purchase 

and Installation which Includes: a repeater for Menard, two repeaters In MCCUiioch, a radio console for Mason and four tower uptrades In Kimble 
Radio Infrastructure award Is pending approval from Governor's Office. 

CVCOG Program Review Page 28 of 37 

FY22-23 
BUDGET 

132,293.00 
279,547.00 

411,840.00 

93,174.99 

41,942.80 

135,117.79 

8,324.49 

8,886.12 
928.62 

2,361.04 
14,216.19 
34,716.48 

212,000.00 
4,800.15 
8,000.00 
2,000.00 

. 
1,184.60 
4,202.00 

-
-

2,550.00 
1,064.00 
2,500.00 
1,125.00 
2,000.00 

600.00 
242,005.75 

411,840.00 

(0.00) 



CONCHO VALLEY COUNCIL OF GOVERNMENTS Fiscal Year October 1 lhrough Seplembar 30 
CRIMINAL JUSTICE LAW ENFORCEMENT ACADEMY 

Stata 
Program Income 
Local Funds 
Membership Dues 

Total Program Rownuo 

Salaries/Wages 
Overtime 
lftcentivos and Cof!ific:ations 
FringoBenofita 

Admlnis!rativeCosts 

Network Servicoa 
Prac:uromontSoNicoa 
Human ROSCUICOSoNicos 
Facilily COit Allocation 

Total Personnel 

Total ~ Allocations 

Audil&:Lepl 
Cauroc,Smioc, 

Tmd-111 Rqioll 
Tm-cl-Om al Rqioll 
Mew 
fuel& l.ubrieo01 
VchidcMaintca:occ 
OlhcrFacilityRcnl 
Supplies 
Pn,jccl Eqmpmcnt 
Copier 
lm1lrancc 
Cell l'hancs 

0-ancl(ocs 
Communie&tions 

~ 
Sub-Total Prognam Expendlturvo 

1ST Biennium 
FY 15-16 
ACTUAL 
57,037.53 
39,698.56 
98,275.49 

-
193009,60 

72876.11 

-
33,920.34 

106798.45 

17,194.33 

-

20,810.07 
38104.40 

-
14059.00 

209.61 
1289.53 

213.51 
190.34 

1,418.93 

256.00 
7,997.63 
5,146.37 

10,535.18 
1148.00 

236.20 
1,136.57 
3,787.07 

484.81 
48108.75 

2nd Biennium 1st Biennium 
FY 16-17 FY 17-18 
ACTUAL ACTUAL 

50,487.07 62941.59 
60,702.67 32,353.98 
37,380.00 40,687.00 
62,500.00 62 500.00 

211 069.74 198682.55 

60,748.83 56814.49 

-
21,222.90 21,179.25 

81969.73 nm.1, 

13,205.42 12,584.n 

-

-
47,740.72 39333.10 
60 946.14 51917.87 

25460.67 
16,601.85 -

168.61 
4014.64 5,829.21 

156.99 149.74 
595.87 760.75 
980.46 4,542.25 

506.00 506.00 
17,980.56 7 429.33 

-
12 524.56 2,086.52 

1,371.00 1178.00 

-
3716.32 1156.84 
3704.68 3011.07 

320.90 231.32 
62473.83 52,510.31 

2nd Biennium 
FY 18-19 
ACTUAL 

82 214.26 
37,587.88 
37,525.00 

65 000.00 
202.327.24 

63579.95 

-
23,833.57 

87.413.52 

11,669.73 

2,614.41 

43,608.21 
57,892.35 

12,468.05 
426.36 

6,333.69 
424.11 
685.77 

2.141.22 
256.00 

9676.16 

-
3073.08 
1 707.25 

-
1668.78 

238.89 
39297.36 

1ST Biannium 2nd Biennium 1 ST Biennium 2nd Biennium 
FY 19-20 FY2G-21 FY21-22 FY22-23 
ACTUAL ACTUAL BUDGET BUDGET 

56109.67 61,599.53 79,985.00 59,985.00 

41636.49 56036.26 40,016.00 41,000.00 

37000.00 18,086.30 17,800.00 40,900.00 

65000.00 60,382.43 64,447.00 57 MR.DO 

201,746.16 196,104.52 202,248.00 199743.00 

65928.89 59,235.45 64,549.26 64,249.87 

- - 500.00 
23,354.06 21,665.89 24,712.73 23,271.18 

89.282.95 80,921.34 89,761,99 87,521.05 

6,569.15 5,486.60 5,556.27 5,392.10 

5,086.92 1.m.S• 4,189.85 8,886.12 

1,149.36 3,677.40 1,692.61 3,531.15 

1,062.68 1199.65 1.144.24 1,513.49 

41,954.36 45,447.94 24,667.79 34,951.90 

55 822.67 63,589.33 37.251).76 54,274.76 

20,602.00 - -
23,148.00 20,000.00 20,000.00 

- - 1,456.25 1,500.00 
2,594.25 515.79 5,700.00 5 700.00 

177.67 238.82 215.00 220.00 
941.52 1 052.21 2,000.00 2.000.00 

6789.87 324.48 7,000.00 6870,00 

- 25.00 100.00 100.00 
10,229.16 703.13 5964.00 4948.00 

20000.00 5 311.19 
74.70 891.70 6000.00 5000.00 

2 537.00 2,572.00 3,000.00 3000.00 
657.99 936.87 800.00 800.00 

1,782.60 390.50 2,000.00 2000.00 

- 500.00 -
134.70 25.30 500.00 500.00 

46,501.46 30,623.60 75,235.:zll 57,947.19 

Gnnd Total Prognam Expendltuni•==19=3..,,009=·=80===205==,3=8=9 ... 70====1=8=Z.='2=1=.9=2====1=84=•='0=3=,23=====1=9=11=607==,0=8===1=75=1=134===.4=7==2=0=2.=2=48=.o=o===19=9=,7=4l=,=oo= 

RevenueovorExpendltunia========5=,&=Be.0.=04=====1=6,=260==.63=====17=1=72=•=.D1=====1=0'=13=9=,o=a===20='=97=0=.D5============o.=oo= 

NCTt: ThCI CrfmEn1I Jult!co uw Enforcement Academy Proar•m P"'1od b Slptamber throuch Aucun, 
Local funds are from County Membership dun and an Acrumenl with Haward Collctp 
FY 21a22 was rdectlns I $20,000CI JAG Grant for Eql.dpmenl 

CVCOG Procram Review Page 29 of 37 



CONCHO VALLEY COUNCIL OF GOVERNMENTS Fiscal Year October 1 lhrough September 30 
CRIMINAL JUSTICE PLANNING FUND 421 

State (Contract) 

Interest 

FY 16-17 FY 17-18 FY 111-19 
ACTUAL ACTUAL ACTUAL 
46,805.51 42,194.74 43,073.56 

Total Program Revenue 46,805.51 42,194.74 43,073.56 

Salaries/Wages 

Overtime 
Incentives and Celfilicat!ons 
Fringe Benefits 

AdmlnlslratlvaCosts 

Nelwork SeNic:es 
Proc:urement Services 
Human Resoun:eServlces 
Facillly Cost Allocadon 

Total Penonne I 

Total Cost Allocatlons 

Travel-Out of Region 
Supplies 
Computer/Softwate 
Copier 
Dues and lees 
Postage/ficigltt 

Sub-Total Program Expenditures 

14,001.95 

. 
5,850.72 

19,852.87 

3,198.32 
. 
. 
. 

5,753.82 
8 952.14 

763.72 
397.49 

1,850.25 
954.52 
30.00 
79.54 

4,075.52 

18.889.74 22,401.80 

. . 
7,813.20 9,529.15 

26702.94 31,930.95 

4,307.47 4,349.98 
. 881.82 
. . 
. . 

5,665.27 5,595.57 
9,972.74 10,807.37 

. 676.75 

. . 

. . 
225.80 322.42 
134.17 30.00 

. . 
359.97 1,029.17 

Grand Total Program Expenditures 32,880.33 37,035.65 43,767.49 

FY 19-20 
ACTUAL 

46,479.64 

46,479.64 

21,572.72 

. 
8,410.94 

29,983.66 

2,205.59 
. 
. 
. 

4,088.84 
6,294.23 

. 
363.65 

. 

. 
615.00 

. 
978.65 

37,256.54 

FY20-21 
BUDGET 

44,068.18 
0.40 

44,068.58 

23.638.99 

. 
9,355.30 

32,994.29 

2,237.22 
. 
. 
. 
. 

2,237.22 

. 
439.97 

. 

. 
188.89 

. 
608.86 

35,840.37 

FY 21-22 
BUDGET 

42,501.78 

42,501.78 

19,950.84 

. 
8,027.51 

27,978.15 

1,731.85 

8,379.71 

24.01 
1,144.24 

. 
11,279.81 

1,309.00 
550.00 

. 
935.07 
250.00 
199.75 

3,243.82 

42,501.78 

RevenueoverExpendltures==1=:s, .. s2=s ... 1 .. a= .. s .. ,1 .. sa ..... oa""""""(:&9,,.3"'.9"'3=)=====9,2=2=3"'.1=o===B=,228===.2=1====== 

NOTt: The Concho Yalley421 Pllnnlna P......,m Award Period Is September through Auaust. 
Thia la a contract award. 

CVCOG Program Review Page 30 of 37 

FY22-23 
BUDGET 

42,501.78 

42,501.78 

26,585.65 

10,052.35 

36,638.00 

2,257.24 
. 
. 

665.93 
. 

2,923.17 

1,600.00 

-. 
890.61 
250.00 
200.00 

2,940.61 

42,501.78 

(0.00) 



CONCHO VALLEY COUNCIL OF GOVERNMENTS Fiscal Year October 1 through September 30 

CRIMINAL JUSTICE JWENILE JUSTICE SERVICES 

FY 16-17 FY 17-18 FY 18-19 FY 19-20 

ACTUAL ACTUAL ACTUAL ACTUAL 

State Administrated Federal 27,409.22 27,293.22 24,984.64 32,718.67 

Total Program Revenue 27,409.22 27,293.22 24,984.64 32,718.67 

Salaries/Wages 

Overtime 

Incentives and Certifications 

Fringe Benefits 

AdministrativeCosts 

Network Services 

Procurement Services 

Human ResourceServices 

Facility Cost Allocation 

Total Personnel 

Total Cost Allocations 

Contract Services 
Dues and fees 

Sub-Total Program Expenditures 

3,243.17 4,284.87 

- -
1,415.54 2,034.29 

4,658.71 6,319.16 

750.51 1,019.16 

- -
- -
- -
- -

750.51 1,019.16 

22,000.00 19,954.90 

- -
22,000.00 19,954.90 

3,329.01 7,527.92 

- -
1,553.45 3,131.41 

4,882.46 10,659.33 

670.88 784.34 

125.72 -
- -
- -
- -

796.60 784.34 

20,141.18 21,275.00 

- -
20,141.18 21,275.00 

FY 20-21 FY 21-22 

ACTUAL BUDGET 

40,373.70 31,528.52 

40,373.70 31,628.62 

6,055.07 5,784.54 

- -
2,708.85 2,764.75 

8,763.92 8,549.29 

593.78 529.20 

- -
- -
- -
- -

693.78 629.20 

31,016.00 22,450.03 

- -
31,016.00 22,450.03 

Grand Total Program Expenditures 27,409.22 27,293.22 25,820.24 32,718.67 40,373.70 31,528.52 

Revenue over Expenditures (835.60) ============================ 
NOTE: The Criminal Justice Juvenile Justice Servlces Award Period is October through September 

CVCOG Program Review Page 31 of 37 

FY22-23 

BUDGET 
25,900.79 

26,900.79 

4,379.72 

1,959.59 

6,339.31 

390.56 

-
1,664.62 

-
-

2,055.18 

17,506.30 

17,506.30 

25,900.79 

(0.00) 



CONCHO VALLEY COUNCIL OF GOVERNMENTS Fiscal Year October 1 through September 30 
CRIMINAL JUSTICE Violence Against Women Ad. r,JAWA) 

State 
Local Funds 

Total Program Revenue 

Salaries/Wages 

Overtime 
Incentives and Certifications 

Fringe Benefits 

AdministrativeCosts 

Network Services 
Procurement Services 
Human ResourceServices 
Facility Cost Allocation 

Total Personne I 

Total Cost Allocations 

Contract Services 
Travel-In Region 
Supplies 
Copier 

Sub-Total Program Expenditures 

FY 16-17 

ACTUAL 

-
-
-
-

-
. 
. 

. 
-
-
. 
-
-
-
. 
-
-
-

FY17-18 
ACTUAL 

-
-
-
-

. 
-
. 

-
-
. 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-

FY 18-19 
ACTUAL 

-
-
-
-

. 
-
-
. 
-
. 
-
-
-
. 
. 
-
-
-

FY 19-20 

ACTUAL 

-
-
-
-
. 
-
. 

. 
-
-
. 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-

FY20-21 

ACTUAL 
12,325.25 
5,617.57 

17,942.82 

9,636.97 

-
3,610.50 

13,247.47 

898.48 

-
-
-
-

898.48 

3,196.00 

-
600.87 

-
3,796.87 

FY21-22 
BUDGET 
13,537.00 

-
13,537.00 

3,053.97 

-
1.188.22 

4,242.19 

262.59 

-
65.60 

-
-

328.19 

6,300.00 
1,000.00 

1,503.00 
163.62 

8,966.62 

Grand Total Program Expenditures 17,942.82 13,537.00 ========================== 

Revenue over Expenditures======================== 

NOTE: The Criminal Justice VAWA Award Period Is September through August. 
This procram does have a matching requiremenL Academy Membership dues are used as match on this program 

CVCOG Program Review Page 32 of 37 

FY22-23 
BUDGET 
20,312.39 

9,891.00 
30,203.39 

15,203.64 

5,620.42 

20,824.06 

1,282.95 

-
640.69 

-
-

1,923.64 

5,234.95 
717.74 

1,503.00 

7,455.69 

30,203.39 

(0.00) 



Regional Services 
&VISTA 

Organizational Chart 

Director of 
Public Sa fety 

(Hilda A. 
Ga ribay) 

CVEDD Torn Green 
County Addressing 
(Jolu1 Vasquez 45%) 

CVEDD 

CVCOG Program Revi ew Page 33 of Page 37 

Executive Board 

Executive Director 
Gohn Au tin Stokes) 

Assistant Executiv Director 
(Erin Hernandez) 

VISTA 

VISTA Manager 
Grant/Outr ach Assis tant 

(Tracy Simmons) 

Solid Waste 

@ 
CONCHO VALLEY 

COUNCIL OF GOVERNMENTS 

, ' 
, 1 
I 

-~ SWAC 
I 
I 
I I 
\ / ..... __________ _ 



CONCHO VALLEY COUNCIL OF GOVERNMENTS Fiscal Year October 1 through September 30 
Concho Valley Econcomic Development Districl 

Federal 
COVID-19 Funding 
State Administrated Federal 
Local Funds 
Interest 
lnKind 

Total Program Revenue 

Salaries/Wages 
a-time 
lncenlives and Certifications 
Fringe Benefits 

AdminiSlrativeCosts 
Netwolk Services 
Procurement Services 
Human ResourcaServices 
Facility Cost Allocation 

Total Personne I 

Total Cost Allocations 

Audit & I.cpl 
COlllnlCISeniccs 
One Tune Funds 
Travd•lnRqpon 
Travd-Ou1 oCRegion 
Supplies 
Project Equipment 
Computer/Softwan= 
Copier ·-Prilllina 
Training 
Duaandfeos 

Callllllllllicalions 

Poslage/fi'eigb 
Other (mdudcs FGRdased Assets) 

lnKind Other 

Sub-Total Program Expenditures 

FY 16-17 
ACTUAL 

60,000.00 
. 
. 

42,331.25 
10048.76 

. 
112,380.01 

59,010.69 

. 
20,397.61 
79408.30 

12,807.20 
. 
. 
. 

6,792.55 
19 599.75 

1.375.00 
. 
. 

1,231.48 
3,613.21 

437.03 
. 

1,350.00 
26.32 

. 
845.00 

. 
793.56 
578.62 
270.34 

(104.00) 
. 

10416.56 

FY17-18 
ACTUAL 

77,500.00 
. 

123,998.00 
38,803.81 
7,651.08 

24,799.00 
272,751.89 

67,626.21 

. 
24,411.74 
92037.95 

14,835.90 
. 
. 
. 

8,615.06 
23.450.96 

. 
123,999.00 

. 
1,150.19 
3,005.18 

617.96 
. 

879.00 
341.82 

. 

. 

. 
1,351.38 

155.68 
140.21 
227.93 

24,799.00 
156567.35 

FY 18-19 
ACTUAL 

70,000.00 
. 

209,170.00 
34,130.03 
9,490.98 

41,835.00 
384,628.01 

69,383.15 

. 
25,385.71 
94,768.86 

12,638.30 
2,865.92 

. 

. 
9,249.54 

24.753.76 

. 
209,169.00 

. 
1,125.00 
2,471.23 
1 ?AA.29 

. 
879.00 
836.90 

. 

. 

. 
1,322.29 

. 
89.85 

. 
41,835.00 

258,994.58 

FY 19-20 
ACTUAL 

70,000.00 
152,056.00 

. 
67,986.24 

9,988.97 
30,412.00 

330,443.21 

111,193.61 

. 
42,024.48 

153,218.09 

11,276.22 
3,391.28 
3164.14 
2,205.37 
8,601.57 

28638.58 

. 
157,478.00 

. 
354.35 

1,769.95 
876.62 

. 

. 
1,041.64 

. 

. 

. 
835.76 

. 
211.n 

. 
30,412.00 

192,980.09 

FY20-21 
ACTUAL 

69,999.99 
463,053.24 
183,369.00 
43578.03 
15,734.14 
32,523.00 

808,257.40 

160,858.36 

. 
64,878.30 

225,738.86 

15,294.97 
8,603.59 

10,037.97 
3,981.49 

11,344.29 
49,262.31 

. 
177,947.00 

. 
367.19 

. 
205.12 

5,275.00 
. 

670.00 
4,453.35 

. 
455.00 

1,422.79 
. 

51.21 
298,000.00 
32,523.00 

521,369.86 

FY21·22 
BUDGET 

70,000.00 
500000.00 
161,960.00 
41,968.00 
17,467.00 

. 
791,395.00 

105.534.30 

2,000.00 
48,341.04 

155875.34 

9,648.68 
12,569.56 
11,191.70 
3,432.73 

14,048.44 
50,891.11 

. 
163,460.00 
87,000.00 
4,893.00 
5,000.00 
7,610.00 

99,000.00 
26,000.00 
2,400.00 

25,000.00 
10,300.00 
1,665.55 
1,500.00 

. 
800.00 

150,000.00 
. 

584,628.55 

Grand Total Program Expendltures==t09===,424.==61===272===, 1=56=·=26===3=78='=51=7=. 1=8=====37=4,a!.836 ......... 76==== ..... 796.....!a,368.===63=====79""""1=,3=95.=00=== 

Revenue over Expendltures===2,•9=55=·=40=====5='95=·=6=3-=1=1=31..,89.,.1=.1=71====•44,===3=93=.=55=1====1=1=,888.====77============ 

NOTE: The CV£DD Flsal Year Is Julythrau&h June. The EDA award Is"" a calendar year and Is ta p,o,,ldo Reclonal Pllnnln&-
FY 17•18 stoned 1XDOT • 5310 award fortnnsparatian al Eldaty & Dlsablfity, mnlracl with tvTD. F•nds ...ist CVll) wttt, Fedoral match. 

Eia:ess _.,..,.1n FY lll-19and FY &:ZO CV£0Dused PriorYnr exa,ss fllmls to mver apemes n!latod toan,wtna p._m 
FY :Z0.21 and FY 21•22 nflecl CARES funclina recelwd for RewoMn1 Loan bpansion and COVID ReaM,y 

CVCOG Prcgram Review Page 34 of 37 

FY22--23 
BUDGET 

70,000.00 
. 

181,292.00 
41,968.00 

9,067.00 
. 

302,327.00 

55,390.86 

20,481.36 

75872.22 

4,674.42 
13,329.18 

365.99 
2,270.23 

11,801.55 
32,441.37 

. 
181,292.00 

-
2,172.41 
3,500.00 
1899.00 

--
2,400.00 

-
· 450.00 

. 
1500.00 

. 
800.00 

. 
-

194,013.41 

302,327.00 

IO.OO) 



CONCHO VALLEY COUNCIL OF GOVERNMENTS Fiscal Year October 1 through September 30 

REGIONAL SERVICES - SOLID WASTE 

1ST Biennium 2ND B!ermlum 1ST Blennium 2ND Biennium 

State 

Total Program Revenue 

Salaries/Wages 

Overtime 
Incentives and Cer1ificalions 
Fringe Benefits 

AdministrativeCosts 

Network Services 
Procurement Services 
Human ResourceServices 
Facility Cost AllocatiOn 

Total Personne I 

Total Cost Allocations 

Tiavol-!n Region 
Travol-Out orR,gion 
Supplies 

Projc:c1 Equipment 

Copier 
Printing 

Ads &: Promolions 
Dues and fees 

Posl!lgclfrcight 

Sub-Total Program Expenditures 

FY 15-16 

ACTUAL 

69,611.83 I 
69,611.83 I 

25,473.41 

11,235.22 

36,708.63 

5,910.15 

652.49 

4,197.46 

10,760.10 

B5.40 

734.83 

20.228.32 

448.80 

516.07 

129.68 

22,143.10 

FY 16-17 

ACTUAL 

161,293.02 

161,293.02 

27,298.61 

-
10,072.35 

37,370.96 

6,022.79 

975.35 

3,101.74 

10,099.88 

287.43 

762.57 

176.36 

112,171.78 

216.80 

-
181.25 

25.99 

113,822.18 

FY 17-1B FY 18-19 

ACTUAL ACTUAL 

61.200.10 I 169,727.78 

s1,2so.1s I 169,727.78 

31,898.08 22,192.53 

14,093.52 10,031.28 

45 991.60 32,223.81 

7,415.16 4,216.20 

1,905.37 1,027.35 

- -
- -

3,466.74 3,686.73 

12,787.27 8,930.28 

238.38 1,803.66 

- 231.43 

1,790.19 127,079.44 

94.32 51.65 

296.52 25.00 

91.91 10.20 

2.511.32 129,201.58 

1ST Biennium 2ND Biennium 1ST Biennium 2ND Biennium 

FY 19-20 FY 20-21 FY 21-22 FY22-23 

ACTUAL ACTUAL BUDGET BUDGET 

45,633.31 I 180,609.58 11s,000.oo I 115,000.00 

45 633.31 I 180,609.58 11 s,000.00 I 115 000.00 

24,804.50 40,796.97 17,418.26 21,301.40 

- - 500.00 -
8,807.37 14,600.49 10,347.88 7,242.67 

33 611.87 55 397.46 28,266.14 28,544.07 

2.473.33 3,757.77 1,749.67 1,758.58 

1,995.17 3,039.72 4,189.85 4,443.06 

778.85 2,863.44 2,987.88 8,313.78 

1,062.88 1,199.85 1,144.24 605.39 

4,124.20 4,467.95 3,584.91 4,618.00 

10434.43 15,328.73 13 656.35 17 738.81 

- 1,250.00 683.92 

596.42 (62.50) 2,427.51 1,158.20 

- - 2,500.00 300.00 
109,622.24 65,000.00 65,000.00 

- . 400.00 400.00 
374.20 - 375.00 

218.20 122.26 450.00 300.00 
230.54 201.39 500.00 800.00 
167.85 175.00 75.00 

1 587.01 109,883.39 73 077.51 68 717.12 

Grand Total Program Expenditures ==69='=61=1=.8=3==1=6=1=,2=9=3.=02=====6=1._,2 .. so ... =19 ........ 1=1=0, .. 35=5=.6=7===45=,6=3=3=.3=1====18=0=,6=0=9=.5=8====11=5=,o=oo==.oo====1=1=5'=oo=o=.o=o~ 

Revenue over Expendltures==========--=======("'62='7=.8=9=')====================''=0.=002-J 

NOTE: The State funding for this Biennial award is $230,000 . 

The award period is September through August 

Program Is for solid waste management and recycling. 

CVCOG Program Review Page 35 of 37 



CONCHO VALLEY COUNCIL OF GOVERNMENTS Fiscal Year October 1 through September 30 

COMMUNITY & ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT ASSISTANCE 

FY 16-17 FY 17-18 FY 18-19 FY 19-20 FY 20-21 FY 21-22 
ACTUAL ACTUAL ACTUAL ACTUAL ACTUAL BUDGET 

State 7,498.00 8,135.38 7,171.62 3,405.55 13,081.45 8,114.00 

Total Program Revenue.__..;.7"",4"'9..;.8."'-00.;...i.._8;;.:,..;.13;..;5;.;.;.3;.;;8.....__7'"",..;.17""'1..;..6;..;2 ...... _3;.:.,4.;...0;..;;5.;.;.5""5.....__1""'3;.:.,08;..;;...1_.45__. __ 8_,,'"'"11.;...4"'".o'"'o;..J 

Salaries/Wages 

Overtime 
Incentives and Certifications 

Fringe Benefits 

AdminlstrativeCosts 

Network Services 

Procurement Services 

Human ResourceServices 

Facility Cost Allocation 

Total Personnel 

Total Cost Allocations 

Travel-In Region 

Copier 
Ads & Promotions 
Dues and fees 

Postage/freight 

Sub-Total Program Expenditures 

3,782.15 3,489.34 

- . 
1,403.16 1,352.27 

5,185.31 4,841.61 

835.93 780.65 

- . 
. . 

- -
1,020.96 1,157.90 

1,856.89 1,938.55 

. . 

. 129.02 

. 149.24 

. . 

. . 

. 278.26 

3,015.55 2,219.95 5,558.41 4,563.49 

- . - . 
1,160.54 798.25 2,005.23 1,605.48 
4,176.09 3,018.20 7,563.64 6,168.97 

819.74 222.45 512.56 418.87 

105.02 . - -
. . - . 
. - - . 

1,130.72 . . . 
1,855.48 222.45 512.56 418.87 

. - - . 

. . - 606.16 

. 164.90 . 170.00 

. . . 650.00 

. . . 100.00 

. 164.90 . 1,526.16 

Grand Total Program Expenditures ===7=,0=42=·=20==7=,0=5=8=.4=2==6=,0=3=1=.5=7==3=,40=5=.55===8=,0=7=6=.2=0===8='=11=4=.o=o= 

Revenue over Expenditures ====45=5=·=80===1=,0=7=6=.9=6==1=, 1=40==.0=5=======5=,0=0=5.2==5====== 

U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development provides annual grants on a formula basis 
to entitled dtles and counties to develop viable communities. These funds are to provide technical assistance, but not on a speclflc TxCDBG project. 

Contract agreement Is for the september to August period. 

CVCOG Program Review Page 36 of 37 

FY22-23 

BUDGET 
8,114.00 

8,114.00 

4,879.97 

1,945.86 

6,825.83 

420.53 

-
-

151.35 

-
571.88 

566.29 
100.00 

. 

. 
50.00 

716.29 

8,114.00 

(0.00) 



CONCHO VALLEY COUNCIL OF GOVERNMENTS Fiscal Year October 1 through September 30 

VOLUNTEERS IN SERVICE TO AMERICA (VISTA) 

Federal 
Local Funds 

Total Program Revenue 

Salaries/Wages 
Overtime 
Incentives and Certifications 

Fringe Benefits 

AdministratlveCosts 

Network Services 
Procurement Services 
Human ResourceServices 
Facility Cost Allocation 

Total Personne I 

Total Cost Allocations 

Recognition 
Contract Services 

Travel-In Region 
Travel-Out of Region 
Supplies 
Computer/Software 
Copier 
Printing 
Postage/freight 

Sub-Total Program Expenditures 

FY 16-17 
ACTUAL 

. 

. 

-

-

-
-
-
. 

. 

. 

. 

. 

. 

. 

. 
-
. 
-
-
-
. 
. 
-

FY 17-18 FY 18·19 FY 19-20 
ACTUAL ACTUAL ACTUAL 

. . . 

. . 9,154.72 

- . 9,154.72 

. 6,356.06 

. . 

2,170.26 

- . 8,526.32 

. . 628.40 

. . . 

. . . 

. . . 

. . . 

. . 628.40 

. . 

. . 

. . 

. . . 

. . . 

. 

. 

. -

. . . 

. - -

FY 20-21 FY 21-22 FY 22·23 
ACTUAL BUDGET BUDGET 

. . 15,000.00 
34,363.92 177,025.28 69,953.13 
34,363.92 177,025.28 84,953.13 

23,712.80 46,284.55 47,018.13 

. - . 

8,425.50 17,119.64 19,999.33 

32,138.30 63,404.19 67,017.46 

2,177.22 3,924.72 4,128.89 
. 4,189.85 4,443.06 
. 13.09 95.09 
. 1,144.24 1,513.49 
. 2,309.20 2,414.64 

2,177.22 11,581.10 12,595.16 

. 1,000.00 . 

. 28,308.86 . 

. 1,141.00 1,890.51 

. 1,000.00 2,100.00 

- 300.00 1,000.00 
. -

48.40 237.00 250.00 

- . . 
. 100.00 100.00 

48.40 32,086.86 5,340.51 

Grand Total Program Expenditures ================9,51=54.aa'aa72aa...-=-a3a.a4S,3=6=3.=9=2==10=7~,0=7=2=.15===84='=9=53=·=13== 

Revenue over Expenditures ========================6=9=f,9=5=3=.13===d(O=·=OO:f,) 
carry forward 

Current fundlng Is provided by the San Angelo Heatth Foundation 

CVCOG Program Review Page 37 of 37 



EMPLOYEE SALARY SCHEDULE 

October 1, 2022 through September 30, 2023 

• Head Start Program received HHS-ACF 2.28% COLA award, effective June 1, 2022. Due to 

Program budget constraints, unable to request any additional raises. 

• The following Programs are requesting 6% COLA adjustments 

o Finance, Human Resources, Procurement, Information Technology, Regional Services, 

Access and Assistance, Senior Volunteer Services, and Public Safety 

o Transit is requesting 6% for employees that did not receive pay adjustments within the 

past 5-months: 

• Drivers pay was adjusted April 1, 2022 and; 

• Four Administrative positions had their pay adjusted in June 2022, employees 

are noted on the Salary Schedule 

o Requesting to move the Assistant Executive Director pay from the Program Assistant 

Director level to the Program Director Level I, mid-point between Min and Mid-range. 

This move will result in a 14.40% increase in pay. This position is currently the Interim 

Executive Director and Program Director for Regional Services. 

Executive Director position to be reviewed separately and separate action taken to award 

o Performance Review Committee, meeting July 13, 2022 



CONC HO YA l lEY COUNCIL01- GOV£RNM£NIS SALARIE.S 2022 . ion 

A.mlu;tlfull Tinto! llc:1111 \• 1080 U60w1,ri1 d.il'\ • 8 Mun) .,_ltpl"OV.-tl App!'<Nrd Budjl:t:I 
P•rl T1mE lwrlhuul b.:-flcf!I.)),. 1521 m•., h ,rorO.it" Po~IIOfl 81.Jdtel Revu ffl Rt1V1Sflt .. ,. .... Men1 8tld( .. t 8udit .. 1 rv 11 .11...,. 

T.-n111i! O•tc,n llmw" 2011 -2022 2011-202] 1011-20:n COLA 20U·1023 .1ia1u,1rmml .;mdHS JOU 2013 lOlJ 10H B~t-1 
POSIIION Ht~(O:.,f( 10/1/2011 Cuu 0:111 Po,111un 10/1/2072 S,.t,U}: R,,1 .. S.ir.uv '""" w11nCOLA .iikfl COlA Ru .. S•l•ill: fY 11 ·11 

[ .. 1!1:ulrvo:D1rKIOt 2/ 1/201 <\ ,., 7111201-1 " 1)8, 190.50 SS,757.94 138, l !W.SO """" SS.7S7.94 O.OOOI SS.7S7.9,1 IJ8, l '10 SO 
Oht'Uor o f f tn.imn• 3/19/2007 15.S G/1/1007 15.l 100,069,9(; Sll. 169.58 100,069.% ,oo,. Sl'l.~19 .76 0.00% 5•1.<1 19.76 106,074 16 
AH1~tilnl 011 .. , tor a t f1n-1nc~/Procu1t-mem ]/ 16110"1.1 06 1/16/]0]2 •• 60.000.00 SJ,789.S8 (,6,949 .92 

6 -
SJ .<JS6.'JS O.OOOI S2.956.95 70.966 97 

r llld'1CI'! M.an.111.er /Rc:volv1na, loan 5Pt.'(1,1hu 9/Mnon 00 ]f l /702] 07 4'<.969 60 Sl.9S3.08 '16.117l .96 
6 -

S1 .010.11 0.00% S2.070.17 49.r.B6.40 
rm,UKI!' M~n..111:1/A~~a 10/18/}019 , . 10/1/)0l 1 ID 60,93,,188 S1.Sl8.9!. 60.'JH.Bll ·- S2.69 t.2:J 

0 -
S2.691.29 64,S'JO 97 

f 1rwnc,,~l)r( l~tl\l tfr,\' 000 SOOD ·- SO.DO 0.00,, 5 16.20 16.148 00 
R1et.01ds Rcl,,•1U.OI\OlllCirl/Rt-Ct-p1Jonfi.l 5/18/1011 11.4 I0/ 1/1019 0 35.07005 Slfi ,86 lS.070.05 600% Sl7.B7 000% SH.87 J7.17,11S 
foll-Tim~ Rn"t!p!10n,, 1/ ,3,uountmg Tet:11 10/28/JOll 8_9 10/18/2013 .. 29. 29 70 514 .34 n !29 10 ··- SlS.10 000.. SIS.20 JU, 19 48 

TUI.ii A1 lm1mittJl1vc 469 ,064.69 477 9 1R 97 S l li I S0f,R Mi0Rli fJI) 

rJC7 11nc·1o 700 

Ouector of tl11m,m H,r,uurct"~ S/1/201S " 10/1/1018 40 84,00] 'J.1 Sl.500. 16 84.003.94 •= Sl.710 17 ·- 53.710 17 89.04'1 18 
Pl ~W)l,ilrll 1110vl'd 10 UR G('Mtal,)I ~IJl~V!\01 ll'Vfll 11 11 / 16/2020 19 tl/16/1010 19 4]. 11911 S.22.07 45.905 60 • = SJ3 .J9 OOOti. SH l'J 48.659 9,1 
HR Cootd.rutor/ P•irtoll 7/16/2011 I] 7/1611071 11 H.6-HS! 516 IS 13.648..58 ·- 517 15 000% Sl7 l.S 15.667.49 
HR ~dm1ni~lt11lr.<' .\~\l \l;an( ll/B/1021 08 I 1/ll/201 I 08 30, 16000 514.50 10,16000 ·- S,IS.37 000.. SIS.37 ll.969 60 

Tot,11 tturn.in RdOUl'C,..\ 189 9-11 IB l'JJ )18 11 1D"i 111 11 15 19918 
rT[ 4 11nc·~ 400 

Coni, an s,~c1;u,~1/Pu1th.iu-r 11 9/ 1/2011 I.I 33,817.64 5l.875.00 4S,OOO.OO 600" $ 1.987.50 0.00% S1.987 .50 47,70000 
Pro,::1.1~mi:111 M•n.ii111/l1.i1nl'1 9/1/7016 6 I 'H l /1012 04 39.567 76 Sl .648,66 l9.SCi7 76 ·- Sl.747.58 0.00% 5 1.747 58 •11 .94 1 83 
Purctw~rll 10/ 16/]010 ,a 1/1/101] 08 3] ,!00 00 Sl7.7t1 36.908.35 ·- SIS.Bl 0.00% SIS 8 1 39,111 85 
Procuh!Tni'nl Coo11J,n..,,1or I 9/ 1/1010 II 9/1/2071 II 27,177 70 ')1307 27,177.70 ' - 513 85 000% 513 85 28.808 36 
Procu,~t-nt ( 001dtl\ .. tOI I Oo,o 21.17770 suso 18.0SO 00 ·- s1.:.J1 OOOII S14..3 t 19,764 80 
Proc:urem.,n1/Purcr1,1w, I 1018/10 1'1 30 7/ 1/1021 13 3184] 17 Sl S.79 H .8.U 37 600% S16.74 000,,, 516 70: l4 81:1 'H 

To1a! P1ocurt'ment So!rv1Cr\ 1~4141 17 70'J.'i76 18 112 1507'i J7 7'i7 'i8 
fl[ 7 11nc·1 ,oo 

01rrctor of ln h111t1<1 l1on Jt>clmn1011'I' s11st,m '1 l! 8/19/10 111 ]1 S0.00196 Sl.lll.SO 80.003.96 6,001' S3.5J3.Sl 0.00% S.l.5B SI 84 .804 10 
5v~H:m SuPIKUI Sur.u.tll\l U 11/ 1/20 19 , .• JH/1011 17 38.18! ao S18.l6 lR. 188.SO ·- !.19 46 0.00% 40.480ll 
Sntl'."inSuDl)01I l~r, 4 / 1/1012 o., 11 1/1012 03 29.362.9,,; Sl7.00 15.360 DO 600% !.1802 37.48 1 60 
Pto«r~mmo:1/ IT AiuJ.IPI' .111.11 s, 000 

Tot.ii Nt:11.0, Dllo. AiJm1/\1\ltdtlOl'I l!}J. 591.}9 l'il5SJ 76 161 76Ci9l 11 817 J6 

rrc" 11nc, 100 16 36'-

A1kll e\~1n111 8tllmit/Gl5 'lpo,c1.,l1st 11/ 1/]0 19 ,., 4/1/202 1 IS 48,499.78 SH.32 4fl,499 78 6 00,. S2-1 .72 
0 -

SH.71 !:i l.'109.77 
A,s1)fd!ll [ ~rtul+11r Omtc: tor/Rer;1on;il Sr1v,r r 1- D11~1tu1 6/8/2018 4.3 I0/ 1/107 1 1(1 70.000.4•1 52.9 16,69 70.00044 600,, Sl,O'J l .6!1 M'iOO 0.00!< Sl.lJ6.69 RO,<'l80 47 
VIST l\ Coord1n.i lo1 7/ 1 l/}012 a, 711 11}011 "' 35 6H 66 S20.67 ,1' IJIH60 600,. S11 .? I 

0 -
S11 'H '15.S7l n 

To1<1 l ko-11,.1t11ul Sll:'rY1Cc\ IS~Ul88 1r.i41HS2 17706 345 J1 941 SI' 
tJ(J • Flf'~ 100 14691<. 

O,rcctcr ol Acer., uw1 Au1~uncr 10/ l'Si/lOO'i 16 .9 7/1/JOU 10 3 96.111 16 SHI0911 96.12 1 16 ·- $4,2.l9.77 000>. S•l.149 77 101.-19-1 43 
Field Omtrud~m.in or..,.,• 2US-l4S 5 1,1 00 n. 1moo ·- Sl4.S-l 000% s1.: s.: 10,867 20 
Milfldli;lflil, Local Omtm1hm.1n Opcr, 37,806.'J I S16.50 34.110 00 . - 5 17.-19 0 00% Si 7.49 36. ]79 20 
AAA (unuh11,11m 3/7/2017 0 .6 1n;rnn •• ll, 198 40 SIS.48 U. 1~8-40 600% SHi.<ll ·- Sl6 4 1 M, 13030 
AA.A Coo1dm.ii10t Op.-1 , 31, 198.40 515 4~ 1, 19! 40 ··- 5 16-'1 1 0 .00% SH,.41 J.t, 110 30 
AA:. Coortl1rwto, 8/13/1011 I.I 11/l/2021 o, 31, 19!140 .SIS 48 12, 19!.40 60DI, S1&41 000.. Sl6 .41 J4, 1]0 30 
AA;. Coord,natc 1 J/9/"1020 " 10/1/1021 10 3S,S.36 !O S1709 3S.5,36W "'"" 5 1811 ODO'- SIS. 11 37,669 01 
Accai ;ind .\s1.1 u.11nc.- ~t.11,0,n M.r1..1•r1 1/lO/]OIJ 87 11/ 1/1021 a, 49')'Jq'J] S2 .0U.l3 49 999 92 600.. SJ.108.Jl QOl)t, !il .203.33 SJ 'J"J!>9) 

Tc1a! A,r.1 All~u:v on ti;i:,rut 33741-1.-14 34 1 79308 16) 300 66 14 Ml> 11 
fl( 7 7] i: rTC's 800 7 ]8% 

1\0RC llmnm,: N,1~1ic ,11vr/fi,0Rrilm Couulmi1wr 3/1/20 19 36 'J/ 1/2020 " 3'1 ,710.S9 S l 6.70 J'1,7)0.59 ··- 517.70 0.OOII $17.70 36,8 14.4] 
ADR(/1 11 P, a1t.1-1rn Soen•ll~I 10/ 111018 40 S/ 111020 24 l<l .H0'59 Sl6.70 l4 730.S'J 600% Sl 7.70 o.oo,i S17.70 JG 8 14 -11 

!Oldl ADRC 69 -16 1 1 69,'IE. l 18 71618 8'5 000 
m, • ITC'l '00 

111 r& RSprtl• llu 2/16/10 17 106 Si l/JOJO ,. 31 ,1!17 51 $ 14.99 l l ,187.Sl ·- 5 15.S'J ·- SIS 89 33,0SS .77 
71 1 tr. RSPi!(t•l,,1 Jtnnon 0' ]01/70]2 o., 11,10880 Sil . II 21.10880 ·- Sll 711 000% Si l 78 14,4')5 lJ 
211 lk', R 5p.i:11•l,u/Ad1mn1il1 atwr t.h1,1o1111 1 1/ 1/2019 '. \l / l l20l l 0.9 1'J 701,10 514.28 19 702 40 ·- Sl 5.1,1 

0 -
$15 M H,4 8-1 S4 

l •I lnl11111IJIIOII & ~d.mal 8~ 998 n SJ 998 .72 R() 018 64 '5 Ol9.91 
nu II rf['s 3 00 GOO% 

u..,Jll ll ll>ll 

, ...... 1011, 



CONCtiO VAU.[Y COUNCll or GOV[RNM( NH SAU\R IU 1011 • 102) 

Aflrm.il h1U TH11c Hour\ • 1080 (U.O work d,,y) • A hilur)I 
P.ir t Time (w11hout bt!11..-f, 1\) • 1511 111,u 

PO'iltlON IIIR( 0Al( 

0 11«101 OI S<-rno, Vulul11t'..-r S.-r11 1<,e\ SCP(1Mil.TGP(45l'tol,RSVPl)S,.I l 0/M/201l 
Pro,t1,i11n Mal\.iljtl"I SCP(45'4J, TGP(SS"I 7/1 /JO l S 
RSVP Coo1dln•tc1 • Abll..-nt' (U hOmi 11e1 wt d,I 4/ln010 
RSVP Coordm•tcr • Solo An1tclo ·1/1/:1010 

rotAI St'IUOt Volu111.-er Pro1t1inn 

(11t1111-...1Juit1(t' IM.llvct01 1/1/1015 
Pur,llc ~f.-1v Man.a.- , 1/ 16/1006 
Putihc Sil...tv Coo10.ru10, 10/11/1019 
PuDhc ~f ... ty Prci(1•m SPoe<1oill\l (Rad,o 111h•ntuctU1l') f~e>'I 

Tot-'I C1m111wl Jll\lll i::/t to111i::I• 5-ttYJI IY 

Di1Ktor of Pi.ilitl<. ~1.-iv 1/1/1990 
911 F10«1.im M.iru~~, 5/16/1011 
911 GIS Sl}tWJ1,t 10/28/20 19 
91 1 GtS5p;,n.ilt\t 8/3/2020 
91 1 GtS Spr(1ail\l, Count)' T.-cn 1100 f\l\ ,11ou-'lly) 9/ l/2009 
91 1 P10,:r,11111M.1rutt'f 1'1/8/2006 
9 11 GISSswullh\l l ud 8/16/]01] 

T Ota I 9 I I Co1mm11n1c..h0fl\ 

01lt'CI01 cl Tr,m,pofl.t11Df1 1/1/1.010 
f..\)lil•nt D,1re1cr c l l 1an~po1u11on 1/4/1016 
fllW OCt' Mil1Wlt-•/Pro11•m / /16/"]007 
R....:.t'•ICh So«lilhU 11/U/1011 
Rc,t1onal Coo1U.rwto1/G1i1nl Wlltl!I/OHJ<I' Arkll1N\1t .. 101 Oo...n 
O•U [ nlty/CoU..ct,on, nn.-• 
Accounhn« ll;(hrn(1,1n mo""' m CVT r,rwnci: Sp..,<1,11.t,1 4/1/1011 
C;nhl..-r · G,i:yhound l.-•d Op,,1, 

C•,h...-1 · Gri!YllO W"ld Pl 8/14/1010 
o~ .. ucns Said'!' Maruj[.-1 6/ 1/10 11! 
i.ilc:1v .11nd CcnnPlt.itlC~ S~1 .. h,1 5/1 1/.2010 
O~r.1111on, S.a lc:111 M.tn..t.-r 11 / 1/1010 
flo.1d Suat!IVl~or lfth•d Acu1..-) 9/1/1016 
Ro,.dSuO..-r\t1 \01 ID..-ni,u1o!Jft.-\OOn\ttl 10/ 1/1017 
flOdd Su~rvl\U( IRu, .. 11 6/1/10 18 . ,WW 

Lc.adO.\tulctw:r l0/2 1/1006 
Dl~lkllcht1 6/1/202 1 
D,so..ldl(:t 1/9/2018 

r ,mlit1ciMal\,1,:.-r 8/11/1019 
rie..t Tec.t1rnC1• n/M;11nk•klllCt' S1W<1•ll\l 10/16/2020 
Build,,.. •nd Grounth Milull l!ll,1 11,(tt J e1,.h111u,m 11 /30/101 1 
Molmh'n.t ncc Spec, .. 11,1 8/17/l020 

H!fl' Doile 
r~nurl' Datem 

10/1/2012 Cunent Pcsl11cn 

•• 1/ 16/1015 
7) 7/1/10 19 
,s 4/1/1020 
2.5 4/1/1010 

7.7 2/2/2015 
16.7 10/1/20U ,. 10/11/2019 

". 10/1/1994 

" 10/ 1/1019 ,. 10/28/2019 ,, S/lli/2021 
13 1 9/1/1009 
153 2/1/1.0 18 
9 I 10/ 1/1.0 19 

" 7/1/2010 
61 9/1/1010 

"' 9/1/ 202 0 
o, 12/13/"]0H 

05 oc:r.J .,t8/I/]] 

11 8/24/1010 
4 l 11/ 16/1019 

" S/11 /2020 
18 t:l' / 1/2010 
6 I 10/1/10 17 
50 11 / 1/10 1'} 
43 10/1/2019 

IS 9 ]/16/2019 

ll 6/1 /202 1 
46 2/9/2018 

31 8/1/202 1 
, 0 10/16/2020 
08 11 /3011021 
l . l 8/ 17/1020 

Apprcvrtl 
Po\lllOn e,.uJ,: .. 1 

li<'nur .. 2021 ·1022 
10/1/1012 S.ila1:i: 

7.7 l!O,OOJ .'J6 

3.3 47,0]7.59 , .. 18,176 68 
,.s 42,410.78 

197.7'9 01 
FTU 

77 65,367.13 

30 &0.001 91 ,. H ,49180 
000 

16886. t 95 
m1 

180 8614918 
30 55,41146 ,. ,!8499 78 ,, 46,675 20 

13 I 8,714 R8 

" 61 .058 SI 
30 SJ. 63.l 10 

161 l~Ol l 
fl( 6 50 

,., 68,105.~ 
11 61 'J57.S6 
1.1 58,111.l l 
o, ]-1320.00 

-<:l ,8-1000 
18,080.00 
B 28000 
23 • .t 6.11 

2.1 l S.902 06 

'. 59070.48 
lA 1,1,794.24 

" 58,649.9] 

5.0 44,468 90 

l .9 42,865.46 

30 44,366 82 
'J 41-i 

36 ]8,443.39 

1.3 27,580 80 
4.6 l l . 166.JO 

1 
ll S0.999.91 
10 39. 143.52 
08 27,040.00 

112 29.432.00 

(Of'l<I\,) ~ ...... ,_... .. "' ........ .,...,._, 

•u•10JJ1CH 

Apprc111/'d BudRi<' I 

Ri!II ISl!d R.....-1~d ft iik R.itr. M,mt 800(1!1 Budit.d fV:?l •H V\ 

2011· 202] 1011 -1012 COLA ]021·202.3 At11ultrnc11t ,mdHS 101J 20Jl 10111023 BudRl'I 

A,11e s.1 .. r~ 6001' w,th COLA •dd I COLA R,1l l' SJl.i !)'. TY 71 .13 

53.lll SO 80,003.96 61)0>, H .5335 1 0OQ>, 53.SllS l 84 ,80<1 20 

Sl.'J59 90 47,037.59 ·- 51.07749 0OQ>, 51.07749 49.859 85 

5 1699 28,276 68 600>, 51801 0OQ>, 5 1801 29.973 )8 

510 39 41,410.78 600>, 5116 1 5 0OQ>, S11£i l 44,955 ,-n 
197 729 0 1 209 59175 11 86174 

fir! ( ') '00 600% 

51 .713 63 65.367]3 600.. 52.88705 0OQ>, 52.83705 69,18916 

51.50008 60.001 91 6000, S1 .6S008 0OQ>, S1.65008 63.601 Ol 

510.9 1 43 ,49] 80 600>, SU 16 ·- SU 16 46,10117 

sooo 6()()>, S,17 00 0OQ>, 5 17 00 ]5 ]6000 

16.!l 861 9'ii 11415]67 45 491.7} 
,rrc-, .100 2694~ 

Sl.S8"J.S5 86, 14918 6QO>, 5380493 0OQ>, 53.80.193 9 1,11814 

51,108.1! 1 55.4 11 •16 600.. S1.447 .14 000>, 52 .44734 58.716 15 

S2UJ 48,4997S 6()()>, 51411 0()()>, Sld 72 Sl ,409 77 

511 44 46,67510 6()()>, S71 7lJ 000>, 51379 49,475 71 

529,05 8,71488 600,,, Sl079 0()()>, 530 79 9,137 77 

52 ,54•1 10 6 1,058':il 600>, S1 .696 75 0()()>, S169675 64 ,11101 

516.27 'i4 63110 6 00>, sn fU 0()()>, 51784 :57 909 07 
3611401 1 ]81,808 73 21 ,668 42 

•nc·, 6" 6 00>, 

Sl.67 1 04 $88. 104.96 6 00>, S3.891 30 oom. SlS91 30 9],391 16 

S2.!l l ..56 S61,9'i744 ·- Sl.00 1 -IS 000,,, 53.001.tS 71 ,0]489 

S141610 $58.Jl l 10 600,,, S2.S7 1 88 0 00,, 52.57 1 88 6 1,71'i07 

Sl6 50 514.HOOO 6 00>, S174'l 000.. S17J.9 l6, J79 10 

Sl 185 00 S41 ,840.00 6 00>, Sl ,891 10 000.. St.891 10 45 ,41040 

Sl• OO Sl'l. 11000 600.. $ 1484 0 00,, 5 1484 l0.867 10 

S l6.00 SlUH0.00 6 00>, 5 16')6 000,- 5 1696 lS.176 80 

S il 29 511.4113 .10 6 00>, 5 1l 'J7 0OQ>, Sll 97 1-1,892 19 

Sl0.46 S1S,'JO'l 66 600.. 5 11 09 0OQ>, Sll O'J 16.86414 

SJ 461.27 55'1.070.411 600.. 51,608 'JS 000,,, 51.608 95 61,614 71 

5 19.73 S41.0l8 40 000,,. Sl 9 73 
0 -

5 19 73 4 1,03840 

S2.44l.75 558 650.00 6 ()()>, S1.S'JOJ8 0001' 52.590 38 
52.1 6667 SSl .00008 o= 52.16G 67 0OQ>, SUC.667 
51.099.86 SS0,396 64 Sl.099 86 000>, 

S2.162.4l 55 1.898.32 
ff 

5 18.48 538,418 .40 6 ()()>, St9 59 0OQ>, S l 9S'J 

513.26 S27.S80.80 600% S l '106 000.. S 14 06 
514,98 S31,1S8 .40 6 ()()>, S1588 0OQ>, S IS 88 

l 
52,150.00 s,1.00000 600>, 52,385 00 0()()>, S2.38500 57, 24CJOO 

518 .82 S39, 145.60 600% S l 9 95 0 ()()>, 51995 41 ,494]" 

513 .00 sn.0.10 .00 GOQ>, SlJ 78 000.. 51378 78,66140 

5 14.l S 519.4.32 00 6 00>, SIS DO 0001' 5 15 00 ]l ,197 97 



CONCIIO V.\ll [ Y COUNCll Of CiOVf RN M[ NU, S.AIAR llS JOU }023 

Annu,11 r u11 l1J1H! l luun "1080 1260 ,,.,o, 1t1I.Jy, ~ I hum,) ,l 1,,11u11r1I ApPf o ved Budjtrt 

t\ 1r l l11 n11 !wi tho ut b.!nl!f1h) • l S11 m;u H1ri:O.i 1e PU\lllOn tlm llC~ I tl tv11.e1I Re11•n:il Rat..- R.11~ M o: 111 Budi., t Bml,tel r v 11-22 ..-1 

To:-111m1: o,.1t:m 'Tenure ;>0 H 20n 2021 ·20H 1011-:2012 COLA ,on-rnn /uf111 \ 1tni:n \ .1htlllS 1012-2023 1011 -W H Bud;ti:t 
POS.!IION ulRr OATC 10/ 1/"]0 H ( ut r\•111 Po"11ml 10/ 1/ 2021 !,., la/ Rall~ S;i la r~ """" w1t hCOlA .1dcfl C.OLA Ril l !: s .. ,,,,:i:: fV21 •B 

Ruull.! fR 1 0 11vu 32,906 02 S18.32 H. 336.76 ··- s 18.32 000% UU ] H,316.16 

Ruulu ( I\ , Onvt- r (l e~ d) 33 OJJ J l SHUR ll,Sll ,34 0 00% s 18.38 0 00% JS.38 .U.S.11 .]il 

P.Dut,:1 rR J Or1v~r ] 1 8ti765 $1 7 .8 3 ll.4 17.88 0 "°" s 17 83 0.00% 17 R.l ll,4 17.118 

Mllut l! r R 4DrlVI.'( J) 606 1j $18 .66 ]4,973.5 1 0 "°" s 18 66 000% 1866 l4,'J7l 5 1 

Ra .ii i! IR S Onvou 31,06022 St7 -13 l l .779.2S 0 "°" s 17 43 0.00% 17.43 ll,77'1 ZS 

Rau1.-rA6Dr,Yrr 31 887 65 SI1.8 3 l l .S91J n 000.. s 17.8 000% J7 83 l l ,S997.1 
Rou\,: UI 10hvlC', 2864 160 S1 6.17 19,664 18 o"°" s 16 21 000% 1&17 2'J,6M18 

Roui,:Ul3Duw,:r 31 060 22 St1Al 31.n92S O.DO,i, s 17.43 000% 17 4] ll.77'11'» 

f1001df19Dr1vr-1 33 627 36 $ 18 67 ll,D87'J I "·""" l.8 .67 0.00% 18 67 ll.0379 1 
Fto"t~HI 100, .... er ) 1 90B 86 $ 17.84 n,!i167R 0-""" 17.~ o"°" 1784 11.SU,18 

floulrHI l l Or1v~t )106022 $1 VB 1Ui68 18 000% 17.4] 000!< 174] Jl.668 18 
Rt> llhl fH 17 Driv.-r 26.6•1 I 60 $Hi 00 '9,98800 o_..,,. 1600 0.00% 16 .00 29,981.100 
R0ut 11 rH 13 OuVl'f 26.080 00 Sl6.00 0.00% 16 .00 000% 16.00 
f' l · l l ltOUJOll .i! IOn OJIV l" I · rR - 1 5.022 00 Sl6.00 12.8.48 .00 000,. 16_00 000% 16 no Jl,811 8.00 

Pl •T1an11xu1a11u o Dn~r, · rR - 2 5022 00 $16.00 19,18800 0OO" 16 .00 000% l &,00 l 'l,188.00 

Pr-rr,ni rio• 1.-.11uf\Or1~1C", . rR J 5 022 00 $ 16.00 19,7RS.OO 000% 16.00 0.00% 16 00 l 'J,788.00 

p r . r r,1,n,1,u,1.1110,-. Ot1.-c1 - rR ' 5 022 00 $ Hi,OO 24,480.00 0.00,. 16.00 o_..,,. 16 00 ]4.48000 

PT-T1,1t1\110r l .r.l•ut1 0 t1.-er - r R s 5 022 00 'S,1 6.00 U,DU .00 000% 16.00 000% 1600 n.nu.on 
r1.1.t'1.1Houlrflt);,llr1 ?9.3&2 94 $ 11i 61 34.569.60 0.00% Hi.&l 0.00% 1661 14,56960 

Routti:i_ ] Dfm!I 24 989 11 $ 14 57 H,US.11 o"°" 14 ,51 o_oo,, 14 '57 17,865 I J 

Routo!A.2 o,, ..... , 24 J64 J8 SI41S n.2s1. u 0001' 14 25 000!< M J5 11.15] 1.l 

Kcunot:O.lO, ., 24 38.J JS s 1.: 2s- 27,25)'1 0 "°" 14 2'i, 000% 1'125 2715] ll 

Ruut11 A• Otwo'r 29,35'8 79 S l6.85 l2,l1S.63 000% 16 .15 000% 1685 ]].]256) 

Rome AS O,,vet 26 491 19 SlS35 29.)56 88 o.~ 15 35 000% 15 ]5 l'J.15£18 

Rthll,: A6 0,ivN jk..,,JI 29.553 B6 S J6.95 3VH 6 . .ss o"°" Ui .9S 000% 1611J5 31.416&11 

Aou1.;A7Dr1 .. ,:1 :?S.749 9D Sl 4 00 26,77500 000% 14.00 000% 1-1 no 16,175 00 

Ro,111.: A8 Or111,:1 35 796 26 sw.n l8,li70.1S 000% 10.21 o"°" J02Z 3'1,67075 

R11 .. 11•A9 0 1111 c-r 2 4 ,969 11 s1.:. s 1 27.S6 U 3 0.00% 14 .57 000% M .<;)' '7.86S ll 

flo 111a:A I0 0 11v<!r 2a 069 99 Sl 5.9B 30,!)f.'J. ] 4 0.00% 15 .98 0.00,, IS 98 l0,41il>H 
ll.o ,1k .0.12 0 nv<! • 28 465 J ~ Slfl. l 'J ll,316. i J 0.00% 16. 19 0 00K 16 19 31,nun 
Rn .. t,:.O.llOr,v,1:.1 24 225 DO S14.00 0.00,, 111.00 000% 14 _00 

~l•UIII' rG 1 0,1Yc1 26 998 38 Sl 5.6Z ]'J,S.7315 000% 15.62 000,, ISM 2!1,873 2'i 

Rou tt" rG 19011vt1 29 787 95 sn.os 32.665 So 000" 170 000!< 1708 l1.66S o;o 
Pl l 1~flWOf\a1,on()rn,t"1 AOA - 1 7 650 00 s 1.: 2s ll.081 50 

0 -
14 .25, o"°" ua 11.()81 SO 

PT 1, ,,,r.;001t.i l!011 011..,er - =.o:i.-1 7 839 72 Sl 4 57 U.11516 000,,. 14.57 000,, 14 S.7 13. U'i.]6 
Pl-T1~nW)(l1t.;1ll(lll ()f1111ef AOA-3 7,500 00 S l 4.0IJ 12.SSl 00 

0 -
1400 0"""' 14 00 11.85100 

P1•T1;,t1SOVttal'°"' 011,ei- -'>OA-.:. 7 500 00 Sl4.00 11.85100 0 00,, 1-100 000,, 1400 11)35100 

Pr r, .. nslkt•1.:a1KJnOr"'~ AOA - 5 7 500 DO Sl .UJ0 11 . .SSJ .OO 
0 -

1400 000,, 1400 11.85100 
Pf-Trampn11.111nn Otn,,., ADA · 6 7 50000 s1.:.oo 11.85100 0""" 14 00 000% s 14 00 11.85:100 

PT -Tr,;,n100,1-ii1tOl't Dove, · AOA- 7 7.500 00 S14.00 11.!ISJ oo o_oo,, 1.1..00 000!< s 1'00 IJ ,,8S1 no 
Pf-T 1;i,rnom1..;1run n,,~rr • ADA • B 150000 S i:U)O 12.BSHlO 000" 14 ,00 000% s 14_00 11.!5100 

Pf-T1.llmJw11 1.,t1 rm n, ,., ,.r,Co i: Coun1Y/8 ron1l' 12,75000 s1::.oo 111.28000 0.00% J.1 .00 000% s 14 00 M , :1 8()00 

PT-Tr~l"IU){.111,)l•OI\ 0 111re1-K11 11liti: Counlv 12 SOD 00 Sl4.00 14 ,l!!0,00 0.00,0 14 .00 0001' s 14 00 l ·1,7MOO 
l rnn\ll0'1,11tc n [l r1., ,•t•C.t1l e Cou,u v/ Ro b..:,1 L,.,. 29.526 55 S l S. 97 37,578.80 0.00% 15.97 000% s 15.97 l1,S78 80 
l r an~OOfliil ltOi) Dfl ~t:1' ·Cunc:OO Co unl v 27 737 06 $)5.10 ]0.1!0-1 00 o.oo,i; I S. JO 0.<)(!% s 15 10 30,81),100 
ltai\:.1Jo(lt1l •Or, Dr llll'I-Cro r l:.t: ll Count.- 35 OB2 29 $1 4.00 18.56000 000% 1' 00 000,, s 1400 18.560.00 
, , .. raoor l it l lCII Ut1Vl!1' -C ra c: l.i>ll Count.- 28 257 25 '5. l S.lS l l , ll400 000% 15.35 000% s 15.35 31,31.:Z 00 
l 1i11lUlOI I .. IKl ll D11vw-l:1 1'1Jbh! Counl v 25 500 00 S 14 00 1!.56000 0 00% 1400 0000. s 14.00 U.5WOO 

l rJM00FI J IICn Drrver-McCuDoch Coun1v ILHdl 32,939 06 S l7.6S '36,00fiOO 0 00,, I J.6S 000% s 17.65 J6_oo600 
lr,ru.1JDrt,1,han Drr•..r McCull:xn COLofllll 35 500 00 s1.: no 111.sr.ooo 000% 14 00 0.00% s 14.00 lS,56000 

lraMa,on,uon Qr,yl!'t' -Mc:CuHoch cnuoty 27.466 56 Std 96 10,'iUld0 0 00,0 14.96 000,0 s 14 .96 30.518-10 
lri1M,D,Cn~110n Ouw .. , M~10 (oUflty 31 773 82 S17.08 l4.M3 70 0 "°" 1701! 0 00!< s 17.08 14.14)10 

1, .1n,oor1~1oo11 o,,~e-r- t"ltan Countv 46 235 38 s1.:. 16 -19.]8640 ""°" , ~ 16 000% s 14 I C. 49,18&•10 

Tr.J1>~001tJ l10n 0 11vr-r, fif'M:.iln Cuuotv 2746656 Sl 4.96 i0,S. 1340 000,,. 14.96 o"°" s 14.% J0,5 1340 

f , ,.,1~o01t.il101l 011v11r-~h/e11:hi1 J.3 •15926 $1790 .36,S t6.00 0.00% 17.90 0 "°" s 17.90 36.5 1600 

1,an\UOlt •IKUI Urt \l't!f-iUl lo n Countv ILu d l 32 -139 67 $14.00 11!,5M,OO """" 14.00 000.. s 1,u )0 }8,56000 
l ran~oo, t:1 11011 On11tr ,.!o ut 1on{o unw 27 •166 56 SM96 ]0,S IA 40 0 00,0 1<1 % 0.00% l4 96 J0,5 18 40 

P.ut• lum! Tr:tn\11 51t-r l1 n1, { n .. ntv 01 1.-.,r DR I 15(i0 iu \ j 1J,OOS 00 Sl 4.l5 l 8. l 68 .7'i noo" 1425 0 00" 1425 IR, lf:ill 75 

Pl - fr lHl'il}Ol l ,ltmr, 0/IV<,'l· h lt'l"ld\ .. , M .. ,1,c:..1 J .6n 21 SIS.9 1 5,4770} 000" l S!ll 0 00% l S.9 1 S,47707 

n oa1l-r•T•am1,011.i 11o r1 01 111~r 1B,589 50 Sl6.00 0 00% 1•00 0.1)()% 1000 
rlOil l t"t Tr.i rtUknl~ IHl/1 Onnr 18.589 SD '$1 6 .00 0 00% 16.00 0.00% ,.oo 
r 1uo1l a •Tr.mmn t 11 11un Om11: r 18 589 50 sooo 0 00% 14.00 

0 -
14.00 

flo;i l n lr•mncnu t,on 0 111,e, 18 589 SO sooo 000.. UDO o""" 14.00 
rr.o,~1 T1.-rnoor~.it,on '] 45} llS ,s4 1559010 I 751RS!J 70 8£5!7 16 

FTE 70 :rnf'\ "' 353'. 



C'ONCJIO VAUfV COUN( I\. OF GOV[ANMI.Nrs !.A.LARIE.S 2021: - 10 13 

A1U\u ,1I r ,:.11 f1111 c Hour). ] 0 80 (160 wo,, d.iy, .I. 8 IIOUI\J 

P.i r1 l 1u,c- lw1t11ou1 bencf1l})" l S2 l 11\@ • 

Hr.iO St .. r1 (),,~tor 
HS (dllC.i!iori M,mn:er/CO.(h/Oil\\/0,i..t,b,li1v 

Mt,\l:il Uc-.aill.lt/Hd1111 l\1-31/\411et" ,1nJ Pre11w1u Wom.-n 
( .\MCO/PohlY Cou11cill.1i1RiilJ;t"f ilnd Pr<'I_JW,nl \'loni .. n. 
(R.SWf •W•lln M.,,..,.nflr,1mit1on/U.u 

Com~1,1n(rJCt•,\/llcri/Nu1nllon f,liln.:ild 

A-.,nunt Hf'o6d 51,111 DIIKlot/f W.. r thKliilUOnM.lrw,trl 

'illll'SUµ,:!/'VI\IJl/ f !,W·Mll,.,_.t d 

l\;>;1d Siart Tf'iHhe, • Mt!n.1 1d 
l !r.ul Srnn r .. ;,io1e, Aum • Mrn.ard 

[.uly ll r ,l d s,..,ri T,euh ... r. Mt'n.ud 

[,uly ll r ,111 S1.1r1 T"Jcht:,r · Menard 

[ ,1,flv ttc•hl 51,HI riu,m1 · Men ~rd 

Coott:./Cu~lod1•1l MMimJ 
Hrad St.:irt UniYffs.1 1 Subs:ilulCS.· l\'l~na rd 
ll ititd Sta.st Un1111!1U t 5ubutut~ - l,'leNl rd 

'i1ui Suprr.,~r/rsw. Chm1011•I 

1,:-M;l\..r AHJ\1 (hnuo,~I 

ll i!:td StMI Ur.111111:rul Subsm1tes - Chn m1.1J 

S11cSu11c1v,w1/ r s w [ l,J ™'dlfo 

Ti:.t(l..:·r A.rn\t CllJo r.rdo 

Ct1ol,,/(11UOll/• t1 • ( ldo1..sdo 

l!lk( D~H 

10 /1 /10 19 
7/17/1004 
7/1 1/1019 

718/1019 
811'100!1 

7/17/100(, 

7/8l10 19 

8/')/20().:I 
8/l)/]cxµ 

7/\5/2021 
10/14/ 202 1 
8/N/lal l 

I \t ~l.;r \ (hi )OJI 

IJOJ/1011 

l lf,:}102 1 
_Ql"II 

Otwll 

1/14/1011. 
8/7/WlS 

~/15/ZO] I 

llirttO.i lC 

T.;11111 ..

lO/l/2012 

10 

"' j] 

" '" ,. ' 
' 

18 I 

HI. I 

" I U 

I.I 

10 I 
o, 

06 

" '·' 

Po~l!l on 
1),,11 ,.111 lcnu1 .. 

Cwn•ut Ptn1ho11 lO/l / Wn 

911/1020 
7/1111004 
7/11/10 19 

7/!/10 19 
6/1/1010 
sn11020 
g/111010 

ft/'J/2004 
B/')/1004 

7/15/lOH 
10/14/2021 
w1 1c.non 

li/11/JOIJ 
11 /·11102 1 

,., 
"' " ,., ,., ,., ,., 
,., 
nu 

I.I 
1.0 
1.0 

10 .l 
o., 

A1,p10~11d 

ll udjl,c l 

WJ I ]OJI 

S...1~ ry 

86, lll.'l.'J :1 
6&,0,R'jj 611 
ss 01,1 .~o 
'ioSOl4 40 
.'i,/,-l')!i, l6 

'.,1115100 
tH5li6 10 

40,014 SG 

11.li69 7Cl 
}0.C. 15.87 
'Jt'l.!0,00 
H.920,00 
n.s,mso 
1i,6 16f.7 

'l9i' 'Jl 

======"---~l.OOCi .lJ 
3/16/JOll 

on1.I •'A/102 

1/M/1011 
R/ 16/.t021 
11ns,rn21 

1.5 

06 

I I 

I . I 

\7,4R8 71 
114069 1 

I.MS 31 

H.llS,14 
JO.no >Hi 

ll ci11d S1.ai r1Umv11uil lSutrt., tu le-$ • £1do1ado ------------'-- ilJWI • 

5,h:: Suue1 •m,m/f SW - 0wn..s 

lr4Lhrr • Olo11" 
Tuctlcf ."l,}1ul Ozon. 
Coo'l'Cwtud,•n Oran. 

1011noos i, o 10/v:mos 11 o 
11Ir,Iwo1 lS 'i 3/ 1&0001 1s s 

1'111£>/10],1 7 8 11/16{1014 7.8 
!!/10/201) ~ I 8110/1017 S I 

~d St•1 I Urwven.il iuWtutes • o,orw ~~-~----~------"'""-""'""'""o,;.;;o'-----' .;.'----''.;.'l;.;.".;;'.;'o"-10;;.... __ ,:..•:....--

17,6'.!7 1!1 
U..1JHJ1 
lll':tSS!I 
Jl 4Uta 1)4 

I.DOS 11 

Cou, /Cir,100•111 ( tJ~n 

IJ/9/1001 
ll./1/1019 

J/11/2.012 
11/29/10:n 

Heid Srai t linlvdWI Subsi lutti- Ed-en -~---~~~----,-~11/ 11/.;.>0;;;;' .;.' ---

Sitt-Si. 1w1v1,m • Bl•Lht1u r 
11i;:,1d s1 .. 1t ll'd lhl!I • m.id\hl!il r Roo111 1,/ J 

Ht-,1d Sto1 I 11".:t\.hl!I Au1\l.r11l • B!.o1cbht!il l Roo111 r l 

lito.rd St .. 1l l1"!.i1Lh•1 • UP•d~ur RJ 

Hlil'.ild ~l,n l T.--11.hf!I Al\1U•nl· 6li11. hc.ilr RI.IOm Jt1 
tit:".ild ~I.in Tt--ilther - Blac kUll!• r Room ltl 
Ht"dtl Stall lr<1<hrr Au1~tilnl · 81.Jcl..i.hc•r Room ll'l 
Hc-<11..I St,111 lwM'.IH'r • 81.ilEhhur Room 16 

He,ild ~t,ul l•.ilrh-er Ana:.l\t • 8'ilu.i.ht..r Room ,6 
ti.:a.d SUrl Teilther · Blacbhot,,r Room R7 
tkdd Sl:.lrl , .. ~ch;o,r At\l\l;inl - Biatlo:~, .. , Room 117 

Hlt';1d Start Tr.ich..r • 8f.1c lohHr Room 14 
11 ..... i1 St-111 lrathlll An, ~tanl - Blac ~n~ .. , Rn n m IM 

f ;1111,ly S,•n,,,cr Wo1 '-.ef • 81.i( ~)hc.ar 

r ,urulv St:"' 1c.r Wo, 11.u - Ell•l~>he.:r• 

Rrtt:ll l1Crn~l • ll iachtueil r 

Hl:"Jd 5111 , 1 C.t11)l,: • eh1t.kihe.;ar 

11 t-.ad St,111 1 Cao); · 8 littk \lle.i r 11.560 h(UJJ~ Will\ bfl\t'fll ~) 

lt~•d s1 .. 11 Cuuod11n · Sladt ~hHr 

H.-;wJ '5.un T c-,u.tw-, • D~v Re,oll\ 111 
w ... (I s, .. ,1 Jocf\t'f A\~\l,ill l- O.;ay• Rdom Il l 

Hod SI.ill Tncl~ • O.iv 11.ootti .:12 
Ht:11d St.ill Teictsc-, ..,_,~nloml - O;iy Rooin 112 
ltc-;a(I S1~,1 Tutt~· 0..yRoum ir3 
ll it,ul St•r l Judkc Al.mt.mt Oilv !loom 11} 
IIH tl St ,,r l ,,.chto! - 0•'1' Roo,n,i,I 

lie.id 5l.ar t lucht:f Au1H•nt • Oily ilOUII'I Jl'-1 

ll t'• tl 51,lt l roi;i llwr · llil 'I' ~oom RlO 
!lu ll SIM I T' l' ~[h l"f ,. .. U l§l,l(l \ - 0.t'I' Rnorn IU O 

ll i'at l St ~r l Tr~rh ... r • ll il \l Room n l I 

llo!I II 51ar1 r;o;uh,., As~m.lnl • 0 • \I Rnmnlt l I 
[ il ll'I' llud St ilrl h:.idll'J · o .. v Ranm &,! J 5 

ca,tyUit11d SUTI lt!•rilH. D.ay Room lf 13 

Cult Ur11d St ;i,n Tt!o6r;hu • O;iy Room lr l G 

h rt., tt.<.td St ;trl J;,,,;ntlrr . O.il' Room f,'16 

( .,.,1y tklld 51,m 11"111.tirr 0"'1' Room P l 1 
C. ,1, t-k-..itl St,1,r l lc•.arMr • O.y Room =11 

3/1 111011 
111/13/1006 
7/29/2010 
7/31/1019 
10/6/2020 

u.iml,m,:1/1.'i/n 

7/111/JO l J 
7/31 /10! 1) 

l/'1 / rn 21 

7mf20 1'J 
0111-11 

~------'-- lll•rnl, ruc71 1 )1. 

7/l S/1019 
7/lJn0 l 9 
UHnou 
7/l l /201'1 
1/l l /101'1 

,, • ., ! ,i)l/ 1/Ji 

rly.,1 , 

7 l0/10 111 
(!t'r,,1.1 /(11/.1l 

7/,U/1:019 
7/J. 100 19 
711 10019 
7/ 1/2.0 19 

11/1~/Jom 

l/1/1011 
1/Jli.(.lO l 'J 
1/15/JO l 'l 
1/IS{10 l 'J 
1n111on 

I! 1 3/IJ/700-1 18 l 
l 1 11/1/]011 08 
0 'i 3/1 1/20'2 OS 
OB 1 1/29/lOJI 08 

0 ' '----'-'" -' '.;.";.;;'.;."';.;.' --..:;" .;.• _ 

,., 
" 
JI 

" " 

8/ 1/)01<) 

?/J,!. 20'2 

i)/ J/20)9 

7/Jl/2019 
7/ l G/2010 

OS - -'"""'illi<JILILlli.
lS 0 

" l.l 
10 

9l 
l.1 ,., 
" 

" ll 

" " " 
" 
31 ,., 
l .l 
31 

" 06 

" 31 

" 16 

6/ lnO'JO 
7fl9fl010 

7/11 /1019 
•1/1/JOZI 

8/ 1/.2.0 19 

7/J l /20 1'1 
l/~/202 1 

u,•i,11mll ll l 9 /}) 

:1/ l S/]019 

J/ J/J01J 

7/1 1/JO I IJ 
7/1 1/J019 
7/1 1/]D 19 

7 10/]01 9 

7/1 10 01 9 
713 1/20 19 
11.11n1119 
7/3 1/2019 

11/ 19/2020 
)/]/}011 

7/ IS/}019 
711'1/1019 
1/ I S/2019 

1112/1011 

" 0 7 

" 3l 

" 
13 

" 3l 
,; 

,., ,., 
L7 

j1 

06 

" " " 
3l 

,., ,., 
31 ,., ,., 
06 
31 

" " l 6 

11.aH 1.11 
l1 l 'B60 
rn.SD8 80 
JI UlB 80 

'l'J7!J] 

40(,.!R ri-1 

.ZH,5 17.bO 
n.nr,Ro 
19.0 ~~ S1 
:u •.. 10784 
ll.'1'll 7l 
i].)16 80 
l'J.'J l4 '.i6 
u,.1!11&0 
1.11,!i;lS'l:1 

16.107114 
1!."1S S] 
V,11G RO 

lS.'J l8 69 
35.'J i !! 69 
2 1,11-1 oa 
1:J.!i ll ,11 

40,60.ll 71 

30.74l 98 
26.]07 84 
30.74198. 
168HBc 
18,5]5.S2 

.l6.J01 tl4 

J0, ),1 1 'J!I 
12 ,)8].8!! 

10, / 4 1.'ll! 
Ui,!IH 00 

\0.14 1 'J!I 
1(,, 1018'1, 

14,'Jf.080 
\l.<J')0,10 

U,711.240 

H .711 '11 
U ,7JU 'JI 

14 31160 

Corot•"ll'l..-.,,lpynj>lof1.><1,t<t'~'"""' 

...... 11,JJJ",1 

Ri::vm:d 
1oi1 .20n 

R.Jl e 

S. 3.'i 99 S.8 
S.1,753-57 
S.1,19:U O 
$.1,.193. 10 
$.1, l!JS.&; 

$1,150.50 
>1.648.18 

S I .667.6'J 

Sl6. 19 
59.86 

Sn.so 
Sn.so 
S1J.u:; 
SlD 87 
S8 .9 1 

~" 
Sl.':.lil 0l 

sross 

$ll .11 
59.99 
S!! .9 1 

51.S6822 
SU57 
51070 
Sl0l'l 

$8.91!. 

Sl,568.H 
S I067 
Sll 29 

$ l ,69UEi 

Sl l .71 
s oas 
$13.97 
$12 .90 
Sl538 

Sll 2~ 
I 00 
'$,11.67 

sn.n 
Si:2'65 
SJ371 
Sll .00 
sn.n 
'S l7.27 
5 1 1.53 
Si l io 

Sl.6':l1.0l 

Sl l .7~ 
SU.6S 
'S,J,:.78 

S l1 90 
SJ.I 00 
$ 10 71 
$14.78 
Sll 00 

S14.78 

Sl2 .9-0 
Sl4.7S 
$1 2.65 
$12 01 

Sl S.18 
StS 28 
StS 28 
SlS 28 
St 1. 71 

Rl·Vl\<t"d 

202 1·201.., 
5:il., ry 

86,389.91 

66,085 68 
55.0J,t 40 
S5,0l4AO 
57,4 95.]6 
SJ.S.5100 
6l,SS6 20 

.;0,014.liri 

ll.li69 :1!l 
10.5 l 'i 87 
13.970,00 
Jl ,'>10 00 
27,580.80 

n.61&.67 
997 91 
"1.91 

J:1.-18.11 .71 

11.9-1400 
'i'J:1.91 

S.Sll .ll 

35.Sf.S.(){l 
23, 115 il,I 

70.770.i:ti 
99'1 .91 

17.637.'18 
16. ll ll II 
21.255S8 
JJ,1106 9,1 
1.00s. 11 

.H ,637211 
n.t'JJ60 
:ll.41!1110 

"<0,fi1!16'1 
11t,Sl1.6U 
12,Sti!OO 
19,055.51 
26,832 OD 
J l ,9'JJ 73 
ll.40000 
lUOOOO 
]8.4]] 60 

1ft.,S3SS/ 
.z&.10184 
18.SJSS? 
14,!)6000 
1'i,9 1A(,<J 
)5.9 18611 
1: 3.!)74.0 8 

B,2'16.00 
17, 118 80 
11198.tt] 

-10,608 71 

16.510 00 

nl.J07M 
30.74 1 98 
JG.1'118<1 
19. 17000 

U,176 80 
J0,7lll 'J !I 

n.sao oo 
J0, '1'41.9 !1 

26, 8 ] 2.00 

J0.74 1. 'J I! 
U1.l07.JM 

?4. 'JB0B0 
31,91)0 '1,0 
11.7.111 ,'jQ 

11.711 1 ').II. 

11 .781 911. 
1.l.,U1c.o 

R.11e R,ll t" M,• rol Bu cl1t.,1 

COIA 2021 · 2021 All lll\tm,ml .i N I 1-,S, 1.o n .rn11 
li.00% w1t11 COIA .1~11'1 COlA Kill t' 

J1 u10.: l 'il Orth\. 

218" 
128" 
1]1!'K 

u ... 
128% 
1.18" 
2JS~ 

1.111% 

118" 
'JltlS 
1 '18% 
1'18% 

118" 

2 Ja" 
118" 
1-18" 

1.n,. 
2.28% 
,.28" 
2.28% 

2 26~ ,, ... 
118% 
1.18'ft 

"" 
2.18% 

2.2 8% 
128% 

1.28"' 
U8"-
1.18% 

nst. 

"""' 128,.,, 
1.18'. 
l .18,._ 

1.28"' 
1.28% 
2.18% 

'1.18% 
2.28,G. 
1.28"-
1.28% 

2.18% 

2.28% 

:ua" 
211!1' 

128'i, 

2.28" 

""" 2.28% 
2.28% 

228"' 
2.1 8% 
2.21!% 
1.28% 

2.28% 
2.28"-
2.28% 
2.18% 
2.28% 

2 JR% 

'"'" 

$3.681.65 
S2.8I 6.3S 
$2.345.38 
'S.2.l4~.3S 
S2.4SOJ6 
S2.lo9.76 
S2.7CJS.SS 

Sl ,70'i 71 
'; I li.56 

SI0D~ 
S i l 76 
Sl l7 1i 
5 i 3.S6 
S11 U 

$9.11 
S9.ll 

$1.'ilJ764 
SI079 
>'HI 
SIIJ ll S. 

Sl,5 15.7 
Si l.37 
SI0.11 

S'J. ll 

S l.603.98 
51'2 .!IS 
510.9~ 
SIO 53 

S,'9 I & 

Sl.601.98 S 
$1 0.'Jl 
sn s 
$10.J~ 

SIJ. 11 

!.t .Hl.-16 

St4 .0l 
SIJ.1 0 
5. 14.29 
SIJ. J!J 

Sl5 .7l 
S.11 ,5 1 
Sl S.J.; 
$.U .98 
51401 

S-UIJ4 
S- 14 01 

S. 12 .27 
$1 7.66 

Sl7.66 
Sll.79 
SltA fi 

Sl1.2 J 
Sl D.9C. 

Sl.730 r.1 
$11 ~ 
Sl29J 
Sl5l2 
sn 19 
Sl4.31 
SI0.9'i 
S l S.11 
Sil .JS 
s1s.n 
Sll. l 'l 
$ 15. 11 
S12 .94 
S l2 .2R 

S1S7l 
Sl Stil 
S l SC.l 
S, IH,1 
S1 l <)9 

000% 
000'< 
000% 
000,0 
000% 

000% 

o""" 
0.00% 
0.00% 
0.00,t, 
0.00% 
0.00% 
0.l)(tt< 

0 -000% 

0 °"" 
000.. 
0.00% 
0.00,0 

000!< 

0.00,0 

O ll0% 

0.00% 
0.00% 

0 00% 
0 00% 
000,i 

000% 

000.. 

000,. 
000,, 

O DOS 
000,,, 

0 000. 

o""" 
0 00% 

0 00% 

o""" 0""" 
o""" 
0.00% 
000% 

o""" 
000,, 

0000. 
O.omi. 
0.000. 
000% 
0.00% 
0 .00% 

000% 

000% 
0.00% 

OOO!I 
000,0 
OOOll 

OIXn< 
000,0 

0 .00,0 

000% 
0 .00,, 

o.om. 
000% 
000% 
0.00-K 
000,0 

0001' 

0 Oil% 
000'< 
000% 

000,0 

OOOl< 

53,6R t r,s 
52.8 16]'5 
51.14'5 J8 

51.345]:!I 
51.450 ]6 

SJ.209 76 
51.7 5S 

Sl.7057 1 
SH,56 
SIOM 
SU.16 
S.11 .71i 
S-ll .56 
s 1111 

S'l 11 
S9 ll 

S l .597 64 
S1079 

S9 ll 
S'J.11 

S. l ,5 IS7'l 
S11 37 
S I0 11 

S-!J. 11 

S l .601.98 
5 1185 
s109.1 

SIO'il 
S9 lA 

Sl.Ull 9A 
SIOIIJ I 
sn ss 
5 1014 

S!t ll 

S1.73 1.'IG 
S-1 4 01 

s1 1.1n 
SJ429 

513 19 
S- l S.73 
SU .S I 
S-IS l4 
SB9! 
Sl 4 03 
$12.9.2 

S l 4 0l 
$ 11-27 

S.17 66 
Sl766 
$ 11 .79 

S 11 46 
Sil H 
$ 10 .96 

Sl.730.61 
S1104 
$1]_'}4 

S IS Ll 

S13 l!J 
S14 J2 

Sl 0'lS 

S I S.11 

S ii 15 

SIS.11 
$ 13.l l} 

5 15. i .Z 
$ 12.9'1 
S l l]S. 
SIS.H 
Sl 'i63 
S IS63 
S i56l 
Si l 94 

Hu11,11!1 

rnn rnB 
!-,,1.uy 

88.3S9.Gl 
G7.S:t1A3 
56,289 18 
56.Jll'J UI 
S8.8o625 
53,0)4.13 
6!t.00'518 

40,1Jl7 11 

14.•0746 
10,98J 61 
14.46'i 111 
14.465111 
2s.rn 64 
23,111 ll 
18.955 35 
1!,'J5!i3S 

31.lH4f, 

11.4'1-112 

l .02067 

S.6Sg 'Jli 

J6.371J 9'> 
23,65170 

A.i:,prnv,;d Sud Rt't 

r v 21.21v\ 
Bud;1tt! t 

rvn-H 

21,2<14 01 

1,010.67-----~ 

l8,4'J'iA I 

2b,7J •I O£i 

22,16]01 
2 1,!'JS01 

1 021H 

]8.4')541 

11.C.?'J 61 
/4,D IA6l 
2l.S08U. 
l ll,'J5S.1S 

4 1. 554 97 
l!J,ISIU(, 

B.08255 
l'l,717')9 
27,11077 
11.721 l 'l 
U.'111S.1: 
ll.'llU6 
190&1 89 

29.lA611 
16,907 66 

l9.18li 13 
2S.'i1909 
36,737 61: 
]6,JJ7 6ll 
7'1,5106'1 

1l.827 l 'i 
73.lS'l .12 

1'.8M81 

4 1.HIIGO 

n.11.i 66 
26.907 66 
31.44/ 90 
27.<1395 1 
29,783111 
}),']Ba '1 1 
31,'142 ,90 

13,1101 66 

.1l ,•141 IJO 
'1,'Ml.77 
ll ,4•11.90 
]6,907 (j(j 

15,SS0.JC. 

32.7 1978 
n.s010,1 
U,50661 
H,50661 
14.!JJJ4I 

~ l .• no 

"• • ' •.t• 



CONCIIO VAU[YCDUNC IL OF GOYCRNM[NU. SMAR l[S 1'0U . 20.ll 

Annu ,11 rul1 J1roc 110,m • 2080 ()60 wor\. d•V\ .. A hOul\l 

P11n T, m t- lw1ll\011! t>«n.:foi) • 1511 mih 

P0511 10t~ 
( ii tl r ~t"~ i St,111 Tc •Lhl'I . D•'r' Roum #18 

(Atl'r' llrad 51.llf l lc•CMr D• 'r' Moom II HI 

( dt lv l-lc-3d St.ar t THt:tH' r • D.av Roo,n U9 

( illr lv hd d St.lir l lHltk°I - D.avRoomfl'l'l 

( ~riv tlr i d St•II Tcachc, 0.aviluorn #Jll 

L&rt., llr~I Start l'°'.auw1 • D•y Hoorn 110 

[ ,1,r ttudSloi.r l ll:.'.KIM:l • O.arR00mll'J I 

[ ,1,1fy Hr.ti St,ut lt-;KM1 - O;r,v Room U l 
[,uly lh!.ad St,1,11 INU'oi'I 0.ayRoom •'J~ 

[ ;trfy tt ... • d SI.art lHC.1111:'t D•'t' Aorut1 I'}] 

r:u1,..1t,ud !aurt l-=-M"twr D.rt Room :rl] 

(.i rlv Hco:i.ti s, .. ,1 luc:t~ • Dl'f Roofl1 IHI 

£.a,Jv u ... 1151.artl lo.all!r OJy 

f<1m1ly~l'I VIC.1'. \ 'IOflo.;o D•v 
f.rl'r11JyS,e1y ic:r Worbr D.a., 

(.;mdy!.1!1V1<,1Wo1lo't• DJ'f r,,trHS 

At'r1-1mnl'IIII • DJ."t 

H ... ,u 1 Suri Ccot • Oi¥ 
H;_.,.IJ !illin Co(,k • 0..'t 
•!rad 51•11 C\MOdt,in D;iy 

Head !.l.tlL T .. .1ch11-1 Jlio Vnt .. Rnqm 11'15 

Hc-dd !i.1,in Tuuwr A~\l\ lJl\l R,o V1 , 1,1 Room PIS 
li~ad !it•n Tr. ,Ul~r · R10V,n., Room 111(, 

, i ... ,11 '!iit.Hl r .. ~rll, ·r •h\l\l ,UII A,o v ,,1 .. Huom Jl' l t'i 

ll t'.ld '!i.t,UI fr .. tt\111 • A,o v .. , ., Rl'IOul 11 17 
11 .. ,,d St,HI l\',J(h\'I il\\•\l.inl , H,(J Vl\ l ,1 Rnum Jt l 7 
tlr ,Hl S1.i rt Tr..i1t1r:1 • A,u v.,1 .. Romn II IR 
11 ... ,d '!i.1 .. rt r .... rht r ;\ ( \ 1\l~l) I • Hlu Vi\ l ,t lhm111 ll l ll 

lh:,111 :S.1,11 1 h:o1U1r.1 • f11U 'h\14 Room rll') 

11 .. ,ul St,1rl I r..,d,1:1 A,\1\l,111 1 Hru Vt\ lJ Rm1rn 11 19 

11 .. ,1,1 s,.,n lr,1 t tlr1 A,u v1,1.illm1111 Rlll 

th:.i,1 Su, 1 ft: ,ntier An1\t .ir,1 R,o V1•, 1J Rncirn 1120 

tl,:.1 11 s1.,r1 f,-,11t1r1 , IIIUY I'. Hl,1Lt.~fll!HI Ro1Jtn 115 to "u) n1 1 

llr ,11J s1., 1 I t.tLht'I 11.1\l~l.irl\ · lnUYl' B1.1d\h~ar RDQm "~ \() R,o 1,11 

(,1 rly Htdt l Sl.tll lr..ttllcr • R1tr V1 1lo1 Raum Pl 

[,uly Hr,, CI Sl.irl lr.,,.t~r R,u V1 1t .i Ro11t11 1'1 

£.i,ly t lt! .. cl S1,u1 ir.,art~r Rio Vnt• Houm U1 
[.uly He:.,(f St.irl ru1 lit:r • fhti Vot .i Koom P} 

[o1flv t le:11tS S1 ,111 lurlwr R1u Vut• Roo 111 #J 

C.i,rv Hr• ~:S.1 ,111 lurl'ICI • R1uVn u Room Jtl 
l.urv He:<11d !,\all Tu! hl!I • Rio Vl\ l il Room Jt4 

(,11ty Ht-old !.hr! Tultitr • RIO V• ~t.a Room 1'4 

C<11tv Hc.td St ill! h!.,thl!I • RioVl\l .a Aoom cs 
r.,tv tiH d StJall r •• 1h1!1 RIO v,11. Room RS 
C111v H;:-.ad St,HI no..11,, Rio Vt\1 ;t 
r •mtlvScrvl(r\'101~•1. R,o v1,1.t 
I •rnilv S..tVJCit W ol kf!f . R,o IU,t 

F•m1l,-s.ttv,r,.\Y0 1b1 • R.o V,uo1 · C•t lv HS 
fll"teptmnm • Rm V1\U 

HrMf Slut (Q,Oli, • R,o •~ 111 
Hf'ild SHm, Coo~ Riu V•\111 

Hriod !i.t1H't (u,ICldl-Jn . Rio V11t.t 

H .. ~tl s1.,1 tm1Dduin . fl.to V1 ~t.a • C111v H!i 
•~~ild Sta1t Urwuul SU!ntltuu•, S.n Anr:~o 

Hr•d su,1 Unrviuul ~bttm.mi • 5,fn A.r«tk> 
HNd Suit Unrvl!ful\ub<.tmnl' - ~n AJ"4f'k:I 

Hnd $tan U""'"''~ ~!:H:trtuti. ~n A,.tlo 
llud St:ir1 UntY11:ts.lSuM1I1u1e • S..n Ar«tlo 
ll l';id SY rt Urweru! Su~l!lUlt • ~n .,,,_.IO 

tiHd Suri Utwv~rw Sub$tJIUII' - S..n An,..itJ 
l llwt St:111 UIIIY@t~l Sub\titutt • ~n An1t-lo 

Hu d SW! Urlfltt,~I Sotn1ttuu1 • Sin An.do 
ll l!;Jd S.t:trt Ut\lY~S-al SoD1.ltlult . san AJ\l(~lo 

llutl St:iiri Urw:trwl Sutm11utt . san A~tlo 
Hu rj S~rt UtWeti.l!I Su!Dt11~1 - S11n A1'(~0 

llea d S1:,r1 V/\IY~WI Sub'UJ! Ut• • 5.tnAnfl•IO 
Head Sliit l Univitul Subtt1tuu1 • S..nAn.111tlo 

Hrild Sta,1 Un1Vetul Subtll tute • .S..inAn.11110 

Hell d SL'lrt Unwli!tUI Sub\ll tute • S.anAnJiflo 

I-I H d 511111 Utuv@n.al S. uh"1tu1e • .$,,!ln~eto 
Hl!ild sum Unlve,-)111 SuhlliWle · San An11i!lo 

Hlt\((Ul( 

11/ 11/1019 
7/15/1019 
7/ IS/1019 

nll ,r 7 ]l 
6/21/2021 
7/15/lO l!J 
1/15{l0 19 

1/14/20'} 1 

1/H/'}020 

Dc.fl(l n~ 7/l!/lJ 

7/l l /lO l 'l 
7/ll/1019 
1/lS/201'1 

7/l'i/2019 
1n1na19 
7/15/2019 
7/ :H/lO I 'J 

7/Bf.1011 

7/lS/2019 
7/l l /20 19 

7/1 1/20 19 
7/l l /20 19 

Pl:'!Mlu·,~ 7/1 1VU 
7/1 1/2019 

lll'fld,ni:t1/)0t}l 

7/3 1/Wl'J 
u~od ,1111; 7/l'o/Jd 

]/i2/l021 

10/1/lO l 'J 
7/3 1/20 '19 

u~ndrnll., 1/1l[H. 
8/17/lorn 
7/ H /lO l !J! 
7/15/1019 
7/I S/:l'O l9 

7/ IS /10 19 

7/l S/}019 
7/1')11019 

7/31/2019 
7/ IS/1019 
7/IS/10 19 
7/1S/10 19 
7/15/1019 
1/131}0]) 

7/3 1/1019 
1/ll/2019 
7/15/20 1') 

1 /15/1019 

7/15/2019 
1/0/1'900 

l'J.t'lO l9 
J)PN l ni!, 7/7/1] 

7/3 1Jl01.:J 

O>kn 
o,.,, 

3/ l/2021 

11nn02 1 
9/]0l}.O'! I 

ll09/202 I 
1it'ml 11..:4/ZS/n 
LOend.,,)! .:11sn1 

Oik'll 

Oµru 

4 I f}0}2 
D1J.<-n 

01J.<-II 

1/141202 1 
011i.n 

0 1.'t'U 

0 c:n 
T111 .11 H t3il Shirl 

ftnu•I!' 

rnnnon ,. 
" " 
Jl 

01 

ll 
ll 
11 

" 
ll 
lJ 

ll 
l.l 
ll ,., 
" ll 

" 3.1 
3.1 

" ,., 
lJ 

l.6 
]0 

" 
11 
31 
]1 

" 11 

'-2 

" " " lJ 
11 
11 
I G 
JI 
ll 

" ll 
JI 

" 
l .J 

06 
I 6 
10 
o, 

05 

17 

Po\1! 11111 

0..h!III h 111u11• 

Cum, .. nt PoMIIO!l 10/1/1021 
11/1,?/]0 19 1 r,I 

7/15/)0U l'} 

71 15/101 ') .l) 

115/lOJ!I 

6/11/101] 

7/15/JOlll 
7/ IS/JO l-11 

1/14/}0} I 

11nhorn 

JI 

01 
JI 
Jl 
17 

" 
Jl 
ll 

AllJ1fllVt'd 

B,;d,:~1 
101110}1 

s.t.,y 

R"V(\l!d 

1on-2an 
Killl 

l-1,'171 c.s sum 
31 .7!1 'J!! SlS 13 

11,1s"J .i.o s1s 1a 
1 1, /!I 'JS SI) J8 

1-1J7700 S l SO 
ll,7Rl9! SJ5,]S 
l l l@. l 'Jll .$1 1 5:') 
ll ,1!1 9! Sl I 6l 

ll.'18 1 93 S l S 18 
ll 7A I <)!I SIS.~8 

lEi,-199 20 Sll.99 

18. /b'JJI SHOB 

171478-1 $1070 
l'i .'JI! 6'1 SH l7 
l':.9186') SHH 
16.958 6q Sl7 n 
J5.'ll637 su . .:6 
Ji1.335 11 Sll.70 
l -1 335 17 Sl t ,70 
111'1843 s1on 

Rl'1inftt 

JO Zl -1012 

!Ml•ry 
N ,97 1 6'.i 
l l. 715 1.!J!I 
]IJl!].40 

11,781. 'J!I 

H ,910.00 

Jl,781 9!1 
13. 910.00 

N , 190 -$0 

1 1,78 1 9!! 
l l ,7! 1 .98 
27,019.]0 
l'J.1116.40 
21,156 00 
JS,'1 18 69 
]5,'11869 

3&,958 69 

25_137(, 37 
24,3 3S 17 

24,335. 17 
H ,1'18.43 

7/lln019 
1/1112019 
7/ l 'S/lOFI 
7/15/101-11 

8/ 1/1011 
7/ IS/10 19 

7/11/101!) 

7/A/10'11 

l 
l .J 
11 
11 
11 

11 l1, JOJ- &
0
1, ___ s_ 1.,o.n ,_ __ 

7/H 1019 

7/l l 201:J 

U~lttlm~. HI IJ __ ..l] 

ll /1/101'.> 
1/ 16/J0] l 

c,,•111J111Ut( l /l7 

6/lll021 
71151)(119 
7115/] 21 

1/ 1/').0/J 

7/IS/2019 

11w:ia1'J 
nil . 't.1.J/12 

7/15/')0 19 

7/lShO l "J 

7/15/lOl'J 
7/1S/10 1'J 
7/16/10] 1 

7/l l /]019 
111 1no11J 
7/15/ 019 
7/15/1011) 
7/ l 'i/'}019 

l /0/l90fl 

B/2/10 l 9 

1/l/10]] 
1/ln/'}01' 
9nono'J 1 

11/19/10} 1 

-1/ 1/70]} 

1/ 14/1011 

" 
ll 

1.1 

" 16 

0 1 

" 12 

•• 
" " 
11 

" " l1 

" " " " " 31 

11 

O l 

06 
06 
I 0 

O& 

17 

l0. 74 1 9B 
Jf,. HJIXl 
I0,7 11 ')R 

2(,,8]78,1 
ll .9~] H 
16, 307.Sol. 
l0,/ 11.!lH 
21,lSl.88 
10. 1,12.40 
21,838.40 
2?,702 ,10 
JJ.116 HO 
]b.~}0 00 

.'6,3 1/ ,00 
l l ,7lt l96 
17,S60 00 
11,f.'1198 
ll ,78198 

l l. 7lt 1 98 
11. 781 40 
31 ,711 ] ,')8 

11 ,78 1.98 
11 ,781 !tb 

11.78J 'JS 

7l.J%00 
J'i 91116'1 
3,.9 1169 

lt..?51169 
1S.?1U J7 
24.H'iP 
}4. 335 17 
21.]994]. 
21.rnlsl 

1-1%118 

1 5-15 ]9 

l,'~01 'J1 

l ,\0!6-4 
1,111)688, 
t ,S07'97 
1496 
1; 1?681\ 

l .'l>n197 
1,4%8S 
1.4% 1\! 
l,41)688 
1.5 15 )9 
1.119681!. 

l .'i07.'J7 
1,11968! 
l, 119688 
l ':ill7'l7 

JW)OlG 17 

I n: 11J 

1 ..,., , ., V~Jlo!, ~.,....,,i ,.r1,o • ..,111 ,,.,,i , 
1u 1 //JIJJllj l 

Sl .692 0l 
S l>i ,7 8 
S12.65 
Sld .78 
S10.!lS 
StUS 
$ 11.l 'i 
~108 
S il.JS 

..$ 1 011 
S I0.9R 

SM.JS 
Sll.1 ~ 
S J l.'iQ 

S l1 .90 

S l 5.18 

SIUS 
S I S.18 
S l '.i .18 

Sl 5.i8 
.s 1,100 
S l 5 28 

S l S 28 

S l 'i 28 

S IS 28 
s 10 10 
$1717 

S l 721 

Sl7.77 
Sl2 .46 

511 .70 
Sil 
S10 .7l 

5 10}} 
S8'1 1 

$11'1 1 

5119 1 

S8.9t 
SB.9 1 
S8'38 
SB9 1 

S~'Jl 

Sl!'J I 
S8'1 I 
S8'l l 
SB.'JI 

SH'H 
A ' ll 

SB'll! 

sa 9 1 

s•• 
s•~ 

J0,74 1.9.11 

}.6,3)2 00 

J0,7•1 1 911 

22.56800 
31,993 73 
2 ,400.00 
10.74 1.98 
23,400 00 
1?,040.00 
22,838.40 
29,702 40 
B.608.00 
28,080.00 
26,Sn.oo 
J I. 78 1.98 
27,560 00 
J l ,7l l .98 

3 1.781.98 
3 1.78 1.911 
]9, 120.00 

3 1.78 1.98 

3 1,7.111.!JB 
3 1,78 1.98 

3 1,78 1.98 

Zl, l56JXJ 
]5,9 1869 

15,9 18.69 

lt'..'15869 
25,926.17 

24,:BS. 17 
2i:.JJS.17 
22.2'1.43 
2US7.60 

1,4%.88 
1,496&8 

IA96.88 
l ,496_&8 

1,496.e,.II 

l ,!i0 797 

1,496. 

1.496&8 
1.4968.11 

1.'196.RS 

1,496.SS 
1,4'1688 
1.496.SS 
1,4'J6.88 
1,So7.97 
1,496.88 

l ;l'JG.E.11 
1 4'J6.R8 

l (,66,734.70 

Riltr< R•l~ M,mt BLAdj!l!I 

[OLA ]012· lOH o\d1u-. l mL'OI ilnd Its. }01] 101J 

6QO,ci, with{OLA ;itJ{l'ICOlA __ •~"~'--
1-18% Sl UB 0ootr. SU ZR 

2.18% S J563 oocm S IS.6l 
118% S ISC.J 000% S IS61 
l .18% 
1..18;

l .18% 
11.!1% 

l.1!% 

'"'" 11~ 
218% 

1.13% ,,.,,, 
1.Jllo/. 
1.JB,G. 
:us-,. 
128% 
118% 

2.28;i. 
2.281' 

L:28% 

22.11% 
2,;28% 
2-28% 

128% 
228h 
J .28',;, 

USo/. 
228"'-
228% 
2.28% 
2.28% 
1.18% 

22.11% 
2l8% 
2.18"'9 
2.28tt 
228% 
U8~ 
l-28% 
US% 

u"' us,. 
1.lB'h 
us,. 
2.25'9 
2.28% 

l .18% 

'"'" :2.28"' 
2.28'i. 
u~ 
,l_J S,. 

1.28% 
US% 
UR% 
US-% 

2.28% 
U8'K 

'"" 2 28% 

US" 
U8"' 
2.28" 
2.2 % 
.US¾ 
1.28% 
2.28% 
2.18% 

UR% 

$1 SGJ 
$ 11.76 
S IS6J 
Sll 76 
Sl l 90 

SIS63 
Sl "i61 
SilJ'J 
S14 40 
$10.')4 

$1766 
$17 66 

5) 17 
512 .7S 
5 11 97 
S 21 97 

510.'Jli 

S.12 94 
SlS. 11 
Sll. 10 
SIS 73 
Si l.St 
S IS. I ? 
51 1 SI 
SU .JO 
SII. B 
Sl4.61 
511.61 
5 11.8 1 

Sll. l 'J 
:S. 15.6] 

Sl 355 
Sl 5 6l 
S l S.6] 

5 15.63 
S l 4l1 

SIS 61 
SIS 6J 
!i 15.6] 

5 1563 
Sl0.94 

S1766 

51766 
SIS 11 
S) 27S 
51 1.97 

$1 1.97 
S!0.96 
Sl04S 

S9. 11 
S9_l l 

S9 ll 
Sg ll 
59 11 
S9. l8 
S9. ll 

S9 11 
59 11 
$9 11 

59. l l 

$'1. 11 
S9. II 

S9. l l 

S9 18 
S'J 11 
59 I I 

$9. ll S 

000% 
000,, 
Q_()I)% 

000.. 
000% 
000% 
000% 
o .... 
000.. 
000.. 

0 -000.. 
000% 
non,, 
0001' 
000.. 

SIS &l 

S1U6 
SI 'i6J. 
S il U. 
'ill .90 
Sl"i6l 
Sl'i6l 
Sil 79 
Sl4 40 

SIO'J4 
Sl1 £Ci 
$17 r.c. 
SU 17 

Sl1 ,7S. 
Slt ~7 
S ll .97 
SIO!G 

SIS 11 
$12 ,!M 
SIS , n 

SI i 10 
SlUl 
Sil.S I 
SISU 
SIi S i 
Slllll 
S!I H 
SM.6 1 
Sll .61 
Sl3 .81 

Sll. l'J 
St5 6.l 
Stl55 
Sl5.6J 
S IS GJ 
SIS 63 
Sl4 ]1 
S IS 6l 
:S. 15 61 

Sl5 61 

'i l5 6J 
!i l094 
'i,116€, 

'i,17&& 
SUt 17 
5127(, 

snw 
Sll .'J7 
510'6 

S104'i 
S'> l1 
$9 11 

S9 11 
$9 11 

S9 ll 
S!) 18 

S? ti 
S'J. 11 
!i'> ll 
S'l. 11 

59 11 

:S.9 II 
59 II 
S9 I I 
S'J. 18 

S? I I 

S!> II 
51) II 

Apj>lOYi'd 8udXt l 

&uditt1l Pf 11-12 Yl 
101' 1023 611d,l(IH 

S..••ry fY 11•H 
15.S 4100 
11,506 fi l 

37.50704 
32.506 GI 
l4,4G5 18 

31.506 6, 1 

14.465 38 
24.1419~ 
31,S06 6 1 
32.S066-I 
l1,6J51.t 

J'J.954 11 
n.1&1 u 
16.7.1764 

36.737 ~ 
17,!0 l l'i 
1&5114') 
14 ,&'lOO I 

}4,89001 
n.806 l 

J l ,441!K> 

76.'ll 1 91 

J l ,44l!XJ 
ll.0111 !.., 

ll.713 l 'J 
H,931 S1 
J l ,4•11'.)0 

H.'>HS1 
n.r,"i6'> 1 
11,l'i? 11 

10,17')& 1 

14, IM,lli 
]P.,72012 

27,443 77 
31 ,SOi, f,1 
JA, 188 37 

J U,On<, \ 
JJ .~G fi l 
32 ,§.0f,f, I 

19.78194 
J'J. 506(, 1 
l'J.S06 61 
U .S066 1 
l2.S06 61 
12.7614'1 
36.7l7 64 
36-.717 64 
37.!0 l .l!"i 

'J6,SJ14'l 
14,119001 

14,89001 

12.806 81 
21.74117 
18.955 lS 
15,f'J!"IS J'i 
1B,IJ5',J5 

18.,955 J'i 
18. 'lS§. JS 
19.M'i,711 

IR.? SS J'> 
15')55 n 
15, f'J SS l5 

15,955 l'> 
IB, 'l55J'J 

111.955 35 

)8,955 35 
18.':)55 ]~ 
19,0'JS 78 

18,95S.3~ 
l 8,'15535 
Hl'l'iS15 

4, I HRH,J,1 

"' 



CONCHO VAUEY COUNCIL Df GDYUINM:ENJS SAlARl:ES 2022. Z02J 

Annu;iii fullTJme Hours• l0:!10 (260 work days 118 hounl 
P.a,t Time rwithoul brnefll:i.l-= 1511 max 

POSlflON HIR{ DATE 

Gr.100foUil 

ltof Posi1aom 
;i FTE's 

H1feD.ate 

Tl-nute Date in 

10/1/1012 Currtnt PoMtion. 

App,ov1:d 
Po1,1t1on Budt-=-t 
hnurr 202'1·.2011 

10/1/20U S..l-i1:i; 

8.566.001.UI 

185 
244 

,_,_,v....,C-•o,c.-.-11 
'JNtl0UlOJt ...... 

Rt:ivhed Re'IIIH!d 
1011·202.2 lOH-2012 

R:ate Sil.a~ 

8 '441993.98 

Rallll" R.ate Merit BudAet 
COIA 2022·2DH Adjuitment .1ndHS. 2012·202.J ··- withCOlA .add'ICOlA .... 

Gr~ndto1.1! 

II of Pout1on.1, 
.anc·,, 

B:udAel 
1022-202'3 

5.ll,ui 

9 176.954.37 

>15 

'" 

Approved eudgl!:t 

F'I' 21•12vs 
Bud«t1 

FY22·B 

275.844.44 

3.22" 

....... . .,.,, ....... 



FRINGE BENEFITS SCHEDULE 

October 1, 2022 through September 30, 2023 

• FY 22-23 Vacation Leave Accrual Rate for the 1000 series and 4000 series employee IDs, will be 

7.38%, down from 7.49% in FY 21-22 

• Reflecting 0.61% increase in Health Insurance 

o Current Health Plan is: 
$30 Off Copay/$60 Spc Copay/$500/$1500 (Ind/Fam Ded), $3000/$9000 (OPX Ind/Fam), 80%/60% Plan Coin, 
PDP $0/$10/$50/$100/$150/$250 

o FY 22-23 BCBS Health Plan 153 chosen for Basic Plan: 
$30 Off Copay/$60 Spc Copay/$2500/$7500 (Ind/Fam Ded}, $5500/$14700 (OPX Ind/Fam), 80%/60% Plan Coin, 
PDP $0/$10/$50/$100/$150/$250 

• No changes to Dental or Life Insurance rates 

• TWC Rate adjustments, in 2022 rate decreased from 2.8% to 0.10% of the first $9,000 earned 

• Worker's Compensation is reflecting 10% increase 

• The required TCDRS Pension rate for 2023 is 10.84%, down from 11.97% in 2022 

o Previously CVCOG would contribute a higher amount to pay down the unfunded liability. 

o In FY 21-22, CVCOG had a Net Pension Asset of $269,557 

o No changes to Basic Plan Options: 

• Employee Deposit Rate 7% 

• Employer Matching 250% 

• Prior Year Service Credit 100% 

• Retirement Eligibility: 

• Age 60 with 10 years of service 

• Rule of 80 = 80-years total age + service 

• At any age with 30 years of service 

Overall Fringe Benefit% of Direct Wages is 46.31% for FY 22-23, down from 50.87% in FY 21-22 



CONCHO VALLEY COUNCIL OF GOVERNMENTS 
Fringe Benefit Comparison 

Vacation Leave, with associated payroll costs (see Schedule E) 

Less Excess General Fund Allocation 

Total Vacation Accrual Expense 

Direct Salaries/Wages eligible for Vacation 

Vacation % or Direct Salaries/Wages eligible for Vacation 

FY 16-17YTD 

Budget•• 

206,142 

206,142 

3,500,912 

5.89% 

FY 17-18 YTD 

Budget .. 

248,376 

248,376 

3,429,551 

7,24% 

FY 18-19 YTD FY 19-20YTD FY 20..21 YTD 

Budget•• Budget .. Budget•• 

277,053 304,550 344,924 

277,053 304,550 344,924 

3,704,997 4,145,126 4,645,627 

7.48'1'. 7.35°/4 7.42°/4 

••Note: Fringe Costs billed directly to the grants associated with the employee. Vacation is accrued to the associated grant where earned and retained in Vacation Pool. 

Total Direct Salaries/Wages 

Total Fringe Benefits 
Fringe Benefit % or Direct Salaries/Wages 

4,366,363 

2,350,)96 

S3.8J"/4 

3,928,259 

1,902,786 

48.44% 

4,371,244 

2,178,137 

49.83•/. 

Concho Valley Council of Govunments 
Yoar 2022-2023 

Frinae Benefit Comparison 

7,281,909 

3,419,561 

7,818,013 

3,802,972 

FY 21-22 YTD 

Budget .. 

365,858 

365,858 

4,884,487 

7.49% 

8,016,311 

4,077,536 

50.87"/4 

FY 22-23 YTD 

Budget•• 

369,934 

369,934 

5,012,936 

1,38•1. 

8,522,179 

3,946,710 

46.Jt% 

Fringe Benefit Section 1 
Paae 1 of 1 



CONCHO VALLEY COUNCIL OF GOVERNMENTS 
VACATION LEAVE RATE FY 2022 - 2023 

Basis for Vacation Leave calculation: Gross Salaries on employees eligible for Vacation x's Fringe Benefit Rate 
Gross Salaries on employees eligible for Vacation Leave Time 

(Employee IDs that are 1000 series or 4000 series) 

Discretionary Personnel Costs: 
Vacation Leave Time 

--------
5,012,936 

Vacation 10-15 days, excluding Head Start Site Centers and staff working less than 30 hou_rs___._pe_r_.p._a""y_.pe_ri_o_d ______ _ 
Total Vacation Leave Time 

Associated Benefits on Vacation Leave Time 
Health Insurance 
Dental Insurance 
Life Ins, AD&D & Disability 

Total Associated Benefits on Vacation Leave 

Total Discretionary Costs 
Discretionary Percentage on Chargeable Time 

Non-Discretionary Personnel Costs on Vacation Leave Time: 
Worker's Compensation 
State Unemployment Tax 
Medicare Payroll Tax 
Pension Plan (In Lieu of Social Security) 

Total Non-Discretionary Costs 
Non-Discretionary Percentage on Chargeable Time 

Total Vacation Leave Costs 
Rate used for Employees Eligible for Vacation Leave 

concho Valley council of Governments 

Year 2022-2023 

Vacation leave Rate 

Discretionary/Non-Discretionary 

60,458 
2,177 
2,019 

4,957 
62 

4,023 
30,855 

265,382 

64,654 

330,037 
6.58% 

39,897 
0.80% 

369,934 
7.38% 

Fringe Benefit s«tton 2 

Page 1 of 1 



cc1,( Ill> \ " \I.U "\ C 411 :'\ 1'1 1. l lt 1. 11, I ll.'\ \l t. :... 1 ... 

I II L'l. t 11~ ;-.H II !> 
O, cubo-• I , 111!1 - :-.., 111o••ut..-r ,th, iuu 

' "'-•wli\,il)u~•ur 

l»u .. 1i• .. 1lu~n .. .: 

1'1 1."1 111(1~ 

,\.:.1.Ut,1 IMn.1"" ul I uun..c 1',,..,urci11<.'ll l 

t1nmti,,.c fl.lyn.,~" Kc1•~•miJ 1,.:. ,, !"1"-'i:.J1~t 

~IIIJtu.c t.hn~;.:ct /W•c•• 

k"'-""h 1,:,_...._.,.,.., (llli .. "I 1,1.-,.,...l,a..,..,,.1 

hJl-1...- W... .. ••• ••-..I A,.,,..•b•iJ I ~•II 

l' j A,-.i,1.11,1111u,~,l 1u I lk 1;,...,,.,11.li..i Su!"' ' u"" I ~,. 111 
l!Hl\ • .,.1,.u1,., 1•,.,,.,11 

Ill,! \.laun,-.1, .. 1nr:A,-...i...r.1 

L'l'flU-1 '>p1,'\.1<ih•\ .... , .. h .. -wi:1 11 

l'l'-..llltllh1ll,',.fao;,11,, l 1t,1ui,,.1 

l'tn,11.1. ....... 11 
l'r., •uw~rn t.',.,. J11ui.w I 
l'r,,,11r,tWCt1IL,_.,J11u1,.- I 
• .,. ............. 1•,ud.a-.n I 

l>m . .-.,1,• ut 1~1••1n;,l1o•• l~,luN .&.,~" 

._, ..,,_;-n,'\uj,...•1'1>o;>..ulnllt 

,,..io::1v-,.,111•orl "lc-h 

,._,1.,1, ~"""~ litllmi; f ,l, ~, .,.,,~1,,1 

A"'""•• I U'\.\111\c 1),...,1, ., l!o'li~•ul S..u.._.._, 1)11.,._1,~ 
\'L"i l I,, L,..eJ111-11o.-

l ),1 .,,.1,,; ul ,\, .~.._, .,,1,J ,\ni \11111,~ 

l1dJ l l111t,11J"11-111 

\,\A.l.·••J, ...... 1 ... 

'\.i\.r\l••••''~"'" 
M,\l.,.,.,Jrn .. ,1.,t 

AM t ,.,; ,!m.1.1111 

/\,.,~n lolkl An111.111 , ~ l lj .. 1:llh'II'- MJ•L•~l:'I 

Alllh. 11.,..i.-ilJ. !h11t!-i••,t l'1,._:1;1111 l.•~>1J11ul,"I 
,\IJRL" ~I I l'i,11:t1:11 !t1""uh,1 

~I I 1-'-JI \r,.-...Loti-.i 

111 I.I.JI "1'-LWI"' 
111 M!M "l''""1.1b.i }..lu11111,11a111~ 1\,-l..tnt 

lh..,1 .. 1 ,,1 '411..- y,.1..,..1,..:, .,.-0 ... c.,.-.Cj,:,.-.,1 (il~,!1•,1 tb\'l'I i"''• I 

l'n,v,,..•M•i....i,1-.t1,--1,•,1 11 ,l'l>S'.1 

K.,\11'( ,.~Ju1a1,.,-Ah,J..M1 IJ t.., .. 1.~1 I\C...~I 

l°IH111._.JJ11.ii..cln1Uv..1.o.

l~i.. ~kt• ,-.ba.a;n 
l'ul~h. ~,k" l '.,,rJm•l•t1 
1'111>1~ !'>~ l.11 l 'tn1,111111 !11~uh .1 tll~,hu l11l, ~,1,.,._, ,., ,.1 

l>iru.t,.,.. .~ f'11Ni, :>;lkn 

111l'1,'\·u111 M.1JWiia 

'Ill •il\!-p,:,.1,11,.J 

'1111,h~ l"'""l•~T 

•II! l'11"1111m l-,bu .. ,K"' 
111 I c;L\ 'lf\:~u.h,t - 1,:.,J 

lki:hll,,.J.i,,.1~J'1.mr'"--"l''--'';;;;"::.;'M;c'r '- -~'C:"'-'''::."-j---,----,---,---,------,------, 
lu. u ... -.. ,i.,.J.,.yl 1,; ,,. l"·I' . , . .t •I,'"'" 1,, ~IIIU'11l 

- - --~--~-------~"~~~• ·~ •"-<le ~ 1!11,il ~II ~ l 11,1S•)uuu 1 Cl>H!'> 
11.UI J !i \\111·1,,,.,H 11. IUiH 11. ll•l l 

21 ~Ill i 
ll•J!t••7 

!lt.2••!! 
tJ 1-1 ~<I!! 

111 !I< ,:! !11 '1 

ICI I \ I . 1 lh• u 11j1 10 

lllli.l:.!..J. ~ 
1111\ I . 

><wi l ' , 11:!1 ,. ,., l',ua:, .. 11, 1' 101:1 ..... ~ , - , , , ~l,•Jk-,u·.- ( ", ,111 1, l',·u •i .. 11 l 'l .. 11 1• ,..11~lu11 11 .. ,1 

111...!lCI l, 1J (U I\Xl'JI 1,11,;.:i 171 j•u 21.1u !111J ! l..!H 
1••17711 IUt,117.l IUl,)'I \71 ~-1 I i\11- ?;!.2 Kt,! t 

h1-1 1'1 70 •M,7 lltto$l \1 1 S,,! I ll~J IJ•J 1.'1il 

111u) ] .;Kl -tv1,,U, 111(15\ \7 1 11, 1 no l fl.l I Olll 
1, 1 \(,t l!\11 rd j •)l f---='-'J,1 .H J ~12 1/ll II S j2jl 

lt,t.i,, XI! lo IWX ~ 110 I I I 2,1-1 15 ! ll:?f1 

J! H 
117-1 

I 1~ 7 
1•)11 

ilt.!OII i l\11, I). "• 1717-1 IOMl 171 1'i l )J'i 711 I O!! Ill! 

IU !II- :!\II I t==:,:1:: ti~.:~•; t===t:!j:f~!t=========ti•:t; 'j;~~-: t=====•t~:;_i~~t;t======::i:~~:t==:,:~~t•:t====:,f, t===:,f,ii,,t==:,jo~~~t====:::-1~t:tt~~tt=====:::I~' :"iH:~: 

\l~UIS ll l ~•J! 1-1)! X-JO-li lo(1,S I 17 1 l 'H l !VI l11r, 111'J J(,1 ,S 

1-1,(, 

I 1)1,7 
II ! c.~u:1J lc,!27 .J-1 11 4-Xhl'~ ' !Oo)l 171 l!C~ 7011 lfl :': l'H(, 

71!,:':Hll ll lllCI 17~ 1 0)1,117 lllt•5.l 171 ~IC..? ]J1 75 ..?'Jl~ I 

l.2 ll. :':ill! t==~l•:~•: j.:~j: t===j,:j, ;j;:;i =========-t~i:ftt~~•,• t=====t:~f~:tt:t======II f;:i;t==II t!;i;t=====-~~t===z..?.f~t~,t===i•'t:~t====~l~j;:f:~tt======•~• ~~:'t, 
'•J!11!1 
•JJ)IJII, 

I ll ih ):~)II 

'.JI 211111 

I~"'" 

u 115 ~ l~~ .nw11 100,1 17 1 17M c,c,2 

\1) ~15 Jlr,17 41 ') ,j J IO./ll t 171 1~1 l,l)lt 

ll 11' 17 1 ••~• t -1•11!-1 IIH1l.t -171 q11 il,7 

lull 

"' 
!7 Ir.ii I H1I ..?II Ml•)l 11,,,i\ l71 1:~ -1111 t.O ! 1.41 
!11.~17 I 1,~ .,?•171,, ltlt•J.I 171 ~lu • l:? fl] 1-1:?tl . ., 

Ill j\ !.Jl'Jt==;~:1:j ,:u'
1!;t===j, :t:j.:~t=========ji~l, t~~j: t=====•t1•1:i:~t::t======z,f;;t'.t==I1 f;!j'.~t====:•j• t===:•f~~i:t===;:~.;t====~l!~7.~~'1tt' ======·~·. :~~:~~ 

I< l'J '.'UIV 
II I !>JI'/ 

~ I !U!~ 
1 !IU X-1 ~4 

'1!1.JJ • O.l:,PI 

I "'":1,... ____ _;•_;7 ';:;;•~: 

\l ,•J(,11 

"' '" ~ 
I 11:! 

NI 1..2.\jl 

I.JI 51'0 

-"'1---.:l---a:;:"~' 
1211 " 

m 

" "' 
"' 

h ll•lS 1 j ilt 

12•11 1!11 
lH,ll I 12! ,----si 

11;n1 -1Kll 

II I.JIii'/ -1:'!KI'• :?~1fl lil JIH lot.ii n , 1111 7.15 111)1. 1 1111! 
(,K'Jc•IK 1 .. 1111, • 1111 I lt1l1il HI ,.,,1 111,1 l lol'. I> It :-1•11, 

T I I :!B~!t===I/J\;::'t;:t:,1~===j:j;f~~t=========::1; :~ ifil!:~: t====='1/:1~5~•'.t=======I t::i: t===I t::~t'. t====:::,~I =====' ~~~l t====l•;i:t====tl :j:'j~!t======:t;f:Jti• 
10 .JJ 1•~ •3 

II\"'" 

I~"'" 
11 : 111:-

1.,....,, 

i 'J !11111 

1H,)(•J5 •11~ 1 ll ll•J"l..j tu ~s , 171 j•I I 1.11,1 ~II M21J.~ 

.J.•J 1:0 1 I qi i<IXi,1 11111~ 1 171 :? II 44:,: 1 Sl•I 

l..j,c,t,, 111 1'• Ll,_17-1 1111,;1 ltl :~, ~11 1t, ~',l,ij lllltV 

l1.-l!-1 I 1, •l 41 I Ill !llt,H :JI ~711 ~••: 11 ~ 7H I 11:01 

l:'J:!J • "'ol II 1111 1111,,1 \ti !l11 -111S ,. ~ ll~ IH:01 
~,!'J;?-1 I ill1 Ullu IUt,~\ HI .Jlll -1\IS 71 !171 111! 1 

H7 !ih I k!i1 11hM l•J I, I 171 ]•1K )..j11 7•i \ljjo] 1 IJ7 

I ,?II ,;u l -1 t==:::,:i:::::!t::t===jl ;j' 1
;f;4.t' =========::.!~ •:::~:~,• t=====:1•;1;~tt;t======:, :•~1..ifl t==~' ~/.~j:: t====:::~====r,~t~~.X~J ====:t~!t: t====~!':j~'t:~t=====:::i,'j, ~~~; 

11 ;?11\'J \.J•O..i 11':11 lr,,Cl.j 1111+-I 111 ~•J,! 1\4 11 :wl I ]11,!' 

g, I ~UIX t===•'.tir:z::;t===t'.t'.t::i=========:::;i':(j~~~: t====:;t','jj';:;::,;t=======t~!~: t===:::~:~'. t====:::"q====:, ~:-'.~; ====j,-h-~' t====jij'.;Kt'1~t=====j:j:2j:'.! 
:l1o:?ill:O H Ilk, \i,q \lu~•, H•h~I 111 !1,.! -17',1 f,'l 

l?l;'U!~ !1!71 \:':'~ !IJ•J) IU1>H 171 1••1 ISS 1 1 IW I hi 

II I !Ul'lt==:::~t'. :::':!::';~====:t:t!~i ==========;t,~.ot~~~'. t====='t,~•::::;:j,'.t=======I t::~:t===t~ .. ,~•: t====:,~, ====:I ~t~ti;====j"~ht====i;i;'t,~~t=====:,j~,~~ 
10:-1!1111 11,ll~J 1~1•1 l'-'JIJJ,,l l----, .. 1 _______________ ..,w ••• I 1.1111 ,n l,li'J~ 1)1Ji 

11,:.11~ ll!u,1 ~l•Jl l•J Jl----""l 171 I•,, l!I IIW .IUil ll'J! 

J 1111~1 !II 11, I l'rl ~,, .. ;1 1---':;;"""';.;il UI .!17 .JI:!, hi 1 ill >ilil 

JI l'•l!u ===,t;t~7j/i'~: ====:f•~:::::~~t=========,j,',t:~t!~~, ======1="•Jd~.•t======:::, :t:2tt1 ===:::, :j;~~: =====:t====•j::t~~t====-,i~tt, ====:,±;,j':~~~t=====t,',i;~j! 
:? :' 2u11 

I lr,:'tu,:, 

lu:?l !Ht'I 

l-&•--1 f1'J .J!l•J- 1<11.i_l 1/1 '-l"i 111!•.1 IU 11,II !fill 

~]~I ,,tc,o.:! i,1 .. ~, \11 fol Yll 111 ~11 1 l•)ul 

-117•11 !.lr1\ 11,!h~ IU11S~ 11 1 N11i- '>t, 17411 l1 11Ll 

lki\ t==I21:1:t.~·;t1~t====1•':::,;,t~·:i =========-!::·:1:jt~:t=====·11~f::~t:t======:,,t';~;~==:,:j~:~~~=====tt=====•:t·•11~ti·====j,'.4'. ====~,i:i:~tt;t=====i:,1:~~:: 
t 11 '.IY'I IU,1:i .:! I '.Nw, VI 111'. l::::::::~: 171 ~'.1-1 I I.:!~ p)I 

Hb1tll7 ~ 1•-"1 J•H1 ( 111, IUnq '11 l h< U.:! 1:01 

111.!K!JJl'I IKl',\11 .!'UO ~1 .1111 ,n .. .s , 11 1 ml 1J j 1,1,; 

M I .:!11!•1 17 001 ;: 11 I ~•) .l,11 Ill c,H 11 1 l•I~ 111 IIIJ 

') I l•litlj 'I ! UI •) ~ 11\ II 11 1 l'J "' 

!711 
1.1)11 

IJllt 

I 4~1 

1: Ii ;'iflk• fd l~t, \ :?h, t'4 7~1 IIJl,}I 171 ll I 11111 I U ·n,,2 ! <J t 7 

l
h .:!Ull ~==:::,:~:~111~t;~===tt~~:.~~-l~• =========l::~~!~§·:~;~=====:~•:~~l~i,;~======:,.t:~~:===:=•:i:~•=====:~====~-~~ ... ~, ====-=I~~: =====•±:f!~i:t=====lct:1:.~·: 

rnow.,.,\11 NCa~.,,,1nr~rrNT'•n•, 
,,.».,on .'{J.'J 

lrtn(ftu-ro(-1.1(),u,, 
'' " l(C-k'M'f t :5-ffto-.! 

JI.ti:• I c-.f '.. 



CUM 1111 \ ,\IJ .} ' 1 111 '-( 11. 0I 1,0\ I M..'-\ U ,1, 

( 1, 1,,i..·, 1,2ou .,-...1.,.,, .. 1,.. r Ju , 2112.J 

,\nn1 .. 111 l h1n;l,11 ,,I t,_..,_,1-111,111,1111 

l111 ,1nu• M an~11,,·11'1,.111au1 

W~..: .. r.t,S1i.: .. i.:.rh,1 
K,r .. 11..o li,:,1o,fJ111.1l-lf l,un1V. 11k1 IIIJ11."AJm111hllal-lf 

t\l.,11uuhuf J...,.hmu .. 11111111" 1,,1..V1 lu,,1111."'!'>I-. ..... Ub-.l 

l.~•hm • l tlt\h,1u11Jl,,.,I 

11\ort:ihut>•:-.C.1,:h M .. ,.,.,, , 

~kh,...Jt:,,.n11t,.,.,.,.,:\J'""-...!1..i 
111.._, ........ ~r~,M .. ,u,,, 
f.t,-1 \10f.:flh<II Ii 1\.Ql l{,,;rn:, 

).!,,..,J ,111...,.111"~ 1lkmJ11J H~" l"~1-..1 

R,.,.,I ~11p..1u,,.,1 11-:un,h .,, ... 
l,..J01.p;o1~ti.:, 

lh~r•••bc:• 
l)i.r,,.11,1..-1 

b .. 1111~:.uiuwa 

1-ke\ 1.,._1,wumM.ilnlm.11"'"°'1'...uh" 
UllJJmJ anJ l,i,ounJ, M.:a.inlnun....- l""Jm,.un 

/\IJ11n1,;1uit..t.S1,,1.1l,.i 

l(,1u 1,· I IC I Um ..-i 

H,-ut,; I K ! llmu II .....i1 
R,1111.-IR I l h .. ..-, 

t,l,1Mt.c:lk I lh""' 
N,111klk S lh n,;, 

km,k l 1<1olh""' 
J(,.,.,.,Jl{711m.:r 

~ .... 1,lltKl>mo 

K. ... k"IW'llhah"t 

R...ilclk- 1111>n•.:1 

l-l,1111dk-ll lh1H1 

ll,.11h1 I I< I! Uu,u _,~ 
l'l•l't.ffl'{'litRaUl•l>mu-l·H• I 

l'l'•lf-~!fui.lflllf11\1•tR-J 

1'1 •11..i.•f>i~Ubo"' l)u1..-, •Ill•~ 
l 'r 0 1t.ui.~1~~1i1li"J1 l>t,1~• • I It . 4 

l'l,\nHl•lhWIII\MUDtlh't•l l(•j 

11,.<J M,..,,.., I l..:11~, 

ll, .. klll lt,11,.., 
M,_..,~ A1 lhoa 
1(,..,, .. ,. ,1,111 ,1 
H, ,.11~/\ I J)r,1..-r 

f.t,>1U,AiH11h1 

k",11"N•lli1w11 l uJ1 
IC,ou,.,A1!>.1•<1 
ll,ouk/\Jllt1•a 
H,ou,~- /\'J 11,,.~, 
Nu111.:A li1llnH·1 

Mu11k"AIJl>t,...-1 

111~1,:-,1...,i ,k.oJ,,_1,.hl,,- h , l ,·~1• ,,.,, ,~•~ 1,, ,111,,1,1 '' 1,1 -. 

~---~--~---~-- ----'-""-" "-' le,1•41, ~ lt1r.il l•J \ 
111 1\ I 11.-.. lth 11 11 .. 

lli!! 
11 :,1!11 

l.,l ~rlh 

7 lh 11 ~17 

1211 ! 111 1 
c;..:11 

'""" 
K1. I JU!II 
1tllUIX 

> I\ 2u:u 
I: I : 11!11 

'I 11h11, 
1,,11011 

h I 1Ul)C 

11111~--· 
,,111,:1 

JIJ:'41 1" 

M 122111•1 

111 lu!l.•:u 
1,1,1 i i•:1 

II. 17 :0:11 

IOI \I. 

llliiJj_J.l..u!.t..ll!!!! 
l\lt 1:! 1 11711 

h" •H 11,11! 

~)Ch 1') l 11)1(1 

11 51,il l lt l ') 

II HII !!11 
~J1?.,a I Sil 

ll51l t 7t.J 

!lhl:-t l ! i !I 

l1tltl',I 

''J4lW l 1\1 

lk',11\l, :?uS:? 
.,.,,~,I I 1•111 

1'11111• lt>INI 

11 K17 ! Ho 
1•1mi :,,,s 

l'l7u7 

2111-~ 
11171 

11!.!j 

1111• .. 1 
11111 1•, 

.!X llll 

1111•.111 

Ii HJ 

~-•.- •! 
\I uli 

.!K ,lli 'J 

!11\7 

l •h.! 
I 11il 

11lM 
11•11 

ljul 

lthl 

l1tll 

l •t,M 

I tt~I 
I H',I 

l"il 
I 1'.11 

I :SI~ 
lih'I 

.. :11,11 

~J IIIIMI 

~!1 W1 
5tll'IK 

1111,H 
1111,,1 

111,,,1 

1111,il 

10h51 
1111,SI 

1111 ... 

17t1,11 

...... ,., 
I', ,>¢, .. "' 

'" 171 

171 
171 

171 

171 

171 
, 11 

" 171 

171 

171 
171 

,11 

"' 
111 

111 

171 

111 

111 

171 

171 

171 

"' 111 

"' 111 

171 
17 1 

171 

"' "' 171 

111 

171 
'11 

17 1 

171 
171 

171 

171 

171 

171 

171 

'1 1 

'1 1 

l .ir,, 

1•,.,,,. '" 

Ill 

I 1ht~•J tllllll 

U IIU ) U ... ,, 

C-"OV~ ry(O.- oll.c>'ff'tn'"'"''' 

!Ut.!011 l UJI 

I F" t(t"B4-r>t-l ,1Url • I 

\I 111-l5 

\lrdJo,' <11 1' 

11;1 

I 1111 

s•i5 
'All 

7j l 

7 11 

"' 

Hh 

IU 
~,.1 
ml 
11•1 ,., 

111m• . ,~ .!l tl,,.1 ,Jt.:.. Jll:'2 

H ' IHlS JCUWS 

\\utl.,·1"-

l ', .. 11 r l 'l'll•fo"I 11•11 

1115 7.S'.11 
1.51 .5,1'fo 
11'> So ll( 

11, : .•Hit 
•>, t,.Y: 
1•5 :?Sl1I 

74 2Xt•II 
5l 111:4 
1.5 1..171 

i\l so•J I 
lit, ,,11, 

lc1t,I So~ 

1 Sl,O .l :?111 

l •KI .J 11'-J7 
~H5 -l!I •> 

'" h'J 

1111 

l\11 
1.i,"S 

O ll 'Ji 

I .~1• 
1.1111 

I" 
l.)ji, 

I Sllll 

I H I 

UI~ 

"' "' 

" 

I 1111 

.!11,l ll.i 

! ~U, ll l ll 

!:!lh llll• 
2-c,~u ,, .. 1 

!.\117 111'.I 

I ,•H, !t,1) '1711 

lint ::'lli >.111 

1'}04 I 1-.U 1137 

I 17.l ~.!ti:S KU 

I :i~S l 51 ~ •J~ 7 
l_j.Jj _____ i )_.,, • • ____ ._,..;.i•j 

r, ,t\jt.,IV-1W-ll~l>Dn l 

Pie~ 1 of'I 



O, 1 .. 1..-r 1, ?uU • w p,~u, i..-, Ju, l ulJ 

l' 0 :- 11111;\, 

l(,,ul,: ll i- l •J l),,.L-, 

t • l -l , ~•'f"''".,1•11 l li ,1..1•,\J ),\. I 
1•1. f,~,n._., .,. 1,m .. 1 • ,\J)A-1 
l' l • l1.Mh.1111u .. 111 .. I N1IL°l·,U)A•I 

1'1- lt;iihl1'01Lm1'ft f h 11,·1 •Al>A - • 
i ' l • l 1:11 b )'UOJll"t1 IJ1t1 ,r•AII,\ • S 
l 'l • li;1.11,1.,,11~1t,111 0 111,1 •AIJA.11 

l ' l • ll illl"f">I IUll>lft 1'11• .. 1 •Al l,\-1 
l' l •l 1~)f""Lllll,.,,. l .1!1u:1 •AIIJ\·l! 
l*l•l'~1;at..11J l li1•"-<:o,lcl.'•-w.t•ll1,'I.M 
111-1 1 .. 11,-pwt.at••• OmH ._,.,,.t,kLuvnh 
I 1~•l"'"Ulhfl Unh1.(;,,lc L,11,,1111' ituhcu I n 
l1,m,p,,u:11h>11 Jh110-L, ,11 .. h,,(. , ,u1111 

l 1:i t1 • J"'" l:1U,•u l h l\,t•C. 1> , L-.11C,111n11 

l1:111•t""t,; li,,1nl l11w1-l1,-.L,1tc.',1"nh 

l1,;n'f"1'l:lla111llcl\(l•t.:1n1l:ikc.',11m1, 

lulhfUbl•'fl 1,m .. 1•M.C.11n. .. h L, ... nl\ ,1 L.,JI 

I un-,1u11:;t•111 I liner M.t. .. n, .. 11 L,,unh 

l1,;1h1•11lab1,01 I lmcr•~,l.(.W~,II L,,..nl\ 

l1,;11> j•"bh•m IJ111,-1•M~n.11JC.'uun1' 

lllilhf•"l~ hu 11 I J01,.1•k<.J.;11 ( uuo,1\ 

l 1.;n•1•11bhu11 l hl\,;1•k..-p11LoH11t\ 

l 1o1A•1'-<1bllun l lt 11<.1•\,bl...-,•h.:i 

J1a-1utJ1.10• l huu•\11H,,.l,,.u11, 11 ca.Ii 

1, .... -i••t..l•III l hu.::1-\1111,,n l·,mnn 

1'.:ill•l- T111ll'I'! :,.i..,lmt t·•!Clnf\ Oul\.l lll,t i I ~.o hh I 
l'j.J1,1n-1111tt.o l11•1 l lm.:1•I \J~1J.::J flkJ1,J.I 

ll,,;al, 1•l l<ll" fll1/l .i lh•u l )1 11,1 

IJ,,;,1~1-lr,m,1'<•I IJ1l•'l1 l )111,1 

lt.-..1,;1-lun-r,"i..11o<11 l l111-.:1 

ll.c11,,-l1=-f'<•0.,11>o,nlh11.:1 

lh:,1, l ,llllllna.1,,1 
11, l ,lu,a1, .. 11 P..IJ11a,,,.l,...._t,l'L,,H1.,.lijl,1, 

MrnlJl lt.,:ahl, ll i;.;!J li flbn,;ra~nJ l'1"¥"·"'1 \\un..:n 

I ,\l\!Lll l 'nh,., l.,ou11.,11M.in.,ii_tt .. nJ 1'1.:,1u1>1 \\,110,.,., 

I 11,t-,\ l-a,;J.1,.., M,;u,;,,·, l 1.1n>1!1•,q LL,.-. 
L,,.,.,.i.....,~ LI.,, h .. , ~ .. 11.i.,. M.uw1u 
/\,..c,u,11 llc~ \l.;11 Uruu.11,r I II:,, I J,,.~1•.-, M,.,..,~,-, 

~••~ ",wl"'°'"'" I ~\\ • M~,i.,,,J 
l l~,I MJll'l'w .. h,1- M, 11,1.1 J 

11 ...J S I.ill Tc.11..h• r A,~~• )'.k,unl 

1111h ltaJ , 1.;ut l'-"'-l,c1•M,-,ia1J 

l;oih II....J\1;a.11 l""'-1&.J•l.l.......,J 
1-,h ll..-l!>1..,11lli1111'-r•M..-1:1.1.1J 
l',11.l.t;ir..i.Jun-lrlluw1J 

l l'-"l !11 .. 11 llun.1,oJ \ul°"1111.:,. M•11;1,1J 

11,..,1 !,1.,11 l lm1,1:-.1I ~ul•-11>11.:. • M•11a1 J 

'i1tcSu1>c1,1 ... ~ t,\W-Ll,11,1,.,~I 

l,;;a,ltc1/\M••"1•lft11Wl\.,J 
I~ 'ib.1111m,u.,.J ,.,t.,,.,1.,te-•lhrna.w1I 
l•rt.:11...._...ia....,um....,..e.l!1tlllu1r,) 

\,t;;~>1:1l!;f'l 1"'" l~\\',IU.11.-lu 

1-~1A,,-.~.tLl.-..,J,, 
t.•,.,l(..11,t. •.fom- l'kl.11.:..L, 

'i,1.:Su1"""'"" ISW, t t.t,,.u 
l ea,,:hi:f. tlt,lll.l 

rQ..bcrA .. ..i.t- Uhotl.t 
t;'u,ll11.,...J....1- 11./,,n,. 

l\c.l '\1.1n l l11t1.:1 .... I ~Ulbtllllu• ( ).,,111.; 

l ~;,,.h'°'1 """"" - 1,k-o 
l ••""-t:10J,..hm•lh 
11,·..J \ l.&1l l l,q1._T .... l '\IJ,..lllln• I-~ 
\,Lc:O-Ul"f\1'._11,llbl.l..tic.i, 

lk...tS1aitTc- l"',.llb..L-.IIQfU,._.., I 

l k ..J ~l1tJI rQo,.111.1 ,1\,.,,111111 • llbi.l .Jlo.-lll 1(1.~11 I 

IIQJ M.u1 l ,:,,i,.l,..i A,w,1.;111- 111 .... 1.Ji.::u Jt,~o111 ,.:? 
11.::.J ~Lii,I Tc.&..h•• - llt.... l Jsni ki.1111 I 
Jl-t~1To:::....th:rA">t•Wlt•l\1.d,;.;,hc,41i(, • ..,.. I 

11.:aJ ~1»11 Ta.It.., -111....l~, lt,lulll -t, 

llcaJ S1111 f i:...,h,., A,,oa.n! • IJb.LW.-, 11••1'11 " 

lh-111 I M.utl,:,;,i, h<.1• ll!.t. l •li..-.i1H,um 7 

llw, I M;111 l 1!11>-lll', A",.a-' 111 • tlli,.cL>l"'"'l!1••11• 7 

11...,J !ILU I l o..lt..1• IU,.,l,J..:~1 H1•m1 I 
ll~1tJ\i.i1ha,lt..1A,111-Y1.i- llb..l.,J.:.ui<1•1111 I 

F.itath ~~.: '-'•IILL'l ~ut .... w.....r 
lannl• ~,....,\\,,.l('f•IU...l._, 

l11f.11ll..,h,,1~IJ.. l'u11 ,_, __ ,,_, '-"-~-•• - > ___ ,_1,_, ~-'+---~--~---~--~---~---~ 
ln...10'-C J,J1h1.;hk1,, la:p""'' , li,..;i., , wun1 ,, ,,I", 

~ ~~- ~~-~---~-~~--,-"tl"-'nC-'• "'-"'"-l( ~ IOIIH l•I ~ 
Iii,., 1111 \ I. 1111 \I 11 ... 111, 

lilb; lil1!l!.:1. ~ ~ l ' l• •i,!IJlll 

l•Jt!<ll'I 
111 Ju11 1 

711:!u t 'I 

7K;?l•l•J 

lll!l•I' 

' 11 :"~' 
111:,11•1 

)\ 'j 1, ... 

ll •J :?•~I.I 

11q11::1 

IU t 1 !U!I 

:11:1 !11!1 
..i,1.,,111rt..1l•l!I 

M.:'12111! 

11-1:: .. 11 

,i111,121 

p,.Jm~ 11)1.1! 

11 -1 ::uu 
111::11111 

ll.?S2o2 1 .,, ..... 
IUl2mS 
I 11,111117 

l:?l1olt1II 

k hl~IIJ 
l ll'l!Cl!U 

M•J!nOI 

M 1 !H l •l 

111 20::1 
11 .?OJ ~•~ I 
11 1:.:.111 

717~•·· 
!:?!!U!I 

111::111•1 

11 1 211 1·1 

11,,111~, 

In !•i~! 
11111 :,~ ... 

12•1)u:n 

7 ii !U l '.l 
1111,!olit 

, ... ,.Ju,i,.111'.2! 

~ 1,~11 l 

1 11:--11•1 

.:!1111111 I l•J..t J•})C1 1 l 1"1S I 

II UI~ 111 H 

llttll! 

11 ns 
111m 
l.!.X,:? 
l lM:S2 

ll11:i2 
11115.~ 

l.?115:? 

l,l]Ni 

l-1:?"-'! 

40•J:Slf 

1•> ~, .... 
17 1 11 

!•1Hli 
!1 , ,: 

U ::11,, 
11111 

11101 

-lh M:?:' 

!X.')'12 
1-l h'II.I 

1711:? 

l!tlf,'I 

;171 

J)i,•j:ij 

OH:S 
!•1111-.. 
.?ln)il 
! •J7 111 

l1 • U 
127,!l 

:!l!ll..l 

11•1 11 

11,1•1 

I ~o 

11111 

I" 
I •lX 

ll!Ki,;; 

l!t,r,t, I IJl,)l 

\0 ~~I 

l1l11i l 

JOh) l 

llln.H 
11/h)i 

nu.,., 111,J)'IIIIIIJ 

l k •o l • I l lh· ll !IU l\l 

l ' ltt l! l•ill l ' 1u _1! 1,01u :0- 1 I . \ 

"' 
"' "' "' '" '" "' '" "' "' "' 
"' '" '" 

'" '" 171 

'" "' 171 

'7 1 

'" '" 17 1 

"' '" "' "' 
17 1 

"' 

"' "' 171 

'71 
'7 1 

'" '" " 
'" '" "' 171 

"' 
'" "' "' '" "' '" '" "' '7 1 

'7 1 

'" '11 

"' "' 

111, 

11 .. 

lt1', 

l:'<1 
,,, 
l! I 

!11 

!:I 

I" 

'" 

'" l oll 

1,,. 
!I! 
l),o 

11' 

C ntWhO VJ-~ Couroc.1 ol t-.,,,.,.,.,11, 
~r.&•!Ol! JOJI 

I! "-•8...u:11 t)fohl 

"' 

l u•••• • la" ' ":111 : ! l U,1,(k..!ll!! 

le. Ilk , 11, .. 101:-. 

ll l t l•!- \\,uLr , , UIUIU ll ll 'J7 

~ l,•Jl, .. 1,• c ·,. 111 11 l ' ri"' .. "' l 'l,011 l ' ,·n, l, ,111•1 ~11 

.111 IA 7 1 1-11'1 11'.4 

..1 1-1 l t,mc 1 11s., " 7JI 
1'1'11 t-• I IUIJ WI 
I'l l t,)11 I U)ll •m 
1111, f, 11 1,U,H IX5 

11111 1, 11 1,11..t j o.:~ 
l llh /d l ll~H U<~ 

:1,1 ,,, 

J!!CI 

" "' "' .. , 
Ill 

" '" 
112 

2H 
/,01 

111 

\l j 

40 1 
l•IM 

'" "' 1,,, 
m 
12 1 

1•.11.1 

1:: 1 

'"' , .. 
"' 

'" 
'" 1 i, 

'" l:?I 

"' I•• 
! l'J 

11 2 

'" Il l 

"' 

I" 
11! 

~"' 
101, 

I !! 
12•, 

HIJ 
!.:'I ,~. 
l ::!4 

I S'! 

'" 
"' l !lo 

171 
151, 

1S1, 
1,1 1 

l jh 

"' n 
11 

:?ut1 • II 

1.tlU 
; -1,,s 

.i n,, 

.iHr. 

;, I 
-I II:? 

:i!XS 
11::11 
! 111,11 
110,, 

l'JK'/ 

IVll'J 

1.~l 

IMIII 

U-11 

I 'I 
1 11 1 
!IC.JS .. 
!•iSli 
1112, 
1 7:?7 

11111 

!17 1 

IIISI 

I 7111 

" .1 11!1 

"'" l'))l 

1.7•9 

"" ll7X 

:' l7i 

1,1177 

2Al h 

:? !U 
Jt,t4I 

l')J t, 

2S1H 
:'111• 
:? 17 1 
2 111K 

!17 1 
::u,,, 
:?•111 
.:''1!11 

"' 1H7 

~jj 

1.1117 

5:55 
•Ill 

I 0 -11 

l -17 :1 
'Il l 

11~1 

xss 

'" ... 
l h J 

H'l7n 

!o-U 

!H! \ 
1,ow 
1111\..1 

I lhU 
1 s,11 

l'/.li 

l !!S 
I 11 11 

1,:?K 

112 

71:? 

'" 11'12 

fo1 
jf,7 

1 1•7 

l•IK') 

111)1 

1,1( , ,, 
J IS2 

Mil 

•H 

" 
1,1•1 

1 1•1 

'"' .. , 
1 2•1 

'" r,•1 1 

XIN 

1121 .,.,., 

'" •1H 
11711 
,n 

llllj 

"" 1,,1 
11,'J'I 

IIN'I 

l• ...... •k<'wl l\ttlOlll 

ftJC•lbl~ 



c O''\f Ill.I\ \U .I \ f Pl ' '\4 II . OJ C,O\ 11<'\ \l t ,'\I ' 

11u :,.1a m .:Hl ll "!I 
ll1 111 l..-1 l. 1Ull - !',.,,•1ur111l,.-r .l/l. 2ll2J 

lk .. q1t11JGtlll•HL ... L ....... 
llad "14'1'1 L,,.,1 - UL,._L,J..,,1.1 

l'll , IIU I'\ 

11= 1 MJII l ,,. -L - l lb...l).lii::11115'10 holii,. 1,11h l>\"!l<'lib) 

ll..i,I St:111l11,t1J1.111-IILM. L..ti.:J1 

S11cS.,J'lo.f\1w11- l l,h 

ll~M,1.1 1 rca.1,,. .... JlH k'"*" I 

Jl ,:;;,J ,un I '-"'ha A,,,.~ut · !>.al k"'"' I 
lk..J!'lu,1 rc.,..l.a-OJ\k•••ll 2 
lk .. ,t .,1.:1 11 i.•...,tlo:1 A\,1,l..l11l •h.1\k•••111 •:! 
il ( :..! !'11;111 1.:-.. ,bt:c. I)~ \ k,o,m 1 

l k:i.l :-t.1111'...i..1KtA,.a.in1t-l)..,1t ... 1111 1 

l ioJ!'l~l lca..ba-1).,, W,o>GI 4 

II ......JSI.Jf1f~~rA"-"'"''1111•lb,k,,.lffl ~ 

1!(.IJ,1.,,1 h.-:io.lm-J);i, k,01111 10 

fk ... l:,,1,.,1TQ>. lk'1A,.,.i:1111° 141 l{,,."n 111 
11~ ... 1 M:111 Tc:a..h,;1 • 1~1 k,•1111 ;,J I 
lk..J~~n 1.::aJi.:r,u ... -uo1- ll.\ R,.~, II 
l a1h l k..J~1M1l~ila•l),i;,K,,..,. I., 

b1hll,,.J!'li..rtlQo.liQ-l),,11C, • .,. I\ 

, ~,h Jk;.J~1~n11: .... l11,:1• I~ .. , 11 .. ,*n \ i, 

111 111 ll,JJM.111Tu,IM • II,;, l<•••n 4 1h 
I J1hlt...aJ!lbrt101.lli.1- l l.a,k,,. ,11, 11 

la,h lk.iJ.\wtTc-....hu • l.._1 lt,,.OQI 17 

l~hlkaJ'>t.utla..00-1>,.,k,.,., UI 

l • •h l k..JM.arl l.,:;.,.b..--. - 1 ... ,Ko .. ,m• I M 

I :u h ll i:i1<1., 1u1 1,-,.._b,;, • ll.o, ll••*II • Ill 
hull lk.,I Mairt rc;o..h.:r-1).;1 k, ~1t1,a l<J 
,-,.,II 11,,.J Slut lea.I"'"' • ll.i\ k, .. ,u1 .,2,1 

h1I\ 11.:..J Sc.ail fc...b« • I~, k••- ;?11 
l.arh ll • ..J~wlla..b.:t• IL,k,,.._ l l 

l.a1h 11,~SI.UI hz,h,'t - l).a\ lt,.,,.11 :' I 
I ,uh 11, .. ,1 Suri )..,.,h,:1 • UJ \ l{,,.,111 :?1 
/:uh lla J Sur1·1c-.a,l11. 1• I),;\ 1t,,.,.11 ~1 

1111h ll,.a,J",1111Qo.t..,, .J>.., i(,.,,m 21 

huh 11....J'\t..ttla.b.t•ll.,, k••• !; 

IMh 11....J '1.asl l-li ... ta • ll,, 

hmih, . I\~ W,11 l ,;1 • J).i1 

hnuh !l.:I\Kc W111 l c1 • I),;\ - I~\• 11, 
ko:..qM•llll~- 1),\ 

ll.:..J~w1t:u..L.-ll.i• 

ll\:.Jol!->Lutl.',•"--IM, 
lk·...JS1.u1 , .Q,.i.,Ji.n, - IN\ 
lk..J Sbfl(u,1,,J,,.u • Jla,-l111h IIS 

!'l,1c!'<1111o.,u.., .. -lh,Vn.1,; 

ll..-.1~11.:...111. .. -K.,V,wk,..,.• IS 
lkJJ'LJiO l~A,• 'Wlfll •lt11,V,.a;,I(,._ I) 
lk.tJ!\Q11 fQ..bc"l-k,,.V1Jo1.1oku1111 Ir, 

lii!.IJSl,MI l,-a..hi:1A,-.i,1,11u-k1<JV1~k, ... n It, 

ll .:.1tl :,,,.M , 'h-.a,h.:1 - Kl\> V .. 1.1 l{..,,~n 17 

11..:::.J SL>11 l c-... hn A<o.\nUnl - lb,, V1.c. k,•,m 11 
llaoJ.,1.1,1 k;,~h<-1-k1uV1..uk,.,m ·Ill. 
llcaJ,t..,11"""'-l""A•"\Ul>l•ki,+V1e>Ui(,,.p Ill 

ll\';JJ '\1,.1,,1 1,-,...t..:, - k•• V1.i11 k",.ll" l'I 

l k;:1,l .-.1,.1,n 1,...,1,.,, A,w.i,1111. J(i,, \11-.t.1 k•-•m l'I 
IIGIJ '1~11 l.~k~1 • k i,, v,.,,. w,-.,., 211 

l k-..J!'<tul l ,::J.,:1 ,\U1 ... .inl•k,,V~-t.,I(,_..,, ?11 

ll,:a,W~1r~--11~l\l,;dJ~1k-u11 S10Jh., I \ 

lluJ:-.w1 l~IKtA,-,J,nl• IJl""' IU.....L~, W:,.,ca Sa.,1(011 I \ 

t11rh JIQJ!\r.., 1 J,.;;,,,.b,._, ·k1>,Vh1;11(,a.,n I 
I .. rh 11~,I !'o1~11 l.:...h, 1 · M, .. V,~1 .. M, a11n I 
I ;i1h llo.l !'It.an lc..,1,u. l(i,, V,'1., K,a<1h l 

l:i,h ll~!'lun Ja,,,,l1C1•M11,V1'1.:IK, .. ro ~ 

I-Khll...J,unlQl.bc1•k.,\'1wk,•- ' 
I :nh IICIIJ '\u,n 1-.M. I(.., \l"'a... k,aa11 I 
r ..... lk;iJ !'ll,11\ l,:,.,_l~"l • ""' v .. 1::1 !<•••UI ., 
... .,,h II~ M.111 IQ\11.:1 • 1(1,, V1,1i. Ko ••m I 

t .. 1t,. llc.o.l '\1.011 tca..b..-i. t(,., V,.c, K,~,.n ~ 

141h 11...J !'lbll la..hu • k,., VDb fl,.,... 
J,.,h l k..JNJll l'l,oakt•k••Vu~, 

hmuh !'lc"1\I.~ W1wl(t - I<,., \I""' 
h1m ll1!'1c"111,cW,"'h1 - lt..,V1,1" 

l ;im1l1Scf\1,,.:Wvrl <:1 • IH11V1,L1- t'arrl• II'\ 
kt1o~p(11~1J• l<.,V~..i. 
lk.a.J Malt••"-· K,,, V1,ll 
l k..JS1,..1Cn .1(.,1\11-.Q 

IIGIW~.o11t:1h1t~n- 1(~1\11.t., 

11,;iJ Sl~tl t:u,..,.J1an . I( ~, V1..i•• l .;11!, IIS 

l k ... l S~1 l t1111~-c1~I :'111l~\1 1l111~• • ~.Ill i\r\1,:S.1 
II~ ,tM1 l l,u1 .. T>JI , 11Mt,1"w• '\m NI,(&., 
11..-..A ,w, 11,.,.'",_,1 ,..,_.11 .. 1.:. :u» .u,ct., 
llu.l,u;1 IJ,.11, 1...,l~11b,1,1,.1., •SJ11,\.11,:J.• 

l k,;J'111ll lln11,:1,...J!'lwh.lu111, -,~nAn~,t" 

llt~hllr,J...,.t.J,k l1..u l-'\~ ~ " ~''~""~ •~•- > _ __ ,~7u_S~, +---~--~---~--~--- ~-- -~ 
l,,.l)'J illll l ~ ---~-- ~--- ~-----'-""'"'-''"e:"=-i'c 'J, 1111, j ll>J, Hu~•• 

1111 .- IOI \I , 111 1 ll. ll r .. tc h U,: 111 .a l l ,,1 ., 11 1111 111 IIII U ~ 

lliJ,: 
I --1 !11:'I 

7 1, !O I •) 

1,n.lu, •1 111n 

71):'Ul'I 

1\ 1,?,ll'J 

7 II ~11'1 

7 11 ~l l 'J 

7 ii ~Ill') 

l'-'UJu1v II I !! 
fl(>,:11 

11,,1111•, 

,,..,.J.oir 7 11 :! 
711!ul'J 

7 11 211 1'.I 
111!11 1•J 

7•1:'ul•J 

lll'l!U:'U 

7 I L!•J1'J 
1JJ!ll l 'J 

1 ti !111'1 

! !! 211:-1 
111:'!il\'J 

71j!Ul•J 

7 t S!U l'J 

1 1,211 1\! 

71• :'111'1 

I 11 :'11!1 

l""J,ni 7 Ill.!! 
1 \i !Hl-.1 

7 II 111 1•1 
7 1\;!U l 'J 

11,211 1•, 

1 ,, :-11 1•1 

1 I~ ,:>111•1 

? IL !111'1 

7ll!O! I 

1 J'I !11 1'1 

1111111•, 

7 11 :01•, 

7 11 :"ol•J 

p,:uJm~ 7 l'l :'! 
7 II :'o l 'J 

l"'',Jrn~ h ill!! 
7 11 ~ll'J 

1x-n.ha-7111!! 
!!:':'11:' I 
lt1:' ::!lll'l 

1 11.Nl'J 

1111:,,111 

7 11!111\! 
7 1)!U J•) 

1 1,.:111•, 

7 1i!1Jjl) 

7 \S:'H\ 1} 

7 IS:'111'1 
711:'•!l•J 

7 1S!Ul'I 

7 1\!ll\') 

71S!UI') 
11, !ltl'J 

l :'l !11!1 
7 II ~ul•i 
7 II !nl•J 
7 1•!111') 

1 1$ !Ul'I 

l 11 !Ul'f 
I lll'IUI 

ll!!Ul'l 
, .. , .. 1i11v7722 

7 II !Ul'J 

'""'" , .. ..,,., 
11:11:: 

!:'!!U! l 

, , 1-11 

:'7 1111 

!•1111 1 
!~ 11,, 
11111 

!lltl:' 

::,,,., 1 
!! 71o l 

lh 701 

II, 7111 

17MII 

1,-•11 
! l!0,•111 

! 111•111 

!! llll7 

:'!Il l ! 
II\I) 

11111 

!!h!tl 

:!:'Il l! 
41 Sh 
11.Wl 

1•, .,:.,,.m 
IOi,SI 

lllt,Sl 

l 'u,i:.r• IOt 

•11 

"' 
"' 
"' ,11 

"' 
"' ,11 

"' "' •11 

'" '" "' ,71 

"' "' "' \11 .,, 
"' 
"' 
"' 
"' 
"' "' 
"' 
"' 
"' 
•11 

"' '71 
'11 

"' •71 
'71 
'1 1 

•11 
'71 

•71 

'" "' '" '11 
,71 

"' '11 

"' '1 1 
111 

'" 171 

'" '" 111 
'71 

'11 

"' "' 171 

171 

"' "' "' "' "' "' "' 
"' 171 
17 1 

'11 

'" '11 
'11 

'7 1 

l '1nt1.,,u :..l ' I\ 

'" 

:!17 

'" !II 

l'I 

!Ill 
1,1 

1•11 

I '! 
17! 

(Ol"IC"°VJ ry[l),ll(", IM(..,,1,,_,rnh 

,u,JOJJ JOH 

I N\Cr ll<'fll'M u .. 1.a,1 

,\l r J I, ,.,., 

'111 

"' "' , 11 

'" "' IH 
H•J 
171 
111 
1111 

'" ,.,, 
"' '"' \o l .. , 
1\1 

I.it! 

hr. 

,I St, 

"' ,17-, 

"' 
"' ,WI 

I\•) 

'" .. , 
1111 

i'llt 

"' ,Ill'} 

,171 

'11 

'" 11 :, 

'1 1 

'11 

"' "' .. , 
"' "' '" "' V,I 
lf,l 

"I 

"' ?1!, 

!75 
!lS 
!1S 
:ns 

111 111,· . , .. ,,.s, 1,1 :11: 1 , ... ,.1>a.21121 

JC llkS l l: ll h:!'1 
\\ ,., .. .,r.. U l tllll U. ll 'l i 

( uoup l 'rn•l\lfl 11 , n 1•.-11,...>111'1•11 

" '" "' i,,11 

~2 I 

l,l j 

,-,.1 
l hlJ 
1,1 
II.ii 

12! 
l t.•.I 

l~i 
1;,•J 

"' lfi'J 

"' 171 

'" 17-1 

"' I" 
"' 111 

"' 171 

"' '" 
'" '" l7.j 

17 1 

IIK 

'"' l:'1 
71 
71 

1,11 

"·" 
11,-.r 
111 

If,'! 

1:? l 

"' l :'11 
II,') 

1:• 

"' I :!) 

Hd 

IJV 

I" 
'" 
"' 1• 1 

"' "' 11' 
,,~1 
11' 

'" 
'" 
I?! 
71 

77 

N 

" :-02.1 
:'112 1 
IKH 
I 71,~ 

1.,.,1 

"" ,,,1 
U -U 
IS.II 

"' '" 
1 2 11 

Il l:' 

1!11S 

'H I 

11! 1 

X'II 
1,1'1! 

'J,.11 

11111 

•,<I 

IC21 

'H I 
)IOi 

7,.5 
''1') 
1171 
1171 

1111 

111, ,, .. 
•111 
t17\ 

V71 

71:' 
•IH 

71~ 
l,;u 

•HI 
,,n 
1117 

"''"' 
""' tll'rl 

ltflt,. llr~M~t .O'l l 

P.-1r.aof, 



co;-.( IH l \ ' \ l .1.1 \ {'(11';-. ( 11 . 1111 :11\ tlt., , lt\l :. 

HIIX1;F JU' !\ ~ I· I I.', 
1.1,t" W I J, ! II !! · !'i•·•• .. ·m lw1 J O, !UlJ 

1·11-. 11 1u, 

ILtJ Si.Ml IJa 11,.ual ,;,,h•,hl•I• • S,1,11 /\i,1di., 

l !c-~,I ~1:i.11 I lh11 , r-w.l !'i11l>:-111u1-o: • S....1 ,\n11,:lu 
lk:i.J ~~r1 l.h1 thhil l Suil'>! Hnl( • Sw1 ,\1111~1" 

l (;;.;i..l :i1.11r l ltm,·u•I ~i.lN,11.1111 • S...1 An11cl., 

Jk,3.J:,1;H1 llu•e1 '41:-VtY!>11m•t•~1/\.11td.i 
l l"""1 :.i.~11 l l,w,n,..1,ul~ll"lc. S111.1ui, a-, 
llear.J ~ t.1,1 1~11,i:,..,.I i,,di-..i11u111 • :-b11Juii,-l11 

ll "-111 ~IM I l l,11 1\·"•I ~~11.-.1 11 ,;I~ • S.,n lu ,g,-1,, 
ll .:i.J • .,:1.111 1/,,,,,..,,..1 S11bi.dtu1~, S;.in Ani;.-1-• 
11.::..J ~1:1;1 1rw,a .;ol 'u,l.,,,.,111.1c• S.,,. A,i.i;c-J., 

11.::rtJ .SW1 I lt1nd~ . ulis.:iUUlc • S.,h A.it,.¼, 

ll.,:...l!>Lm H,uo .. 1""l~11lio,111i.lc. ~, A,J~,J., 

11.:.u.l S1.o 11 1J111,,1,_.1 !11,b'l.l ,1u1c • !1,,.n An.:d,, 

1h11, l ).:.l11o.1~"k 11 .. mf->'------'-'l'c,I lc;," :..::~:;.' -i-'-- - -'' :C"'---'~'--f-- - ~---r--- ~ --~ ----,---- - , 
ln, 1o·~...: ,l,,J11 , t.11,._, h, L.-,•11 u n i d,.,u lu •"" ""\ 11 c, l". 

~ - 11~., -, --,---,-14-,-0l_\_l.-r-- - -r-----clc,U-,-I C,\l~Ol~.s~d ~l>"il\l ~ ll ;~J~: \ l•I ') 

•j :;-.. 11111 \ •J ,~If, 
I I !'l.O!I IK•H~ 

1..-11.111111-l'.?Kn l,IVH 

,,..,..i,,., i ~x ~! IJI Y'l 

01.u, l lCYH 

lfi-.'.A IX ',' \ } 

l I J o!2 1:K '>J.S 
111.., 11 IX •15j 

0 1..:u 111.•11j 

I 1-l ,!lt!I IVIM, 

• ~-..-., I>. •,•1 

o.,,,. t;c•o S 
c>a ..,,, 1141)1) 

l l11 t 1101( 2.! 2h'I 

'IUI I i"I! 

"' j•,,.11 ... ,, •• 

I 11 ·~ 

~ 

1)-v.H 

IJ-. •JS1 

I XVH 
-11.HJ.:7" 

'J!7i:.•,~ 

1·, .. ~ ;,JII 

1 201n.1 

., .. ..,, 
U,-nu l 1 ,1 .. 

lu •t!1•11 11• 1 

11, !Ml". 11111-"-,·1•• : o~ I l 'l..1-11.; .. }u.H 
i t: l 1k,',' ll"UW;: 

U UU 5 \ \ 1ul.r1• U. 11'11 

:"'1"1 111~ 1. H ! S? i 
!H 101 l,S -11 5117 

;n; 10 ~ 1, 5 11 fa1 

.!15 10~ I S-11 1117 

21:S 1112 I Ht x. 7 

?lS IU~ I 5 ll 5ti l 
Hi 1112 1 5-1\ 5i, 1 
J1S IO! 1 5,1\ 5(1"1 

l?i IO~ I s.i1 So7 
!11 IO~ I 552 .SJI 
~1i 1112 I I ~7 

2" 1112 I I ~l 
(I 275 IO~ l. ~11 5(,7 

.111 1'1] !'lllu 1 :?'J~ 'i'Jl'lt, :11w•1 11 ~ 2"11 t::'1.ll17 

1.c• 11 1 

C.o'\o:t>OV;1o, ..,.1 r,.ar,c~ c l 1,....,1-1nmf'n11 

~r.1• I011 ·11111 
., ,,,,r ilf:,nrl, t U, t~ I 

H l aJ I !71.ll"l 

1 .. 1, 

l nn,:r llr.,,•1,1 'I.N';llon 1 

P.ar•5ot~ 



Financial Policy and Procedure Manual 
Investment Policy Page 1 
 
 

CONCHO VALLEY COUNCIL OF GOVERNMENTS 

INVESTMENT POLICY 

 

I.   POLICY 

 

It is the policy of the Concho Valley Council of Governments (CVCOG) that after allowing for the 

anticipated cash flow requirements of the CVCOG and giving due consideration to the safety and 

risk of investment, all available funds shall be invested in conformance with these legal and 

administrative guidelines, seeking to optimize interest earnings to the maximum extent possible. 

 

Effective cash management is recognized as essential to good fiscal management.  Investment 

interest is a source of revenue to the CVCOG funds.  The CVCOG investment portfolio shall be 

designed and managed in a manner designed to maximize this revenue source, to be responsive to 

public trust, and to be in compliance with legal requirements and limitations. 

 

Investments shall be made with the primary objectives of: 

• Safety and preservation of principal 

• Maintenance of sufficient liquidity to meet operating needs 

• Public trust from prudent investment activities 

• Optimization of interest earnings on the portfolio 

 

 

II.   PURPOSE 

 

The purpose of this investment policy is to comply with applicable statutes, rules, regulations and 

Chapter 2256 of the Government Code (“Public Funds Investment Act”), which requires the 

CVCOG to adopt a written investment policy regarding the investment of its funds and funds under 

its control.  The Investment Policy addresses the methods, procedures and practices that must be 

exercised to ensure effective and judicious fiscal management of the CVCOG’s funds. 

 

 

III.   SCOPE 

 

This Investment Policy shall govern the investment of all financial assets of the CVCOG.  These 

funds are accounted for in the CVCOG Annual Financial Report and include: 

• General Fund 

• Special Revenue Funds 

• Internal Service Funds 

• Enterprise Funds 



Concho Valley Council of Governments, Investment Policy 
 

Page 2 of 14 
 

• Any new fund created by the CVCOG, unless specifically exempted from this policy by the 

Executive Board or by law. 

 

This Investment Policy shall apply to all transactions involving the financial assets and related 

activity for all the foregoing funds.  However, this policy does not apply to the assets administered 

for the benefit of the CVCOG by outside agencies under deferred compensation programs. 

 

The CVCOG may consolidate cash balances from all funds to maximize investment earnings.  

Investment income will be allocated to the various funds based on their respective participation and 

in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. 

 

In accordance with applicable statutes, rules, regulations, and with the Public Funds Investment Act, 

the Board shall adopt a separate written investment strategy for each of the funds under the 

CVCOG’s control.  Attachment A includes investment strategies for all funds.  The investment 

strategy must describe the investment objectives for the particular funds using the following 

priorities of importance: 

 

• Understanding of the suitability of the investment to the financial requirements of the 

CVCOG; 

• Preservation of safety of principal; 

• Liquidity; 

• Marketability of the investment if the need arises to liquidate the investment before maturity; 

• Diversification of the investment portfolio; 

• Yield; and 

• Maturity restrictions. 

 

In accordance with the Public Funds Investment Act, investment strategies will be reviewed at least 

annually.  [PFIA 2256.05(d-e)] 

 

 

IV.   INVESTMENT OBJECTIVES 

 

The safety of the principal invested always remains the primary objective.  All investments shall be 

designed and managed in a manner responsive to the public trust and consistent with state and local 

law. 

 

The CVCOG shall maintain a comprehensive cash management program, which includes the 

collection of accounts receivable, processing of accounts payable in accordance with invoice terms, 

and prudent investment of available cash.  The scope of cash management is concerned with the 



Concho Valley Council of Governments, Investment Policy 
 

Page 3 of 14 
 

process of managing monies in order to ensure the maximum cash availability and maximum yield 

on short-term investment of idle cash. 

 

The CVCOG shall manage and invest its cash with four primary objectives, listed in order of 

priority: 

 

1. Safety [PFIA 2256.005(b)(2)] 

Safety of principal is the foremost objective of the investment program.  Investments shall 

be undertaken in a manner that seeks to ensure the preservation of capital in the overall 

portfolio.  The objective will be to mitigate credit and interest rate risk. 

o Credit Risk and Concentration of Credit Risk – the CVCOG will minimize credit 

risk, the risk of loss due to the failure of the issuer or backer of the investment, and 

concentration of credit risk, the risk or loss attributed to the magnitude of 

investment in a single issuer, by: 

▪ Limiting investments to the safest types of investments; 

▪ Pre-qualifying the financial institutions and broker/dealers with which the 

CVCOG will do business; and 

▪ Diversifying the investment portfolio so that potential losses on individual 

issuers will be minimized. 

o Interest Rate Risk – the CVCOG will manage the risk that the interest earnings and 

the market value of investments in the portfolio will fall due to changes in general 

interest rates by limiting the maximum weighted average maturity of the investment 

portfolio to 2 years.  The CVCOG will, in addition: 

▪ Structure the investment portfolio so that investments mature to meet cash 

requirements for ongoing operations, thereby avoiding the need to liquidate 

investments prior to maturity; 

▪ Invest operating funds appropriately in certificates of deposit, shorter-term 

securities, money market mutual funds, or local government investment 

pools functioning as money market mutual funds; and 

▪ Diversify maturities and staggering purchase dates to minimize the impact of 

market movements over time. 

 

2. Liquidity [PFIA 2256.005(b)(2)] 

The investment portfolio shall remain sufficiently liquid to meet all operating requirements 

that may be reasonably anticipated.  This is accomplished by structuring the portfolio so that 

investments mature concurrent with cash needs to meet anticipated demands.  Because all 

possible cash demands cannot be anticipated, a portion of the portfolio will be invested in 

shares of money market mutual funds or local government investment pools that offer 

same-day liquidity.  In addition, a portion of the portfolio may consist of securities with 

active secondary or resale markets. 

 



Concho Valley Council of Governments, Investment Policy 
 

Page 4 of 14 
 

3. Public Trust  

All participants in the CVCOG’s investment process shall seek to act responsibly as 

custodians of the public trust.  Investment officers shall avoid any transaction that might 

impair public confidence in the CVCOG’s ability to govern effectively. 

 

4. Yield [PFIA 2256.005(b)(3)] 

The investment portfolio shall be designed with the objective of attaining a market rate of 

return throughout budgetary and economic cycles, taking into account the investment risk 

constraints and liquidity needs.  Return on investment is of secondary importance compared 

to the safety and liquidity objectives described above. 

 

 

V.   RESPONSIBILITY AND CONTROL 

 

Delegation of Authority [PFIA 2256.005(f)] 

 

In accordance with applicable statutes, rules, regulations and the Public Funds Investment Act, the 

Board designates the Executive Director as the CVCOG’s Investment Officer.  An Investment 

Officer or designee is authorized to execute investment transactions on behalf of the CVCOG.  No 

person may engage in an investment transaction or the management of the CVCOG funds except as 

provided under terms of this Investment Policy as approved by the Board.  The investment 

authority granted to the investing officers is effective until rescinded by the Board. 

 

Quality and Capability of Investment Management [PFIA 2256.005(b)(3)] 

 

The CVCOG shall provide periodic training in investments for the designated investment officers 

and other investment personnel through courses and seminars offered by professional organizations, 

associations, and other independent sources in order to insure the quality and capability of 

investment management in compliance with the Public Funds Investment Act. 

 

Training [PFIA 2256.008 – Local Governments] 

 

In accordance with applicable statutes, rules, regulations and the Public Funds Investment Act, the 

investment officers will complete ten hours of training within 12 months of assuming their duties 

and thereafter, shall complete ten hours of additional training every two years.  The training shall be 

provided by an independent source and must be approved by the Board.  The training must include 

education in investment controls, security risks, strategy risks, market risks, diversification of 

investment portfolios, and compliance with the Public Funds Investment Act (PFIA).   

 

The independent sources will be as follows: 

• The Government Treasures’ Organization of Texas (GTOT) 



Concho Valley Council of Governments, Investment Policy 
 

Page 5 of 14 
 

• The University of North Texas (UNT) 

• The Government Finance Officers’ Association (GFOA) 

• Texas Association of Counties (TAC) 

 

A list will be maintained of the number of hours and conferences attended for each investment 

official and a report of such information will be provided to the Investment Committee. 

 

Internal Control (Best Practices) 

 

The Director of Finance is responsible for establishing and maintaining an internal control structure 

designed to ensure that the assets of the CVCOG are protected from loss, theft, or misuse.  The 

internal control structure shall be designed to provide reasonable assurance that these objectives are 

met.  The concept of reasonable assurance recognizes that (1) the cost of a control should not 

exceed the benefits likely to be derived; and (2) the valuation of costs and benefits requires estimates 

and judgments by management. 

 

Accordingly, the Director of Finance shall establish a process for annual independent review by an 

external auditor to assure compliance with policies and procedures.  The internal controls shall 

address the following points: 

• Control of collusion 

• Separation of transactions authority from accounting and record keeping 

• Custodial safekeeping 

• Avoidance of physical delivery securities 

• Clear delegation of authority to subordinate staff members 

• Written confirmation for all transactions for investments and wire transfers 

• Development of a wire transfer agreement with the depository bank or third-party custodian 

 

Prudence [PFIA 2256.006] 

 

In accordance with applicable statutes, rules, regulations and the Public Funds Investment Act, 

investments shall be made with the same judgment and care, under prevailing circumstances, that a 

person of prudence, discretion, and intelligence would exercise in the management of the person’s 

own affairs, not for speculation, but for investment, considering the probable safety of capital and 

the probable income to be derived. 

 

In determining whether an investment official has exercised prudence with respect to an investment 

decision, the determination shall be made taking into consideration: 

 

• The investment of all funds, or funds under the CVCOG’s control, over which the officer 

had responsibility rather than a consideration as to the prudence of a single investment. 



Concho Valley Council of Governments, Investment Policy 
 

Page 6 of 14 
 

• Whether the investment decision was consistent with the written approved investment 

policy of the CVCOG. 

 

Indemnification (Best Practices) 

 

The Investment Officer, acting in accordance with written procedures and exercising due diligence, 

shall not be held personally responsible for a specific investment’s credit risk or market price 

changes, provided that these deviations are reported immediately and the appropriate action is taken 

to control adverse developments. 

 

Ethics and Conflicts of Interest [PFIA 2256.005(i)] 

 

Officers and employees involved in the investment process shall refrain from personal business 

activity that could conflict with the proper execution and management of the investment program, 

or that could impair their ability to make impartial decisions.  Employees and Investment Officers 

shall disclose any material interests in financial institutions with which they conduct business.  They 

shall further disclose any personal financial/investment positions that could be related to the 

performance of the investment portfolio.  Employees and officers shall refrain from undertaking 

personal investment transactions with the same individual with whom business is conducted on 

behalf of the CVCOG. 

 

An Investment Officer of the CVCOG who has a personal business relationship with an 

organization seeking to sell an investment to the CVCOG shall file a statement disclosing that 

personal business interest.  An Investment Officer who is related within the second degree by 

affinity or consanguinity to an individual seeking to sell an investment to the CVCOG shall file a 

statement disclosing that relationship.  A statement required under this subsection must be filed with 

the Texas Ethics Commission and the Board. 

 

 

VI.   SUITABLE AND AUTHORIZED INVESTMENTS 

 

Authorized Investments [PFIA 2256.005(b)(4)(A)] 

 

The CVCOG funds governed by this policy may be invested in the instruments described below, all 

of which are authorized by Chapter 2256 of the Government Code (Public Funds Investment Act).  

Investment of the CVCOG funds in any instrument or security not authorized for investment under 

the Act is prohibited.  The CVCOG will not be required to liquidate an investment that becomes 

unauthorized subsequent to its purchase. 

 

• Obligations of the United States of America, its agencies and instrumentalities; 

 



Concho Valley Council of Governments, Investment Policy 
 

Page 7 of 14 
 

• Direct obligations of the State of Texas or its agencies and instrumentalities; 

 

• Certificates of Deposit issued by a depository institution that has its main office or a branch 

office in Texas.  The certificate of deposit must be guaranteed or insured by the Federal 

Deposit Insurance Corporation or its successor or the National Credit Union Share 

Insurance Fund or its successor and secured by obligations in a manner and amount as 

provided by law.  In addition, certificates of deposit obtained through a depository 

institution that has its main office or a branch office in Texas and that contractually agrees to 

place the funds in federally insured depository institutions in accordance with the conditions 

prescribed in Section 2256.010(b) of the Public Funds Investment Act are authorized 

investments; 

 

• Fully collateralized direct repurchase agreements with a defined termination date secured by 

obligations of the United States or its agencies and instrumentalities.  These shall be pledged 

to the CVCOG, held in the CVCOG’s name, and deposited at the time the investment is 

made with the CVCOG or with a third party selected and approved by the CVCOG.  

Repurchase agreements must be purchased through a primary government securities dealer, 

as defined by the Federal Reserve, or a financial institution doing business in Texas.  A 

Master Repurchase Agreement must be signed by the bank/dealer prior to investment in a 

repurchase agreement.  All repurchase agreement transactions will be on a delivery vs. 

payment basis.  Securities received for repurchase agreements must have a market value 

greater than or equal to 102 percent at the time funds are disbursed.  (Sweep Accounts 

and/or Bond Proceeds); 

 

• Money Market Mutual funds that: 1) are registered and regulated by the Securities and 

Exchange Commission, 2) have a dollar weighted average stated maturity of 90 days or less, 

3) seek to maintain a net asset value of $1.00 per share, and 4) are rated AAA by at least one 

nationally recognized rating service; and 

 

• Local government investment pools, which 1) meet the requirements of Chapter 2256.016 of 

the Public Funds Investment Act, 2) are rated no lower than AAA or an equivalent rating by 

at least one nationally recognized rating service, and 3) are authorized by resolution or 

ordinance by the Board.  In addition, a local government investment pool created to 

function as a money market mutual fund must mark its portfolio to the market daily and, to 

the extent reasonably possible, stabilize at $1.00 net asset value. 

 

All prudent measures will be taken to liquidate an investment that is downgraded to less than the 

required minimum rating. [PFIA 2256.021] 

 

Prohibited Investments [PFIA 2256.009(b)(1-4) 

 



Concho Valley Council of Governments, Investment Policy 
 

Page 8 of 14 
 

The following are not authorized investments under this policy: 

 

• Obligations whose payment represents the coupon payments on the outstanding principal 

balance of the underlying mortgage-backed security collateral and pays no principal; 

 

• Obligations whose payment represents the principal stream of cash flow from the underlying 

mortgage-backed security collateral and bears no interest; 

 

• Collateralized mortgage obligations that have a stated final maturity date of greater than 10 

years; and 

 

• Collateralized mortgage obligations the interest rate of which is determined by an index that 

adjusts opposite to the changes in a market index. 

 

• Commercial Paper, except that the CVCOG can invest in local government investment 

pools and money market mutual funds that have commercial paper as authorized 

investments.  A local government investment pool or money market mutual fund that 

invests in commercial paper must meet the requirements of, VI. SUITABLE AND 

AUTHORIZED INVESTMENTS above. 

 

 

VII.   INVESTMENT PARAMETERS 

 

Maximum Maturities [PFIA 2256.005(b)(4)(B)] 

 

The longer the maturity of investments, the greater their price volatility.  Therefore, it is the 

CVCOG’s policy to concentrate its investment portfolio in shorter-term securities in order to limit 

principal risk caused by changes in interest rates. 

 

The CVCOG attempts to match its investments with anticipated cash flow requirements.  The 

CVCOG will not directly invest in securities maturing more than two (2) years from the date of 

purchase; however, the above described obligations, certificates, or agreements may be collateralized 

using longer dated investments. 

 

Because no secondary market exists for repurchase agreements, the maximum maturity shall be 120 

days except in the case of a flexible repurchase agreement for bond proceeds.  The maximum 

maturity for such an investment shall be determined in accordance with project cash flow 

projections and the requirements of the governing bond ordinance. 

 



Concho Valley Council of Governments, Investment Policy 
 

Page 9 of 14 
 

The composite portfolio will have a weighted average maturity of 365 days or less.  This dollar-

weighted average maturity will be calculated using the stated final maturity dates of each security.  

[PFIA 2256.005(b)(4)(C)] 

 

Diversification [PFIA 2256.005(b)(3)] 

 

The CVCOG recognizes that investment risks can result from issuer defaults, market price changes 

or various technical complications leading to temporary illiquidity.  Risk is managed through 

portfolio diversification that shall be achieved by the following general guidelines: 

 

• Limiting investments to avoid over concentration in investments from a specific issuer or 

business sector (excluding U.S. Treasury securities and certificates of deposit that are fully 

insured and collateralized in accordance with state and federal law), 

• Limiting investment in investments that have higher credit risks (example: commercial 

paper), 

• Investing in investments with varying maturities, and 

• Continuously investing a portion of the portfolio in readily available funds such as local 

government investment pools (LGIPs), money market funds or overnight repurchase 

agreements to ensure that appropriate liquidity is maintained in order to meet ongoing 

obligations. 

 

The following maximum limits, by instrument, are established for the CVCOG’s portfolio: 

 

1. U.S. Treasury Securities …………………………………100% 

2. Agencies and Instrumentalities …………………………. 85% 

3. Certificates of Deposit …………………………………...100% 

4. Repurchase Agreements (1)……………………………… 20% 

5. Money Market Mutual Funds (2)………………………… 50% 

6. Authorized Pools …………………………………………100% 

 

(1) Excluding flexible repurchase agreements for bond proceeds investments 

(2) No single investment in any one money market mutual fund which exceeds 10% of the total 

assets of the money market mutual fund 

 

The Investment Committee shall review diversification strategies and establish or confirm guidelines 

on at least an annual basis regarding the percentages of the total portfolio that may be invested in 

securities other than U.S. Government Obligations while remaining within the limitations 

established by this policy.  The Investment Committee shall review quarterly investment reports and 

evaluate the probability of market and default risk in various investment sectors as part of its 

consideration. 

 



Concho Valley Council of Governments, Investment Policy 
 

Page 10 of 14 
 

 

VIII.   SELECTION OF BANKS AND DEALERS 

 

Depository [Chapter 105.017, Local Government Code] 

At least every 5 years a Depository shall be selected through the CVCOG banking services 

procurement process, which shall include a formal request for proposal (RFP).  The selection of a 

depository will be determined by competitive proposal and evaluation of proposals will be based on 

the following criteria: 

 

• The ability to qualify as depository for public funds in accordance with state law. 

• The ability to provide requested information or financial statements for the periods 

specified. 

• The ability to meet all requirements in the banking RFP. 

• Complete response to all required items on the RFP form. 

• Lowest net banking service cost, consistent with the ability to provide an appropriate level of 

service. 

• The credit worthiness and financial stability of the bank. 

 

Authorized Brokers/Dealers [PFIA 2256.025] 

 

The CVCOG shall, at least annually, review, revise, and adopt a list of qualified broker/dealers and 

financial institutions authorized to engage in securities transactions with the CVCOG.  Those firms 

that request to become qualified bidders for securities transactions will be required to provide a 

completed broker/dealer questionnaire that provides information regarding creditworthiness, 

experience and reputation and a certification stating the firm has received, read and understood the 

CVCOG’s investment policy and agree to comply with the policy.  Authorized firms may include 

primary dealers or regional dealers that qualify under Securities & Exchange Commission Rule 

15C3-1 (Uniform Net Capital Rule), and qualified depositories.  All investment providers, including 

financial institutions, banks, money market mutual funds, and local government investment pools, 

must sign a certification acknowledging that the organization has received and reviewed the 

CVCOG’s investment policy and that reasonable procedures and controls have been implemented 

to preclude investment transactions that are not authorized by the CVCOG’s policy. [PFIA 

2256.005(k-l)] 

 

The approved broker/dealer list will be reviewed and approved along with this investment policy at 

least annually by the Investment Committee. 

 

Competitive Bids (Best Practice) 

 



Concho Valley Council of Governments, Investment Policy 
 

Page 11 of 14 
 

It is the policy of the CVCOG to require competitive bidding for all individual security purchases 

and sales except for:  

• Transactions with money market mutual funds and local government investment pools, 

• Treasury and agency securities purchased at issue through an approved broker/dealer or 

financial institution. 

 

The Director of Finance shall develop and maintain procedures for ensuring competition in the 

investment of CVCOG’s funds, subject to the oversight and approval of the Board. 

 

Delivery vs. Payment [PFIA 2256.005(b)(4)(E)] 

 

Securities shall be purchased using the delivery vs. payment method with the exception of 

investment pools and mutual funds.  Funds will be released after notification that the purchased 

security has been received. 

 

 

IX.   CUSTODIAL CREDIT RISK MANAGEMENT 

 

Safekeeping and Custodial Agreements 

 

The CVCOG shall contract with a bank or banks for the safekeeping of securities either owned by 

the CVCOG as part of its investment portfolio or held as collateral to secure demand or time 

deposits.  Securities owned by the CVCOG shall be held in the CVCOG’s name as evidenced by 

safekeeping receipts of the institution holding the securities. 

 

Collateral for deposits will be held by a third party custodian designated by the CVCOG and 

pledged to the CVCOG as evidenced by safekeeping receipts of the institution with which the 

collateral is deposited.  Original safekeeping receipts shall be obtained.  Collateral may be held by the 

depository bank’s trust department, a Federal Reserve bank or branch of a Federal Reserve bank, a 

Federal Home Loan bank, or a third party bank approved by the CVCOG. 

 

Collateral Policy [PFCA 2257.023] 

 

Consistent with the requirements of the Public Funds Collateral Act, it is the policy of the CVCOG 

to require full collateralization of all the CVCOG funds on deposit with a depository bank, other 

than investments.  In order to anticipate market changes and provide a level of security for all funds, 

the collateralization level will be 105% of market value of principal and accrued interest on the 

deposits or investments less an amount insured by the FDIC.  At its discretion, the CVCOG may 

require a higher level of collateralization for certain investment securities.  Securities pledged as 

collateral shall be held by an independent third party which the CVCOG has a current custodial 

agreement.  The Executive Director is responsible for entering into collateralization agreements with 



Concho Valley Council of Governments, Investment Policy 
 

Page 12 of 14 
 

third party custodians in compliance with this Policy.  The agreements are to specify the acceptable 

investment securities for collateral, including provisions relating to possession of the collateral, the 

substitution or release of investment securities, ownership of securities, and the method of valuation 

of securities.  A clearly marked evidence of ownership (safekeeping receipt) must be supplied to the 

CVCOG and retained.  Collateral shall be reviewed at least monthly to assure that the market value 

of the pledged securities is adequate. 

 

Collateral Defined 

 

The CVCOG shall accept only the following types of collateral: 

 

• Obligations of the United States or its agencies and instrumentalities 

• Direct obligations of the State of Texas or its agencies and instrumentalities 

• Collateralized mortgage obligations directly issued by a federal agency or instrumentality of 

the United States, the underlying security for which is guaranteed by an agency or 

instrumentality of the United States 

• Obligations of states, agencies, counties, cities, and other political subdivisions of any state 

rated as to investment quality by a nationally recognized rating firm not less than A or its 

equivalent with a remaining maturity of ten (10) years or less 

 

Subject to Audit 

 

All collateral shall be subject to inspection and audit by the CVCOG or the CVCOG’s independent 

auditors. 

 

 

X.   PERFORMANCE 

 

Performance Standards 

 

The CVCOG’s investment portfolio will be managed in accordance with the parameters specified 

within this policy.  The portfolio shall be designed with the objective of obtaining a rate of return 

through budgetary and economic cycles, commensurate with the investment risk constraints and the 

cash flow requirements of the CVCOG. 

 

Performance Benchmark 

 

It is the policy of the CVCOG to purchase investments with maturity dates coinciding with cash 

flow needs.  Through this strategy, the CVCOG shall seek to optimize interest earning utilizing 

allowable investments available on the market at that time.  Market value will be calculated on a 

quarterly basis on all securities owned and compared to current book value.  The CVCOG’s 



Concho Valley Council of Governments, Investment Policy 
 

Page 13 of 14 
 

portfolio shall be designed with the objective of regularly meeting or exceeding the average rate of 

return on U.S. Treasury Bills at a maturity level comparable to the CVCOG’s weighted average 

maturity in days. 

 

 

XI.   REPORTING [PFIA 2256.023] 

 

Methods 

The Investment Officer shall prepare an investment report on a quarterly basis that summarizes 

investment strategies employed in the most recent quarter and describes the portfolio in terms of 

investment securities, maturities, and shall explain the total investment return for the quarter. 

 

The quarterly investment report shall include a summary statement of investment activity prepared 

in compliance with generally accepted accounting principles.  This summary will be prepared in a 

manner that will allow the CVCOG to ascertain whether investment activities during the reporting 

period have conformed to the Investment Policy.  The report will be provided to the Executive 

Committee.  The report will include the following: 

 

• A listing of individual securities held at the end of the reporting period. 

• Unrealized gains or losses resulting from appreciation or depreciation by listing the 

beginning and ending book and market value of securities for the period. 

• Additions and changed to the market value during the period. 

• Average weighted yield to maturity of portfolio as compared to applicable benchmark. 

• Listing of investments by maturity date. 

• Fully accrued interest for the reporting period 

• The percentage of the total portfolio that each type of investment represents. 

• Statement of compliance of the CVCOG’s investment portfolio with state law and the 

investment strategy and policy approved by the Executive Committee. 

 

An independent auditor will perform a formal annual review of the quarterly reports with the results 

reported to the governing body. [PFIA 2256.023(d)] 

 

Monitoring Market Value [PFIA 2256.005(b)(4)(D) 

 

Market value of all securities in the portfolio will be determined on a quarterly basis.  These values 

will be obtained from a reputable and independent source and disclosed to the governing body 

quarterly in a written report. 

 

 

 



Concho Valley Council of Governments, Investment Policy 
 

Page 14 of 14 
 

XII.   INVESTMENT COMMITTEE 

 

1. Members 

An Investment Committee, consisting of the Executive Director, Director of Finance, and 3 

Executive Committee Board Members appointed annually by majority vote of members of a 

quorum present and voting during the regularly called meeting and seated in the month of 

January, shall review the CVCOG’s investment strategies and monitor the results of the 

investment program at least quarterly.  This review can be done by reviewing the quarterly 

written reports and by holding committee meetings as necessary.  The committee will be 

authorized to invite other advisors to attend meetings as needed. 

 

 

2. Scope 

The Investment Committee shall include in its deliberations such topics as economic 

outlook, investment strategies, portfolio diversification, maturity structure, potential risk to 

the CVCOG’s funds, evaluation and authorization of broker/dealers, rate of return on the 

investment portfolio, review and approval of training providers and compliance with the 

investment policy.  The Investment Committee will also advise the Board of any future 

amendments to the investment policy that are deemed necessary or recommended. 

 

 

3. Procedures 

The investment Committee shall provide minutes of investment information discussed at 

any meetings held to the executive committee.  The committee should meet at least annually 

to discuss the investment program and policies. 

 

 

XII.   INVESTMENT POLICY ADOPTION [PFIA 2256.05(E)] 

 

The CVCOG’s investment policy shall be adopted by resolution of the Board.  It is the CVCOG’s 

intent to comply with state laws and regulations.  The CVCOG’s investment policy shall be subject 

to revisions consistent with changing laws, regulations, and needs of the CVCOG.  The Board shall 

adopt a resolution stating that it has reviewed the policy and investment strategies annually, 

approving any changes or modifications. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Financial Policy and Procedure Manual 
Investment Policy Page 1 
 
 

CONCHO VALLEY COUNCIL OF GOVERNMENTS 

INVESTMENT STRATEGY 
 

 

(ATTACHMENT A of CVCOG INVESTMENT POLICY) 

 

 

The Concho Valley Council of Governments (CVCOG) maintains portfolios which utilize specific 

investment strategy considerations designed to address the unique characteristics of the fund groups 

represented in the portfolios.  The following investment strategies are the guidelines to investment of the 

funds of the CVCOG.  All investments, when aggregated together, must be within the diversification 

parameters listed with the authorized investments.  From time to time, on temporary basis, the actual 

investments within one fund or another may vary slightly from its underlying strategy.  However, these 

deviations should only be temporary and easily corrected. 

 

• Operating funds include the general fund, internal service funds, and enterprise funds.  These 

funds are necessary for the day to day operations of the CVCOG programs.  Due to their short-

term nature, these funds need to be available when needed.  These funds will be invested in 

instruments authorized by this policy with a maturity not exceeding 1 year. 

 

• Advance funds include any designated local, state, or federal advance funding within special 

revenue funds.  These funds are necessary for the implementation of the CVCOG’s programs and 

tend to be short-term to mid-term in nature.  These funds will be invested in instruments 

authorized by this policy with a maturity matched with programmatic needs not exceeding 365 

days. 

 

• Designated funds include programmed local funding within special revenue funds.  These funds 

tend to be longer term in nature and not needed for immediate use.  These funds will be invested 

in instruments authorized by this policy with a maturity matched with programmatic needs not to 

exceed two (2) years. 

 

 

The Investment Strategy policy must be reviewed and approved annually with the Investment Policy. 

 

 

 



Financial Policy and Procedure Manual 
Investment Policy Page 1 
 
 

CONCHO VALLEY COUNCIL OF GOVERNMENTS 
QUALIFIED BROKER/DEALER LIST  

 
 
 

The following are the qualified broker/dealers with whom Concho Valley Council of 
Governments (CVCOG) may engage in investment transactions: 
 
 

a) First Financial Bank of San Angelo 
 
b) The First National Bank of Mertzon 

 
c) Texas State Bank 
 

d) Wells Fargo Bank, N.A. 
 

Current list is FDIC banks with branch locations in San Angelo, Texas that have 

provided CVCOG with acknowledgement of CVOG Investment Policy.   

 

The Broker/Dealer list must be reviewed and approved annually with the Investment 

Policy. 

 



CVCOG 
Balance Sheet - CVCOG Balance Sheet 

As of 6/30/2022 

Current Period Balance 

Assets 

First Financial General Bank Acct 450,537.91 1112 

CNCS Petty Cash 300.00 1197 

CitiBank Credit Card 35,884.86 1198 

First Financial Credit Card 513.83 1199 

Grant Receivable HSGP MACC Communications 2,666.93 1202 

Grant Receivable, CJ VA WA 2,997.84 1203 

State Contract, HSGD 1,458.33 1204 

Grant Receivable, 2-1-1 30,286.80 1205 

Grant Receivable, 9-1-1 207,594.52 1211 

Grant Receivable, AAA 352,762.00 1212 

State Contract, CJ Planning 3,541.81 1214 

Grant Receivable, CJ Training 12,313.30 1215 

Grant Receivable, RSVP 20,126.97 1216 

Grant Receivable, Juvenile Justice Services 9,572.81 1217 

Grant Receivable, Foster Grandparent 39,658.43 1219 

Grant Receivable, Senior Companion 26,806.95 1220 

Grant Receivable, ADRC 20,039.16 1221 

Grant 804 EDA CARES ACT 43,837.78 1229 

Grant Receivable, Homeland Security SHSP 22,763.79 1232 

Grant Receivable, CACFP Head Start 9,051.85 1243 

Grant Receivable, Head Start HHS 323,813.03 1249 

Economic Development District 9,026.17 1290 

CV Transit District AR 432,045.47 1329 

Accounts Receivable-General 574.95 1391 

Prpd Health Insurance 2,454.52 1592 

Prepaid COBRA-Health Services 736.53 1594 

Prepaid Life Insurance 372.21 1595 

Prepaid Dental Insurance 14.28 1597 

Prepaid AFLAC 105.81 1598 

Prepaid MASA Insurance 8.99 1599 

First Financial 911 Investment 166,345.36 1614 

CVCOG Investment Account 256,242.72 1618 

Leasehold Improvements 75,000.00 1730 

Other Assets - Project Equipment 1,169,123.23 1811 

Total Assets 3,728,579.14 

Liabilities 

AP 202,361.05 2111 

AP Clearing 49,430.65 2112 

AP First Financial Credit Card 15,786.47 2114 

AP CitiBank Credit Card 73,030.01 2117 

Payroll Payable - Administration 268,174.77 2151 

Federal Witholding Tax 22,107.68 2311 

Medicare Payable 9,526.52 2321 

SUTA Payable 18.74 2323 

Employee Benefits Payable 42,142.55 2412 

Health Savings Account 4,425.67 2413 

Vision Insurance Payable 134.74 2419 

Page: I 



Liabilities cont. .. 

Employer Pension Plan Payable 

Employee Contr to Pension Plan 

Deferred Income Plan Withheld 

Worker's Comp Ins Payable 
State Comptroller Unclaimed 

United Way Payable 

Child Support Payable 

Accrued Annual Leave 

Unearned Revenue- 911 Program 

Unearned Revenue-VISTA 

Unearned Revenue-Head Start 

Unearned Revenue-Solid Waste 

Total Liabilities 

Fund Balance 

General Unrestricted Fund Balance 

Long Term Debt• Annual Leave 

Investment - Capital Assets 

Restricted • USDA Note Available 

Restrict • Faith in Action SO I c3 

Restricted - CV Medical Reserve Corp 

Assigned - Area Agency on Aging 

Assigned - SCP Visiting Program 

Assigned - Caregiver 

Assigned - Housing Finance 

Assigned - Homeland Security 

Assigned - CJ Planning 

Assigned • CJ Law Enf Academy 

Assigned - 211 lnfonnation Referral 

Assigned - CEDAF 

Total Fund Balance 

Excess Revenue over Expenditures FY 21-22 

Total Liabilities and Fund Balance 

CVCOG 
Balance Sheet • CVCOG Balance Sheet 

As of 6/30/2022 

Current Period Balance 

125,294.63 

73,271.S7 

3,305.00 

3,399.39 
0.46 

1,554.69 

1,774.43 

182,270.1S 

62,444.31 

146,415.46 

12,781.63 

82,615.68 

1,382,266.25 

488,890.2S 

(182,270.1 S) 

1,244,123.23 

23,850.00 

3S,286.S1 

3,765.02 

3,694.56 

9,867.64 

2,213.6S 

93,807.76 

18,047.2S 

104,750.36 

187,194.33 

42,282.2S 

30,774.41 

2,106,277.07 

240,035.82 

31728,S79.14 

2422 

2423 

2431 

2432 
2434 

2441 

2442 

2S21 

2917 

2918 

2919 

2938 

3000 

310S 

3110 

3202 

3204 

320S 

3401 

3402 

3403 

3404 

340S 

3406 

3407 

3408 

3409 

Page: 2 



CVCOG 
Statement of Revenues and Expenditures - CVCOG Statement of Revenue and Expenditures 

From 10/1/2021 Through 6/30/2022 

Current Period Actual 

Revenue 
CNCS Senior Companion CFDA 94.016 142,044.84 4164 
CNCS FosterGrandparentCFDA 94.011 230,632.43 4165 
CNCS RSVP CFDA 94.002 113,240.97 4167 
Grant 804, EDA CARES ACT 173,674.60 4169 
HHS-ACF Head Start ARP 06HE00 I 000 C6 41,876.31 4170 
HHS-ACF Head Start 06CH0I0970-03 4,311,353.36 4171 
HHS-ACF Head Start CRRSA 06HE00 1000 CS 170,048.00 4172 
HHS-ACF Head Start 06CH010970-04 510,273.85 4173 
MA - Title IIIB CFDA 93.044 23,945.00 4201 
CACFPPriorYearCFDA 10.558 8,833.17 4203 
MA - Title IIICI CFDA 93.045 22,937.00 4205 
Off Gov-CJ Juvenile Justice Service CFDA 16.523 26,769.60 4206 
MA - Title IIIC-2 CFDA 93.045 13,258.00 4207 
CARES ACT III C-2, CFDA 93.045 27,727.00 4211 
MA - Title IIIE CFDA 93.052 18,342.00 4215 
MA - Title VII EAP CFDA 93.041 1,944.00 4216 
MA - Title VI OM CFDA 93.042 14,019.00 4218 
CACFP Nutrition CFDA I 0.558 395,347.58 4221 
Off Gov-Violence Against Women Act CFDA 16.588 6,244.78 4222 
PY - Title IIIB CFDA 93.044 92,931.00 4227 
OffGov-HSGP MACC Communications 2,666.93 4230 
211 TANF OPS FED CFDA 93.558 946.74 4231 
PY -Title IIICI CFDA 93.045 98,609.00 4232 
211 Food Stamps CFDA 10.561 33,841.96 4233 
PY -Title IIIC2 CFDA 93.045 36,414.00 4235 
Title III C-2 Consolidated 72,732.00 4236 
PY - Title lllE CFDA 93.052 10,896.00 4239 
PY - NSIP CFDA 93.053 38,607.00 4244 
211 Child Health Ins CFDA 93.767 5,334.77 4245 
MA-CDC Vaccination IIIB CFDA 93.044 21,647.00 4248 
211 Child Care CFDA 93.575 2,481.64 4258 
MA Title D Disaster Flex CFDA 93.043 16,931.00 4260 
211 CHIPS OPS Fed CFDA 93.778 35,254.55 4265 
CF - HICAP Basic CFDA 93.324 24,634.00 4267 
211 COVID TANF OPS CFDA 93.558 22.79 4269 
211 COVID Food Stamps CFDA 10.561 814.55 4271 
ADRC Housing Navigator CFDA 93. 791 26,883.76 4274 
ADRC Local Contact Agency CFDA 93. 791 1,915.43 4275 
ARP Title 111-8 79,794.00 4276 
ARP Title Ill Cl 104,223.00 4277 
ARP Title III C2 67,624.00 4278 
ADRC MIPPA CFDA 93.071 9,307.59 4279 
CACFP COVID-19 21,779.94 4287 
211 COVID Child Health Ins CFDA 93.767 128.39 4289 
ARP Title III E 19,660.00 4290 
ARP Title VI OM CFDA 93.042 4,470.00 4291 
211 COVID CHIPS CFDA 93.778 848.53 4292 
Off Gov-Homeland Security SHSP CFDA 97.067 93,553.35 4294 
MA- MIPPA CFDA 93.071 4,550.00 4297 
AAA State General 80,125.00 4301 
TCEQ Solid Waste State 30,784.16 4302 
2-1-1 COVID SGR 1,802.71 4305 

Date: 7/29/ll 07:39:33 AM Page: I 



CVCOG 
Statement of Revenues and Expenditures - CVCOG Statement of Revenue and Expenditures 

From 10/1/2021 Through 6/30/2022 

Off Gov - CJ Academy State 
AAA - State 0MB ALF 
TxHHS-RSVP State 
Off Gov - CJ Equipment State 
Off Gov - HSGD Contract State 
TxHHS - 211 State Funds 
Off Gov, CJ Planning Services 
CSEC 911 ER Communications State 
ADRC State General Revenue 
ADRC State Promoting Independence 
TXHHS-SCP State 
AAA - State General ARP 
1K Contributions 
Senior Center Program Income-Tracking Only 
Senior Center Local Revenue-Tracking Only 
CVCOG Membership Dues 
Area Agency on Aging Membership Dues 
CJ Membership Dues 
Program Income 
Local Revenue 
ARP Program Income-Tracking ONLY 
Sale ofEquipment 
Interest Income General 
Credit Card Cash Rewards Redemption 
Economic Development District Pass-Thru 
Concho Valley Transit District Pass-Thru 
Prior Year Cost Pool Contribution 
Vacation Accrual Allocation 
Indirect Cost Allocations 
Information Technology Services 
Human Resources Allocation 
Procurement Dept Allocation 
Property Management Allocation 

Total Revenue 

Expenditures 
General Wages 
General Overtime Hours 
Holiday Work Time 
Vacation Time Allocation 
Medicare Tax 
Worker's Comp Insurance 
SUTA 
Health Insurance Benefit 
Dental Insurance Benefit 
Life Insurance Benefit 
HSA Insurance Benefit 
Retirement 
Indirect Allocation 
Employee Health and Welfare 
Stipend- FOP Volunteers 
Stipend - SCP Volunteers 
Emergency Pay Allowance Pay 1 

Date: 7/29/22 07:39:33 AM 

Current Period Actual 

55,059.95 

4,694.00 

34,730.78 

20,652.20 

13,668.97 

74,897.10 

32,898.82 

1,837,252.23 

66,606.44 

9,900.99 

1,751.75 

5,189.00 

1,079,994.22 

32,568.79 

8,177.00 

15,201.27 

22,154.86 

65,153.00 

32,939.74 

73,995.61 

29,902.54 

(11,949.79) 

531.99 

3,025.00 

224,779.62 

3,077,849.13 

199,836.10 

271,675.89 

522,575.95 

329,338.03 

247,335.19 

347,364.49 

302,712.19 

16,327,189.33 

5,114,894.03 

5,367.62 

664.31 

271,675.89 

87,311.23 

82,393.01 

6,256.99 

1,492,773.95 

55,074.48 

43,696.46 

54,812.53 

735,682.48 

522,260.62 

1,915.12 

102,596.25 

60,570.00 

4,327.50 

4307 

4308 

4309 

4310 

4311 

4312 

4315 

4316 

4325 

4331 

4336 

4341 

4411 

4416 

4417 

4511 

4512 

4513 

4522 

4523 

4524 

4711 

4731 

4737 

4760 

4761 

4762 

4911 

4912 

4913 

4914 

4915 

4916 

5110 

5118 
5119 

5150 

5151 

5172 

5173 

5174 

S17S 

5176 

5177 

5181 
5199 

5200 

S201 

5202 

S204 

Page: 2 



CVCOG 
Statement of Revenues and Expenditures - CV COG Statement of Revenue and Expenditures 

From 10/1/2021 Through 6/30/2022 

Current Period Actual 

Recognition 48,316.01 5205 
HR Service Center 247,335.19 5206 
Procurement Service Center 347,364.49 5207 
Information Technology Service Center 329,338.03 5208 
Driver Wages 944,312.56 5210 
Emergency Pay Allowance Pay 2 3,916.50 5211 
Dispatch/Customer Service Wages 89,287.98 5217 
Driver Overtime Hours 59,571.08 5218 
Dispatch/Customer Service Overtime Wages 3,860.51 5219 
Driver Double Time 1,020.57 5222 
Audit & Legal 34,129.44 5231 
Counseling Services 19,175.00 5251 
Contract Services 325,411.98 5291 
HS Health & Disab Svc 505.90 5293 
HS Policy Council 273.93 5294 
HS Nutrition Service 287,571.01 5295 
HS Parent Service 2,736.85 5296 
AM Congregate Meals 221,014.24 5301 

AM Home Delivered Meals 236,024.11 5302 

Head Start T & T A 43,688.55 5308 

Travel-In Region 19,814.82 5309 
Travel-Out of Region 23,819.53 5310 

Meals 5,982.46 5312 
Travel-Volunteer 40,550.67 5313 
Fuel 1,715.68 5351 
Vehicle Maintenance 13,270.96 5361 
Bus Stop Maintenance 137.65 5365 
Non-Vehicle Maintenance 264.76 5366 

Rent Southland Properties 234,000.00 5411 

Other Facility Rent 8,517.38 5412 

HS Site Rent 13,950.00 5413 

Utilities 47,119.17 5431 

HS Site Center Utilities 86,664.85 5433 
Facility Maintenance 508,284.39 5451 
HS Site Center Bldg Maint 92,743.25 5453 

Supplies 177,459.61 5510 
HS Class Room Supplies 86,062.42 5512 
HS Food Serv Sup 56,639.42 5513 
HS Medical Supplies 2,015.22 5514 
Supplies - Bus/Service Vehicles 1,765.37 5516 

HS Diapers and Wipes 14,292.99 5518 
Parts Supply 3,483.49 5520 
Internal Project Equipment 143,632.75 5621 
Internal Computer/Software 67,010.60 5622 
Internal Capital Equipment 3,046.70 5623 
County Project Equipment 5,159.50 5627 
Tools 3,845.26 5629 
Copier 21,542.16 5632 
Copier Lease 4,406.83 5633 
Copier Paper 1,245.00 5634 
Copier Supplies 43.49 5635 
Insurance 20,805.41 5711 
Communications - Bus 200.00 5712 

DIie: 7/29122 07:39:33 AM P4Sc: 3 



CVCOG 
Statement of Revenues and Expenditures - CV COG Statement of Revenue and Expenditures 

From 10/1/2021 Through 6/30/2022 

Current Period Actual 

Cell Phones 3,244.28 5713 
Internet 5,461.21 5714 
Printing 6,856.19 5721 
Ads & Promotions 19,223.44 5722 
Publications 2,320.45 5723 
HS Capital Playground 31,619.64 5734 
Training 7,177.72 5751 
Dues and fees 63,618.54 5753 
Vehicle Registration 382.69 5754 
HS Site Center Communications 16,647.37 5760 
Communications 32,885.06 5761 
Postage/freight 11,376.39 5762 

911 PSAP Services 1,454.82 5766 

911 Equipment Maintenance 140,602.92 5767 
911 PSAP Room Prep 115,807.00 5773 
9 I I Network Reliability 4,494.45 5774 

911 Network 93,350.93 5775 
911 PSAP Network 548,486.86 5777 
911 Geographic Information Systems 32,119.69 5780 

911 Core Functions 230,567.85 5781 

911 Mason !SD Project 4,338.80 5782 

Other 6,085.25 5791 

Coffee Expense 582.28 5792 
Physicals 135.00 5793 

General Assembly Costs 266.18 5794 

Safety 6,430.40 5796 
Multi-Modal Supplies 1,603.10 5810 

Multi-Modal Internet 10,912.65 5814 
Multi-Modal Utilities 6,200.71 5831 
Multi-Modal Communications 4,607.68 5861 

Shop Christoval Rd Supplies 577.30 5870 

Shop Christoval Rd Utilities 614.15 5876 

Shop Christoval Rd Maintenance 490.10 5880 

InKind Travel 39,991.00 6310 

InKind Other 1,040,003.22 6791 

Total Expenditures 16 087 153.51 

Excess Revenue over Expenditures 240,035.82 

Date: 7/29/22 07:39:33 AM Page:4 



CVCOG 
Expenditure Journal - All Grant Exp Recap YTD 

From 10/1/2021 Through 6/30/2022 

General Ledger Account Payable 
Grant Code Grant Title Expenditures Expenditures Total 

010 CVTD Pass-thru ICB Program 23,457.88 0.00 23,457.88 
013 CVTD Pass Thru TML Ins 0.00 4,917.00 4,917.00 
018 Pass-Thru CVTD Medicaid 28,123.42 0.00 28,123.42 
019 CVTD Pass-Thru Program 019, Link Road Operations 0.00 2,058.02 2,058.02 
023 Pass Thru CVTD Link Road 14,159.66 7,446.74 21,606.40 
02S Grant 02S, VISTA CNCS Con1ract FY 20-22 16,004.90 0.00 16,004.90 
040 Pass-Thru CV Economic Development Dist 70,942.74 2,844.6S 73,787.39 
044 Pass Thro CVEDD Grant 044, EDA Revolving Loan 10,8S6.23 0.00 I0,8S6.23 
092 Procurement 334,191.72 13,172.7S 347,364.47 
093 Human Resomces 242,206.87 S,128.33 247,335.20 
094 Information Technology 244,443.40 84,894.63 329,338.03 
095 Engagement Committee Funds SJ.IS 3,204.00 3,2S7.IS 
096 Property Management 2l,OS9.4S 281,652.73 302,712.18 
097 Non-Project Expenses 4,845.66 30,378.83 35,224.49 
098 Vacation Accrual Allocation 209,257.67 0.00 209,257.67 
099 INDIRECT COSTS 483,302.88 168,396.38 651,699.26 
582 USDHUD Community and Economic Development Assistance Fund 4,070.87 0.00 4,070.87 
781 TCEQ Grant 781, Solid Waste FY 19-21 0.00 5,159.SO S,IS9.S0 
804 USDA Grant 804, EDA CARES ACT 2-Y 20-22 ED20AUS3070076 76,737.87 96,936.73 173,674.60 
BOS Grant SOS, 911 CSEC State FY21 Funding 2nd Biennium (I IS,113.71) 708,226.11 593,112.40 
813 Pass 1bru Grant 813, CVTD Urban FY 20-21 189.77 7S.4S 265.22 
814 Pass 1bru Grant 814, CVTD Rural FY 20-21 (7.79) (14.98) (22.77) 
817 Pass-Thru Grant 817, CVTD RCTP FY 20-21 16,221.70 428.SO 16,650.20 
820 Grant 820, CACFP Head Start Nutrition FY 20-21 Q202 I (350.80) 366.75 IS.95 
82S Pass Thro CVTD Rural CARES 0.00 5,127.14 S,127.14 
827 Grant 827, CNCS RSVP FY 21-22 20SRWTX024 87,942.SS 2S,948.42 113,890.97 
829 HHS-ACF Grant 829, Head Start FY 21-22 06CHOI0970 S,044,138.SI S0?,064.21 S,SSl,202.78 
AOI HHSC-OAAA Grant AOI, ARa Agency on Aging FY 21-22 522,838.72 478,306.SS 1,001,14S.27 
COi 00G State Grant COi, CJ Academy FY 21-23 1480417 120,455.38 39,193.16 159,648.S4 
CO2 00G Contract CO2, CJD Planning FY 21-22 22-00076 27,312.77 1,440.49 28,7S3.26 

COJ 00G State Grant C03, CJ Equipment FY 21-22 4300101 0.00 20,652.20 20,652.20 

DOI Grant DOI, HHSC ADRC FY 21-22 HHS000270200007 103,506.S3 11,107.68 114,614.21 
FOi Grant FOi, CNCS Foster Grandparent 21-22 Y3 19SFWTX002 228,716.04 14,874.39 243,590.43 
GOI Grant GOI, RSVP HHSC State HHS000871100009 Year2 34,732.43 0.00 34,732.43 
HOI Grant HOI, Head Start CACFPCOVID-19 EOC2021 (22.77) S,780.99 5,7S8.22 
H02 Grant H02, CACFP Head Start Nutrition FY 21-22 Q2022 18,811.94 336,982.56 355,794.SO 
H03 HHS-ACF Grant H03, Head Start FY 22-23 06CHOI0970-04 472,SBS.34 37,688.Sl 510,273.85 
101 Pass Thru Grant 10 I, CVEDD TXDOT 0.00 140,136.00 140,136.00 
JOI 00G GrantJOI, Juvenile Justice Service FY 21-22 1484322 6,294.60 20,475.00 26,769.60 
LOI CVTD Pass-Thru Link Road Facility 49,431.78 22,154.65 71,586.43 
MOI Pass-thru Grant MOI, Mobility Urban 5310-2021-0027 60,687.02 0.00 60,687.02 
M02 Pass-Thru Grant M02, Mobility Rmal S310-2021-0027 33,SSI.SO 0.00 33,551.SO 
POI CVTD Pass-Thru, RPTCP 2022-CVTD-00021 S,448.76 73.S2 S,522.28 
ROI Pass-thru Grant ROI, CVTD Rural FY 21-22 930,910.85 14,223.52 945,134.37 
R02 Pass-thru Grant R02, CVTD Rural ARP FY 21-22 33,159.36 4,458.72 37,618.08 
SOI Grant SOI, CNCS Senior Companion 21-22 Y3 19SCWTXOOI 141,417.60 11,270.24 152,687.84 
502 Grant S02, SCP HHSC State HHS000871100039 Year2 l,7Sl.7S 0.00 1,7Sl.7S 
TOI Grant TOI, TIRN 211 Infonnation & Rcfenal FY 21-22 140,735.95 15,637.78 156,373.73 
UOI Pass-thru Grant UOI, CVTD Urban FY 21-22 1,372,099.72 2S,318.73 1,397,418.45 
U02 Grant U02, CVTD Pass-Thru 418,181.91 5,963.40 424,145.31 
VOi 00G Grant VOi, Violence Against Women Act 3973002 11,828.97 1,710.81 13,539.78 
wot Grant WOI, TCEQ State Solid Waste FY 21-23 24,S81.79 1,042.87 25,624.66 
XOI 00G Grant XOI, Homeland Security (HSGP) FY 21-22 29529007 91,010.15 2,543.20 93,SS3.3S 
X02 000 State Contract X02, HSGD FY 21-22 22-00076 8,848.38 288.76 9,137.14 
X03 00G Grant XOJ, HSGP MACC Communications 0.00 2,666.93 2,666.93 
ZOI Grant ZOI, 91 I CSEC State FY 22 Funding, 1st Bienniwn 630,993.22 613,146.61 l:Wl3213 

Report Total 12~061604.29 317801549.22 16108711S3.SI 

i'qc: I 



SCHEDULE OF REVENUE BY SOURCE

 October 1, 2021 - June 30, 2022              

ARA     State Pass Thru  

CVCOG COVID-19 Administered Program Local  Sr. Centers & Fringe Benefit Total Total Excess Revenue

Grant No Grant Name    Federal CARES Act      Federal    State Income Revenue In-kind Membership CVEDD & CVTD & Indirect Revenue Expenditures over Expenditures Notes

025 VISTA Program -                       -                 -                    -                    -               16,004.90     -                    -                 -                      -                     16,004.90           16,004.90           -                               

033 TDHCA Housing -                       -                 -                    -                    -               193.58           -                    -                 -                      -                     193.58                 -                       193.58                         Excess funding, will use through fiscal year

040 Economic Development District -                       -                 -                    -                    -               -                 -                    -                 73,787.39           -                     73,787.39           73,787.39           -                               

044 Economic Development District-CARES -                       -                 -                    -                    -               -                 -                    -                 10,856.23           -                     10,856.23           10,856.23           -                               

582 CEDAF FY 21-22 -                       -                 -                    -                    -               -                 -                    -                 -                      -                     -                       4,070.87              (4,070.87)                    Bills annually in August 2022

781 Solid Waste FY 19-21 -                       -                 -                    5,159.50           -               -                 -                    -                 -                      -                     5,159.50              5,159.50              -                               

804 EDA CARES Act 20-22 -                       173,674.60   -                    -                    -               -                 -                    -                 -                      -                     173,674.60         173,674.60         -                               

805 CSEC 9-1-1 FY 20-21 -                       -                 -                    593,112.40       -               -                 -                    -                 -                      -                     593,112.40         593,112.40         -                                

820 CACFP FY 20-21 -                       -                 15.95                -                    -               -                 -                    -                 -                      -                     15.95                   15.95                   -                               

827 RSVP FY 21-22 113,240.97         -                 -                    -                    -               650.00           -                    -                 -                      -                     113,890.97         113,890.97         -                                

829 Head Start FY 21-22 4,311,353.36      211,924.31   -                    -                    -               (12,061.63)    1,040,003.22    -                 -                      -                     5,551,219.26      5,551,202.78      16.48                           Expense correction will clear in July

Multi CVTD AR Expenses -                       -                 -                    -                    -               -                 -                    -                 3,077,849.13      -                     3,077,849.13      3,077,845.95      3.18                             Expense correction will clear in July

A01 Area Agency on Aging FY 21-22 -                       342,076.00   473,818.00       90,008.00         -               4,000.00        16,390.00         22,154.86     70,648.33           -                     1,019,095.19      1,001,145.27      17,949.92                    Membership Dues to be used as Administrative Match

C01 CJ Academy FY 21-23 -                       -                 -                    55,059.95         32,939.74   40,927.00     -                    57,858.00     -                      -                     186,784.69         159,648.54         27,136.15                    Excess funding, will use through fiscal year

C02 CJD Planning FY 21-22 -                       -                 -                    32,898.82         -               -                 -                    -                 -                      -                     32,898.82           28,753.26           4,145.56                      Excess funding, will use through fiscal year

C03 CJ Equipment FY 21-22 -                       -                 -                    20,652.20         -               -                 -                    -                 -                      -                     20,652.20           20,652.20           -                               

D01 ADRC FY 21-22 -                       -                 38,106.78         76,507.43         -               -                 -                    -                 -                      -                     114,614.21         114,614.21         -                               

F01 Foster Grandparent FY 21-22 230,632.43         -                 -                    -                    -               -                 12,958.00         -                 -                      -                     243,590.43         243,590.43         -                               

G01 RSVP State FY 21-22 -                       -                 -                    34,730.78         -               1.65               -                    -                 -                      -                     34,732.43           34,732.43           -                               

H01 Head Start CACFP COVID-19 -                       21,779.94     -                    -                    -               -                 -                    -                 -                      -                     21,779.94           5,758.22              16,021.72                    Emergency funds to be returned to CACFP

H02 Head Start CACFP FY 21-22 -                       -                 404,164.80       -                    -               -                 -                    -                 -                      -                     404,164.80         355,794.50         48,370.30                    Excess funding, will use through fiscal year

H03 Head Start FY 22-23 510,273.85         -                 -                    -                    -               -                 -                    -                 -                      -                     510,273.85         510,273.85         -                               

I01 Economic Development District-TXDOT -                       -                 -                    -                    -               -                 -                    -                 140,136.00         -                     140,136.00         140,136.00         -                               

J01 Juvenile Justice Services FY 21-22 -                       -                 26,769.60         -                    -               -                 -                    -                 -                      -                     26,769.60           26,769.60           -                               

S01 Senior Companion FY 21-22 142,044.84         -                 -                    -                    -               -                 10,643.00         -                 -                      -                     152,687.84         152,687.84         -                               

S02 SCP State HHS000871100039 Year2 -                       -                 -                    1,751.75           -               -                 -                    -                 -                      -                     1,751.75              1,751.75              -                               

T01 211 Information & Referral FY 21-22 -                       3,616.97        77,859.66         74,897.10         -               -                 -                    -                 -                      -                     156,373.73         156,373.73         -                               

V01 Violence Against Women FY 21-22 -                       -                 6,244.78           -                    -               -                 -                    7,295.00        -                      -                     13,539.78           13,539.78           -                                

W01 TCEQ Solid Waste FY 21-23 -                       -                 -                    25,624.66         -               -                 -                    -                 -                      -                     25,624.66           25,624.66           -                               

X01 Homeland Security SHSP FY 21-22 -                       -                 93,553.35         -                    -               -                 -                    -                 -                      -                     93,553.35           93,553.35           -                                

X02 HSGD FY 21-22 -                       -                 -                    13,668.97         -               -                 -                    -                 -                      -                     13,668.97           9,137.14              4,531.83                      Excess funding, will use through fiscal year

X03 HSGP MACC Communications -                       -                 2,666.93           -                    -               -                 -                    -                 -                      -                     2,666.93              2,666.93              -                                

Z01 911 CSEC FY 22, 1st Yr Biennium -                       -                 -                    1,244,139.83    -               -                 -                    -                 -                      -                     1,244,139.83      1,244,139.83      -                               

092 Procurement Services -                       -                 -                    -                    -               -                 -                    -                 -                      347,364.49       347,364.49         347,364.47         0.02                             rounding

093 Human Resources Services -                       -                 -                    -                    -               -                 -                    -                 -                      247,335.19       247,335.19         247,335.20         (0.01)                            rounding

094 Information Technology Services -                       -                 -                    -                    -               -                 -                    -                 -                      329,338.03       329,338.03         329,338.03         -                                

095 Engagement Committee -                       -                 -                    -                    -               410.60           -                    5,770.00        -                      -                     6,180.60              3,257.15              2,923.45                      Excess funding, will use through fiscal year

096 Property Management -                       -                 -                    -                    -               -                 -                    -                 -                      302,712.19       302,712.19         302,712.18         0.01                             rounding

097 Non Project Expenses -                       -                 -                    -                    -               15,465.04     -                    9,431.27        -                      -                     24,896.31           35,224.49           (10,328.18)                  Expenses associated with CVCOG rebranding

098 Fringe Benefit -                       -                 -                    -                    -               -                 -                    -                 -                      345,322.42       345,322.42         209,257.67         136,064.75                 Excess funding, will use through fiscal year

099 Indirect -                       -                 -                    -                    -               11.67             -                    -                 -                      648,765.52       648,777.19         651,699.26         (2,922.07)                    Additional expenses incurred in June

5,307,545.45      753,071.82   1,123,199.85    2,268,211.39    32,939.74   65,602.81     1,079,994.22    102,509.13   3,373,277.08      2,220,837.84    16,327,189.33    16,087,153.51    240,035.82                 

0.56                     0.08               0.12                  0.24                     

Total Government Grants Spent 9,452,028.51       44% 105,426.88                   Program

Total Program 32,939.74            56% 134,608.94                   General Purpose

Total Local 168,111.94          240,035.82                   

Total In-Kind 1,079,994.22       

Total Pass-Thru 3,373,277.08       

Total Cost Allocation 2,220,837.84       

16,327,189.33     



Concho Valley Council of Governments Cash Flow

Beginning Balance: 1,125,860$  254$               217,955$   CVCOG 627,043$      9,391$           255,421$           -$               Total

FY 21-22 Inflows Outflows Balance Inflows Interest Outflows Balance Inflows Interest Outflows Balance Balance Inflows Outflows Balance Inflows Outflows Balance Inflows Outflows Balance Inflows Outflows Balance Balance

October 1,831,397  (2,351,835)   605,422      497,988  11            (65,252)           433,001        34,731    7                -             252,692            1,291,116      295,515     (129,602)       792,956        4,507               (3,752)            10,146             40,434         (92,963)              202,893            -          -                  -          2,297,110  

November 1,223,321  (1,441,853)   386,890      -          12            (124,881)         308,132        -          9                -             252,701            947,723         341,246     (619,654)       514,549        3,888               (3,587)            10,447             60,561         (40,302)              223,152            -          -                  -          1,695,871  

December 1,400,883  (1,580,398)   207,375      -          9              (80,228)           227,914        -          9                -             252,710            687,999         844,674     (488,407)       870,816        5,646               (4,603)            11,491             84,060         (65,000)              242,212            -          -                  -          1,812,518  

January 2,094,100  (1,477,340)   824,135      -          7              (213,753)         14,167          -          12             -             252,722            1,091,024      930,683     (768,227)       1,033,273     5,043               (4,510)            12,024             17,567         (80,318)              179,461            -          -                  -          2,315,782  

February 1,369,212  (1,558,245)   635,102      265,904  12            (21,042)           259,042        -          24             -             252,746            1,146,890      279,483     (602,194)       710,562        4,784               (4,847)            11,961             3,959           (12,095)              171,325            -          -                  -          2,040,737  

March 1,426,261  (1,464,307)   597,056      -          57            (90,417)           168,682        3,025      63             -             255,834            1,021,572      578,397     (502,085)       786,873        6,629               (5,231)            13,359             199,768       (41,566)              329,528            -          -                  -          2,151,331  

April 1,722,799  (1,712,298)   607,556      313,881  97            -                  482,660        -          85             -             255,919            1,346,135      278,721     (437,195)       628,399        7,273               (7,110)            13,522             156,069       (107,117)            378,480            -          -                  -          2,366,537  

May 1,779,201  (1,636,003)   750,754      -          236          (144,620)         338,276        -          146           -             256,065            1,345,095      786,189     (472,045)       942,544        7,448               (6,310)            14,660             112,528       (22,677)              468,330            -          -                  -          2,770,629  

June 1,200,924  (1,316,649)   635,029      -          173          (172,103)         166,345        -          178           -             256,243            1,057,617      253,386     (431,870)       764,060        7,240               (6,221)            15,679             7,802           (11,644)              464,489            -          -                  -          2,301,845  

July -              -                -              -          -          -                  -                -          -            -             -                    -                 -              -                -                -                   -                  -                   -               -                      -                    -          -                  -          -              

August -              -                -              -          -          -                  -                -          -            -             -                    -                 -              -                -                -                   -                  -                   -               -                      -                    -          -                  -          -              

September -              -                -              -          -          -                  -                -          -            -             -                    -                 -              -                -                -                   -                  -                   -               -                      -                    -          -                  -          -              
 

Beginning Balance: 852,791$      78,321$          57,863$     CVCOG 442,847$      7,936$           154,893$           550,000$       Total

FY 20-21 Inflows Outflows Balance Inflows Interest Outflows Balance Inflows Interest Outflows Balance Balance Inflows Outflows Balance Inflows Outflows Balance Inflows Outflows Balance Inflows Outflows Balance Balance

October 1,550,872  (1,885,639)   518,024      378,789  23            (21,625)           435,509        59,701    7                -             117,571            1,071,104      412,720     (246,639)       608,928        -                   -                  7,936               22,452         (50,021)              127,324            -          -                  550,000  2,365,292  

November 1,659,369  (1,228,094)   949,299      -          27            (111,134)         324,401        -          8                -             117,579            1,391,280      355,744     (579,201)       385,470        -                   -                  7,936               36,132         (65,612)              97,845              -          -                  550,000  2,432,531  

December 1,194,051  (1,452,857)   690,493      -          12            (202,777)         121,637        -          6                (37,349)      80,237              892,367         596,392     (647,429)       334,433        -                   -                  7,936               2,864           (48,894)              51,815              -          -                  550,000  1,836,552  

January 1,643,830  (1,484,818)   849,505      210,830  11            -                  332,477        -          5                -             80,242              1,262,224      1,385,224  (628,973)       1,090,684     -                   -                  7,936               220,188       (163,086)            108,918            -          -                  550,000  3,019,762  

February 1,148,521  (959,963)       1,038,063   -          18            (104,431)         228,063        4,850      5                -             85,097              1,351,223      109,922     (506,821)       693,786        -                   -                  7,936               107,496       (29,764)              186,649            -          -                  550,000  2,789,594  

March 1,333,497  (1,519,529)   852,031      -          5              (94,991)           133,078        -          3                -             85,100              1,070,208      820,390     (506,461)       1,007,714     -                   -                  7,936               113,869       (130,000)            170,518            -          550,000         -          2,256,376  

April 1,437,841  (1,577,915)   711,957      -          3              -                  133,081        -          2                -             85,102              930,139         546,601     (411,645)       1,142,670     -                   -                  7,936               74,332         (100,282)            144,568            -          -                  -          2,225,314  

May 1,573,197  (1,190,608)   1,094,546   -          2              -                  133,083        -          1                -             85,103              1,312,732      482,059     (685,677)       939,053        -                   -                  7,936               34,310         (41,137)              137,741            -          -                  -          2,397,462  

June 1,266,906  (1,569,129)   792,323      -          1              -                  133,084        -          1                -             85,104              1,010,511      597,653     (238,484)       1,298,221     3,408               (2,228)            9,116               101,576       (39,645)              199,673            -          -                  -          2,517,521  

July 1,968,484  (1,885,819)   874,988      -          3              -                  133,087        -          2                -             85,106              1,093,180      436,381     (591,857)       1,142,746     4,022               (4,463)            8,675               58,901         (34,567)              224,006            -          -                  -          2,468,608  

August 1,085,360  (1,221,427)   738,921      -          5              -                  133,092        -          3                -             85,109              957,121         382,412     (473,866)       1,051,292     4,301               (2,547)            10,429             157,213       (25,980)              355,240            -          -                  -          2,374,082  

September 1,851,412  (1,464,472)   1,125,860   -          3              (132,841)         254                132,841  6                -             217,955            1,344,070      337,817     (762,066)       627,043        3,805               (4,843)            9,391               5,788           (105,606)            255,421            -          -                  -          2,235,925  
 

Maturity date March 5, 2021

In compliance with PFIA 2256.023 and CVCOG Investment Policy section XI

signature on hardcopy

CVCOG Interim Executive Director

signature on hardcopy

CVCOG Director of Finance

hardcopy signed 7/6/2022

Date

Interest Rate at 0.8468% as of 6/01/2022 Interest Rate at 0.8468% as of 6/01/2022

Interest Rate at 0.6917% as of 5/02/22 Interest Rate at 0.6917% as of 5/02/22

Interest Rate at 0.3925% as of 4/01/22 Interest Rate at 0.3925% as of 4/01/22

Interest Rate at 0.043400% as of 11/01/21 Interest Rate at 0.043400% as of 11/01/21

Interest Rate at 0.034500% as of 10/01/21

First Financial

Interest Rate at 0.017900% as of 05/03/21 Interest Rate at 0.017900% as of 05/03/21

Interest Rate at 0.041200% as of 12/01/21

Interest Rate at 0.055300% as of 1/03/22 Interest Rate at 0.055300% as of 1/03/22

Interest Rate at 0.036600% as of 03/01/21

Interest Rate at 0.122800% as of 2/01/22

Interest Rate at 0.2911% as of 3/01/22 Interest Rate at 0.2911% as of 3/01/22

CVTD - CD (000's)

CD closed March 2021

CVTD-ICB (000's)

Account opened to segregate Greyhound Funds

$13,929.33 belongs to CVTD deposited to maintain account

Interest Rate at 0.122800% as of 2/01/22

$7,935.77 belongs to CVTD deposited to maintain account

Interest Rate at 0.085900% as of 11/02/20 Interest Rate at 0.085900% as of 11/02/20

Interest Rate at 0.079500% as of 12/01/20 Interest Rate at 0.079500% as of 12/01/20

Interest Rate at 0.073100% as of 01/04/21

Interest Rate at 0.028100% as of 04/01/21

First Financial

Interest Rate at 0.034500% as of 10/01/21

Interest Rate at 0.092700% as of 10/01/20

CVTD (000's)

First Financial

First Financial

9-1-1 Trust Account (000's) General Investment Savings

Interest Rate at 0.041200% as of 12/01/21

CVCOG General Fund (000's) 9-1-1 Trust Account (000's) General Investment Savings CVTD (000's)
First Financial First Financial

CVEDD (000's)
First Financial First Financial First Financial

CVCOG General Fund (000's)
First Financial First Financial First Financial

Interest Rate at 0.092700% as of 10/01/20

Account opened to segregate Greyhound FundsInterest Rate at 0.088000% as of 09/30/20

CVTD-ICB (000's)

Interest Rate at 0.028100% as of 04/01/21

Interest Rate at 0.012800% as of 06/01/21 Interest Rate at 0.012800% as of 06/01/21

Interest Rate at 0.036600% as of 03/01/21

Interest Rate at 0.048700% as of 09/01/21 Interest Rate at 0.048700% as of 09/01/21

Interest Rate at 0.073100% as of 01/04/21

Interest Rate at 0.024700% as of 07/01/21 Interest Rate at 0.024700% as of 07/01/21

Interest Rate at 0.072000% as of 02/01/21

CD funds applied to Note Payable

Account Closed

Interest Rate at 0.043400% as of 08/02/21 Interest Rate at 0.043400% as of 08/02/21

CVTD - CD (000's)

CD setup March 6, 2020

Interest Rate is 1%, term is 1 Year

CVEDD (000's)

Interest Rate at 0.072000% as of 02/01/21

Interest Rate at 0.088000% as of 09/30/20

I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I 

I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I 



Beginning Balance: 512,440$      52,098$          54,172$     CVCOG 866,843$      10,080$         159,908$           -$               Total

FY 19-20 Inflows Outflows Balance Inflows Interest Outflows Balance Inflows Interest Outflows Balance Balance Inflows Outflows Balance Inflows Outflows Balance Inflows Outflows Balance Inflows Outflows Balance Balance

October 2,034,109  (2,092,445)   454,104      490,901  687          (94,545)           449,140        -          77             -             54,249              957,493         266,167     (480,776)       652,233        7,028               (6,252)            10,856             153,239       (44,332)              268,815            -          -                  -          1,889,397  

November 1,825,827  (1,578,866)   701,066      -          463          (125,834)         323,769        -          67             -             54,316              1,079,151      248,049     (424,344)       475,939        4,746               (5,655)            9,947               8,192           (44,269)              232,738            -          -                  -          1,797,774  

December 1,160,586  (1,377,824)   483,828      -          279          (132,828)         191,221        -          59             -             54,376              729,424         752,241     (381,046)       847,134        8,299               (6,397)            11,849             39,835         (13,852)              258,721            -          -                  -          1,847,128  

January 1,622,248  (1,330,300)   775,776      -          115          (126,621)         64,715          3,250      69             -             57,695              898,185         1,157,462  (437,528)       1,567,068     5,664               (8,183)            9,330               12,823         (65,500)              206,044            -          -                  -          2,680,628  

February 1,484,162  (1,656,997)   602,941      344,808  324          (114,591)         295,255        -          58             -             57,753              955,949         399,105     (527,493)       1,438,680     7,575               (8,032)            8,873               51,024         (112,061)            145,008            -          -                  -          2,548,510  

March 1,212,074  (1,232,261)   582,754      -          201          (139,967)         155,489        -          63             -             57,816              796,060         364,412     (1,148,213)    654,879        4,586               (5,164)            8,295               36,760         (30,270)              151,498            550,000  -                  550,000  2,160,732  

April 2,029,840  (2,211,983)   400,611      719,031  179          -                  874,700        -          19             -             57,835              1,333,145      365,247     (420,910)       599,216        -                   (360)               7,936               64,302         (10,524)              205,275            -          -                  550,000  2,695,572  

May 1,547,259  (1,202,357)   745,513      -          87            (127,314)         747,473        -          6                -             57,841              1,550,827      292,843     (412,858)       479,201        -                   -                  7,936               1,760           (21,146)              185,889            -          -                  550,000  2,773,853  

June 997,548     (1,162,320)   580,741      -          60            (134,801)         612,732        -          5                -             57,846              1,251,320      700,808     (387,286)       792,723        -                   -                  7,936               4,023           (21,774)              168,138            -          -                  550,000  2,770,116  

July 1,552,898  (1,464,054)   669,585      -          65            (155,137)         457,660        -          7                -             57,853              1,185,099      454,161     (779,524)       467,360        -                   -                  7,936               36,926         (32,658)              172,406            -          -                  550,000  2,382,801  

August 1,362,160  (1,299,161)   732,584      -          33            (168,059)         289,634        -          5                -             57,859              1,080,077      409,455     (381,205)       495,609        -                   -                  7,936               29,720         (15,102)              187,024            -          -                  550,000  2,320,646  

September 2,781,918  (2,661,712)   852,791      -          15            (211,328)         78,321          -          4                -             57,863              988,975         447,076     (499,838)       442,847        -                   -                  7,936               67,868         (100,000)            154,893            -          -                  550,000  2,144,650  
 

 

Beginning Balance: 422,124$      755,459$        49,764$     CVCOG 768,881$      9,625$           208,540$           Total

FY 18-19 Inflows Outflows Balance Inflows Interest Outflows Balance Inflows Interest Outflows Balance Balance Inflows Outflows Balance Inflows Outflows Balance Inflows Outflows Balance Balance

October 1,314,423  (1,224,296)   512,251      -          1,045      (150,533)         605,971        -          80             -             49,844              1,168,066      736,983     (485,436)       1,020,428     9,411               (8,075)            10,961             13,771         (47,697)              174,614            2,374,069  

November 1,324,336  (976,119)       860,468      -          787          (247,928)         358,831        -          85             -             49,929              1,269,227      433,399     (405,306)       1,048,521     8,705               (5,159)            14,506             40,324         (42,607)              172,331            2,504,585  

December 1,649,406  (1,181,028)   1,328,846   -          392          (133,156)         226,066        -          80             -             50,009              1,604,922      568,264     (413,848)       1,202,937     9,800               (9,390)            14,915             135,465       (187,902)            119,894            2,942,667  

January 1,257,912  (1,919,331)   667,427      398,617  964          (101,828)         523,820        -          88             -             50,097              1,241,343      757,544     (560,756)       1,399,725     10,754             (14,094)          11,575             80,199         (62,930)              137,163            2,789,805  

February 1,126,901  (1,277,584)   516,743      -          670          (155,716)         368,774        -          80             -             50,177              935,694         373,197     (256,333)       1,516,588     9,441               (7,140)            13,876             30,683         (11,937)              155,909            2,622,067  

March 1,262,540  (862,946)       916,337      -          421          (207,267)         161,928        3,375      94             -             53,646              1,131,911      297,289     (422,349)       1,391,528     5,944               (8,209)            11,610             40,764         (39,585)              157,088            2,692,138  

April 1,812,400  (1,612,815)   1,115,923   455,481  907          (123,176)         495,140        -          92             -             53,738              1,664,801      349,516     (412,629)       1,328,416     10,078             (10,893)          10,795             2,432           (9,932)                 149,588            3,153,600  

May 1,910,500  (2,650,856)   375,566      -          756          (144,374)         351,522        -          101           -             53,839              780,926         310,696     (596,263)       1,042,849     8,434               (7,441)            11,789             156,786       (109,186)            197,188            2,032,752  

June 1,327,216  (1,113,389)   589,393      -          354          (200,347)         151,529        -          84             -             53,923              794,845         428,013     (393,709)       1,077,152     6,546               (7,333)            11,002             2,050           (16,599)              182,639            2,065,638  

July 1,934,176  (1,914,616)   608,953      413,839  592          -                  565,961        -          88             -             54,010              1,228,924      446,427     (464,973)       1,058,606     8,239               (8,125)            11,115             15,597         (30,215)              168,021            2,466,666  

August 1,578,031  (1,260,391)   926,593      -          565          (514,495)         52,030          -          90             -             54,101              1,032,723      444,379     (439,246)       1,063,739     8,666               (9,079)            10,703             31,360         (9,908)                 189,473            2,296,638  

September 959,826     (1,373,979)   512,440      -          68            -                  52,098          -          71             -             54,172              618,710         219,522     (416,419)       866,843        7,096               (7,719)            10,080             2,499           (32,064)              159,908            1,655,540  
 

First Financial

Interest Rate at 2.076100% as of 03/01/19

CVTD (000's)

Interest Rate at 1.944400% as of 11/01/18 Interest Rate at 1.944400% as of 11/01/18

Interest Rate at 2.076100% as of 03/01/19

Interest Rate at 2.088800% as of 02/01/19

Interest Rate at 1.848500% as of 08/01/19

First FinancialFirst Financial First Financial

CVCOG General Fund (000's) 9-1-1 Trust Account (000's) General Investment Savings

Account opened to segregate Greyhound Funds

Interest Rate at 1.339200% as of 01/02/2020 Interest Rate at 1.339200% as of 01/02/2020

CVTD-ICB (000's) CVEDD (000's)
First Financial

Interest Rate at 1.884500% as of 10/01/18 Interest Rate at 1.884500% as of 10/01/18 Account opened to segregate Greyhound Funds

First Financial

Interest Rate at 2.072300% as of 05/01/19

Interest Rate at 1.714500% as of 09/03/19 Interest Rate at 1.714500% as of 09/03/19

Approximately $9,089 belongs to CVTD Local Cash

Interest Rate at 2.025200% as of 12/03/18 Interest Rate at 2.025200% as of 12/03/18

Interest Rate at 2.065900% as of 01/02/19 Interest Rate at 2.065900% as of 01/02/19

Interest Rate at 1.848500% as of 08/01/19

Interest Rate at 2.088800% as of 02/01/19

Interest Rate at 2.039600% as of 06/03/19 Interest Rate at 2.039600% as of 06/03/19

Interest Rate at 1.910600% as of 07/01/19

CVTD - CD (000's)

Interest Rate at 1.910600% as of 07/01/19

Interest Rate at 1.671700% as of 10/01/19 Interest Rate at 1.671700% as of 10/01/19

Interest Rate at 2.094200% as of 04/01/19 Interest Rate at 2.094200% as of 04/01/19

Interest Rate at 2.072300% as of 05/01/19

First Financial First Financial First Financial First Financial First Financial First Financial

CVCOG General Fund (000's) 9-1-1 Trust Account (000's) General Investment Savings CVTD (000's) CVTD-ICB (000's) CVEDD (000's)

CD setup March 6, 2020

Interest Rate at 1.459600% as of 11/01/19 Interest Rate at 1.459600% as of 11/01/19 $7,935.77 belongs to CVTD deposited to maintain account Interest Rate is 1%, term is 1 Year

Interest Rate at 1.341300% as of 12/30/19 Interest Rate at 1.341300% as of 12/30/19

Interest Rate at 0.140000% as of 07/01/2020 Interest Rate at 0.140000% as of 07/01/2020

Interest Rate at 0.115400% as of 08/03/2020 Interest Rate at 0.115400% as of 08/03/2020

Interest Rate at 1.324000% as of 02/03/2020 Interest Rate at 1.324000% as of 02/03/2020

Interest Rate at 1.333900% as of 03/02/2020 Interest Rate at 1.333900% as of 03/02/2020

Interest Rate at 0.396100% as of 04/01/2020 Interest Rate at 0.396100% as of 04/01/2020

Interest Rate at 0.088000% as of 09/01/2020 Interest Rate at 0.088000% as of 09/01/2020

Interest Rate at 0.106900% as of 06/01/2020 Interest Rate at 0.106900% as of 06/01/2020

I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I 

I I I I I I I I I I I I I I 



“Children are like wet cement. Whatever falls on them makes an impression.” -Cheryl Mayberry 

Month: June  2022 Current Actual 
Enrollment 

(COVID-19 we are allowed to use 
actual enrollment instead of funded 

enrollment) 

COG Head Start # of Children  
With IEP 

N/A N/A 

Percentage this month N/A  

COG Early Head Start # of 
Children with IFSP 

10 119 
(children only) 

Percentage this month 8.4%  

Total # of children with IEP/IFSP 10  

Program -wide percentage this 
month 

8.4%  

August 2022 

The Head Start office requires our program to report enrollment statistics to determine if 
programs have achieved and maintained enrollment levels. Enrollment data will be 
collected every month. This information will be combined enrollment for Head Start and 
Early Head Start and the Pregnant Mom’s Program. – Ofelia Baron 

HEAD START STAFF 
Administrative Office 

5430 Link Road 
Phone (325)944-9666 

 

Carolina Raymond 
Director 

 

Stephanie Hernandez 
Assistant Director / Early Head Start 

Education Manager 
 

Cheryl Mayberry 
Education & Disability Manager 

 

Ofelia Barron 
ERSEA & Facility Manager 

 

Mary Husted 
Compliance & Nutrition Specialist 

 

Stacy Walker 
Family & Community, Parent 

Engagement Manager 
 

Melissa Miranda 
Health & Mental Health Manager 

Enrollment – June 2022 
 

Head Start Funded 
Enrollment: N/A      Reported Enrollment: N/A    Percent Enrolled: N/A 

 
Early Head Start Funded 

Enrollment: 120    Reported Enrollment: 120    Percent Enrolled: 100% 
 

Pregnant Moms Funded 
Enrollment: 8          Reported Enrollment: 8         Percent Enrolled: 100% 



 

 

 HEAD START &  

 EARLY HEAD START 
To complete an online application please visit the following website: 

https://www.childplus.net/apply/en-us/773DE148C226FC9E2E99E797A2126082/E0E98AA9744FB24ED4FA53FDF580D0C9  
 

HEAD START (HS) promotes school readiness of children under 5 from low-income families through 
education, health, social and other services. 
 
Early Head Start (EHS) provides intensive comprehensive child development and family support 
services to low-income infants and toddlers under the age of 3 and their families, and to pregnant 
women and their families. 
 

Blackshear Head Start 

Antionette Day 
Monday-Friday  9:00AM-4:00PM  

(325) 658-7442 
 

Christoval Head Start 

Ammie Banks 
Monday-Friday  9:00AM-3:00PM 

(325) 896-7281 
 

Day Head Start/  

Early Head Start 

Comoshontai Hollis 
Monday-Friday  9:00AM-4:00PM 

(325) 481-3395 
 

Eden Head Start 

Mary Torres 
Monday-Friday  9:00AM-3:00PM 

(325) 869-8703 
 
 

Eldorado Head Start 

Abigail Ussery 
Monday-Friday  9:00AM-3:00PM 

(325) 853-3366 

 

Menard Head Start/ 

Early Head Start 

Bertha DeAnda 
Monday-Friday  9:00AM-3:00PM  

(325) 396-2885 

 

Ozona Head Start 

Tracy Ybarra 
Monday-Friday  9:00AM-3:00PM  

(325) 392-3429 
 

Rio Vista Head Start/  

Early Head Start  

Michelle Aguirre 
Monday-Friday  9:00AM-4:00PM  

(325) 659-3670 
 

 

 

https://www.childplus.net/apply/en-us/773DE148C226FC9E2E99E797A2126082/E0E98AA9744FB24ED4FA53FDF580D0C9


Rockin’ the New Year  
Head Start/Early Head - 2022-2023 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 
 

 



 


	EC Mintues from July 13 Meeting
	NOTICE OF PUBLIC MEETING EC AUGUST DRAFT
	*Meeting ID: 810 3961 0821 *Passcode: 392596
	BUSINESS
	REGULAR AGENDA
	Erin M. Hernandez, Interim-Executive Director

	CVCOG June 2022 Travel Report
	CVCOG June 2022 Checks in Excess of 2000
	June 2022 Head Start Grant 829 FY 21-22
	June 2022 Head Start CACFP Nutrition Budget
	June 2022 Head Start Grant H03 FY 21-22
	June 2022 Head Start Open Account Summary
	1480417 Regional LE Training Academy Resolution
	1484322 Juvenile Justice resolution
	1484323 Juvenile Justice resolution
	2952907 CVCOG Regional Planning Resolution
	2952908 CVCOG Regional Planning Resolution
	3973002 VAWA Training Project resolution
	3973003 VAWA Training Project resolution
	4419601 Supplemental Training Resolution
	4467201 Concho Valley Regional Communications Upgrades Resolution
	4512301 MACC Communications Resolution
	4556601 Kimble County Tower Project Resolution
	Texas CVCOG RICP_Draft_Final
	1 Introduction
	1.1 Regional Interoperable Communications Plan Points of Contact
	1.2 Regional Participating Agencies
	1.3 Focus Group Sessions
	1.4 RICP Ratification Process

	2 Governance
	2.1 Statewide Governing Body
	2.2 Regional Governance Authority
	2.3 Regional Interoperable Communications Sub-Committee
	2.4 Regional Governing Body Responsibilities
	2.5 Meeting Schedule
	2.6 RICP Maintenance and Update

	3 Current State
	3.1 Regional System
	3.2 Mobile Communications Command Program

	4 Future System(s)
	4.1 Approach and Methodology
	4.2 Planning by County
	4.2.1 Coke County
	4.2.2 Concho County
	4.2.3 Crockett County
	4.2.4 Edwards County
	4.2.5 Irion County
	4.2.6 Kimble County
	4.2.7 Mason County
	4.2.8 McCulloch County
	4.2.9 Menard County
	4.2.10 Reagan County
	4.2.11 Schleicher County
	4.2.12 Sterling County
	4.2.13 Sutton County
	4.2.14 Tom Green County

	4.3 Planning Summary

	5 Priorities
	5.1 Coke County
	5.1.1 Priority/Goal Description:  Radio Replacement Cycle
	5.1.2 Priority/Goal Description:  Backup Power

	5.2 Concho County
	5.2.1 Priority/Goal Description:  Acquiring Cellular PTT Functions
	5.2.2 Priority/Goal Description:  Backup Power Upgrades
	5.2.3 Priority/Goal Description:  Radio Replacement Cycle

	5.3 Crockett County
	5.3.1 Priority/Goal Description:  Radio Infrastructure Upgrades
	5.3.2 Priority/Goal Description:  Radio Replacement Cycle

	5.4 Edwards County
	5.4.1 Priority/Goal Description: Radio Replacement

	5.5 Irion County
	5.5.1 Priority/Goal Description:  Dispatch Upgrades
	5.5.2 Priority/Goal Description:  Radio Replacement Cycle
	5.5.3 Priority/Goal Description:  Radio System Infrastructure

	5.6 Kimble County
	5.6.1 Priority/Goal Description:  Radio System Infrastructure
	5.6.2 Priority/Goal Description:  Dispatch Upgrades
	5.6.3 Priority/Goal Description:  Radio Replacement Cycle

	5.7 Mason County
	5.7.1 Priority/Goal Description:  Dispatch Console Replacement
	5.7.2 Priority/Goal Description:  Radio Replacement Cycle

	5.8 McCulloch County
	5.8.1 Priority/Goal Description:  Radio System Infrastructure
	5.8.2 Priority/Goal Description:  Mobile Command Trailer
	5.8.3 Priority/Goal Description:  Radio Replacement Cycle
	5.8.4 Priority/Goal Description:  Satellite Communications

	5.9 Menard County
	5.9.1 Priority/Goal Description:  Dispatch Console and CAD Upgrade
	5.9.2 Priority/Goal Description:  Radio Replacement Cycle
	5.9.3 Priority/Goal Description:  Satellite Capability
	5.9.4 Priority/Goal Description:  Radio System Infrastructure

	5.10 Reagan County
	5.10.1 Priority/Goal Description:  Backup Power

	5.11 Schleicher County
	5.11.1 Priority/Goal Description:  Radio Replacement Cycle
	5.11.2 Priority/Goal Description:  Dispatch Upgrades

	5.12 Sterling County
	5.12.1 Priority/Goal Description:  Radio Replacement
	5.12.2 Priority/Goal Description:  Radio Infrastructure Upgrades
	5.12.3 Priority/Goal Description:  Communication Specific Training

	5.13 Sutton County
	5.13.1 Priority/Goal Description:  Radio System Infrastructure
	5.13.2 Priority/Goal Description:  Radio System Replacement Cycle
	5.13.3 Priority/Goal Description: Satellite Communications Capability

	5.14 Tom Green County
	5.14.1 Priority/Goal Description:  Radio Replacement
	5.14.2 Priority/Goal Description:  Additional P25 VHF Repeater on COSA with talkgroups and more capability for responders and dispatch.
	5.14.3 Priority/Goal Description:  LTE coverage is an issue and although there are boosters available, there will still be a need for additional and supplemental coverage at times.


	6 CVCOG Regional Priorities
	6.1 COG Priority Radio Replacement
	6.2 COG Priority Radio System Infrastructure
	6.3 COG Priority Dispatch Center Technologies
	6.4 Planning Summary
	Appendix A Participating, Counties, Jurisdictions, and Agencies
	Appendix B Timeline/Milestone/Cost Estimate, Basic Requirements
	Appendix C Regional Communications Assessment
	Appendix D References
	Appendix E Glossary



	Revised MIP Accounting System Upgrade
	State Salary Schedule and Skill-Base Certifications
	CVCOG FY 22-23 Budget
	01 CVCOG Program Budgets FY 22-23
	02 Proposed FY 22-23 Employee Salary Schedule
	03 Proposed Fringe Benefits FY 22-23

	CVCOG Investment Policy
	02 CVCOG INVESTMENT POLICY
	03 Attachment A CVCOG Strategies
	04 Qualified Broker List

	CVCOG June 2022 Financial Reports
	CVCOG June 2022 Schedule of Revenue by Source
	CVCOG Cash Flow June 2022
	NOTICE OF PUBLIC MEETING EC AUGUST.pdf
	*Meeting ID: 810 3961 0821 *Passcode: 392596
	BUSINESS
	REGULAR AGENDA
	Erin M. Hernandez, Interim-Executive Director

	NOTICE OF PUBLIC MEETING EC AUGUST.pdf
	*Meeting ID: 810 3961 0821 *Passcode: 392596
	BUSINESS
	5. REGULAR AGENDA
	Erin M. Hernandez, Interim-Executive Director


	Judge Hal Spain Cha: 
	rman: 
	Judge J: 
	m O: 
	Bryan ViceChairman: 
	Name: 
	Name_2: 
	59954109: 
	10589: 
	4795: 
	6459: 
	undefined: 
	undefined_2: 
	194614: 
	undefined_3: 
	12839 1: 
	12839 2: 
	4444: 
	21926: 
	undefined_4: 
	undefined_5: 
	1197914: 
	undefined_6: 
	39771: 
	17: 
	undefined_7: 
	undefined_8: 
	177216: 
	undefined_9: 
	1859: 
	undefined_10: 
	undefined_11: 
	526241: 
	undefined_12: 
	1368: 
	3934 Transaction Total: 
	undefined_13: 
	undefined_14: 
	3934: 
	undefined_15: 
	41366: 
	undefined_16: 
	undefined_17: 
	1562534: 
	undefined_18: 
	7644: 
	7644_2: 
	11157: 
	undefined_19: 
	undefined_20: 
	203205: 
	undefined_21: 
	Executive Committee Chair: 
	Executive Committee ViceChair: 
	Executive Committee Chair_2: 
	Executive Committee ViceChair_2: 
	Executive Committee Chair_3: 
	Executive Committee ViceChair_3: 
	Executive Committee Chair_4: 
	Executive Committee ViceChair_4: 
	Executive Committee Chair_5: 
	Executive Committee ViceChair_5: 
	Executive Committee Chair_6: 
	Executive Committee ViceChair_6: 
	Executive Committee Chair_7: 
	Executive Committee ViceChair_7: 
	Executive Committee Chair_8: 
	Executive Committee ViceChair_8: 
	Executive Committee Chair_9: 
	Executive Committee ViceChair_9: 
	Executive Committee Chair_10: 
	Executive Committee ViceChair_10: 
	Executive Committee Chair_11: 
	Executive Committee ViceChair_11: 
	Executive Director: 
	Date: 
	June 2022: 
	Page  ii: 
	June 2022_2: 
	Page  iii: 
	June 2022_3: 
	Page  iv: 
	June 2022_4: 
	Page  v: 
	June 2022_5: 
	Page  vi: 
	June 2022_6: 
	Page  vii: 
	June 2022_7: 
	Page  viii: 
	June 2022_8: 
	Page  ix: 
	June 2022_9: 
	Page  x: 
	June 2022_10: 
	Page  1: 
	June 2022_11: 
	Page  2: 
	June 2022_12: 
	Page  4: 
	June 2022_13: 
	Page  5: 
	June 2022_14: 
	Page  6: 
	June 2022_15: 
	Page  7: 
	1 httpwwwsafecomprogramgovNRrdonlyresFD22B52818B74CB1AF49: 
	June 2022_16: 
	Page  8: 
	June 2022_17: 
	Page  9: 
	June 2022_18: 
	Page  10: 
	June 2022_19: 
	Page  11: 
	June 2022_20: 
	Page  12: 
	June 2022_21: 
	Page  13: 
	June 2022_22: 
	Page  14: 
	June 2022_23: 
	Page  15: 
	June 2022_24: 
	Page  16: 
	June 2022_25: 
	Page  17: 
	June 2022_26: 
	Page  18: 
	June 2022_27: 
	Page  19: 
	June 2022_28: 
	Page  20: 
	June 2022_29: 
	Page  21: 
	June 2022_30: 
	Page  22: 
	June 2022_31: 
	Page  23: 
	June 2022_32: 
	Page  24: 
	June 2022_33: 
	Page  25: 
	June 2022_34: 
	Page  26: 
	June 2022_35: 
	Page  27: 
	June 2022_36: 
	Page  28: 
	June 2022_37: 
	Page  29: 
	June 2022_38: 
	Page  30: 
	June 2022_39: 
	Page  31: 
	June 2022_40: 
	Page  32: 
	June 2022_41: 
	Page  33: 
	June 2022_42: 
	Page  34: 
	June 2022_43: 
	Page  35: 
	June 2022_44: 
	Page  36: 
	June 2022_45: 
	Page  37: 
	June 2022_46: 
	Page  38: 
	June 2022_47: 
	Page  39: 
	June 2022_48: 
	Page  40: 
	June 2022_49: 
	Page  41: 
	June 2022_50: 
	Page  42: 
	June 2022_51: 
	Page  43: 
	June 2022_52: 
	Page  44: 
	June 2022_53: 
	Page  45: 
	June 2022_54: 
	Page  46: 
	June 2022_55: 
	Page  47: 
	June 2022_56: 
	Page  48: 
	June 2022_57: 
	Page  49: 
	June 2022_58: 
	Page  50: 
	June 2022_59: 
	Page  51: 
	June 2022_60: 
	Page  52: 
	June 2022_61: 
	Page  53: 
	June 2022_62: 
	Page  54: 
	June 2022_63: 
	Page  55: 
	June 2022_64: 
	Page  56: 
	June 2022_65: 
	Page  57: 
	June 2022_66: 
	Page  58: 
	Agency PhoneCoke County: 
	Agency PhoneConcho County: 
	Agency PhoneCrockett County: 
	Agency PhoneEdwards County: 
	Agency PhoneIrion County: 
	Agency PhoneKimble County: 
	Agency PhoneJunction City of: 
	Agency PhoneMason County: 
	Agency PhoneMenard County: 
	Agency PhoneMcCulloch County: 
	Agency PhoneBrady City of: 
	Agency PhoneSchleicher County: 
	Agency PhoneSterling County: 
	Agency PhoneSutton County: 
	Agency PhoneSonora City of: 
	Agency PhoneTom Green County: 
	Agency PhoneSan Angelo City of: 
	San Angelo City ofRow1: 
	Agency PhoneRow18: 
	San Angelo City ofRow2: 
	Agency PhoneRow19: 
	San Angelo City ofRow3: 
	Agency PhoneRow20: 
	San Angelo City ofRow4: 
	Agency PhoneRow21: 
	San Angelo City ofRow5: 
	Agency PhoneRow22: 
	San Angelo City ofRow6: 
	Agency PhoneRow23: 
	San Angelo City ofRow7: 
	Agency PhoneRow24: 
	San Angelo City ofRow8: 
	Agency PhoneRow25: 
	San Angelo City ofRow9: 
	Agency PhoneRow26: 
	San Angelo City ofRow10: 
	Agency PhoneRow27: 
	June 2022_67: 
	Page  A1: 
	Coke County: 
	Concho County: 
	Crockett County: 
	Edwards County: 
	Irion County: 
	mcrinercoiriontxus: 
	Kimble County: 
	Mason County: 
	McCulloch County: 
	Menard County: 
	Reagan County: 
	jimreagancountyorg: 
	Schleicher County: 
	Judge Deborah Horwood: 
	Sterling County: 
	325 6504775: 
	Sutton County: 
	Tom Green County: 
	Randy Harris ConstableRow1: 
	Tom Green CountyRow1: 
	325 6596408Row1: 
	randyharriscotomgreentxusRow1: 
	Randy Harris ConstableRow2: 
	Tom Green CountyRow2: 
	325 6596408Row2: 
	randyharriscotomgreentxusRow2: 
	Randy Harris ConstableRow3: 
	Tom Green CountyRow3: 
	325 6596408Row3: 
	randyharriscotomgreentxusRow3: 
	Randy Harris ConstableRow4: 
	Tom Green CountyRow4: 
	325 6596408Row4: 
	randyharriscotomgreentxusRow4: 
	Randy Harris ConstableRow5: 
	Tom Green CountyRow5: 
	325 6596408Row5: 
	randyharriscotomgreentxusRow5: 
	Randy Harris ConstableRow6: 
	Tom Green CountyRow6: 
	325 6596408Row6: 
	randyharriscotomgreentxusRow6: 
	Randy Harris ConstableRow7: 
	Tom Green CountyRow7: 
	325 6596408Row7: 
	randyharriscotomgreentxusRow7: 
	Randy Harris ConstableRow8: 
	Tom Green CountyRow8: 
	325 6596408Row8: 
	randyharriscotomgreentxusRow8: 
	Randy Harris ConstableRow9: 
	Tom Green CountyRow9: 
	325 6596408Row9: 
	randyharriscotomgreentxusRow9: 
	Randy Harris ConstableRow10: 
	Tom Green CountyRow10: 
	325 6596408Row10: 
	randyharriscotomgreentxusRow10: 
	Randy Harris ConstableRow11: 
	Tom Green CountyRow11: 
	325 6596408Row11: 
	randyharriscotomgreentxusRow11: 
	Randy Harris ConstableRow12: 
	Tom Green CountyRow12: 
	325 6596408Row12: 
	randyharriscotomgreentxusRow12: 
	Randy Harris ConstableRow13: 
	Tom Green CountyRow13: 
	325 6596408Row13: 
	randyharriscotomgreentxusRow13: 
	Randy Harris ConstableRow14: 
	Tom Green CountyRow14: 
	325 6596408Row14: 
	randyharriscotomgreentxusRow14: 
	Randy Harris ConstableRow15: 
	Tom Green CountyRow15: 
	325 6596408Row15: 
	randyharriscotomgreentxusRow15: 
	Randy Harris ConstableRow16: 
	Tom Green CountyRow16: 
	325 6596408Row16: 
	randyharriscotomgreentxusRow16: 
	Randy Harris ConstableRow17: 
	Tom Green CountyRow17: 
	325 6596408Row17: 
	randyharriscotomgreentxusRow17: 
	Randy Harris ConstableRow18: 
	Tom Green CountyRow18: 
	325 6596408Row18: 
	randyharriscotomgreentxusRow18: 
	Randy Harris ConstableRow19: 
	Tom Green CountyRow19: 
	325 6596408Row19: 
	randyharriscotomgreentxusRow19: 
	Randy Harris ConstableRow20: 
	Tom Green CountyRow20: 
	325 6596408Row20: 
	randyharriscotomgreentxusRow20: 
	Randy Harris ConstableRow21: 
	Tom Green CountyRow21: 
	325 6596408Row21: 
	randyharriscotomgreentxusRow21: 
	Randy Harris ConstableRow22: 
	Tom Green CountyRow22: 
	325 6596408Row22: 
	randyharriscotomgreentxusRow22: 
	June 2022_68: 
	Page  A2: 
	Statewide Interoperability CoordinatorRow1: 
	Karla JurrensRow1: 
	281 5171240Row1: 
	Statewide Interoperability CoordinatorRow2: 
	Karla JurrensRow2: 
	281 5171240Row2: 
	Statewide Interoperability CoordinatorRow3: 
	Karla JurrensRow3: 
	281 5171240Row3: 
	Statewide Interoperability CoordinatorRow4: 
	Karla JurrensRow4: 
	281 5171240Row4: 
	Statewide Interoperability CoordinatorRow5: 
	Karla JurrensRow5: 
	281 5171240Row5: 
	Statewide Interoperability CoordinatorRow6: 
	Karla JurrensRow6: 
	281 5171240Row6: 
	Statewide Interoperability CoordinatorRow7: 
	Karla JurrensRow7: 
	281 5171240Row7: 
	June 2022_69: 
	Page  A3: 
	Federal Bureau of Investigation: 
	Michael Davis: 
	214 7971256 michaeldavisicfbigov: 
	Alcohol Tobacco and Firearms: 
	James Whatley: 
	281 3723262 jameswhatleyatfgov: 
	Bruce Silvey: 
	936 3661033: 
	US Army Corps of Engineers: 
	Sam Gramlich: 
	Representative Drew Darby: 
	Cheryl DeCordova: 
	State Senator Charles Perry: 
	Laura Lewis: 
	US Representative August Pfluger: 
	Karin Kuykendall: 
	Gary Jones: 
	940 8985399: 
	June 2022_70: 
	Page  A4: 
	Salvation Army: 
	Louis Melindez: 
	Texas Baptist Men: 
	Jim Pinkston: 
	Red Cross: 
	Glenna Harkness: 
	NameLocationRow1: 
	EmailRow1: 
	PhoneRow1: 
	OrganizationRow1: 
	Call signRow1: 
	NameLocationRow2: 
	EmailRow2: 
	PhoneRow2: 
	OrganizationRow2: 
	Call signRow2: 
	June 2022_71: 
	Page  A5: 
	June 2022_72: 
	Page  B1: 
	State of Texas: 
	June 2022_73: 
	Page  C1: 
	June 2022_74: 
	Page  D1: 
	June 2022_75: 
	Page  D2: 
	June 2022_76: 
	Page  D3: 
	June 2022_77: 
	Page  D4: 
	June 2022_78: 
	Page  D5: 
	June 2022_79: 
	Page  E1: 
	June 2022_80: 
	Page  E2: 
	June 2022_81: 
	Page  E3: 
	Name_3: 
	Name_4: 
	Trtle: 
	Title: 
	Date_2: 
	Date_3: 
	QUOTE DETAILS: 
	PREPARED BY: 
	BILLING INFORMA: 
	IO: 
	PRIMARY CONTACT: 
	N: 
	Product Name: 
	Software Subtotal: 
	I TOTALS: 
	Name_5: 
	Title_2: 
	Date_4: 
	Name_6: 
	Title_3: 
	Date_5: 
	Product Name_2: 
	Microix Requisitions  Perpetual License: 
	269500: 
	100000: 
	50000: 
	Year1 Maintenance  Support: 
	Software Subtotal_2: 
	I TOTALS_2: 
	Product Name_3: 
	960000: 
	Software Subtotal_3: 
	Product Name_4: 
	Microix Hosting: 
	Additional Products Subtotal: 
	Product Name_5: 
	Microix Cloud Provisioning: 
	MIP Cloud Database Setup on Hosting: 
	MIP Cloud User Setup on Hosting: 
	Services Discount: 
	Services Subtotal: 
	I TOTALS_3: 
	undefined_22: 
	undefined_23: 
	undefined_24: 
	undefined_25: 
	undefined_26: 
	undefined_27: 
	RequestTtmtON X I o 0   o Fntoa 1n1 JO JI lB  4 r   10 n u 2t t 1 2 J 4 5: 
	RequestTtmtON X: 
	undefined_28: 
	undefined_29: 
	undefined_30: 
	Recurring Fees and Considerations: 
	Other Considerations: 
	Setup: 
	Summary Estimated Annual Net Investment 1512000 Total Net Implementation 650000: 
	Name_7: 
	Title_4: 
	Date_6: 
	Name_8: 
	Title_5: 
	Date_7: 
	ANNEX C: 
	tflME AND ATTENDANCE SERVICES: 
	Name  Please Print: 
	Name  Please Print_2: 
	Title_6: 
	Title_7: 
	Date_8: 
	Date_9: 
	ADP Proprietary and Confidential: 
	0220224134211: 
	ADP Workforce Now: 
	ADP Proprietary and Confidential_2: 
	wntten policy establishing Clients policy with respect to the use of Biometric Data Such policy will include: 
	undefined_31: 
	undefined_32: 
	undefined_33: 
	ADP Workforce Now_2: 
	ADP Proprietary and Confidential_3: 
	undefined_34: 
	undefined_35: 
	undefined_36: 
	undefined_37: 
	ADP Workforce Now_3: 
	Lease pmt: 
	Maint pmt: 
	BW incl: 
	BW rate overage: 
	TOS: 
	Total monthly: 
	Color: 
	BW: 
	Exempt  This is for the Executive Director salary which is set by the CVCOG Governing Board Careful consideration should be given to 1: 
	Exempt  This is for the Executive Director salary which is set by the CVCOG Governing Board Careful consideration should be given to 2: 
	Site Supervisor: 
	275: 
	undefined_38: 
	Executive BoardRow1: 
	Executive BoardRow1_2: 
	DislTict Board: 
	1 Dishict Board 1: 
	Information Tedmology: 
	f Human ResmucesRow1: 
	f Human ResmucesRow1_2: 
	RecepbmustTravel: 
	Payroll: 
	RecepbmustTravelRow1: 
	undefined_39: 
	r: 
	Homeland: 
	ADRC: 
	Row1: 
	r_2: 
	r_3: 
	Solid: 
	undefined_40: 
	7 797 82084Row1: 
	819581046Row1: 
	872625320Row1: 
	365352396Row1: 
	391269898Row1: 
	461273991Row1: 
	70423460747 99269: 
	365352396Row2: 
	391269898Row2: 
	461273991Row2: 
	47 99269Row1: 
	704234607Row2: 
	766301096Row1: 
	677837Row1: 
	675752Row1: 
	677837Row2: 
	675752Row2: 
	319726419: 
	fill_35: 
	4036047913347221: 
	476926159630: 
	4673764Row1: 
	5481640Row1: 
	7181537Row1: 
	16149812224000000: 
	13942601224000000: 
	138 49072Row1: 
	13268144157 98456: 
	16082627157 98456: 
	1687491769775949: 
	13196653846752: 
	Grand Total Program Expondlluros 1874448095 1908482709 2065834862 2215338392 2176564029 2698967698: 
	2215470359: 
	Revenue overExpondlluns 267009 18449 36971 j347902 505116 391709: 
	606307: 
	ExecutiveFinance Organization Chart: 
	Executiv Board: 
	undefined_41: 
	Director of Human Resources: 
	90 VCOG 10 CVEDD 1: 
	90 VCOG 10 CVEDD 2: 
	Director of Finance 100: 
	Nancy lanuario: 
	Assista11t Dir ctor of Finance 100: 
	Finance Manager 89: 
	Gill Ramon: 
	Finance Manager: 
	undefined_42: 
	Nerelyn Dalton: 
	Audrey Aguirre: 
	undefined_43: 
	10 E cutive: 
	Cher 11 Franke: 
	Manag m nt: 
	491911Row1: 
	340122: 
	490847300000: 
	9675Row1: 
	Row1_2: 
	239011Row1: 
	19750Row1: 
	Row1_3: 
	Row1_4: 
	fill_49: 
	fill_50: 
	131415: 
	166823: 
	261215: 
	9420: 
	353770: 
	427000: 
	131415Row1: 
	166823Row1: 
	9420100000: 
	353770100000: 
	427000100000: 
	427000Row1: 
	131415Row2: 
	166823Row2: 
	100000Row1: 
	35377023489: 
	42700023489: 
	427000Row2: 
	131415Row3: 
	2348964460: 
	35377064460: 
	42700064460: 
	427000Row3: 
	131415Row4: 
	353770339287: 
	131415Row5: 
	948Row1: 
	150000862: 
	150000Row1: 
	131415Row6: 
	948Row2: 
	11384Row1: 
	150000583798: 
	150000Row2: 
	86172Row1: 
	341342Row1: 
	1618751350: 
	677091350: 
	135024500: 
	16187524500: 
	6770924500: 
	5000024500: 
	50000Row1: 
	539936: 
	958875: 
	1185702: 
	971718: 
	1349318: 
	1427000: 
	1427000_2: 
	1062322: 
	189337: 
	000: 
	Assistant Director of Financ: 
	fill_6: 
	undefined_44: 
	undefined_45: 
	Procurement: 
	undefined_46: 
	fill_9: 
	Row1_5: 
	undefined_47: 
	undefined_48: 
	112797Row1: 
	214134Row1: 
	10174Row1: 
	20298Row1: 
	33519Row1: 
	35544Row1: 
	7251059: 
	20001059: 
	1059Row1: 
	725Row2: 
	2000Row2: 
	1059Row2: 
	725Row3: 
	2000Row3: 
	30005296: 
	30005296_2: 
	1530: 
	50030: 
	50030_2: 
	15297: 
	500297: 
	500297_2: 
	2823221: 
	3000221: 
	1000221: 
	282323: 
	300023: 
	100023: 
	SubTotal Program Expcnditures: 
	L: 
	L_2: 
	Grand Total Program Expcndituns 223298409795a4254664J9674: 
	Organizational Chart: 
	undefined_49: 
	Felicia Lindsey: 
	undefined_50: 
	Stephanie Laney: 
	124129Row1: 
	147911Row1: 
	41755Row1: 
	33592Row1: 
	960Row1: 
	4133Row1: 
	271Row1: 
	107Row1: 
	271Row2: 
	107Row2: 
	Grand Total Program Expenditures 279717306713321532410155: 
	Organizational Chart_2: 
	John Austin Stokes: 
	Douglas Futrell: 
	Matthew Kuhn: 
	15353Row1: 
	16500Row1: 
	19890Row1: 
	14951Row1: 
	17268Row1: 
	16701Row1: 
	14009Row1: 
	15353Row2: 
	16500Row2: 
	19890Row2: 
	15353Row3: 
	16500Row3: 
	19890Row3: 
	1651: 
	ktrl1: 
	undefined_51: 
	undefined_52: 
	rrojn Eqlpmut: 
	oLtipfITSttll000t: 
	ltinlafirfTShll: 
	lbrTSltl ltinlafirfTShll Jtirati a i kJ Csiila rn: 
	lbrTSltl ltinlafirfTShll Jtirati a i kJ Csiila rn_2: 
	660lbrTSltl ltinlafirfTShll Jtirati a i kJ Csiila rn: 
	lbrTSltl ltinlafirfTShll Jtirati a i kJ Csiila rn_3: 
	55000 3000 45000 7000lbrTSltl ltinlafirfTShll Jtirati a i kJ Csiila rn: 
	lbrTSltl ltinlafirfTShll Jtirati a i kJ Csiila rn_4: 
	12317Row1: 
	9689Row1: 
	14979 26652: 
	12317Row2: 
	14979 266580: 
	70uo: 
	12317Row3: 
	988Row1: 
	80Row1: 
	14979 2665Row3: 
	400Row1: 
	12317Row4: 
	988Row2: 
	80Row2: 
	40080: 
	1580: 
	14580: 
	12317Row5: 
	988Row3: 
	80Row3: 
	80Row1_2: 
	400Row3: 
	12317Row6: 
	988Row4: 
	80Row4: 
	80Row2_2: 
	400Row4: 
	12317Row7: 
	80594: 
	80594_2: 
	400594: 
	5941 350: 
	801 350: 
	4003500: 
	1 350Row1: 
	594Row2: 
	35001 350: 
	1 350Row2: 
	594Row3: 
	1 350Row1_2: 
	594J199: 
	1 350J199: 
	280J199: 
	151J199: 
	7780Row1: 
	8107Row1: 
	8360Row1: 
	8448Row1: 
	B995Row1: 
	9500Row1: 
	7780Row2: 
	8107Row2: 
	8360Row2: 
	8448Row2: 
	B995Row2: 
	7780Row3: 
	8107Row3: 
	8360Row3: 
	8448Row3: 
	CtllPlllooc: 
	300: 
	120: 
	Tnih1lS: 
	360319: 
	319Dwu111dftt1: 
	360Dwu111dftt1: 
	95Dwu111dftt1: 
	79881: 
	319Commalulioa: 
	360Commalulioa: 
	1laa1209149a61922S 2  6500081835: 
	91IERC: 
	undefined_53: 
	110oo: 
	7l7: 
	Organizational Chart_3: 
	Ryan Jansa: 
	undefined_54: 
	undefined_55: 
	Leonel Lopez: 
	22396Row1: 
	22561Row1: 
	22603Row1: 
	54418500: 
	5754Row1: 
	5754Row2: 
	1109Row1: 
	11Row1: 
	2270Row1: 
	Facility Improvement: 
	312000: 
	312000_2: 
	153333: 
	30000: 
	ITotal Utllhies: 
	Gas Utiities Waterutilitieii Trash Serviees BectriclJtftes Southland Storm Water Fee: 
	Gas Utiities Waterutilitieii Trash Serviees BectriclJtftes Southland Storm Water Fee_2: 
	3812: 
	Gas Utiities Waterutilitieii Trash Serviees BectriclJtftes Southland Storm Water Fee_3: 
	4266: 
	Gas Utiities Waterutilitieii Trash Serviees BectriclJtftes Southland Storm Water Fee_4: 
	34914: 
	Gas Utiities Waterutilitieii Trash Serviees BectriclJtftes Southland Storm Water Fee_5: 
	23153679: 
	38300283: 
	Total Building Maintenance: 
	15910Ftoo Generat0 Maiuenance As Ater Mairtenance AC Mailtenance Pest Controt NonVehidc Maintenance Angelo Water RO Service Misc ElectJicat Maintenance MISc Building Mainlenance: 
	17390Ftoo Generat0 Maiuenance As Ater Mairtenance AC Mailtenance Pest Controt NonVehidc Maintenance Angelo Water RO Service Misc ElectJicat Maintenance MISc Building Mainlenance: 
	1923SFtoo Generat0 Maiuenance As Ater Mairtenance AC Mailtenance Pest Controt NonVehidc Maintenance Angelo Water RO Service Misc ElectJicat Maintenance MISc Building Mainlenance: 
	24567Ftoo Generat0 Maiuenance As Ater Mairtenance AC Mailtenance Pest Controt NonVehidc Maintenance Angelo Water RO Service Misc ElectJicat Maintenance MISc Building Mainlenance: 
	23602Ftoo Generat0 Maiuenance As Ater Mairtenance AC Mailtenance Pest Controt NonVehidc Maintenance Angelo Water RO Service Misc ElectJicat Maintenance MISc Building Mainlenance: 
	35118Ftoo Generat0 Maiuenance As Ater Mairtenance AC Mailtenance Pest Controt NonVehidc Maintenance Angelo Water RO Service Misc ElectJicat Maintenance MISc Building Mainlenance: 
	8819SFtoo Generat0 Maiuenance As Ater Mairtenance AC Mailtenance Pest Controt NonVehidc Maintenance Angelo Water RO Service Misc ElectJicat Maintenance MISc Building Mainlenance: 
	236021807: 
	3718Ftoo Generat0 Maiuenance As Ater Mairtenance AC Mailtenance Pest Controt NonVehidc Maintenance Angelo Water RO Service Misc ElectJicat Maintenance MISc Building Mainlenance: 
	5377Ftoo Generat0 Maiuenance As Ater Mairtenance AC Mailtenance Pest Controt NonVehidc Maintenance Angelo Water RO Service Misc ElectJicat Maintenance MISc Building Mainlenance: 
	7134Ftoo Generat0 Maiuenance As Ater Mairtenance AC Mailtenance Pest Controt NonVehidc Maintenance Angelo Water RO Service Misc ElectJicat Maintenance MISc Building Mainlenance: 
	9149Ftoo Generat0 Maiuenance As Ater Mairtenance AC Mailtenance Pest Controt NonVehidc Maintenance Angelo Water RO Service Misc ElectJicat Maintenance MISc Building Mainlenance: 
	10980Ftoo Generat0 Maiuenance As Ater Mairtenance AC Mailtenance Pest Controt NonVehidc Maintenance Angelo Water RO Service Misc ElectJicat Maintenance MISc Building Mainlenance: 
	2340Ftoo Generat0 Maiuenance As Ater Mairtenance AC Mailtenance Pest Controt NonVehidc Maintenance Angelo Water RO Service Misc ElectJicat Maintenance MISc Building Mainlenance: 
	1408Ftoo Generat0 Maiuenance As Ater Mairtenance AC Mailtenance Pest Controt NonVehidc Maintenance Angelo Water RO Service Misc ElectJicat Maintenance MISc Building Mainlenance: 
	05Ftoo Generat0 Maiuenance As Ater Mairtenance AC Mailtenance Pest Controt NonVehidc Maintenance Angelo Water RO Service Misc ElectJicat Maintenance MISc Building Mainlenance: 
	495Ftoo Generat0 Maiuenance As Ater Mairtenance AC Mailtenance Pest Controt NonVehidc Maintenance Angelo Water RO Service Misc ElectJicat Maintenance MISc Building Mainlenance: 
	495Ftoo Generat0 Maiuenance As Ater Mairtenance AC Mailtenance Pest Controt NonVehidc Maintenance Angelo Water RO Service Misc ElectJicat Maintenance MISc Building Mainlenance_2: 
	546667: 
	24000: 
	8000: 
	SuppUos: 
	4508: 
	6073: 
	5709: 
	6058: 
	28468: 
	6817: 
	15860: 
	PhyicalslSafly: 
	619FiNUSon  AFDkftJi fIRScKoil: 
	570203: 
	619FiNUSon  AFDkftJi fIRScKoil_2: 
	570FiNUSon  AFDkftJi fIRScKoil: 
	524FiNUSon  AFDkftJi fIRScKoil: 
	570262: 
	SubTotal Program Expenditures: 
	Note Expenses allocated to Programs based on squm footage occupied 1t Link Road: 
	undefined_56: 
	io1c: 
	c: 
	0100: 
	ladloTyoffk: 
	undefined_57: 
	undefined_58: 
	undefined_59: 
	Organizational Chart_4: 
	Nancy lanuario_2: 
	Ryan Herrera: 
	undefined_60: 
	Operation and Safety: 
	OKeith Weatherspoon: 
	Operations and Safety: 
	Jerami Warren: 
	undefined_61: 
	CAN: 
	undefined_62: 
	Research: 
	Fixed Route: 
	Randy Schneider: 
	Demand Response: 
	Jes e Cavin: 
	Rural Road: 
	Dustin Medders: 
	Building: 
	Leonel Lopez_2: 
	undefined_63: 
	undefined_64: 
	Ojwang 1: 
	Ojwang 2: 
	CVT Financ: 
	Devin Williams 1: 
	Devin Williams 2: 
	Blanca Cr1rdona 1: 
	Blanca Cr1rdona 2: 
	Abarca: 
	Dispatchers: 
	Lead Driver 2: 
	Carl Lohman 1: 
	Carl Lohman 2: 
	undefined_65: 
	Lead Driver Johnathan CloverRow1: 
	Lead Driver Johnathan CloverRow1_2: 
	V cant: 
	S hwernt r: 
	PT 7: 
	2: 
	Alexis Jimenez: 
	1427 62500Row1: 
	170346200Row1: 
	267464200Row1: 
	155954050Row1: 
	1640 12056Row1: 
	2041 52118Row1: 
	2 186324564799269: 
	2371 59903Row1: 
	155954050Row2: 
	1640 12056Row2: 
	2041 52118Row2: 
	4799269Row1: 
	2 18632456Row2: 
	2371 59903Row2: 
	36665403Row1: 
	43297607Row1: 
	36665403Row2: 
	43297607Row2: 
	9129052Row1: 
	36665403Row3: 
	43297607Row3: 
	9129052Row2: 
	1622166413347221: 
	700000Row1: 
	1600104369: 
	2147168Row1: 
	25 47514Row1: 
	4894753Row1: 
	2408570Row1: 
	2549072Row1: 
	631425215798456: 
	264393515798456: 
	450000089775949: 
	2945499Row1: 
	1288122110083198: 
	6059832Row1: 
	1 50207121354: 
	50000121354: 
	1 82823Row1: 
	3989481 23425: 
	Grand To1al Program Expendlwros 5018502385741654455227672587947078426582192198786 14735: 
	5ll5305247: 
	RavenuooverExpendlNros240271684943912l325387111452B68S032175572: 
	60630675: 
	Executive Board: 
	COUNCIL OF GOVERNMENTS: 
	Policy Council: 
	undefined_66: 
	Mary Husted: 
	Cheryl Mayberry: 
	Melis a Miranda: 
	Stacy Walker: 
	Ofelia Baron: 
	undefined_67: 
	undefined_68: 
	undefined_69: 
	undefined_70: 
	ustodian: 
	okCu todian: 
	Cook: 
	Custodian: 
	ustodian_2: 
	Cuslodian: 
	Cook ustodian: 
	Custodian_2: 
	Custodian_3: 
	Cust dian: 
	571747735Row1: 
	592350769Row1: 
	634026082Row1: 
	4379875722841: 
	4730600022841: 
	47306000Row1: 
	156213800114741944: 
	351152720359132136: 
	361147066359132136: 
	387601912Row1: 
	114741944Row1: 
	156213800Row2: 
	359132136Row1: 
	351152720Row2: 
	387601912Row2: 
	113817Row1: 
	106632Row1: 
	6861280Row1: 
	113817Row2: 
	106632Row2: 
	6861280Row2: 
	319726419_2: 
	8550200560498: 
	411346Row1: 
	300000Row1: 
	12876707Row1: 
	13972597Row1: 
	12876707Row2: 
	13972597Row2: 
	500000Row1: 
	6619857Row1: 
	4973892Row1: 
	9500523Row1: 
	6320873Row1: 
	6143170Row1: 
	13202862Row1: 
	11709997Row1: 
	6320873Row2: 
	6143170Row2: 
	13202862Row2: 
	11709997Row2: 
	415470Row1: 
	141937Row1: 
	450000Row1: 
	450000Row1_2: 
	194108Row1: 
	108558Row1: 
	114116Row1: 
	121709Row1: 
	321673Row1: 
	Grand Total Expenditures 787799805772170J3884G981857840976628831155J53922704518: 
	930289000: 
	Revenue over Expendures 4740971  765246018: 
	000_2: 
	Senior Volunteer: 
	Executive Board 1: 
	Executive Board 2: 
	John Austin Stokes_2: 
	FGP: 
	Bowlin: 
	RSVP: 
	Covey: 
	Clen1entine Urista: 
	37422547Row1: 
	36366831Row1: 
	38741640Row1: 
	38741640: 
	531600: 
	fill_8: 
	38741640_2: 
	5097166Row1: 
	5262420Row1: 
	57823185973978: 
	5497864Row1: 
	5827736Row1: 
	5097166Row2: 
	5973978: 
	5782318: 
	22635Row1: 
	18000Row1: 
	220134Row1: 
	18000: 
	220134: 
	3163620Row1: 
	3238899Row1: 
	3590371Row1: 
	2849708: 
	Grand Total Program Expenditures 42412637 40922991 43569940 39183069 37423371 46069300 47121600: 
	Revenue overExpendltureso  oo: 
	21849302Row1: 
	22998248Row1: 
	22511398Row1: 
	225113982000: 
	6475002000: 
	11831212000: 
	6475002000_2: 
	6791002000: 
	1000Row1: 
	2000Row1: 
	647500Row2: 
	647500040: 
	679100040: 
	839123Row1: 
	1826855Row1: 
	1811800Row1: 
	473200: 
	2210000: 
	3765416Row1: 
	3753595Row1: 
	3763912Row1: 
	3530932Row1: 
	3742788Row1: 
	3753595: 
	3763912: 
	374278850000: 
	21222Row1: 
	118TTRow1: 
	138637Row1: 
	118TT: 
	138637: 
	16852752587467: 
	1685275: 
	1939320: 
	100000_2: 
	2751878247: 
	104008Row1: 
	157843Row1: 
	276644Row1: 
	122837Row1: 
	192713474500: 
	300000474500: 
	489072437: 
	1217263865: 
	1048463865: 
	2089363865: 
	5000063865: 
	Grand Total Program Expenditures 22753290 24825101 24323198 24463052 24453368 27897300 282783CO: 
	Revenue over Expendlturoa63865ooaooo11: 
	FY 1617 FY 1718 FY 1619 ACTUAL ACTUAL ACTUALRow1: 
	FY 1617 FY 1718 FY 1619 ACTUAL ACTUAL ACTUALRow1_2: 
	FY 1617 FY 1718 FY 1619 ACTUAL ACTUAL ACTUALRow1_3: 
	FY 1617 FY 1718 FY 1619 ACTUAL ACTUAL ACTUALRow2: 
	FY 1617 FY 1718 FY 1619 ACTUAL ACTUAL ACTUALRow2_2: 
	FY 1617 FY 1718 FY 1619 ACTUAL ACTUAL ACTUALRow2_3: 
	7968167Row1: 
	FY 1617 FY 1718 FY 1619 ACTUAL ACTUAL ACTUALRow3: 
	FY 1617 FY 1718 FY 1619 ACTUAL ACTUAL ACTUALRow3_2: 
	FY 1617 FY 1718 FY 1619 ACTUAL ACTUAL ACTUALRow3_3: 
	7968167Row2: 
	482260024000: 
	484520024000: 
	FY 1617 FY 1718 FY 1619 ACTUAL ACTUAL ACTUALRow4: 
	FY 1617 FY 1718 FY 1619 ACTUAL ACTUAL ACTUALRow4_2: 
	FY 1617 FY 1718 FY 1619 ACTUAL ACTUAL ACTUALRow4_3: 
	7968167Row3: 
	4822600724: 
	4845200724: 
	FY 1617 FY 1718 FY 1619 ACTUAL ACTUAL ACTUALRow5: 
	FY 1617 FY 1718 FY 1619 ACTUAL ACTUAL ACTUALRow5_2: 
	FY 1617 FY 1718 FY 1619 ACTUAL ACTUAL ACTUALRow5_3: 
	92498404526913: 
	97554604526913: 
	103407874526913: 
	4526913Row1: 
	9249840Row2: 
	10340787100000: 
	2800Row1: 
	491974Row1: 
	114489850000: 
	64344Row1: 
	157605Row1: 
	14250Row1: 
	113584Row1: 
	Grand Total Program Expondlturos79681  67176ll8721 22383200aaa199l05800: 
	Rovonua ovor ExpandltuntS 000i: 
	Executiv Board_2: 
	undefined_71: 
	undefined_72: 
	undefined_73: 
	fill_5: 
	undefined_74: 
	A1 21 l Coordinator Nicole Rodriguez: 
	407  00: 
	100188008200: 
	8914500Row1: 
	10018800300000: 
	8914500Row2: 
	2720733131099532: 
	3488053525460069: 
	Row1_6: 
	31099532Row1: 
	27207331Row2: 
	26860854Row1: 
	27009529Row1: 
	25460069Row1: 
	Row2: 
	258965Row1: 
	232424Row1: 
	It 60544Row1: 
	258965Row2: 
	232424Row2: 
	It 60544Row2: 
	5000: 
	5000_2: 
	162343362583: 
	16234349250: 
	18740229991: 
	16615629991: 
	291363Row1: 
	861980Row1: 
	918381914055: 
	900000Row1: 
	900000Row1_2: 
	404278166251: 
	1136282166251: 
	1805544166251: 
	7 56516166251: 
	600000166251: 
	21185041736: 
	154463211963: 
	265915211963: 
	211850257500: 
	356718Row1: 
	4 77462Row1: 
	60000058729: 
	135865875: 
	309975875: 
	309691875: 
	206851875: 
	550000875: 
	550000Row1: 
	Grand Total Pngram Expendituns 15811878133647735141475048161921184155088177179045400: 
	187129100: 
	RownuaoverExpendltunt1C154929104259475747117i316: 
	0001: 
	fill_35_2: 
	Row1_7: 
	fill_36: 
	Row2_2: 
	Row3: 
	fill_8_2: 
	fill_37: 
	Row1_8: 
	8082451Row1: 
	6593366Row1: 
	6854311Row1: 
	fill_38: 
	5539815Row1: 
	Row1_9: 
	fill_39: 
	fill_40: 
	fill_41: 
	fill_42: 
	fill_15: 
	fill_16: 
	fill_17: 
	fill_43: 
	fill_18: 
	fill_19: 
	fill_20: 
	Row1_10: 
	fill_22: 
	fill_23: 
	Row1_11: 
	Row2_3: 
	Row1_12: 
	Row2_4: 
	Row3_2: 
	Row2_5: 
	fill_30: 
	fill_31: 
	3475: 
	60000303756: 
	fill_34: 
	Grand Total Program Expenditures 16246539151i4211316l961900: 
	17155400: 
	undefined_75: 
	RevenueoverExpendltures1400dOOO: 
	461474Row1: 
	9313492823: 
	9695580823: 
	19463000 253700Row1: 
	461474Row2: 
	823Row1: 
	19463000 253700Row2: 
	9672877Row1: 
	7381680: 
	109862199180961: 
	9731247: 
	8793241: 
	7308848Row1: 
	9180961: 
	10986219: 
	7308848Row2: 
	163663Row1: 
	116282Row1: 
	163663Row2: 
	20498Row1: 
	Row1_13: 
	190409: 
	500000Row1_2: 
	419212000: 
	Grand Total Program Expenditures 20352706 18484406 19536373 20298657 19572558 19945200: 
	19716700: 
	Revenue over Expenditures e71332c3264922301923869 4223000: 
	undefined_76: 
	I EPAC I: 
	CJ Advisory: 
	I: 
	undefined_77: 
	fill_8_3: 
	I_2: 
	undefined_78: 
	undefined_79: 
	2 407 91288Row1: 
	271954822Row1: 
	2283 88752 I 2 74470387250458: 
	438029700250458: 
	2570 83900250458: 
	2 407 91288Row2: 
	271954822Row2: 
	2283 88752 I 2 74470387782248: 
	438029700782248: 
	2570 83900782248: 
	23502575Row1: 
	28728220Row1: 
	25184177Row1: 
	31698000Row1: 
	34338888Row1: 
	35604040Row1: 
	38889989Row1: 
	39398425Row1: 
	23502575Row2: 
	28728220Row2: 
	25184177Row2: 
	31698000Row2: 
	34338888Row2: 
	35604040Row2: 
	39398425312500: 
	5603341Row1: 
	5875079Row1: 
	5503815Row1: 
	5603341Row2: 
	5875079Row2: 
	5503815Row2: 
	1313094Row1: 
	5603341Row3: 
	5875079Row3: 
	5503815Row3: 
	1313094Row2: 
	309: 
	1373230Row1: 
	5025690Row1: 
	3987405Row1: 
	1003205Row1: 
	1188885Row1: 
	300000015523833: 
	135815523833: 
	398740530136432: 
	100320530136432: 
	1552383332495559: 
	43100033000: 
	43278514891: 
	31510814891: 
	94971810Row1: 
	181113985Row1: 
	212757534Row1: 
	178917979972902: 
	201600000972902: 
	183610972902: 
	W7: 
	azs  2021  1548uz11r84r  n3721A887zza3  ursz2744103ai74380nroo  z57or3  oo: 
	a9: 
	zu: 
	undefined_80: 
	13229300 27954700Row1: 
	5895484Row1: 
	5446422Row1: 
	4803158Row1: 
	6344354Row1: 
	7635024: 
	9317499Row1: 
	Grand Total Program ExpendHures 14248875 12817475 12737101: 
	12751521: 
	13122495 14750000: 
	41184000: 
	Revenue over Expenditures 662254 90445 165292 248724 423354: 
	000_3: 
	9627549Row1: 
	7287611Row1: 
	6074883Row1: 
	5681449Row1: 
	6357995Row1: 
	6592889Row1: 
	5923545Row1: 
	644926Row1: 
	6424987Row1: 
	7287611Row2: 
	6074883Row2: 
	5681449Row2: 
	6357995Row2: 
	6592889Row2: 
	5923545Row2: 
	642498750000: 
	1719433Row1: 
	1320542Row1: 
	1258477Row1: 
	1719433Row2: 
	1320542Row2: 
	1258477Row2: 
	261441Row1: 
	1719433Row3: 
	1320542Row3: 
	1258477Row3: 
	261441Row2: 
	2548067: 
	2060200: 
	25480671860185: 
	20602001246805: 
	186018520961: 
	206020042636: 
	231480042636: 
	6 7698725600: 
	1798056514637: 
	7 42933514637: 
	967618514637: 
	1022916514637: 
	70313514637: 
	13710023820: 
	11780023820: 
	17072523820: 
	166876301107: 
	1 78260301107: 
	39050301107: 
	20000050000: 
	Gnond Total Program Eapondltunia 193009602053897018242192184603231916070817513447202248oo19974300: 
	RevenueoverEapondltunt568004162606317720110139082097005ooo: 
	4250178: 
	1400195Row1: 
	1888974Row1: 
	2240180Row1: 
	2157272Row1: 
	2363899Row1: 
	1995064Row1: 
	2858585Row1: 
	1888974: 
	2240180: 
	2157272: 
	2363899: 
	1995064: 
	2858585Row2: 
	319832Row1: 
	22055988182: 
	22372288182: 
	319832Row2: 
	88182: 
	220559: 
	319832Row3: 
	88182_2: 
	220559_2: 
	408864: 
	114424408864: 
	67675: 
	67675_2: 
	36365: 
	Row1_14: 
	3636532242: 
	3000: 
	18889: 
	Grand Total Program Expenditures 3288033 3703565 4376749: 
	3725654: 
	3584037: 
	4250178_2: 
	4250178_3: 
	RevenueoverExpendltures1392518515909aia69393922310822821: 
	000_4: 
	324317Row1: 
	428487Row1: 
	332901Row1: 
	752792Row1: 
	605507Row1: 
	578454Row1: 
	437972Row1: 
	1750630: 
	Grand Total Program Expenditures 2740922 2729322 2582024 3271867 4037370 3152852: 
	2590079: 
	Revenue over Expenditures 83560: 
	000_5: 
	undefined_81: 
	Row1_15: 
	Row1_16: 
	Row1_17: 
	Row1_18: 
	963697Row1: 
	305397Row1: 
	1520364Row1: 
	fill_12: 
	fill_13: 
	fill_15_2: 
	fill_16_2: 
	6560: 
	64069Row1: 
	Row1_19: 
	6560_2: 
	64069Row2: 
	150300: 
	Grand Total Program Expenditures 179428213537oo: 
	3020339: 
	Revenue over Expenditures: 
	000_6: 
	Executive Board_2: 
	Organizational Chart_5: 
	Executive Director_2: 
	John Austin Stokes_3: 
	undefined_82: 
	VISTARow1: 
	VISTARow1_2: 
	John Vasquez 45: 
	undefined_83: 
	undefined_84: 
	6000000Row1: 
	7750000Row1: 
	7000000Row1: 
	6000000Row2: 
	1520560020917000: 
	17467003252300: 
	906700Row1: 
	5901069Row1: 
	6762621Row1: 
	6938315Row1: 
	11119361Row1: 
	16085836Row1: 
	10553430Row1: 
	5539086Row1: 
	5901069Row2: 
	6938315: 
	11119361: 
	5539086Row2: 
	1280720Row1: 
	1483590Row1: 
	1280720Row2: 
	1483590Row2: 
	286592Row1: 
	1280720Row3: 
	1483590Row3: 
	286592Row2: 
	137500: 
	137500Row1: 
	137500Row2: 
	12399900Row1: 
	20916900Row1: 
	15747800Row1: 
	17794700Row1: 
	36719176995: 
	43703Row1: 
	61796Row1: 
	126629Row1: 
	87662Row1: 
	8766287900: 
	52750087900: 
	2632Row1: 
	34182Row1: 
	83690Row1: 
	104164Row1: 
	3418284500: 
	8369084500: 
	10416484500: 
	44533584500: 
	84500Row1: 
	34182Row3: 
	83690Row3: 
	13222915568: 
	8357615568: 
	14227915568: 
	15000015568: 
	150000Row1_2: 
	898522793: 
	2117722793: 
	80000Row1: 
	80000Row2: 
	Grand Total Program Expenditures 10942461272 1562637851718374836  767963686379139500: 
	30232700: 
	Revenue over Expenditures 29554059563113891171 14439355 1188877: 
	1000: 
	2547341Row1: 
	2729B61Row1: 
	3189808Row1: 
	2219253Row1: 
	2480450Row1: 
	4079697Row1: 
	1741826Row1: 
	2130140Row1: 
	2547341Row2: 
	2729B61Row2: 
	3189808Row2: 
	2219253Row2: 
	2480450Row2: 
	4079697Row2: 
	213014050000: 
	65249Row1: 
	97535Row1: 
	190537Row1: 
	102735Row1: 
	65249Row2: 
	97535Row2: 
	190537Row2: 
	28743: 
	73483Row1: 
	2383817636: 
	5964223143: 
	6250123143: 
	5964212707944: 
	2022632Row1: 
	11217178Row1: 
	179019Row1: 
	12707944Row1: 
	59642Row3: 
	10962224Row1: 
	4000037500: 
	44880Row1: 
	21680Row1: 
	9432Row1: 
	5165Row1: 
	2013916765: 
	Grand Total Program Expenditures 696118316129302612901917035567456333118060958116000oo116000oo: 
	Revenue over Expendltures: 
	al62789fai000: 
	378215Row1: 
	348934Row1: 
	301555Row1: 
	221995Row1: 
	555841Row1: 
	456349Row1: 
	378215Row2: 
	348934Row2: 
	301555Row2: 
	487997Row1: 
	42053Row1: 
	10502: 
	fill_17_2: 
	Grand Total Program Expenditures 7042207ose426031573405558076208114oo: 
	811400: 
	Revenue over Expenditures i455801076961 14005500525: 
	000_7: 
	FY 1617 ACTUALRow1: 
	FY 1718 ACTUALRow1: 
	FY 1819 ACTUALRow1: 
	FY 1920 ACTUALRow1: 
	FY 2021 ACTUALRow1: 
	FY 1617 ACTUALRow2: 
	FY 1718 ACTUALRow2: 
	FY 1819 ACTUALRow2: 
	undefined_85: 
	Row1_20: 
	undefined_86: 
	635606: 
	2371280: 
	4628455: 
	4701813: 
	undefined_87: 
	62840: 
	217722: 
	62840_2: 
	217722_2: 
	Row1_21: 
	62840Row3: 
	217722Row3: 
	Row2_6: 
	62840Row4: 
	undefined_88: 
	100000_3: 
	undefined_89: 
	2830886: 
	undefined_90: 
	Row1_22: 
	Row1_23: 
	Row2_7: 
	Row3_3: 
	Row1_24: 
	undefined_91: 
	undefined_92: 
	4840: 
	23700: 
	fill_32: 
	Grand Total Program Expenditures 9154aa7Zaa343639210707Z1584953: 
	Revenue over Expendltures69i9aa5313dOOOa: 
	sooo: 
	Buitd1fY lOd Ground MilllhlhllK  J 1fm1um: 
	N_2: 
	Roule rH I Onvtr Ruutc rR 1 D11vrr llidJ Rout fR l Or1vrr Routr fR 4 Or1ve1 Routr fR 5 011vu Routt fR 6 011v11t Roule fR 7 011vl1 Routo UI IS Dmu RoutotlRDrivir Rout fR 10 Orrvitr Rou1 R 11 Dnvtr Route fR 11 Omtr Rout rn I i U11vr Pl rm1mrl1tm11 D11ve fR l Plf1mu01ldt1Ul DIIYlf fft 2 PITunonr11uon Driver fR  3 PTTrUlllOll1llon Driver  rR  4 PTlUIIOOflU10n01vtr  fR f1otdRoutflolk1 Ravi Duvcr Route A1 Onrtr ftoulir 43 Onvlfr lloutot AA Onvcr Rolllt AS Om11f Ro1110 Ar OmPr llo1dl Routt A1 01t11tr Rou1e A8 Driver Route A9 o IYI RoutcAlO Dr1vt1 ROUltAJ DtlVlf Rome All or Roull IG I OrwlI ROUie rG 19 OrvoI JT lti1MPQllillonOr1voADA l PT 0011111on DIIYllJ  AOA  2 PTT1o1MPOflilttOn Dr1v  AOA l PT T1int0041  uon Otlvllf DA 4 PT T11n10011mon Otrv DA 5 Pl Trimoorrumn Orrvr ADA 6 PlTfi11lUOr1  uon Ot1ve1  ADA 7 Pl fro1mnorti11nn Orivtr ADA I Pllro1m111tlltl1on Ouv1Coke CounnJBon1r PI I 1ainwor1n1on Or1vorK1mlit Counw htnIKllldllOn IJrtllofCalo CoumvRab  rt l  lr1nulru1on DmrConchO Countv T11noo11non 011verCroUotl Countv T1ruoo11111on 01vN Crot1ilt Countv l1i1Hll0114110n 011v1K1mwt Counlv lr1nllOlltllC1n D1rcCull0th Co1mlV lledl l r anu10r1110n Orrrr McCuUocn Countv Tr1nwo11o111on D11111 MrCulloch Countv Tro1nU101ta11on Dnv  rMnard County t1noortaton 011verAn Countv Trn1on1tt1oon OnvotrRliln Countv ltUlUOllUIOr011vrSchle1ch01 Tr1nuonatmn Dnvt1S11110nC0untv llitdl 1anuKJ11111m11 011vuSunon Countv Pul l1mr T11n0Stl1li11r County D11vrr DR I 1560 h1 PllrilllUOll11011 01Vtlhltnd Mfd1UI noatHlramoo1111011 011vtr floa1r1 lf11tfOrlo1holi 011vi1: 
	1S9010 IA: 
	Hd Slilr1 UNYfIWI Subillutes  Chm10YI: 
	18955 3S: 
	S65916: 
	undrUt711812: 
	7161010: 
	2150816: 
	7312019: 
	j: 
	undefined_93: 
	11811 3: 
	FV llllYl: 
	365858: 
	Basis for Vacation Leave calculation Gross Salaries on employees eligible for Vacation xs Fringe Benefit Rate: 
	undefined_94: 
	undefined_95: 
	111: 
	11 1u llt 1 11110: 
	iJ llfalhct lhlba l11i1hn: 
	17it7 lJIHiltl11111 r I OI 2J op1: 
	111 111 lhSI: 
	111H 111II IUoil 1111Sl IOhll 1111SI111 111 lhSI: 
	I 1h111101f UIIUIURow1: 
	li  11iUhuluya 1k1 ll1111QIIMm1n1M1Juilr1 lhlJrnJ anJ 1ih M11il11alk llmian Mun1nm  S1u1l1 l1111II I Umi ku1 J K  llmn ii R1111IR IUm1 tlowiclk J lh k1kS ltJ ku11kll1U1   lltJl7llmr k  111lltMlmo KitllUuhr Rwlclk t11Jlof11 W111lk ll lh111 ll11wl HI lluu: 
	MlOlJ 1111111u II l11111 M 17 OIIllluilmu lHI rr1f1fu1111tRJ 1111111ftta lln1 Ill lll1111111Ulllfl ltI lllllHllllOMllltlhllli 11  J kau I i ki111 lw1 Wu1n A lhl1 leuu1ll11111 H11111IJr11 Woul Ai Om1 kllc N 1111111 u1 illAllh1c1 kk Ali Una ICuAJ 11111 l11ll1JlnH1 Milli: 
	undefined_96: 
	Row1_25: 
	ltl Ml  lli  JIU lH lH Jo7 NIU 1i llh IS 11   111 ti rn IIU Jff  H2  lt1Jt  K711 1111 I u   112 I St 1551 11111 15iM 111211 I hUI I hllM 17J  1 ui I illlS 11u 117 111 11J ISIII 11 1Row1: 
	1711 122  I llX I llUI I I UJ1 vt Vlh  I  1J7     NJ   I 1111  lllh H1  1711   J27 JlRow1: 
	undefined_97: 
	111  11u: 
	t  i: 
	IMlt 171Row1: 
	111 ltoHRow1: 
	11u 111 Ill 11    Ill Ill Ill 111     111Row1: 
	Row1_26: 
	111 111 Ju tH  1111 lllh lllh lllh  117 117 J7     l  rn tS 71S  j2 1H: 
	IJ71 I rull   tdl foll hH 1dl 11 7111 1 w 151h I JHh tjJ 1m 1711 I Uh I Ill 171S1H: 
	jllll llCc 1111 21111 2 1111 2  12: 
	lilrH WI: 
	1H11   111  tf11  211 l1ot 111: 
	I 61hoJJ   co: 
	JI 111 ton 111 11il lCSS 1111111: 
	undefined_98: 
	llrh lkJ1tk tI t: 
	undefined_99: 
	llIH j111c1: 
	lrutf: 
	1: 
	llaJ Sun U11111ol S11lrhlill  a A11cl I lJ 11111 I l1mclI lulUllk   11 Anicl lkaJ 11itl IJ111hliil S11lhlJIUIC won i1111I 11J llt1t llmCloll Sub111111 sir11nrclo II ttl 11111ij uu1c  N1 11iJ 111111111wl 11al111ho  0a Alu II Mt 1111111ol S1jfu111i SliuA1id1 ktI S11 111111I S11t11111  S11 Aidu lloJS1a1111111o  I S11bomu1 lh Auvdu llJ11Jl111o  loiJ11111111eM11Aldu lkIJ1  hlwhwitlfkAtttdi llcWul1ll1111flltUt11k 11Allt1 llSu 111111il 111K111111C 11 lncriu: 
	Return to Agenda: 


